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1. Name of Property

historic name ASHLAND RAILROAD ADDITION HISTORIC DISTRICT

other names/site number None

2. Location

street & number Roughly bounded by Lithia Way/East Main, Oak Stréet A Street and 8% Street O not for publication

city or town Ashland 0 vicinity
state Oregon _ code OR county Jackson code 029  zipcode 97520

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1986, as amended, | hereby certify that this ¥ nomination [} request
for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and
meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property K meets O does not meet the
National Register Criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant 0 nationally O statewide R locally. ( T See continuation

walwmme ts.)
/ééﬂf” “4 March 26. 1999

Signature of certifying official/Title Deputy SHPO Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property [0 meets [] does not meet the National Register criteria. ( J See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification

I, hereby certify that this property is: Signature of Keeper Date of Action

Wtered in the National Register -// : ﬁ - / /
See continuation sheet r { / / 5: &/ 97

determined eligible for the National Register B
See continuation sheet.
determined not eligible for the National Register

cor

(-

removed from the National Register

L3

other (expiain):
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NR EVALUATION

[+] HISTORIC NAME OWNER OWNER ADDRESS
1.0 POWELL THADDEUS HSE DUMOND SUSAN 337 OAK ST

20 MC NAIR W. H. & LORENA HSE RUBIN MARGARET NASH 323 OAK ST

30 MC NAIR W. H. HSE PECKHAM FRANCIS BJR 40 GRANITE ST

4.0 VACANT PARCEL PECKHAM FRANCIS B R 40 GRANITE ST #5

50 POWELL D. SHERMAN HSE ROUPP BRAD 1085 DEER VISTA LN
6.0 LOOSELY GEORGE HSE HIBBERT JAMES F/E JANE 263 OAK ST

7.0 MERLEY JOSIAH HSE GUNTER JACKR 1500 NEIL CREEK RD
80 BARNES ALBERT HSE BLAIZE JOHN FRANK/MARY § 239 OAK ST

9.0 SMITH ELLIOTT HSE SMITH WESLEY F 4615 DARLENE LANE
06 THOMPSON RENTAL HSE EDWARDS OREN R JR 219 N MOUNTAIN AVE
1.0 CHAPMAN-MICKELSON HSE EDWARDS OREN E 219 N MOUNTAIN AVE
120 MILLER RENTAL [w/ADDN} KNECHT PHYLLIS SANDERSON PO BOX 1291

13.0 DAMCN GEORGE HSE MATHER ROY F JR TRUSTEE FBO 400 WEST 25TH ST
140 ANGLE LEVIL HSE HAYES MERRILLE 191 OAK ST

15.0 VAN SANT JAMES K. HSE 1l SWINFORD RUBY LORENE 108 MACE RD

16.0 SHERWIN EUGENE A HSE HIBBERT/SWISHER/WALKER POBOX1i69%

17.0 MC CALL JCHN HSE PAGE JOSEPH 153 QAK ST

18.0 HAMPTON HOMES REAL ESTATE SPERA BERNARD JOSEPH 200 HIDDEN VALLEY LANE
19.0 DON WOLFE EXXON STATION HAWKINS ANNE MARIE 610 VALLEY VIEW DR
200 BOB CRESAP INSURANCE BLDG ROGERS KEITH 149 N PIONEER ST
21.0 COFFEE, GECRGE HSE UHTOFF MICHAEL G/KATHERINE 154 OAK ST

20 FRANCO, TONY & LULU HSE RIGOTT] GARY/CHARLENE jOY 170 CAK ST

23.0 NEW QFFICE BLDG BERMAN STEVEN 67 SCENIC DR

24.0 HARGROVE, ANNA & IDA HSE REESE ANN MEIERHCFF PO BOX 803

25.0 BELL CLARENCE & RACHEL RENTAL BOBBETT EVALYN TRUSTEE 175 N PIONEER ST
26.0 MURPHY ROY G. RENTAL HSE BOBBETT EVALYN M TRUSTEE 175 N PIONEER ST
27.0 PIONEER TV/ARCHIES CLEANERS MITCHELL JOHN S/HAZEL R 1710 N PHOENIX RD
28.0 ENDERS GROCERY WHSE [Cantwells] THOMPSON SYLVIA TRUSTEE P O BOX 201

29.0 PIONEER CAR WASH BRAFFORD CAROLYN BRIGGS 2007 COLESTINE RD
300 ASH NATL GUARD ARMORY PUGH LANCE K/ELIZABETH ANN 882 B ST

310 SHAW RENTAL HSE DE SALVIA JOSEPH V 2956 CARMEL ST

320 HOSLEY CHARLES HSE MARKS MICHAEL ANTHONY 5474 ALUM ROCK AVE
330 RCYLE H. STEVE RENTAL ROYLE HOWARD A POBOX751

340 GOSNELL EVA HSE STRONG JOHN T POBOX785

350 RICHARDSON-GOOD HSE BRANDT BRICE L 135BST

36.0 RICE MARY HSE MOORE ANTHONY/RHONDA £ 123 B STREET

370 BLALOCK WALTER HSE COLLONGE JOSEPH L/JEAN 227 ROSALIECT

380 HERITAGE BANK (Valley of the Rogue) VALLEY OF THE ROGUE BANK POBOX 1046

390 ASH COMMUNITY FOOD STORE ASHLAND COMM FOOD STORE INC 237 FIRST ST

400 TOWN HALL WALLBANK ERIK 2300 BLACK OAK WAY
4.0 GANIARD LUCINDA RENTAL HSE Vi O'HARRA ROBERT W/MARJORIE ) 309 N PIONEER ST
420 HAY WAREHSE O'HARRA ROBERT W/MARJORIE J 309 N PIONEER ST
43.0 OAK ST TANK STORAGE BLDG MORRIS R GAYLE 873 GLENDALE

440 J. W. COPELAND LUMBER YARD COPELAND J W YARDS 901 NE GLISAN

450 TEMPEST COURT MULTIPLE OWNERS 391E09BAC

46.0 MUNICIPAL PARKING LOT CITY OF ASHLAND CITY HALL

47.0 LOSHER JAMES W. HSE POTOCKI STAN POBOX 217

48.0 MULIT LLOYD HSE BERMAN AL/SANDRA 67 SCENIC DR

49.0 VINING-WHITE HSE GLOCKNER FRANCES J P O BOX 5005

50.0 VINING MARY HSE RODRIGUEZ JOSEPH M PO BOX 494

510 ANDERSON BELLE HSE CRADDICKJOYCE F 1206 LINDA AVE

52.0 CHILCOTT-SHAW HSE HELLER DAN 872 B STREET

53.0 WOODS MARC & ALTA HSE SPIERINGS KATHERINE A 164 B STREET

540 RALPH HELEN RENTAL HSE WESSLER IAN/BETSY 184 B STREET

55.0 FERGUSON JAMES HSE WESSLER BETSY T/IAN D 184 B STREET

56.0 MCMORRIS RICHARD & MARIE HSE SORIANO JOSE MORILLO 280N 2"’ ST

57.0 BLUNCK ELMER HSE WATSON WILBUR C/MARIA 283 N 2"° ST

580 WHITE FIR LUMBER CO 8LDG IVERSON WALLACE G 900 SISKIYOU BLVD #D-2
59.0 SOUTH VALLEY AUTO REPAIR DONNELLY DENNIS P 246 AST

60.0 HALL-THOMPSON HSE LANG PHILIPC 758-8 ST

61.0 GHEA THOMAS A. & MARTHA D. HSE BRINTON ALBINA 6027-F JACARANDA WAY
62.0 OLSON-FITZGERALD HSE LOWERY MARY B (LE) 1707 CERENE DR

63.0 HARPER-LUNCEFCRFD RENTAL HSE FRANTZ MARY D 240 N FIRST ST

64.0 HARPER E. L & VERNA HSE LAW KENDRAJ 1935 ASHLAND MINE RD
65.0 FAULCONER ALFRED HSE LITTLE JAMES J 234 NFIRST ST

66.0 LOVE G. W. RENTAL HSE [ BLUE BAY S TRUSTEE FBO PO BOX 432

67.0 LOVE G. W.RENTALHSE 1l FREEZE BERTHA ROSE 100 W ROSE

68.0 {MARSHALL] CARPENTER-LOVE HSE ARNAOUT NANCY 50 B HARRISON AVE
69.0 HOSLEY CHARLES HSE BURTON CHARLES G/BARBARA D 2970 DIANE ST

70.0 JONES WILLIAM HSE SHAFFER-RCBERTSON BONNIE L 283 BST

7.0 FOX WILLIAM F. HSE SIMS JACQUELYN CLARE/JAMES 269 B STREET

72.0 HEFFLING JOHN HSE SACKS STEPHEN POBOX 1194

73.0 STEPHENSON GEC RENTAL HSE I LOPEZ FRANCES ) TRSTE FBO 249BST

74.0 STEPHENSON-HARVEY HSE SCHNITZER LEE 237 BSTREET

75.0 ZELLER-MARKLE HSE DUTHIE WALTER R TRUSTEE 4111 MORNING STAR DR
760 ASH PUB WORKS SHOPS EVERITTJOHN K 845 OAK ST

170 UNKNOWN HSE RICHARD ELLISEJR P O BOX 2025

780 WALLBANK ERIK HSE WALLBANK ERIK ALFRED 2300 BLACK OAK WAY
79.0 SCHOENWALD JOHN HSES FUNKROGERP 7033 RAPP LN

80.0 WHITMORE S. 1. HSE FUNK ROGER 7033 RAPP LN

810 BESWICK RENTAL HSE { DAVIES WILLIAM H/CAROL) 1264 ORCHID §T

820 BESWICK RENTAL HSE 11 ELLINGSON E/JEROME WHITE 253 THIRD ST

830 BESWICK RENTAL HSE 11 PEAKE JACQUELYN JAMES PO BOX 591

B840 MILLS-POLEY HSE OWEN ELIZABETH A 84 DEWEY ST

85.0 COOKE NICHOLAS HSE STACY JOHN A 4330 32ND AVE W

860 VAN SANT ). K RENTALHSE | MOSKOWITZ MARK S 425 ASHLAND LN

870 VAN SANT J. K, RENTALHSE I SCOTT JOCK 696 SUNVALE AVE
88.0 GANIARD LUCINDA RENTAL HSE 11 MYNATT ELVARENE 895 NICK YOUNG RD
89.0 GANIARD LUCINDA RENTAL HSE 11 FEYTON CANDICE E/RCBERT L 1068 OLD HWY 93 S
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Secondary/Contributing
Secondary/Contributing

Historic/Non-C buting in Current Conditi
Secondary/Contributing.
Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
Secondary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

Historie/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
Non-Compatible/Non-Cantributing
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HISTORIC NAME

OWNER

OWNER ADDRESS

NR EVALUATION

GRUBB MILLARD HSE
LOOMIS EF. BLDG
SCHOOLHSE R ELECTRIC
POWELL WILLIAM HSE
GANIARD LUCINDA RENTAL HSE IV
GANIARD LUCINDA RENTAL HSE V
PELTON JOHN RENTAL HSE
ENDERS-CORBETT HSE
CORBETT-HUGHES HSE
DAVISON FRANK HSE
POSITIVELY FOURTH STREET
PEERLESS ROOMS BLDG
AURAL CLINIC

NININGER CHARLES BLDG 1i
LONG M. N.RENTAL HSE
LONG M. N.RENTALHSE |
SPIEGEL GOTTLIEB BLOG
ABBOTT-PRESCOTT HSE
VORIS DUPLEX
PINKSTON-BARTGES HSE
ROYLSTON DOTT & EARL HSE

JOHNSON HAROLD & MARG UERITE HSE

HERZMAN APARTMENTS
ENGWICHT GEORGE HSE

BURNS WILLIAM & ELLA HSE
WHITE HENRY RENTAL HSE I
WHITE HENRY RENTAL HSE 11
VAN SANT J. K. HSE
SMITH-LEONARD RENTAL HSE
NORTSTROM JOHN & OLIVE RENTAL
HARTLEY ROY RENTAL1

SMITH, CHARLES & VAWN RENTAL
GROAT. W. A. HSE

WHETSTONE RENTAL HSE
BOIVEN, HENRY & NELLIE HSE
FIRST CHRISTIAN CHURCH

PRATT, JOHN HSE

HICKS MARGARET RENTAL HSE lil
JOHNSON HSE (STONE-LOOM!S SITE)
DE MARINIS, SUSAN OFFICE

KANE E.C. HSE

HOSLEY ROY HSE

WELLS ERASTUS 1. & ELLEN HSE
BLEVINS F. M. RENTAL HSE

VAN TASSEL MARGARET HSE
SHSBY COLONEL WILLIAM H. HSE
DANFORD BEECHER HSE

HICKS MARGARET HSE

ALWINE ALVIN HSE

HARGADINE CHARLES & CARRIE HSE
PELTON JOHN & CHARLOTTE HSE
EDLUND GUSTAVUS HSE
SCHOENWALD APTS

PLUMERTH JACOB HSE

SHOOK [SAAC & MARTHA HSE
MOREHSE SHERMAN RENTAL HSE
SHOOK (SAAC RENTAL HSE
SHELL STATION/ROCKET PHOTO
ASHLAND PCST OFFICE

ASH FRUIT & PRODUCE ASSN WHSE
ASHL HARDWARE\A STREET OFFICE
JQOHN FIELDS BLDGFIELDS J R/
GRANGE CO-OP

HOXMEIER BLDG

VACANT PARCEL

B W SQUARED BLDG
MCMULLAN-SHELTON BLDG
ASHLAND INSURANCE

JEGA CALLERY

BEMIS-SANDLER BLDG

VACANT PARCEL

RAILROAD DISTRICT PARK
JACKSON DENTAL OFFICE
LURO-MEK FOREIGN AUTO REPAIR
POWELL THADDEUS RENTAL HSE
EASTERLING !OHN M, BLDG

VAN SANT J. K. BLDG

FURNITURE DEPOT

ASHLAND HOSE COMPANY NO. 2
WHITTLE TRANSFER CO. WHSE
HENNAN PRICE HSE

NININGER CHARLES RENTAL HSE
MITCHELL HENRY HSE

SPAYDE MARY ADA HSE

SMITH KELCY & RUBY HSE
NININGER CHARLES BLDG ii
HERZMAN APARTMENT COMPLEX
BOULTON RENTAL HSE

OLSON EDGAR & THELMA HSE

CHRISMAN CHANNING B
CHAPIN CHARLES 5

JONES LARRY D

VALLEY ENTERPRISES

VALLEY ENTERPRISES

VALLEY ENTERPRISES

SHEA RORY B

SELIGMAN JOHN

FRIEDMAN VIVIENNE

GARSON THOMAS L/CYNTHIA H
TRES STARS LLC
PEARLESSHOTELLLC

FRANTZ TOM/LAURA

MC WILLIAMS ROBERT/M STEIN
STRAUB JEFFERSON T

RODDY LESTER S TRUSTEE

VAN AUSDALL MAUDE A
HOXMEIER STEVE/KATHY

DE LUCA RONALD 1L/CHRISTINA
WEISHAHN MEL/FREDRICKA

Di LORETO DANTE"

JOHNS JEAN TRUSTEE FBO
LEDBETTER ROGER B/LINEKE
DE MELLO ANTHONY

HUNTER PRISCILLA

TOOGOOD PETER

LANG PHILIPC

ORE SHAKESPEARE FEST ASSOC
C/I ENTERPRISES

STEINBRONER PAULJ TRUSTEE
STEINBRONER PAUL ) TRUSTEE
LANG PHILIP C

FAUDREE C LORAN/GWENE S
NAKOOKA MARY DARLENE

VAN AUSDALLJOHN M

FIRST CHRISTIAN CH/ASHLAND
WEISHAHN MEL W/FREDRICKA L
WHITALL DEBRA R/RICHARD L
BABBITT JANE

DE MARINIS SUSAN K

AZAR DONALD A

BRUNSTON ROBERT C/RUTH L
BRUNSTON RUTH L

BRUNSTON RUTH L

ROUPP BRAD/JULIA 1

SILVA ROSEMARY A TRSTEE FBO
TURNER GARRISON F/PAMELA A
ALLEN DAVID S

NELKE MARY E
CERVSCOMMUNITY £MERG
FERGUSON JOHN/LINDA
PROEBSTEL SANDRA
PROEBSTEL SANDRA

SMITH CLYDE R TRUSTEE
BARTON KELLY L

GINSBURG JUDITH/W L BROWN
DUSTY ROSE

CORNITIUS WILLIAM CO-TRSTE
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERV
MORRIS R GAYLE

MORRIS R GENE/MARY L.
CATHERINE GOLDEN

GRANGE CQO-OP SUPPLY ASN INC
HOXMEIER STEVE/KATHY
BRUNNER PETER

BW SQUARED LLC

AINSWORTH DAVIS FACILIT INC
WILSON ELLIS V/MILDRED M
AUSTINJ ELLEN

SANDLER ALLAN F TRUSTEE FBO
MURPHY CAROLYNJ

ASHLAND CITY OFC TRANSP CO
JACKSON DANIEL D/MARY LINDA
BONSELL TONY

POWELL GARY DEAN

PHILLIPS WALTER A

REITINGER, MARK L & REBECCA
PAPEN FRANK C/JUNE E
CANNON WALLACE C TRUSTEE
PROVOST DOM S/IOYCE M
GARFAS JOSEPH/KATHLEEN P
ROBINSON EDWIN P TRUSTEE
VAN BUUREN MARTINE
SILVERMAN PETER/NOLA B
WILSON ARTHUR/MARY ELLEN
HARNDEN JACK D TRUSTEE
LOMBARDI ROBERT J/CORINNE §
PEARSON EDWIN E

OLSON THELMA M TRUSTEE FBO

654 GEORGIA AVE
845 OAK ST

287 FOURTH ST

456 A ST

456 A ST

456 A ST

9572 WAGNER CREEK RD
248 THIRD ST

258 3RD ST

P O BOX 966

7555 RAPP LN

182 SCENIC DR

1026 HENRY ST

2336 ROSS LANE

463 B ST

333 NMAIN ST

447 B ST

435 B STREET

P OBOX 748

3388BST

440B ST

335 RAVENWCOD
112 NUTLEY ST

46 GRANITE ST

143 FOURTH ST

158 LINCOLN ST

758 BST

POBOX 158

467 CST

114 3RD 5T

114 THIRD ST

457 CSTREET

138 THIRD ST

18136 517 AVE SO.

40 VAN NESS AVE

318 BSTREET

338 B STREET

350B STREET

366 B STREET

240 STRAWBERRY

386 B STREET

257 WILSON RD

257 WILSON RD

257 WILSON RD

1085 DEER VISTA LN
111 N THIRD ST

PO BOX 1299

578 JOWA ST

877 WINDEMAR DR
601 N GRAPE

228BST

PO BOX 1236

PO BOX 1236

12366 E ANTELOPE RD
153 NSECOND ST
630 LEONARD ST

PO BOX 1228

PO BOX 4220

8055 E TUFTS AVE STE 400
873 GLENDALE

1300 TOLMAN CREEK RD
845 OAK ST

P OBOX 3637

435 B STREET

77N MAIN ST

77N MAIN ST

605 TERRACE ST

1475 WINDSOR ST
PO BOX 3597

PO BCX 306

8580 ROGUE RiIVER HWY
ASHLAND CITY HALL
1793 ANDERSON CRK RD
564 ASTREET

298 HARGADINE

552 ASTREET

270 FOURTH STREET
267 MEADE

503 BEACH 5T

357 EMAIN ST

1188 TYLER CREEK RD
2407 BRENTWCOD RD
235 5TH ST

2235*ST

565B ST

PO 414

1685 OLD HWY 99§
POBOXLL36

671 BST

PALO ALTO
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
TALENT
ASHLAND
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ASHLAND
TALENT
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EAGLE POINT
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ASHLAND
SUNRIVER
DENVER
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
CENTRAL POINT
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
GRANTS PASS
ASHLAND
TALENT
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
ASHLAND
SACRAMENTO
ASHLAND
ASHLAND

HLAND
SHINGLE SPRINGS
HLAND

ASHLAND
ASHLAND

94306
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97540
97520
97520
97520
97540
97520
97520
97501

97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
98188
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97501

97520
97520
97520
97524
97520
97520
97520
97707
80237
97520
97520
97520
97502
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
91827
97520
97540
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520
97520

97520

97520

95825

91520
97520
97520
95682
97520
97520
97520

Primary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Compatible/Non-Histaric/Non-Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Historic/Non-Contrit

ing in Current Conditi
Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing
Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contsibuting
Primary/Contributing [NR-Listed}
‘Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
Primacy/Contributing

Primary/Contributing

Primary/Conuibuting

Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing
Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
Primary/Contsibuting
Secondary/Contributing
Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing

Primary/Centributing

Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing
Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-ContributING
Secondary/Contributing
Secondary/Contributing
Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Secondary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Secondary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing
Compatible/Non-Histaric/Non-Contributing
Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
Primary/Contributing {NR-Listed}
Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing [NR-Listed]
Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing
Secondary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing [NR-Listed]
Primary/Contributing
Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing
Non-Compatible/Nan-Contributing
Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Compatible/Non-Histaric/Non-Contribruting
Compatible/Non-Histaric/Non-Centributing
Compatible/Non-Histaric/Non-Contributing
Compatible/Nen-Historic/Non-Contributing
Vacant
Compatible/Neon-Historic/Non-Contributing
Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
Non-Compatibie/Non-Contributing
Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

Vacant
Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
Non-Compatibie/Non-Contributing
Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing
Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
Primary/Comributing
Secondary/Contributing
Secondary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing

Primary/Contributing
Secondary/Contributing
Primary/Contributing
Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
Secondary/Contributing
Compatible/Non-Histaric/Non-Contributing



NPS Form 10-900-A

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86)

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section Number: _OWNERS Page: _3

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District, Ashland, OR

NR EVALUATION

1D HISTORIC NAME OWNER OWNER ADDRESS
178.0 FRULAN JOHN & CLARA HSE DUCA LORRAINE M 661 BST

179.0 AHLSTROM NILS RENTAL HSE DYKES FRANCES H 637BST

180.0 TREFERN MARY HSE BRYANT LUELLA M TRUSTEE 548 N MAIN STE 403
181.0 EARLY VERNACULAR HSE PRCHAL MARK A 402 HAVEN RD
1820 AHLSTROM NILS HSE ANDERSON CURTIS R/LORIE $ 2485TH ST

1830 AHLSTROM NILS RENTAL HSE DOWNES ELLEN K 266 FIFTH ST

184.0 AHLSTROM NORTH HSE ROBINSON IRENE W TRSTEE FBO 247 6TH ST

185.0 EVERTON WALTER HSE BLAKE ROBERT J 215t LAMIRADA DR
186.0 GiLLIAM LAWRENCE & EDNA HSE KOEHLER THOMAS ROBERT 286 1/2 PATTERSON ST
187.0 FARQUAR GEORGE & NELLIE HSE JACKSON JAMES M/CHRISTINE L 13315 DAVOS DR
188.0 YOUNG-DAVENPORT HSE [Moved] TREIGER WILLIAM DR TRUSTEE 18762 WELLS DR
189.0 CASEY JOHN R. HSE [Moved] LEWIS CHERYL L/JAMES D 640 A ST

1900 ASH DEPOT HOTEL SO WING TREIGER WILLIAM DR TRUSTEE 18762 WELLS DR
191.0 PARKER-DAVIES HSE BRIERY ALICEE POBOX 212

1920 FLOOK-GRUBB HSE BJERNFALK ANNE 762 A STREET

193.0 SANDLER BLDG SANDLER ALLAN F TRUSTEE FBO P O BOX 306

194.0 HANNON LEONARD T. & IRENE HSE | BAXTERJOHN R 294 6TH ST

1950 HANNON LEONARD T. & IRENE HSE 11 WILCOX BETHE POBOX 398

196.0 HANNON LEONARD T. RENTAL HSE STOKES WALTER/CHRISTINE 215 NUTLEY

197.0 TURNER O. B HSE HAIM JIM 2025 TOLMAN CREEK RD
1980 WALKER LUNSFORD HSE ORE STATE/DIR VETS AFFAIRS 263 SEVENTH ST
199.0 McCLUNG-PETERSON HSE LARKE CHRISTOPHER/ELIZABETH 247 7TH ST

200.0 POIRERA JOSEPH HSE STUCKEY EUNICE M 785 B STREET

2010 DUNKIN JAMES HSE ELLIS CATHERINEE 743B ST

202.0 SILVER CATHERINE HSE ELSASSER DENNIS P C BOX BOS

203.0 HEDBERG-SILVER HSE SILVER JUANITA A 743 B STREET

204.0 BROWN MATTIE RENTAL HSE ROST FERN G 6912 MOHAWK LN
205.0 BROWN CHARLES & MATTIE HSE ROST FERN G 6912 MOHAWK LN
206.0 COSSAIRT-EAST HSE KAPLAN ALENE H 885B ST

207.0 RITZINGER-FLACKUS HSE DANLEY WILLIAM EJR 871BST

208.0 HANSEN HANS HSE HYMANS DALLAS } 855 B ST

209.0 CAREY R L HSE ANTON CELIA L 843BST

2100 DODSON W. D. HSE ROUPP BRAD D/JULIA 1085 DEER VISTA LN
2il0 DAWSON-REYNOLDS HSE GREENE DAVID E/CHARLOTTE A 367 OXFORD ST
212.0 OLSON TRIPLEX RIGGS RALPH H TRUSTEE 260 TTHSTAPTC
2130 CROWSON FRANK & ANNA HSE ADDICOTT WARREN O TRUSTEE 2260 OLD HWY 99§
214.0 NEELEY-SETTLES HSE SITE MC CULLOH KENNETH $ 267 8TH ST

2150 BUTLER JOHN HSE ADLEMAN ALAN R 100 SCHOFIELD ST
2160 WOOD-FRAME CABINET SHOP MUNRQCE ROBERT W 864 AST

2170 HERBIG THOMAS & M. L HSE CAMNER BETTY B6B A ST

218.0 DEWS OLIVER RENTAL HSE ANDERSON BETTY J 854 AST

2190 WALT ANDERS AUTO REPAIR HOHEB ARTHUR B TRUSTEE FBO 215 TOLMAN CREEK RD SP 3
2200 DEWS OLIVER HSE LIPPERT NINAE 200 E ASHLAND LN
2210 BELL GLEN & OPAL HSE COLE MARY ELLEN/JOHN C 286 8TH ST

2220 HAHN-JACKSON HSE BASS ANN WADE 270EIGHTH ST
2230 STRONG-LARAMORE HSE LARMORE JANET/JOHN TSTRONG 248 EIGHTH ST
24.0 SMITH WILLIAM & ANNIE HSE FOLL GARY L/KAREN ARETHMAN 1955 STRATTON CIR
225.0 HAHN RENTAL HSE CHENOWETH DONNA B PO BOX 4421

226.0 COOLEY BENSON D. HSE GETTLING MARVIN L/MARYLOU 939 B ST

0 PAYNE ANDREW S. HSE ORTEGA DELLA 954 B ST

228.0 THROOP ELMER HSE TAYLOR LOUISE 940B ST

229.0 LINDSAY WILLIAM HSE BORNSTEIN DAVIDA ARLENE 928 B ST

230.0 HARRINGTON ELMER & BERTIE HSE DATZ MICHAEL R/LINDA L 156 EIGHTH ST
2310 BILLINGS-STERRETT HSE ROSTYKUS PAULS 132 EIGHTH ST
232.0 HARP-LONG HSE JOHNSON RICHARD C/LINEA R 130 EIGHTH ST
233.0 ENGWICHT-MC MILLAN HSE SILVERJONC 11Q EIGHTH ST
234.0 VACANT PARCEL JOHNSON RICHARD C/LINEA R 130 EIGHTH ST
2350 PROSPHYLA RENTAL HSE WELLMAN FRANK L/MILDRED L 973CST

2360 JACCBS RENTAL HSE BERARD RUSSELL P TRSTEE FBO 782t HOLLAND LOOP RD
2370 JACOBS-S5LACK HSE WEBBER JOHN S 975 EAST MAIN ST
2380 THOMPSON MAE G, HSE PARSONS KELVIN A 959 EAST MAIN ST
239.0 CALLE WINTERS GROCERY BUELL SHARON A 431 PARKSIDE DR
240.0 NEWMAN APARTMENTS THOMPSON WILLIAM 473 DONNA AVE
M0 READER MRS.J. K. RENTAL HSE WELLMAN FRANK L/MILDRED L 973 CST

2420 REID ETHELS. HSE HALL PETER) 61 FAIRWAY CIR
243.0 BOOTH OREN HSE PUGH LANCE KEITH 882 BST

2440 HOLMES-FLACKUS HSE HELLER DAN B872B ST

243.0 GRAVES HAROLD & ETHYLENE HSE BOYLELYLEG 840B ST

246.0 TIBBETTS ELMO HSE PRESCOTT BERTHA MARIE 826B ST

247.0 LONG OSMER & LILA HSE MC KINNEY RICHARD O TRUSTEE ~ i17 EIGHTH ST
248.0 MODERN HSE ANDERSCN CURTIS R/LORIE § 248 5™ ST

2480 MORRIS-PORTER HSE SWALES COLIN 143 8TH ST

2500 EGGLESTON-DAVIS HSE STEWART JEANETTE R 155 EIGHTH ST
251.0 CHURCHMAN GECRGE HSE LEVISON LYNDEN E/MARY E 156 7TH ST

2320 SOVERNS CARLETON B. HSE COMSTOCK PAUL/JUDITH 340 A ST

1530 COX ALLENE. & SARAH HSE BROWN FRANK T/PAULA M 132 7™sT

254.0 EGLIRENTAL HSE MILLER RUTH M 758 B ST

255.0 MC CUNE JOSEPH HSE MORSELL MAR! S 466 CAKHURST NO 1
256.0 SMITH GEOW. & E HSE PETERSON WALTER S 107 SEVENTH ST
257.0 SNYDER V & SARAH HSE MILLER RUTH M 109 i/2 FOURTH ST
258.0 PFAFF CHARLES HSE RCOKLYN DALE/KIM 137 SEVENTH ST
259.0 BAKER ADAM & LYDIA HSE STRINGER LEAR A TRUSTEE FBO 548 N MAIN APT 320
2600 COX-CAVIN HSE POMEROY M P TRUSTEE FBO 744 B STREET

261.0 HILYER DUPLEX HILYER S BARBARA 355 FERNWOOD DR
262.0 POWELL D. SHERMAN RENTAL HSE LAW ROBERT/CLAUDIA POBOX 192

263.0 MILLER-LANG HSE LANG PHILIPC 758 B STREET

2640 GREENE DUPLEX 3 GREENE DON L POBOX516

265.0 DILHAN JOSEPH & JESSIE HSE LOGP CRAIG A/KAREN M 164 6TH ST

266.0 UNIDENTIFIED HSE [HUDSON RENTAL]  SCHWEITZER S S/MARGARET H 156 6TH ST
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RICE JOHN REV. RENTAL HSE BARTON RALPH W 150 SIXTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing
CHISHOLM-OGG HSE JOHNSON STEPHANIE § 329 GRANDVIEW ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

BLEDSOE HATTIE HSE HELLER DAVID 132 6TH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

CHURCH OF THE HOLY ROSARY PENTECOSTAL CHURCH CF GOD 1206™ ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

BADGER CLARENCE HSE PALOMAR PROPERTIES 107 6TH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

HELMS-DILLE HSE [DUPLEX] BERGER ALAN R TRUSTEE FBO 657 CST ASHLAND OR 97520 Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition
VAN HORNE-WELLS HSE FITCH CHESTER TRUSTEE FBO 607 TERRACE DR ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing
NORRIS-CLEVENGER HSE MARTINDALE ROBERT E 244 HARGADINE ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition
‘WISE HERMAN & MARJORIE HSE STONE GLORIA | 153 SIXTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Historic/Non-Cantributing in Current Cendition
STEPHENSON G. W. RENTAL HSE 1 RENWICK ALLISON LOUISE 155 6TH 5T ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

FARRA-MC FARLAND HSE DUNCAN JAMES T TRUSTEE 692 B ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

LOOMIS WILLIAM F. HSE ORE SHAKESPEARE FEST ASSOC POBOX 158 ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

HARRIS CARL N. HSE CATROPA TODD/DANNETTE KAHN- 434 19TH AVE SANFRANCISCO CA 94121 Primary/Contributing

KEPLER-ELLIS HSE PERLOFF FRED R/LAURA E 164 5TH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing '
MELLUS RICHARD HSE BERARD RUSSELL P TRUSTEE 7821 HOLLAND LCOP RD CAVEJUNCTION OR 97523 Primary/Contributing

BANKS JOHN HSE GRAY ALSERT F TRUSTEE FBO 1015 MARY JANE AVE ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

LYN APARTMENTS CONKLIN LYN E TRUSTEE POBOX752 ASHLAND OR 97520 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

MC GINNIS LUKE RENTALHSE JANSSEN JANET/DARREL PEARCE 107 5TH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

MC GINNIS LUKE RENTALHSE i1l PORTER BRIAN/KATELYN 561 C STREET ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

BAER VICTORIA HSE SMITH MORTON I/MARY REXFORD 129 FIFTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

BAER EDWARD HSE BINGHAM M S/ELIZABETH C 129 STH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

TAYLOR JOHN HSE COLEMAN JACK D/LOLA 155 STH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

WOLFE JULIUS P. HSE COCK FAMILY TRUST INC 586 B ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

WHITE HENRY RENTAL HSE ADVOCATES FOR SEVERELY 223 FIFTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

WINKLER WALTER RENTAL HSE KENT HILDEGARD H/CLEN S 544 BST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

POTTER ROOMING HSE STARK JERRY I/ELIZABETH D 41 GRANITE ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

VEGHTE CHARLES HSE STARK JERRY /ELIZABETH D 41 GRANITE ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

WOODEN WILLIAM HSE MINDLIN MELANIE 130 FOURTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

MC FARLAND ALBERT E. RENTAL HSE STOKES STEPHEN DANIEL 270N LAUREL ST #3 ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

APARTMENT COMPLEX MC WILLIAMS ROBERT/MARI $ 2336 ROSS LANE MEDFORD OR 97501 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

ASH 7TH DAY ADVENTIST CHURCH ROGUE ENVIRONMENTAL INC 84 4TH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition
PORTER FRANKJ. HSE UDALL ELIZABETH A TRSTE FBO 3300 SARDINE CREEX RD GOLD HILL OR 97525 Primary/Contributing

SCHULTZ A.F.HSE1l VALENS MARC 784TH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Secondary/Contributing

HASKINS SARAH ). HSE GIESE KAREN 704TH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Secondary/Contributing

DWYER JOHN G. HSE DWYERJOHN G 64 FOURTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
CARTER PROPERTY/SMALL RENTALHSE ~ MC INTYRE MARTHA TRSTEEFBO 58 FOURTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Non-Compatilie/Non-Contributing
DAVIS-AINSWORTH £T AL EAST MAIN ASSOCIATES 515 EMAIN ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
CALLAHAN-MANSFIELD HSE ROY EDWARD W/JO ANNO 11412 LAKE STEILACOOM DR SW TACOMA WA 98498 Secondary/Contributing

WILSON-BYRD HSE SPIERINGS J FRANK/KATHERINE POBOX 224 ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

VAN SANT-BRYANT HSE BELL ROBERT POBOX 541 ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing
HUBBARD-HARDY HSE SPIERINGS J FRANK/KATHERINE PO BOX 224 ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

PALETHORPE GEORGE HSE VANNICE VICKI RUTHANN 385 EAST MAIN ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

GANIARD SARAH RENTAL HSE RANDALE LESLIE F 16 PEPPERIDGE RD NEWTOWN CT 6470 Primary/Contributing

ODONOGHUE LAURA HSE AUSTIN A S/MATTHEW J SMALL 47 FIFTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

CROCKER MERTON HSE PIESTRUP MELVIN A 13800 SKYLINE BLVD WOODSIDE CA 94062 Primary/Contributing

JAMISON HAROLD & MARJORIE HSE JAMISON HAROLD B/MARJORIE A 60 GOLDEN SPIKE WAY ASHLAND OR 97520 Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
FLAGG W.H.HSE PETTINGER LOIS 34032 CASCARA LANE PHILOMATH OR 97370 Primary/Contributing

KING-MATHES RENTAL HSE LIVELY MELANIE } 582 C STREET ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

KING BURTONF. HSE BREND TONI A 3221 UINCOLNCT KETCHIKAN AK 99901 Primary/Contributing

MILLER-VAN VACTOR HSE EMERSON WILLIAM H 90 5TH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

EASLICK WILLIAM RENTAL HSE WILLES PAUL STEPHEN TRUSTEE 2597 W CANTERWOOD DR~ SO JORDAN UT 84095 Primary/Contributing

EASLICK APARTMENT UNITS WILLES PAUL STEPHEN TRUSTEE 2597 W CANTERWOOD DR~ SO JORDAN UT 84095 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
SENSENY-MC GiNNIS HSE PHILLIPS T/MAUREEN THOMPSON 60 FIFTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

ASH FOURSQUARE CHURCH INTERNATIONAL CHURCH 599 E MAIN ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition
ASH FOURSQUARE CHURCH HALL INTERNATIONAL CHURCH F THE 599 £ MAIN ST ASHLAND OR 87520 C ible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributi
SHULTZ A.F.HSE! ZIEMINSKI BERNARD M 37 SHAMRCCK LANE ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

MORRIS J. W. B. & CYNTHIA HSE ZIEMINSKI BERNARD M 37 SHAMRCCK ASHLAND -OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

MORRIS J. W. B. RENTAL CARROLLJOAN 318 WHUMBUG CRRD APPLEGATE OR 97530 Primary/Contributing

LONG ELIZA RENTAL HSE WILLIAMS BILL 675 E MAIN 5T ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

SLINGERLAND GILBERT R. RENTAL DOUGHTY PAUL E TRUSTEE FBO 1748 ROGUE RIVER HWY GOLD HILL OR 97525 Secondary/Contributing
LUCAS-PARKER HSE HUTTON HARRY E/ZELPHA G 59 SIXTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing {NR-Listed]

ROSE MARY £, HSE MC KEREGHAN CHARLES/SUZANNE 77 SIXTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing [NR-Listed]
OLSON DUPLEX GILL LAWRENCE A/AUDREY M 3282 N ESTANTON PORTLAND OR 97212 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
MONROE GEORGE HSE ROSS FORBES 90 SIXTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

ROSE BROTHERS RENTAL HSE BASS RONALD E/TRACY E 78 SIXTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing
LUDLOW-STEVENS HSE COLLINS JILLF 746 CST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing
GROVER-TURNER HSE [Modified} BALTUSNICK, JAMES POBOX549 ASHLAND OR 97520 Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
POLEY W. M. RENTALHSE TRIPP ARLIE W/CLARA | POBOX 369 ‘GRASS VALLEY CA 95945 Primary/Contributing

PNB/US WEST SWITCHING BLDG PACIFIC NW BELL TELE CO 1600 7™ AVE Rm 2306 SEATTLE WA 98191 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
WILSON MERRITT & NANCY HSE SINGMASTER KAREN L 767 E MAIN ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

FREE METHODIST CHURCH PARSONAGE WEIBEL ROBERT/TERRY DE HAY 775 E MAIN ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

FREE METHODIST CHURCH DAHLIN DONNA EDENS 777 E MAIN ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

GREENE DUPLEX GREENE DON L PO BOX 516 ASHLAND OR 97520 Non-Compatible/Nen-Contributing
GREENE DUPLEX 2 NAMANNY LINDAJ PO BOX 793 ASHLAND OR 97520 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
EVENSON EVEN HSE HUTSON ANDREW CLYDE/MARY 907TH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

RANCH HSE INFILL JOHNSON BARBARA | 80'S W140TH AVE ALOHA OR 97006 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
HOWETT-BAGLEY HSE BROWN JAMES FRANK 855 E MAIN ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

POTTER S. A. HSE SITE HARTO BILLY S 867 E MAIN ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
BOSTWICK EVERETT & NINA HSE INGET ROBERT 1137 OLD HWY 93§ ASHLAND OR 97520 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
LANE CLARENCE HSE [MOVED] SEIBER HELEN DUNLAP POBOX 693 TALENT OR 97540 Primary/Contributing
INLOW.SHERARD HSE BROCK RICHARD A 881 E MAIN ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

CHURCH OF NAZERENE [RV UNITARIAN] RV UNITARIAN 87 FOURTH ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
STAUFFER E L & EVAHSE ARCHERD EVAN/NANCY WHITE 1256 EAGLE MILL RD ASHLAND OR 87520 Secondary/Contributing

MODERN DUPLEX AREVALCS DOROTHY M 25971 LA QUESTA LAGUNA HILLS CA 92653 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
GIBSON W, C HSE HELLER MARC D/HAZELE 824 HOLTON RD TALENT OR §7540 Primary/Contributing

BROWN-DECKER HSE CHALLMAN TOBY A 39 4TH ST ASHLAND OR §7520 Primary/Contributing

ASHLAND PROFESSIONAL CENTER HALD CHRISTAIN MD/JACQUE J 600 ROCA STREET ASHLAND OR 97520 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
ROGUE FEDERAL CREDITUNICN ROGUE FEDERAL CREDIT UNICN P O BOX 4550 MEDFORD OR 97501 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
GOFF EDGAR & KATE HSE Il ALLEN BARBARA A 2262 ASHLAND ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contribauting
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356.0 GOFF EDGAR & KATE HSE | ALLEN BARBARA 2262 ASHLAND ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

357.0 HICKS MARGARET HSE 11 STOTT BENJAMIN W 64 THIRD ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

3380 EVANS JULIAHSE 1 STORM EUZABETH } TRSTE FBO 70 THIRD ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

359.0 EVANS JULIAHSE! NORTON M JAMES/MARY L 74 THIRD ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

3600 GANIARD LUCINDA RENTALHSE ] WILLIAMS JONATHAN L/NANCY ] 7320 APPLEGATE RD JACKSONVILLE ~ OR 97530 Primary/Contributing

361.0 MOREHSE SHERMAN HSE . .SALTER ANN L 17353 GUSSWAY BEND OR 97707 Primary/Contributing

362.0 MOREHSE SHERMAN RENTAL HSE | DAVIS SAM B 515 E MAIN ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

3630 QESER'S FLYING A SERVICE CROWSON DENNETH W/KAREN A 1899 FILLMORE DR MEDFORD OR 97504 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
3640 VAN VLEET REAL ESTATE OFFICE VAN VLEET& ASSOCIATES INC 375 LITHIA WAY ASHLAND OR 97520 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
365.0 ASHLAND FIRE STATICN #1 ASHLAND CITY OF 20 E MAIN STREET ASHLAND OR 97520 C ible/Non-Historic/Non-Ci ibuting
3660 TACO TIME [BLUE MOUNTAIN] KAUFMAN ALAN POBOX 3134 ASHLAND OR 97520 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
3670 McCALL JESSE A, HSE CRUMME SARAH H TRUSTEE FBO 670 GLENWOOCD DR ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Centributing

3680 ROSE CHARLES & LAURA HSE MC MILLAN GLENN JR 416 LIBERTY ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

369.0 LONG O.W. & MINDA RENTAL BURTON BOB L/LENNAJ 544 PRIM ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Secondary/Contributing

3700 CURRIE JOSEPH T. BOARDING HSE JACKSON KATHARINE/C L KEIL P OBOX 546 ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

371.0 UNKNOWN HSE GHAVAM HAMID/JULIE ANN 195 MORTON ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

3720 READER }.K. RENTALHSE LOUIE SUSAN G 401 GREGORY LN #110 PLEASANTHILL CA 94523 Primary/Contributing

3730 THE ASHLANDER CONDOS Multiple Owners.... Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
374.0 ASHLAND CEMETERY ASHLAND CITY OF CITY HALL ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing [NR-Listed]
3750 MAUPIN CHARLES & ELLA HSE POE PATRICIA L 27 DEWEY ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Secondary/Contsibuting

376.0 CRAFTSMAN INFILL HSE SNOOK DAVID W PO BOX 248 ASHLAND OR 97520 C ible/Non-Historic/Non-C b
377.0 CROWSON-ADDISION HSE DE LUCA RONALD L POBOX 748 ASHLAND OR 97520 Primary/Contributing

3780 McCONNELL APTS. DE LUCA RONALD L/CHRISTINA POBOX 748 ASHLAND OR 97520 Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
379.0 BRYANT T W_§& DELPHIA HSE MORK NORMA ) 821 SANTE FE ALBANY CA 94706 Primary/Contributing

3800 FLORA FRANK & GLADYS HSE REYES CHIRISTINE A 988 E MAIN ST ASHLAND OR 97520 Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
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ASHLAND RAILROAD ADDITION HISTORIC DISTRICT (1883-1949)
Ashland, Jackson County

COMMENTS OF THE STATE ﬁISTOMC PRESERVATION OFFICE:

The Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District (1883-1949) nomination well-describes the history and
architectural resources of a distinct area of the city. The development of Ashland that began with the
discovery of gold near the present site of Jacksonville in early 1852, and the Donation Land Claim Act of
1850, sparked the settlement of this area. The anticipation of the arrival of the railroad instigated a major
wave of building and the platting of this section of Ashland when it was sold to the Oregon and California
Railroad Company in 1873. The railroad company surveyed this major addition that doubled Ashland's
size. The first train pulled into Ashland in 1884, but it would be three years before the north and south rail
lines would finally be joined at Ashland. The lots filled in in a random pattern. Residences and
commercial structures were constructed during 1884-88. The Depot Hotel was built in 1888. By 1890,
lodging houses, saloons, restaurants, stores and warehouses formed a separate commercial district on A
Street where residents could conveniently purchase goods and services, developing the Railroad Addition
as a self-contained unit.

In 1893, the national depression slowed building in this district, but as railroad business increased in 1898,
the second major period of growth began. As railroad workers and tradespeople moved into the area after
1900, one or one-and-one-half story vernacular frame houses were being constructed which provided
affordable housing for the brakemen, firemen, and conductors, as well as carpenters, barbers, plumbers and
painters, as well as widows and retired couples because this was an affordable area in which to live.

Ashland's population nearly doubled during 1900-10, rising above 5,000. The Southern Pacific Railroad's
Natron Cut-off, a new route which created a direct route between California and Portland, and eliminated
the steep Siskiyou Mountain grade. Many railroad employees were shifted elsewhere leaving vacant
houses in the Railroad District. The relatively small number of new buildings constructed in the railroad
district during 1913 and 1930 reflects the city's absorption in World War I, a slowing economy, and the
opening of the Natron Cutoff in 1927.

With the Great Depression, many people lost their homes. Renters, retirees, and those on stable or
subsidized incomes increasingly occupied the Railroad Addition. Many dwellings were converted to
multi-family use. New building was scarce. ’
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In 1942 a World War II U.S. Army cantonment of Camp White began on the agate Desert, north of esrem
Medford. Approximately 110,000 men and women took their training here. Just after the war, because
housing was again in short supply, buyers relocated a number of Camp White buildings to Ashland during
1947-49. These buildings are plain in appearance, solidly built, frame construction.

The Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District is an important neighborhood in Ashland that describes
the growth of this town and its dependence upon the railroad. This district is significant architecturally
and historically, retains its historic integrity and contributes to the qualities of Ashland.



Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District
Name of Property

Jackson County, Oregon .
County and State

5. Classification

Ownership of Property .= Category of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply)  (Check onily one box)

private O building(s}

public-local district

O public-State O site

O public-Federal O structure
O object

Name of related multiple property listing
{Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)

N/A

Number of Resources within Property
{Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing Noncontributing
256 110 buildings
5 sites
structures
objects
256 " 118 Total

Number of contributing resources previously
listed in the National Register

11 (see attached list)

'6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

Domestic; Single Dwelling
Domestic; Multiple Dwelling: Apartment

Commerce/Trade; Specialty Store; Market
Religion; Religious Structure; Church

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

Domestic; Single Dwelling .
Domestic; Multiple Dwelling; Apartment )
Commerce/Trade; Specialty Store; Market .

Religion: Religious Structure; Church

7. Description

Architectural Classification
{Enter categories from instructions)

Other: Vernacular
Late 19th Century American; Bungalow

Narrative Description

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions)

foundation Brick, Concrete

walls Wood: Weatherboard, Brick
Asbestos; Shingles

roof Asphalt

other _Metal; Corrugated

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)

Please see attached continuation sheets
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Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District
RESOURCES PREVIOUSLY LISTED ON THE
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES

ID # Site Name Date Listed/NRIS
182.00 AHLSTROM, NILS HOUSE 02/15/80, 80003315
374.00 ASHLAND CEMETERY (Historic Cemeteries of Ashland MPS) 06/08/95, 95000687
190.00, ASHLAND DEPOT HOTEL, SOUTH WING 02/19/91, 91000047
30.00 ASHLAND OR NATIONAL GUARD ARMORY 09/10/87, 87001564
129.00 KANE, E. C. HOUSE 11/06/86, 86002964
326.00 LUCAS-PARKER HOUSE 07/21/88, 88001115
17.00 MC CALL, JOHN HOUSE 12/09/81, 81000488
101.00 PEERLESS ROOMS BUILDING 10/08/92, 92001328
140.00 PELTON, JOHN AND CHARLOTTE HOUSE 09/09/93, 93000922
327.00 ROSE, MARY E. HOUSE 07/21/88, 88001115

134.00 SILSBY, COLONEL WILLIAM H. HOUSE 02/28/85, 85000365
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Since it was originally platted the Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District has maintained a
unique identity within the larger city.! Its regular, tree-lined, blocks of small wood-frame
residential dwellings with the masonry commercial core focused upon 4™ Street and the former
depot site on A, retain an unusually high degree of integrity to the area’s historic character. The
district’s varied building styles, use of materials, and other elements effectively convey its
cyclical boom and bust economy during the two identified periods of historic significance,
including the arrival of the rails to Ashland in the late 19® century, the decline and rental
conversion following the shift of the main line prior to the Great Depression and, finaily, the
increase in residential density and new development that occurred during and immediately
following World War II.

SETTING:

The Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District is located in the Bear Creek portion of the
Rogue River Valley, north of Ashland’s downtown core. The district is an almost entirely flat
area, densely developed, and regularly platted into grid-pattern streets and lots. The boundaries
of the District, defined in detail in Section 10, encompass all those areas of the Railroad and
Second Railroad additions to the city, the Chitwood Tracts, Miner’s and Eureka additions, as
well as a small portion of the Original Townsite, that are bounded by East Main/Lithia Way
(Oregon State Highway 99) the primary northbound auto route through Ashland, and the
remaining single track railroad corridor on the north and south, and face Water Street or Eighth
Street, to the east and west. To the east of the District is a residential area, including a few late
19" and early 20" century dwellings, many with original agricultural associations, but largely
consisting of later single and multi-family development without the intermixed architecture of
the District itself. Supporting this change in architectural character is the marked sense of entry
created by the angled intersection of Second Raiiroad Addition plat and the surrounding area,
reflected by bends in both the East Main and B street layout. To the north, beyond the railroad
right-of-way that forms the district’s north boundary, is an area of light-industrial and
commercial uses, most developed in the past 20 years following closure of the timber mills that
were present in this area during the historic period. The south boundary, being the back property
line of those resources facing East Main Street and the center line of Lithia Way, forms the
traditional division with “Downtown” and its commercial uses, generally of brick and masonry
construction as might be expected. To the west of the district lies Water Street and Ashland
Creek, with few standing structures, none of which share any association or architectural
character with the Railroad Addition Historic District. Changes in grade on both B and Van
Ness, add to a sense of entry into the District as one approaches from the west.2

! The first Ashland Railroad Addition was surveyed and platted in October 1883 and filed with the Jackson
County Recorder in February of 1884. (See Commissioners Journal (Road Records) Vol. 2, pg. 42.

2 The grade differential at the SW comner of the district is minimized by the ODOT-constructed overpass that was
buiit as a part of the mid-1950s opening of the northbound lane of U. S. Highway 99 (now Oregon State 99),
a route that as “Lithia Way” forms the district boundary in that area.
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ARCHITECTURAL STYLES :

ResiDEnTIAL

By and large, the Ashland Railroad District is residential in character with the bulk of the
resources, both contributing and otherwise, used for dwelling purposes. Initial residential
development began with the 1883 platting of the first Railroad Addition and the April 1884
arrival of the trains from the north. Wood frame housing was built in the area, mostly small and
of one or one and one half stories. This development utilized typical construction styles in the
vernacular tradition that dominated southern Oregon housing design throughout the last half of
the 19" century. The use of the term “Vernacular” is somewhat problematic as a style attribution
in the typical architectural sense. Since the vast majority of dwellings within the Railroad
District are designated under the “Vernacular” rubric, some additional discussion as to how that
term is applied is appropriate.

Its meaning is flexible according to the situation; but in essence, “vernacular” mean an
unaffected, unselfconscious, unaccented way of building....it is the use of architectural
style without being conscious of style...(Gowans, 1986:41)

In the Railroad District, as in much of the west, the traditional folk definition of vernacular as an
“...architecture that was passed on to successive generations of builders and designers through
use of materials, shapes, and textures, spatial organizations, proportions among elements and
systems of ornamentation...” was modified by the late 19" century industriai and transportation
technologies that brought the impacts of mass production to the process of house building.
(Gottfried and Jennings, 1985: VII) Different architectural historians categorize these simple
structures in varying ways, some based upon applied exterior ornamentation or use while others
focus upon interior room arrangement. In the Railroad Addition Historic District, the
“vernacular” dwellings of the Primary Period (1883-1927) have been generally defined in terms
of their layout, i.e. “ell” or I-House,” with stylistic attributes treated as a secondary descriptor.
Typical of these early and simple structures are the Rev. John Rice Rental House (Site 267.0,
buiit 1888), or the Charles Hosley House (Site No. 69.0, built 1888c). Prior to the turn of the
century these single volume vernacular dwellings in the District were joined by large one and
one-half story gable ells such as the Lucinda Ganiard Rental Houses I and II, both built in 1901.
(Sites 81.0 and 82.0) Later vernacular forms, including hipped-roof cottages and I-House
variants that demonstrate the influence of the Gothic, Queen Anne, and Italianate styles were all
constructed in the Railroad District in the years between 1890 and 1910. (See, for example, Sites
337.0, 312.0 and 346.0, exhibiting elements of the Gothic, Italianate, and Queen Anne styles
respectively).3

In the post WWI era and moving into the Secondary Period (1928-1949) as the typical building
shifted to one-story gable cottages, and later “ranch” inspired forms, the vernacular style became

3 A stylistic analysis is presented in Section 8.
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less regular and has here been used to categorize dwellings with no other obvious stylistic
attribution. The many structures relocated from U.S. Army Cantonment “Camp White” in the
1946-1949 period are considered typical of this pattern and while actually architect designed
from nationally-based military approved models, these structures are have little typical stylistic
attribute and so logically and appropriately to fall within the ‘vernacular” category as used in this
document.*

While approximately half of the District resources are considered vernacular, other more formal
residential styles are also represented within the area. During the late 19" century more
elaborate versions of the Queen Anne, Stick and other so-called “Eclectic Styles” were
frequently employed by wealthy area merchants and retirees. Homes in these purer forms
include, for example, the E. C. Kane House (Site 129.0) and the John and Charlotte Pelton
House. (Site 140.0) It is interesting to note that of the eleven dwellings falling within the
“Eclectic Styles” attribution, five are already listed individually on the National Register of
Historic Places.5

Early 20™ architectural styles are also represented in the Railroad District. These most
prominently include examples of the Bungalow and Craftsman forms, which occur both in new
construction as well as later additions to earlier vernacular resources. Examples of dwellings in
the simple Bungalow style include the Sherman D. Powell House (Site ID 5.0, built 1900) and
the Mary Trefern House (Site 180.00, buiit 1920c) The more elaborately detailed “Craftsman
Bungalow” form is exemplified by Beecher Danford House (Site 135.0, 1920c¢) and the Anna and
Ida Hargrove House (Site 24.0, 1909) Although categorized under “Vernacular,” dwellings such
at the “Mary Vining House” (Site 50.0, built 1886/89) include later alterations inspired by
popular Bungalow or Craftsman designs. Approximately 15% of the District’s resources fall
within the “Arts & Crafts” style and its various sub-categories.

As might be expected given the development pattern of the area and its decline in the 1920s-
1930s period, only a few Historic Period style dwellings are located within the Railroad District.
Of the three such resources, all built between 1930 and 1945 include simple variations on the
Norman Farmhouse, English Cottage and Gothic styles. (Sites 53.0, 119.0 and 124.0)

4 The shallow-gable wood-frame officers quarters, mess halls and other buildings that were relocated from Camp
White throughout Oregon were constructed in 1942 by CMC Contractors, a large collective of west coast
construction firms that cooperatively built that huge training facility. Noted Los Angeles architect Myron
Hunt is credited with the Camp’s design although most of the structures are largely derived from standard
military designed cantonment structures. See Kramer, “Camp White: City in the Agate Desert” (Camp White
50™ Anniversary Committee, 1992) and Wasch et al, “World War II and the U. S. Army Mobilization
Program,” (HABS/HAER-Legacy Resources Management Program, US Dept. of Defense, 1989).

> The eleven “Eclectic Style” dwellings represents only 3% of the districts total resources accounts for fully 50%
of the area’s already listed National Register resources.
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COMMERCIAL

Though predominately a residential enclave, the commercial uses historically located within the
Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District were in large part both responsible for the area’s
initial development and significant as the internal focus of much of the District’s economic and
social character. During the primary period of historic significance, the Fourth Street and A
Street corridors were almost entirely devoted to commercial or industrial uses. First floor retail
or service businesses (tailors, barbers etc.) were typically complemented by second floor lodging
or apartments. Later, grocery and hardware stores appeared in the area to serve its growing
population independent from the downtown Ashland business community. Restaurants, most
notably the Ashland Depot restaurant, remained a constant element in the Railroad area well in
the late 1950s and early 1960s.

Of the limited 19™ century commercial buildings remaining on Fourth Street, the E. F. Loomis
Building (Site 91.00, built 1899) is typical, classified as American Late 19™ Century: Chicago
School.  Other examples are categorized under the more generic Late 19" Century
“Commercial,” indicative of the district’s avowedly non-high style design character. The sole
architect-designed public or commercial building within the district is the NR-listed Ashland
National Guard Armory (Site 30.0, 1913), designated as being within the Historic Period:
California Mission style.

Several wood-frame commercial or industrial-related buildings do remain in the district,
including the Charles Nininger Building (Site 174.0, built 1902c) and the Gottlieb Spiegel
Building (Site 106.0, 1908c). Both represent the modest falsefront or vernacular style more
commonly associated with the late 19" century. The Ashland Depot Hotel, South Wing, a
portion of the imposing three-story wood-frame building built by Southern Pacific Railroad in
1887 to mark the completion of the line to California, was relocated across A Street and was
independently listed on the National Register prior to its renovation.

INDUSTRIAL

Given its proximity to the railroad and access to shipping, traditional developments within the
Ashland Railroad District included numerous industrial and related uses. Livery stables, transfer
warehouses and similar uses were once common. Today, only a few of these simple industrial
structures remain with the most notable being the Ashland Fruit and Produce Association
Warehouse (Site 149.0, built 1912) and its related though separately inventoried Hay Warehouse
(42.0, built 1908). Secondary period industrial uses are represented solely by the Whittle
Transfer Warehouse (168.0, built 1947) Several post-historic uses, particularly the White Fir
Lumber Company Building (58.0, built 1951) continued the industrial character of the district
although most of these later properties have been subsequently modified and converted to other
exterior forms that hide their original nature. Virtually all the industrial buildings within the
district are categorized stylistically as “Other: Industrial.”
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PusLIC Uses

A number of buildings originally used as churches during the historic periods remain within the
District, most continuing to serve their original function. While some finely detailed examples
exist, notably the Church of the Holy Rosary (270.0, built 1889) which while basically
vernacular has elements of the Gothic Revival Style, the majority are, or were, simple wood-
frame structures comparable to the area’s residential character. More typical is the Free
Methodist Church (337.0, built 1908c). The First Christian Church (124.0, built 1947) is a
masonry volume erected upon the site on an earlier wood-frame church, continuing a use in the
district that dates from the late 1800s and ranked Secondary Contributing. Several other church
buildings constructed during the historic period remain in the district, still in their original use,
but as the result of remodeling do not currently reflect their original period of development. (See
298.00 and 320.00)

POST-1949 DEVELOPMENT

With the end of the secondary historic period and the cessation of the post-WWII boom, new
development dramatically increased the building density in the Railroad Addition Historic
District. New residential construction was generally “Ranch Style” architecture, gaining in
popularity in the 1950s and 1960s, and many residential units were developed on long vacant
sites following lot division as older homes with large lots sold off gardens and other unimproved
parcels. Typical of this postwar development pattern is the Leonard T. Hannon House (Site
195.0, built 1955) which while compatible both volumetrically and in materials represented the
new design trend in the district. Single family dwellings built during the 1970s through late
1980s were most typically a continuation of that stylistic trend, though many of these homes
were of larger scale than had previously been the case. By the end of the 1980s and into the
present era, neo-historic styles have come to dominate new residential construction as earlier,
and often smaller, historic buildings were lost following demolition or fire. Growing population
and increased demand also saw renewed construction following minor land partition, again
increasing the number of dwellings and accessory units within the area. Typical of these various
trends are the Susan Demarinis Office (128.0, 1992), the Harold and Marjorie Jamison House
(313.0, 1988) and the Strong-Laramore House (223.0, 1996) all of which utilize historically-
inspired design for new construction with varying success.

During the 1960s and 1970s growing numbers of multiple-family residential units were
constructed in the Railroad District, resulting in the demolition of several once-prominent
historic resources. Virtually none of these apartment and multi-plex designs were undertaken
with any attempt at maintaining compatibility with their surroundings. Examples include the
Herzman Apartments (112.0, built 1974) or the Lyn Apartments (283.0, built 1965).

The northern and southern boundaries of the Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District are
each formed by primary transportation corridors; the railroad on the north and Oregon Highway
99 (formerly U.S. 99) on the south. Lithia Way, a portion of Highway 99, developed as a
commercial corridor in the late 1950s and 1960s following the construction of the northbound
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couplet through the former residential area. Typical of these highway-focused commercial styles
are Don Wolfe Exxon (19.0, 1961) or Oeser’s Flying A Service, (363.0, 1958) Several dwellings
within the district were relocated as a part of that construction process and remain as contributing
features in their new locations.

The railroad right-of-way itself saw very little development prior to the 1990s, with the Ashland
Fruit and Produce Association Warehouse and Grange Co-Op Buildings being the oniy two
structures built north of A Street prior to that time.> The remainder of the right-of-way was
entirely limited to railroad uses, including the South Wing of the Ashland Depot Hotel prior to
relocation and portable housing units for remaining railroad personnel. A late 19" century brick
structure, a “toolhouse” wing of the demolished roundhouse, survived north of the railroad tracks
until its demolition in the early 1990s by Southern Pacific. Following the temporary closure of
the Siskiyou grade into California and the shift of all Southern Pacific personnel to Medford, the
right-of-way was subdivided and sold for private development, ending more than 100 years of
railroad control.” In fairly rapid succession, new commercial construction, most designated
“Compatible” and placed with the Modern Period: Late 20" C. Historic Period” styie, have filled
in the northern side of A Street for the length of the district. (See, for example, Site 51.0 or
155.0) At the extreme NE comner, near the intersection of A and 8" Streets, the City of
Ashland’s Parks and Recreation Department with substantial neighborhood involvement, secured
a portion of the former right-of-way and developed it into Railroad Park. (159.0)

Within the core of the Ashland Railroad District, recent years have seen increasing commercial
development. While some has taken the form of entirely new construction, such as the Heritage
Bank (38.0, 1979) or the Ashland Community Food Store (39.0, 1993) another growing trend
involves the conversion of early residential structures for professional office space.
Concentrated along portions of B and Second streets, this trend generally has resulted in minimal
alteration to the architectural character of the district.

CONSTRUCTION:

Information on the individual resources within the Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District
follows. Please refer to the district map for location, keyed by “ID Number.” These ID or site
numbers serve as the framework for the nomination’s organization and have been assigned in a
generally north-to-south pattern, beginning at the area’s NE corner, continuing sequentially
through the district on a block by block pattern with individual resources within blocks numbered
in ascending order by tax ot number.

6 See Sites 149.0 and 152.0. A wood-frame lumber yard structure, probably connected with the White Fir
Lumber Company stood on the site of Ashland Hardware/A Street Office Supply (150.0) into the 1980s.

7 Southern Pacific eventually sold its interests in the line through Ashland and the company’s successor, RailTex,
has re-opened the line over the Siskiyou Mountains between Ashland and Yreka, California so that rail freight
traffic once again moves through Ashland on a daily basis.
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ID# 1.0 Survey #1

POWELL, THADDEUS HOUSE 1910¢
337 OAKST 391E04CC 5801
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This wood-frame hipped-roof cottage exhibits design characteristics typically associated with the
Bungalow style, including decorative rafter tails, a full width front porch, and 8/1 double hung wood
sash. The house retains high integrity to its historic character. Thaddeus Powell, a “miner,” and his
wife Laura built this house around 1910 and occupied it through 1952.8 A poured concrete single-
car garage faces onto Van Ness and dates at least from 1928 according to Sanborn Fire Insurance
maps. The Powell House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of

development.
ID # 2.0 Survey #2
MC NAIR, W. H. AND LORENA HOUSE 1910
323 OAKST 391E04CC 5900
Builder: “Tate”
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A one-and one-half story wood-frame structure in the Bungalow style, the McNair House was built
for druggist William H. McNair. McNair married Lorena in 1909 and first built the property next
door at 303 Oak Street. In November the Ashland Tidings noted “W. H. McNair is building a new
bungalow on Oak Street. Contractor Tate has the job.” (Tidings, 8-Nov-1910) McNair, a longtime
Ashland businessman, remained at this address for many years. The McNair House retains high
integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

1D # 3.0 Survey#3

MC NAIR, W. H. HOUSE 1909
303 OAKST 391E04CC 6000
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This one-story hipped-roof cottage was built for local druggist William H. McNair following his
marriage to Lorena. The Ashland Tidings reported “W.H. McNair will build a nice bungalow on his
lot facing Oak Street.” (Tidings, 25-Feb-1909, 3:3) Following McNair’s construction of larger home
next store at 323 Oak Street, his father James J. McNair lived here briefly. The McNair family
retained the property for rental use until the 1930s. The McNair House retains very high integrity
and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 4.0
VACANT LOT 0
0 OAKST 391E04CC 6100
No Style Vacant

This parcel was originally a portion of what is now tax lot 6200 and was associated with the
lShern*(xjan D. Powell House, below. No documentation regarding any structure on this site has been
ocated.

8 Historic information in this document owes a substantial debt to Kay Atwood & Scott Clay, Ashland Cultural Resource
Inventory, 1984/1989. Funded by the City of Ashland with matching grants from the National Park Service in
cooperation with the Oregon State Historic Preservation office, this excellent document provides the basis for the
majority of historic comments contained herein. For cross-reference purposes, identification numbers as used in the
survey are provided in italics following the District identification number.
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ID# 5.0 Survey#4

POWELL, D. SHERMAN HOUSE 1900
281 OAK ST 391E04CC 6200

Builder: D. Sherman Powell
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story dwelling exhibits typical elements of the Bungalow style including a full
front porch, large exterior chimney, and varied surface materials. Built for D. Sherman Powell, a
carpenter, the Ashland Tidings reported that “D. Sherman Powell has recently completed a cottage
for his own occupancy on Qak Street. (Tidings, 11-Jun-1900) Powell and his wife Lillian retained
ownership of the property through 1919 when it was sold for rental purposes to G. W. Loosely, who
lived next door. The Powell House retains very high integrity and effectively relates its historic
period of development.

ID# 6.0 Survey #5

LOOSELY, GEORGE HOUSE 1917¢
263 OAKST 391E04CC 6400
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This fine one-story wood-frame Bungalow-s?rle dwelling may have been built by D. Sherman Powell
for George Loosely following the removal of an earlier dwelling on the site. Loosely was married to
Emma Anderson, a niece of Ashland-area pioneer E. K. Anderson. The Looselys retained the
Erroperty until 1926 when it was sold to Henry Enders who converted it to rental use. While its

ont porch has been enclosed, the Loosely House retains high integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.

ID# 7.0 Survey #6

MERLEY, JOSIAH HOUSE 1908
247 QAK ST 391E04CC 6500
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

This simple wood-framed hipped-roof cottage boasts a full front porch underneath the main roof
and was built for Josiah Merley in 1908. Merely, a retired minister, was born in 1845 and died only
two years after the home was completed. His widow, Sarah, died two years later and the house was
occupied by William J. Mooney, probably a renter, according to the 1910 city directory. The
Merley House retains high integrity and effyectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 8.0 Survey#7

BARNES, ALBERT HOUSE 1904
239 OAK ST 391E04CC 6600
Other: Vernacular |Queen Annej Primary/Contributing

A two story wood frame dwelling, the Barnes House exhibits a modest “Queen Anne” influence
within a generally vernacular farmhouse character. Albert Barnes, a native of New York born in
1839, was a solicitor. He purchased this property from Jacob Thompson in 1904 and began
construction of the house immediately. The Barnes family remained in the home through 1915.
Later occupants included Bert and Muriel Smith, who resided here in 1948. The Barnes House was
used an antique store during the early 1980s and was converted to the present Bed and Breakfast use
a short time later. The Barnes House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period
of development.
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ID# 9.0 Survey#8

SMITH, ELLIOTT HOUSE 1907¢
221 OAK ST 391E04CC 6700
Other: Vernacular {Cottage] Primary/Contributing

A simple two-story wood frame dwelling, the Smith House was constructed circa 1907 for Elliott F.
and Hattie Smith. Smith, a livery man, ran the E. F. Smith and Sons stable on Water Street with his
sons Elmer and Bert. The family retained ownership at least through the 1920s. In 1948 the house
was occupied by Chester A. Smith althou%xit is not clear what connection, if any, to the Elliot
Smith family remained.? While the large gable front porch, probably an undocumented alteration of
an earlier feature, is somewhat incompatible, the Smith-Elliott retains sufficient integrity to relate
its historic period of development.

ID# 10.0 Survey#9

THOMPSON RENTAL HOUSE 1930
11 B STREET 391E04CC 6900
Other: Vernacular |[Cottage] Secondary/Contributing

Built after 1928 and dated at 1930 by the Jackson County Assessor, the early history of this small
one-story wood-frame cottage is unclear. No occupant is listed at the address in 1948 and the
earliest identified owner is Harry Lee Thompson, a frequent speculator in Ashland real estate, who
probably used the cottage as rental during the WWII period. 1n 1952 he sold the property to Angus
Roe and Lela R. Potter. (JCD 374:5) They in turn transferred the property to Jackson County
Federal Savings in 1958 and by 1964 John Hamilton was living here. Wﬁjle simple in design, the
Thompson Rental House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID # 11.0 Survey #3

CHAPMAN-MICKELSON HOUSE 1902¢
209 OAK ST 391E04CC 7000
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne| Primary/Contributing

This large two-story wood-frame dwelling exhibits many elements of the Queen Anne style,
including the decorative fans at the gable ends, the three-part central chimney and an irregular and
complex floorplan. The house was built in 1902 following transfer of the land from Jacob
Thompson to Henry Chapman. Chapman, a longtime area rancher first came to southern Oregon in
1853 and established a farm east of Ashland. Leaving the area in 1860, he returned tc the Ashland
area in 1880. Chapman died on October 18, 1903, just a short time after the house was completed.
His sister Victoria, widow of Michael Mickelson, an early Ashland blacksmith, moved here to care
for her ailing brother and remained in the house after his death. By 1948 and likely earlier, the
Chapman-Mickelson House had been converted for multiple-family use and was divided into
apartments. The 1948 city directly lists six units at this address. Still providing multiple dwellings,
various modifications diminish the historic character of the house but it nevert]fe!ess retains
sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 12.0 Survey #231

MILLER, V. D. & MYRTLE RENTAL HOUSE (w/ Major Addition) 1940/1994
8 B STREET 391E09BB 11000
Other: Vernacular (Altered) Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

Originally a small wood-frame residence, the earliest identified owners of this property are V. D.
and Myrtle B. Miller who owned the property in 1945. (JCD 264:357) The Millers apparently
rented the property and Arthur B. Davis is listed at this address in 1948 while Mrs. Sharon Myer

9 Nor is it clear if Bert Smith, the son and business partner of his father Elliott, is the same individual who lived at 239
QOak Street in the late 1940s.



NPS Form 10-900-A OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section Number: _7 Page: 10 Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District, Ashland, OR

rented in 1964. In 1994 a large addition to the rear and the construction of a second floor
dramatically altered the historic appearance of the Miller House. While substantially altered and
retaining limited connection to the original design, this essentially new building remains compatible
with the character of this portion of the Railroad District.

ID# 13.0 Survey#232

DAMON, GEORGE HOUSE 1925¢
14 B STREET . 391E09BB 11100

Builder: Damon, George
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A one-story wood-frame cottage, the Damon House exhibits modest elements associated with the
Bungalow style. It was completed circa 1925, probably by George Damon, a carpenter and native of
Canada who purchased the property from prominent Ashland businessman Gwin Butler in 1919.
Damon resided in Ashland as early as 1911, living and working at 11 B Street, just across the street.
In 1948 Lawsong Hayie lived here and in 1953 he purchased the house. SJCD 379:150) The
Damon House, now clad with asbestos shingles, has been somewhat modified but retains sufficient
integrity to relate its historic period of development.

1D # 14.0 Survey #233

ANGLE, LEVI L. HOUSE 1904¢
191 OAK ST 391E09BB 11200
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

Originally built as a one-story cottage, the front portion of the Levi Angle House was completed in
1904 when the Ashland Tidings noted that “L. L. Angle has let the contract for a2 new residence on
Qak Street.” &Tidings, 18-F§3-1904) Angle lived here a short time and served for a period as
Ashland’s Chief of Police. Later occupants included George S. Damon family. (See Site #13,
above). In the 1980s a major addition to the rear, adding the one and one-half story portion to the
rear of the dwelling, substantially added to the volume of the Angle House. Now used as
commercial retail space and somewhat compromised, the distinct front, original, volume of the
Angle House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 15.0 Survey #234

VAN SANT, JAMES K. HOUSE 11 1907¢
181 OAK ST 391E09BB 11300
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman American Foursquare Primary/Contributing

This large two-story wood-frame dwelling exhibits both Craftsman and Bungalow style elements
within tﬁe so-called “American Foursquare” floorplan style. Notable features include the projecting
corner bays of the upper story and the hipped roof dormer with decorative rafter tails. A full-width
porch is nested below the projecting second floor. Completed in 1907, the original occupant was
James K. Van Sant. First arriving in Ashland in 1888, Van Sant operated a successful grocery store
and retired in 1900. He was active in the community, helping to found the First National Bank and
built several other dwellings and a commercial block. Van Sant died in February 1909 and his
widow remained here after his death. Substantially unaltered from its original appearance, the Van
Sant House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID # 16.0 Survey #235

SHERWIN, EUGENE A. HOUSE 1900¢
171 OAKST 391E09BB 11500
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

Built circa 1900 as a one story wood-frame dwelling, the original owner and occupant of this house
was Eugene A. Sherwin, founder of the Ashland Drug Company and an organizer of the First
National Bank, along with his neighbor James K. Van Sant. Sherwin was later the local manager of
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the Pacific Telephone and Telegraph Company. He died in 1914 and the property remained in
family ownership until 1930. In 1991 the house underwent a major renovation in conjunction with
the construction of16.100, to the rear. While somewhat altered, the general character of the house,
particularly on its primary Oak Street frontage, retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period
of development.

A separate structure at the rear of this tax lot, facing Water Street, was built in 1991 by North FPacific
Construction Company and adds several rental residential and retail units. Built of wood, this
structure is designated ID #16.100 and is considered a Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing
feature within the Railroad District.

ID # 17.0 Survey #236

MC CALL, JOHN HOUSE 1883
153 OAK ST 391E09BB 11600
Architect: Marsh, L. S. P. {Attrib} Builder: Marsh, L. S, P,
Eclectic Styles: Italianate Primary/Contributing [NR-Listed|

An impressive two-story wood-frame dwelling with exuberant exterior surface decoration, the
McCaleas built and designed by L. S. P. Marsh, one of southern Oregon’s most skilled builders
during the late 19 century for John M. McCall, a important area pioneer and civic leader.
Converted to professional office space in the 1960s, the house is now a Bed and Breakfast. The
McCall House was independently listed on the National Register of Historic Places in 1980.
Construction of a second compatible building on the rear of this tax lot was approved by the State
Historic Preservation Office in the late 1980s.

ID# 18.0
HAMPTON HOMES REAL ESTATE OFFICE 1969
135 OAK ST 391E09BB 11700
Builder: Barnum, Josh
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This small single-story wood-frame building was erected in 1969 as the offices of Hampton Homes
Real Estate. In 1985 a large addition and renovation program was undertaken with North Pacific
Construction serving as the contractor. While essentially residential in character, the small scale of
the building is at variance with the predominately one and one-half to two story homes in this
portion of t%\e Railroad District.

ID# 19.0
DON WOLFE EXXON STATION 1961
75 C STREET 391E09BB 11900
Modern Period: Highway Commercial/Strip Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This gas station was built in 1961 and first operated under the Humble Qil name. Although long
associated with franchisee Don Wolfe and a fine example of its era, the building is not compatible
with the general character of the Railroad District.

ID# 20.0
BOB CRESAP INSURANCE OFFICE 1971
147 PIONEERST N 391E09BB 12000
Modern Period: Commercial Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This single-story concrete block office building was constructed in 1971 and was long the offices of
Bob Cresap, a Farmer’s Insurance agent. In the early 1990s the original flat roof was covered by the
present standing seam metal gable.
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ID# 21.0 Survey #237

COFFEE, GEORGE HOUSE 1908¢
154 OAK ST 391E09BB 12100
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This two story wood-framed, stucco-clad dwelling in the Craftsman-Bungalow style was built for
George and Emma Coffee, retirees who had moved to Ashland and constructed this home. Mr.
Coffee died in 1915 and Mrs. Coffee in 1923. In 1948 Robert A Wagner was living here. The
Coffee House was converted to commercial uses, first as the longtime home of the “Brass Rubbing
Center,” a tourist-based use associated with Oregon Shakespeare Festival. It is now a retail store
and while somewhat altered in character, retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of

development. )

ID# 22.0 Survey #238
FRANCO, TONY AND LULU HOUSE 1946¢
170 OAK ST 391E09BB 12200
Architect: Clark, Frank Chamberlain
Other: Vernacular [Revival] Secondary/Contributing

A two-story masonry and stucco-clad volume, this dwelling was originally constructed for T. P.
“Tony” Franco, a conductor for the SP Railroad, and his wife Lulu sometime after they purchased
the property from Frank J. Shinn in May 1945. (JCD 258:568). Prominent architect Frank
Chamberlain Clark designed the structure and his plans for the dwelling are reportedly in the
possession of the owner. The Franco's retained ownership through 1963 when the house was sold to
Ellen Cox. In 1982 the house was purchased for use as the offices of the Ashland Sanitary Service
and the ground-level garage area was remodeled into office space by Adroit Construction. A second
remodel and addition was undertaken by Bemis Construction in 1989. While changed in use and
somewhat modified as a result, the Franco House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic
period of development.

ID# 23.0
OFFICE BUILDING 1996
190 OAK ST 391E09BB 12300
Architect : Brightenburg, Doyle (Designer) Builder: Davis-Downey Construction
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

This two story wood-frame building was constructed in 1996 on a long vacant corner lot. While not
historic, the design of this mixed-use professional office is somewhat residential in character and
generally blends in with this area of the Railroad District.

ID# 24.0 Survey #239

HARGROVE, ANNA AND IDA HOUSE 1909
185 PIONEER ST N 391E09BB 12400
Architect: Clark, Frank Chamberlain [Attrib] Builder: Gleen, D. L.
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

In June 1909 the Ashland Tidings announced that “The Hargrove sisters are getting ready to build an
eight room residence on their corner lot at Spring [B Street] and First Avenue.. D. L. Gleen will be
the contractor.” (Tidings, 10-Jun-1909) Based upon earlier work for the Hargrove family and the
fine design of the structure, the Hargrove House has long been attributed to noted Rogue Valley
architect Frank Chamberlain Clark although this is not conclusively documented. The Hargrove
House was completed in December ]905 and the Tidings reported that it was “...one of the
handsomest bungalows in town.” (Tidings, 9-Dec-1909). Ida and Anna Hargrove, both milliners,
lived in the house from many years and it was included in Anna’s estate in January 1942. In 1948
William Ritchie, owner of a livestock transportation company, lived here. The house was owned and
occupied by Robert Richardson in 1964. Used as an antique store in the 1980s the house is again a
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private residence. Impressive in detail, with a massive front porch and considered exterior detail,
the Hargrove House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 25.0
BELL, CLARENCE & RACHEL RENTAL 1941¢
175 PIONEERST N 391E09BB 12500
Altered Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

This one and one-half story house was likely built c1941 following the sale of the site from R. M.
Murphy to Clarence and Rachel Bell in 1941. (JCD 228:607). An earlier dwelling on this location,
shown in 1928 Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps, was either razed, substantially remodeled into the
present dwelling, or destroyed by fire. The Bell’s, who retained ownership until 1959, apparently
rented the property, as Floyd F. Wilson is living here in 1948. Andrew P. Bobbett purchased the
house in 1959 and the family retains ownership. Substantially modified with applied detailing and
re-constructed elements, the Bell House does not currently reflect its historic period of

development.

ID# 26.0 Survey #240 .
MURPHY, ROY G. RENTAL HOUSE 1941c
163 PIONEERST N JI91E09BB 12600
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Secondary/Contributing
This small single-story bungalow dwelling was robablﬁlsbui]t as a rental for Roy G. Murgfhy about
1941. Murphy, who lived at 105 Pioneer, purchased this lot and then divided it, selling off the east

portion to Clarence and Rachel Bell. Murphy did not live here and rented the house to Minnie
Gregg in 1948 while he remained in his own home to the west. Herman Price, a timber faller,
urchased the house in the early 1960s and lived here for many years. While possibly older, this
ouse clearly post-dates 1928 according to Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps. T’Ee Murphy Rental
retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 27.0
PIONEER TV/ARCHIES CLEANERS 1959¢
151 PIONEERST N 391E09BB 12700
Modern Period: Commercial Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

A single-story concrete block building, assessors information report its construction in 1952 but the
earliest identified tenant is Pioneer TV in 1964, owned by Lyle Votk and Russell E. Schoonover who
had purchased the lot in 1959 and probably built the structure shortly thereafter. Later housing a
variety of small retail uses, Archie and Hazel Krebs purchased the structure in 1982 and it has since
been the location of Archie's Dry Cleaners.

ID# 28.0
ENDERS WHOLESALE GROCERY WAREHOUSE [Cantwells Market] 1925/1961/1993
310 OAK ST 391E09BA 14000
Architect: Giordano, Tom [Remodel) Builder: Taylor-Made Builders |Remodel]
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

Built in 1925 this large concrete structure was originally constructed as the home of H. G. Enders
Wholesale Grocery and Produce Warehouse. (Tidings, 8-Jul-1925, 1:5) First converted into the
Pioneer Market and Shopping Center, one of Ashland’s first “supermarket” locations, in 1961, this
was the site of one of the earliest commercial adaptive re-use projects in the Railroad District. Later
used by other grocery store and small retail businesses, with several retail spaces in the entry area
leased to a number of small uses including a laundromat, auto parts, women’s clothing stores, and
finally a video rental outlet, the Pioneer Marker and Shopping Center was again redeveloped in 1993
by the present owners as the site of Cantwell’s Market. Completely reclad with EIFS and stucco
and remodeled in a style derivative of the adjacent Ashland Armory, the Enders Grocery Warehouse
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no longer retains sufficient relationship to its historic character to be considered historic but in this
most recent incarnation the building does remain essentially compatible within this commercial
portion of the Railroad District.

ID# 29.0
PIONEER CAR WASH 1961/1993
310 OAK ST ! 391E09BA 14001
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

Originally built in 1961 as a self-service car wash associated with the Pioneer Market and Shopping
Center, this four-bay concrete building was reconstructed in 1993 to create retail spaces with an
exterior that is complimentary to the historic Ashland Armory and the renovated Pioneer\Cantwell’s
Market development. (See ID #28, above). While not historic, the building remains generally
compatible witE the character of this commercial area of the Railroad District.

ID # 30.0 Survey 4228

ASHLAND OR NATIONAL GUARD ARMORY 1913
208 OAK ST 391E09BA 14500
Architect: Knighton, William C. Builder: Veghte, Charles H.
Historic Period: California Mission Primary/Contributing [NR-Listed]

Designed by William C. Knighton, Oregon State Architect from 1912 to 1917 and a prolific
independent designer, the Ashland Armory was built by noted local contractor Charles Veghte. A
two-story building of concrete with heavy stucco exterior, the Armory was designed in the then-
popular California Mission style with various academic Gothic elements, including buttresses and
crennalations around the parapet. The Ashland Armory, though no longer occupied by the military,
is one of only four intact pre-WWTI armories extant in Oregon. The Ashland Oregon National Guard
Armory was listed independently on the National Register of Historic Places in 1986.

ID# 31.0
SHAW RENTAL HOUSE 1931c
185 B STREET 391E09BA 12700
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Secondary/Contributing

While not entirely clear, this house was apparently constructed as a rental by members of the Shaw
Family, longtime landowners and residents in this block of B Street.!0 The house was reportedly
built during the 1930s and remained in Shaw ownership until September 1956 when Cecile M.
Shaw transterred the property to E.J. and Genevieve Harrison, probably relatives. (JCD 431:324-
5} Harrison'’s estate sold the property less than a month later, in August 1957, to Earl G. Baird.
(JCD 445:81) While re-sided with non-historic metal siding, the Shaw Rental House retains
sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 32.0 Survey #224

HOSLEY, CHARLES HOUSE 1886¢
171 B STREET 391E09BA 12800
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A one and one-half story of the traditional “I-House” vernacular form, the Charles Hosley House
was probably built c1886 following Hosley’s purchase of this property from J. H. Mayfield. Three
years later the Ashland Tidings reported that “Charles Hosley is enlarging and improving his house
on Spring [B] Street. (Tidings, 1-Mar-1889) Hosley, a local businessman, had interests in both a
meat market and a saloon. He and wife Henrietta owned the house for many years. The Hosley

10 Edwin Shaw, his widowed mother Lucy, and other members of family are listed at 154 “Spring” Street in the 1910
Jackson County Directory. See ID #52.000.
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House, while modified with an enclosed front porch, retains high integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.

ID# 33.0
ROYLE, H. STEVE RENTALS 1979
161 B STREET 391E09BA 12900
Mixed Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

No structures appear at this location on the 1928 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map of Ashland. In 1948
the lot was owned by Eugenia and Petrunela Straszynski who sold to Silas Livingston in 1959. No
buildings are listed at this address as late as 1964. Clay Morrison purchased the site in 1974 and
may have built one of the two structures now on the site shortly thereafter however a Certificate of
Occupancy was issued to H. Steve Royle, owner and builder, in February 1979. The front unit, a
flat roofed concrete block volume with wooden siding on the front elevation only, was 1on% used as a
cabinet shop but is now in residential use. The history of the larger rear wood-frame gable building
is unclear. While not historic, these buildings are both generally compatible with the multiple-uses
and dense development of this area of the Railroad District.

ID# 34.0
GOSNELL, EVA HOUSE 1941¢c
145 BSTREET 391E09BA 13000
Other: Vernacular [Ranch] Secondary/Contributing

A small single-story wood-frame dwelling, this house was built in 1941 according to Assessors
information and in 1942 was the home of Mrs. Eva Gosnell, the widow of Truman Gosnell. Mrs.
Gosnell worked at the Ashland Laundry Company. By 1958 the house was owned by Mrs. Elizabeth
Fales (? CD 339:490) and six years later Mrs. Fales remained here, along with Pearl Kerby, who also
owned the building at one time. The Gosnell House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic
period of development.

A separate duplex unit was constructed to the rear of the Gosnell House in-1992 and is identified as
ID # 34.100. John Strong served as the contractor.

ID # 35.0 Survey #225

RICHARDSON-GOOD HOUSE 1884
135 B STREET 391E09BA 13100
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A two-story wood frame dwelling in the “I-House” vernacular form, the Richardson-Good House
was built in 1884 for the Reverend David Richardson and his wife. By July 1896 the house had been
purchased by David and Nettie Good. David Good, a local liveryman, remained in this house until
1901. Later he would serve Ashland as its police chief. Later owners and occupants of the
Richardson-Good House include Maria R. DunEam and by 1948 Miss Effie Johnson. In 1964 the
house was owned and occupied by David Foster. The Richardson-Good House retains high integrity
and effectively relates its historic period of development.

1D # 36.0 Survey #226

RICE, MARY HOUSE 1895¢
123 B STREET 391E09BA 13200
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

A modest one-story wood frame cottage, the Mary Rice House was constructed cI1895 by the
daughter of Dr. David B and Mary Rice, who had built a house the corner of Spring [B] and First in
September 1885. Dr. Rice died in 1887 and his wife Mary died in 1891. e couple’s daughter
Mary probably built this dwelling as a rental. In 1903 it was sold to Jennie E. Barnham and in 1910
Charles Silsby, an SP Railroad engineer, was living here. Donald Wolcott lived here in 1948. The
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Mary Rice House retains very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of

development.

ID# 37.0 Survey #227
BLALOCK, WALTER HOUSE 1908
111 BSTREET 391E09BA 13300
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

A single-story wood frame hipped-roof cottage, the Walter Blalock House was built in 1908. “W.
W. Blalock has begun construction of a neat cottage on the corner of First and Spring.” (Tidings, 3-
Apr-1908) Blalock was a conductor for the SP Railroad. He and his wife Fannie remained here
until 1919 when the house was sold to Isabelle Hosler. Miss Etta Johnson was living here in 1948
and by the early 1960s Thomas Aldrich was the owner and occupant. In recent years the Blalock
House has been used as a guest accommodation under the name the “Fiddle Family Inn.” The house
retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 38.0
HERITAGE BANK (Valley of the Rogue) _ 1979
250 PIONEERST N 391E09BA 13400
Architect: Edson, Jack Builder: Salter, Harold
Modern Period:Northwest Regional Noa-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This large commercial structure was built in 1979 as “Heritage Bank” on a portion of the site
formerly associated with the “Twin Plunges,” a early recreational use.

ID# 39.0
ASHLAND COMMMITY FOOD STORE 1993
237 FIRSTST N 391E09BA 13401]
Architect: Thomas Giordano Builder: Batzer Construction
Modern Period: Commercial Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This site, originally a portion of the “Twin Plunges,” a longtime Ashland swimming facility, sat vacant
for many years following the demolition of that structure. The land was subdivided into the current
configuration in 1984, a%‘ter the construction of ID #38.0 on the western portion of the original lot.
In 1993 the present structure was built as the new facility of the Ashlanf

Community Food Store,
generally known as the “Co-op” after its original management format.

ID# 40.0
TOWN HALL 1991
294 PIONEERST N 391E09BA 13500
Builder: Wallbank, Eric
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

This one-story wood-frame structure provides rental meeting space and is designed in a bungalow-
influenced vernacular style. Built in 1991, it is not historic but is considered generally compatible
with the character of the Railroad District.

1D # 41.0 Survey #223

GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE VI 1900¢
309 PIONEERST N 391E09BA 13700
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This small one-story wood-frame dwelling was likely built as a rental by Oscar and Lucinda Ganiard,
prolific property owners in the Railroad District during the latter 19" and early 20" centuries.
Following Lucinda’s death in 1907, this house passed to her only surviving child, Lottie Ganiard
Pelton, who in 1909 sold it to W. A. Patrick. Remaining a rental,” Agnes Downs lived here in 1948
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and by 1964 the house was owned and occupied by Mrs. Mary Edgerton. Modernized for use an
office, the Ganiard Rental House retains integrity to its historic appearance and despite some
changes as the result of its new use, effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 42.0
HAY WAREHOUSE ... 1908
309 % PIONEER ST N 391E09BA 13800
Other: Industrial Primary/Contributing

Listed as a “Hay Warehouse” on 1928 Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps, this industrial building was
likely originally constructed as an element of the Ashland Fruit and Produce Association Warehouse
located across A Street. By 1928, if not originally, the wood-framed structure had been covered
with fire-preventing metal cladding on its exterior. Owned by the Grange Cooperative Supply
Association in 1954 (JCD 392:195-6), it was sold to the present owners in 1969 and now provides
shop space for a local building contractor. The Hay Warehouse is one of the earliest surviving
buildings to relate the industrial uses that grew alongside the railroad during the primary period. It
retains very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 43.0
OAK ST TANK STORAGE BLDG 1980
0 PIONEERST N J91E09BA 13900
Other: Industrial Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

In 1928 this site was the location of a storage building used in connection with the Ashland Fruit and
Produce Association Warehouse, opposite A Street. Purchased by the Morris family in 1947 (JCD
283:306) following the relocation of their Oak Street Tank and Steel, it is unclear if the earlier
building was standing at that time or not. The present open metal-frame storage area was built in
1980 and while not historic is generally compatible with the nature of this industrial corner of the
Railroad District. -

ID# 44.0
J. W. COPELAND LUMBER YARD 1940
165 C STREET 391E09BA 10100
Altered Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

As early as 1928 this site was the location of the Carson-Fowler Lumber Company yard and storage
facilities. While it is not clear to what extent the present structures utilize that earlier facility, tﬁe
J.W. Copeland Lumber Company has occupied this site at least since 1942 and the present structure
is dated at 1940 by the Jackson County Assessor.!] While elements of the historic character of the
flard are visible, particularly in the gable roof of the rear office portion and some portions of the
umber storage facilities, the present building does not accurately reflect its historic period of
development.

ID# 45.0
TEMPEST COURT 1965¢
123 FIRST STREET 391E09BAC-9000x (Muitiple)
Modern Period: Commercial Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This corner site was purchased by the City of Ashland in 1914 and for many years was the site of
the city’s Water and Street Department shops. (JCD 105:499) By 1965 that building was
demolished and the lot was owned by Lloyd Selby who developed the present muitiple office
professional structure on the site. The property was listed under the “Tempest Court Inc” name by
1966 and sometime after 1981 was converted to professional condominium ownership. .

11 See JCD 239:403.



NPS Form 10-900-A OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86)

United States Department of the interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section Number: __7 Page: 18 Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District, Ashland, OR
ID# 46.0

MUNICIPAL PARKING LOT 0

C STREET 391E09BA 11500

No Style Vacant

An early structure on this site was moved elsewhere in the Railroad District in the early 1990s and
the present municipal parking lot was developed. (See ID # 189.0)

ID# 47.0 Survey #214

LOSHER, JAMES W. HOUSE 1904
150 PIONEER ST N 391E09BA 11800

Builder: Losher, James W,
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A large L-shaped two-story wood-frame dwelling, the Losher House was built in 1904. “J. W.
Losher is constructing a two-story cottage next to Postmaster Casey on EPioneer]. Cost, $1200.”
(Tidings, 4-Feb-1904) Losher, a carpenter and bricklayer by trade probably built the house himself
after razing an earlier dwelling that had stood on this site. In 1909 Losher added the front porch to
the dwelling. (Tidings, 18-Jan-1909 and lS-Jul-1909g He worked as a carpenter for the SP Railroad
and later operated a plumbing shop on Oak Street. By 1948 the Losher House had apparently been
converted to multiple-family use and city directories for that year show three renters living here.
The building is now a professional office. Somewhat modified the Losher House retains sufficient
integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 48.0 Survey #215

MULIT, LLOYD HOUSE ) 1905
162 PIONEERST N 391E09BA 11900
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A one and one-half story wood frame dwelling, the Lloyd Mulit House was built in 1905. Mulit, a
cashier at the First National Bank, sold the house a year later to neighbor J. R. Casey, who in turn
used the property as a rental. The simple front-facing gable volume is now encumbered by a hipped-
roof porch tﬁat wraps two elevations, a feature that is probably not original to the structure but
dates at least pre-1928 according to Sanborn maps. Occupants of the Mulit House included Frank
Mix, a druggist who lived here in 1910 and James Gault, a police officer, who lived in four years
later. In 1948 the house was occupied by Joseph Paulson ang in 1964 was owned and occupied by
Mrs. Olive Beebe. In recent years the Mulit House has been used as an antique store. The house
retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 49.0 Survey #216

VINING-WHITE HOUSE 1884
180 PIONEERST N 391E09BA 12000
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne) Primary/Contributing

A two-story wood-frame dwelling, the Vining-White is prominently sited on a corner location with
mature landscaping and grounds. The house is generally vernacular in character but exhibits modest
(%ueen Anne influence, most notably in the projecting three-sided bay window of the B Street
elevation. The house was built in 1884 at a cost of $1500 by Mary Vining, member of a locally
influential family and sold a short time later to Mrs. Jane White, another Jackson County pioneer
who with her husband Lytte, had established the Rock Point Stage Stop in the Gold Hill area.. In
1895 Mrs. White built an addition to the home. She remained here until her death in March 1911.
In 1948 Elmer Ayers lived here and by 1964 the house was owned and occupied by Fred Egle. The
Vining-White House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.
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ID # 50.0 Survey#217

VINING, MARY HOUSE 1886/89
136 B STREET 391E09BA 12100
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A wood-frame one and one-half story vernacular dwelling, the Mary Hoffman Vining House was
built in 1886 for this member of two pioneer families. In 1889 the Ashland Tidings reported that
“Mrs. M. H. Vining's residence on Spring [B] Street has been turned around, placed on a new
foundation, and is having a new front addition put on.” (Tidings, 20-Dec-1899) Mrs. Vining lived in
this home until 1890 wﬁen it was sold to H. Clay Meyers. It is likely that the 1889 front addition
was itself removed or remodeled to create the present Craftsman-inspired front porch, which wraps
two elevations of the dwelling and exhibits classic elements of the style including the shingle-siding,
exposed eave brackets, and large over-hanging eaves. In 1948 the Vining House was owned by
Orville C. Davis and as late as 1964 his widow Sarah still lived in the home. The Vining House
retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic development.

ID# 51.0 Survey #218

ANDERSON, BELLE HOUSE 1908c
142 B STREET 391E09BA 12200
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

This modest one-story cottage was built for area pioneer Eli K. Anderson circa 1908, just before he
transferred its ownership to his daughter, Belle. Belle Anderson apparently kept the house as a
rental, leasing it to a SP Railroad conductor named Ralph Wardle in 1910. She retained ownership
of the house throuih 1923 when it was sold to I. M. Nelse. By 1948 the house was occupied by
Harris C. Rude and in 1964 George E. Boozer was the owner and occupant. The Belle Anderson
House retains high integrity and eftectively relates it historic development.

ID # 52.0 Survey 4219

CHILCOTT-SHAW HOUSE 1888
154 B STREET J91EQ9BA 12300

Builder: Ayers, C. W.
Other: Vernacular |Italianate] Primary/Contributing

A large two-story wood-frame building with modest Italianate elements, the Chilcott-Shaw House
was constructed in early 1888. “C. W. Ayers begins construction of a fine home on Spring [B
Street for N. W. Chilcott.” (Tidings, 24-Feb-1888) Chilcott, an express messenger for the S
Railroad, lived here only a short time but retained the home as a rental until 1902 wien it was sold
to Edwin B. and Lucy Shaw. The Shaws retained ownership for the next thirty years. Sanborn
Maps for 1928 show the house in use as three apartments with a separate structure to the rear.
Both the 1948 and 1964 city directories show four tenants at the address. Multiple family use
remains today. The Chilcott-Shaw House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of
development.

ID # 533.0 Survey #220

WOODS, MARC AND ALTA HOUSE 1946¢
164 B STREET 391E09BA 12400
Historic Period: English Cottage Secondary/Contributing

This wood-framed one and one-half story cottage-style dwelling was built circa 1946 following the
purchase of the site by Marc R. and Alta Wood. (JCD 277:105) The couple retained ownership
until 1958 when the house was sold to Charles Smith, who himself remained here until 1971.
Renovated in the early 1990s as an element of the construction of an new volume at the rear and the
conversion to bed & breakfast use, the Woods House nevertheless retains sufficient integrity to
relate its historic period of development.
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Built in 1990 by Frank Spierings as the owners residence in connection with a Bed and Breakfast use,
this one and one-story volume, identified as 53.100, (164 Y2 B Street), is considered Compatible/Non-
Historic/Non-Contributing

1D # 54.0 Survey #221

RALPH, HELEN RENTAL HOUSE 1895¢
165 FIRST ST 391E09BA 12500
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A very small single-story wood-frame vernacular cottage, the Ralph Rental House was built circa
1895 as a rental for Helen Ralph who lived at the corner of First and B streets. 1928 Sanborn Maps
show the building with a full front porch rather than the present projecting canopy. A longtime
owner was Fred A. Cushing, who lived here from at least 1948 to 1964. With simple detail, the
Ralph Rental House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic development.

ID# 55.0 Survey #222

FERGUSON, JAMES HOUSE 1912¢
184 B STREET 391E09BA 12600
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

In 1909 James C. Ferguson, an inspector for the SP Railroad, purchased the older home of Helen
Ralph that sat on this corner and approximately three years later had it dismantled for construction
of this well-designed one and one-half story wood frame dwelling in the Craftsman Bungalow Style.
Ferguson lived here through the late 1920s and by 1948 the home was occupied by Martin P.
Medock. In 1964 the William O’ Brian and his family owned and occupied the property. The
Ferguson House, with its full front porch, shed dormers and other typical elements retains very high
integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID # 56.0
MCMORRIS, RICHARD & MARIE HOUSE 1943
280 A STREET 391E09BA 800
Other: Vernacular {Ranch| Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

This small gable building was built c1943, probably for Richard and Marie McMorris who lived here
until 1951 when the house was sold to Cecil W. and Velma M. McCarthy. (JCD 359:438)
Following a large number of deed transfers the house was sold to the present owners in 1973. While
retaining compatibility in volume and massing, the McMorris House had been resided and all of its
windows were replaced with aluminum horizontal sliders, reducing its present ability to relate its
historic development.

ID# 57.0 Survey #147

BLUNCK, ELMER HOUSE 1940c
283 SECONDST N 391E09BA 900
Other: Vernacular [Ranch] Secondary/Contributing

This small one-story wood-frame dwelling was built about 1940 and long owned by Elmer W.
Blunck. (JCD 306:359) Blunck sold the house in 1959 and in 1964 it was owned and occupied by
Wilbur Watson. The house remains in Watson Family ownership at this writing. While somewhat
altered, particularly in the front porch area, the Blunck House retains sufficient integrity to relate its
historic period of development.
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ID# 58.0 Survey #7148

WHITE FIRST LUMBER COMPANY BULDING 1951
258 A STREET 391E09BA 1000
Other: Utilitarian Compatible/Non-Historie/Non-Contributing

This site was occupied by a large wood-frame building with a single- occupied floor in the early
1950s that was owned and occuﬁ)ied by the White Fir Lumber Company. (JCD 373:450) In 1964
the building was vacant and in 1977 Mayben Brothers, an auto repair use, and Frey Cabinets are
both listed at this site. Remodeled in the 1980s to create a series of retail storefronts and office
spaces, via the addition an upper floor, the White Fir Lumber Building is a generally compatible
feature within the Railroad District even though it is not entirely clear to what extent it reflects it
original period of development.

ID# 59.0
SOUTH VALLEY AUTO REPAIR 1973
246 A STREET 391E09BA 1200
Builder: Mattison, Jim
Other: Utilitarian Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This concrete structure was erected in 1973 and was occupied by Valley Werkstatt, an auto repair
shop, through the 1970s. South Valley Auto Repair has been in this location since the 1980s. A
separate structure on the property, a wood-frame dwelling, located at 280 First Street, was built
sometime prior to 1942 and was owned and occupied by Perry and Aima Polk. (JCD 238:182) It is
vacant and in very poor condition at this writing.

ID# 60.0
HALL-THOMPSON HOUSE 1949¢
270 FIRSTST N 391E09BA 1300
Other: Vernacular [Ranch] Secondary/Contributing

This small wood-frame cottage was probably built in the late 1940s, shortly prior to its sale by Frank
C. Hall to A.V. and Mary Thompson in January 1950 (JCD 329:120) In 1964 Mrs. Cora E. Grubs
owned and occupied the house according to city directories. While in poor condition, the simply
designed Hall-Thompson House retains sufficient integrity to relate its development during the
secondary period of significance in the history of the Railroad District.

ID# 61.0
GHEA, THOMAS A. AND MARTHA D, HOUSE 1949¢
272 FIRSTST N : 391E09BA 1400
Other: Vernacular Secondary/Contributing

Located off the alley running between First and Second streets, this house was likely constructed in

1949 after the property was sold by the estate of Gwin S. Butler to Thomas and Martha Ghea.

(JCD 322-396-7) Ghea, sold the property in 1952 to Harry McNerny and then reappears on the

title a year later, prior to selling to G. B. and Elizabeth Woodson in 1954. (JCD 396:2262 The

Woodson's retained ownership through 1963. Simply designed, the Ghea House retains sufficient

il?telgritg lt)o relate its development during the secondary period of significance in the history of the
ailroad District.

ID # 62.0
OLSON-FITZGERALD HOUSE 1945
260 FIRSTST N 391E09BA 1500
Altered Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

This small one-story volume was apparently built in the mid-1940s and was the home of Edwin
Olson according to 1948 city directories. Corben F. Fitzgerald purchased the property in 1949,
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possibly for rental use. (JCD 327:82) Modified with applied siding and replacement windows, the
Oison-Fitzgerald House does not retain sufficient integrity to reflect its historic period of

development.

ID# 63.0
HARPER-LUNCEFORFD RENTAL HOUSE v : 1944c
240 FIRSTST N J91EQ9BA 1600
Other: Vernacular [Ranch] Secondary/Contributing

This small one-story wood frame cottage was probably built as a rental for Gertrude Harper and
Guy Luceford, who purchased the site in 1944. (JCD 251:353) In 1948 W. A. and Nancy Williams,
as well as Ed Joe Scott are listed as living here. Harper and Lunceford sold the house to Mrs.
Clarabel D Conley in 1960 and she lived here at least through 1964. Simple in design, the Harper-
Lunceford House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID # 64.0
HARPER, E. L. AND VERNA HOUSE 1950
236 FIRSTST N 391E09BA 1700
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This one-story wood-frame dwelling is the ranch style was probably built shortly after the site was
purchased by E. L. and Verna Harper. (JCD 340:72) The Harpers retained possession for four
years. In 1961 William Roberts bought the property and the family remained here at least through
the late 1980s. While somewhat compatible in volume and built very near the end of the secondary
period, the Harper House represents a different building tradition g\an was typical of the Railroad
District during its historic periods.

ID# 65.0
FAULCONER, ALFRED HOUSE 1947¢
234 FIRSTST N J91E09BA 1800
Other: Vernacular {Ranch| Secondary/Contributing

Accessed off the alley, this small single-story wood-frame dwelling was probably built in 1948 when
Alfred Faulconer purchased the site. The house was sold to Thomas A. Ghea in 1954 and in 1964 it
was apparently a rental, occupied by Clarence W. Maupin. Now upon a newer concrete block
foundation, it is possible, though not documented, that this structure was moved to this site durin

the postwar housing boom period as it appears to be of earlier construction than would be typical o

1947. Despite this confusion, the Faulconer House retains sufficient integrity and is considered a
contributing feature.

ID# 66.0 Survey 149

LOVE, G. W, RENTAL HOUSE | 1900¢
269 SECONDST N 391E09BA 1900
Other: Vernacular [Italianate| Primary/Contributing

One a pair of identical houses, this single-story wood frame dwelling was built for G. W. Love as a
rental circa 1900. The hipped roof volume with attached shed-roof porch retains substantial original
detail, including the corner boards, simple frieze, spindlework porcg screen and the hood over the
central pair of 4-light wood sash windows. The Love family retained the property until 1904 when
it was sold to M. M. March and four years later Major A. Carter, a miner, purchased the house. The
Love Rental House I retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic development period.
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ID # 67.0 Survey #150

LOVE, G. W. RENTAL HOUSE 11 1900c
263 SECONDST N 391E09BA 2000
Other: Vernacular [Italianate] Primary/Contributing

Built in conjunction with the identical house to the north, the Love Rental House II is also a sin%l;\e-
story wood frame dwelling with a hipped roof main volume and an attached shed-roof porch. The
Love family retained ownership through 1907 when the property was sold to lda E. Meyer
remaining a rental. Sherman Morehouse purchased the house in 1910 and later occupants include
Charles Meade. At some undetermined point the Love Rental House was modified with asbestos
siding and the lost of significant amounts of detail, based on the assumption that it originally looked
as does its neighbor. Despite these alterations, the Love Rental House II retains sufficient integrity
to relates its historic period of development and, in comparison with its neighbor, provides a graphic
case study of the modernization efforts of the post WWII era in Ashland’s Railroad District.

1D # 68.0 Survey #151

(MARSHALL] CARPENTER-LOVE HOUSE 1886
247 SECONDST N 391E09BA 2100
Other: Vernacular [Stick] . Primary/Contributing

While not entirely clear, this house was apparently built circa 1886 following acquisition of the lots
by Lucy M. Marshall. In late 1886 the Ashland Tidings noted that “M”. Marshall had completed a
$700 house in the Railroad Addition. (Tidings 31-Dec-1886) In 1892 Lucy and William Marshall
sold the house to I. Carpenter who in turn sold the property to George W. Love, who would later
build two rental houses to the north. In 1910 John Patterson, a cement contract lived here and his
widow remained in the house through 1933. First built as a one and one-half story “saltbox” form,
the [Marshall] Carpenter-Love House was probably expanded with the front two-story addition
c1910, following acquisition by Patterson. The house retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic
period of development.

ID# 69.0 Survey#175

HOSLEY, CHARLES HOUSE 1888c
239 SECONDST N 391E09BA 4900
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A small one and one-half story wood-frame dwelling in the “I-House” vernacular form, the Hosley
House was built c1888 for rental purposes by Charles Hosley, owner of a local meat company. The
house remained a rental for much of the pre-WWI period and possibly much longer. By 1964 it was
owned and occupied by Edward Conover. Somewhat modified via the replacement of its original
windows with horizontal aluminum sliders and the application of plywood panel sicing over the
lower portions of the original horizontal wood (which remains visible above the stringcourse level)
the Hosley House only partially relates its original design but does retain sufficient integrity to
convey its historic period of development.

ID# 70.0 Survey #176

JONES, WILLIAM HOUSE 1908¢
283 B STREET 391E09BA 5000
Other: Vernacular [Bungalow] Primary/Contributing

A one-story wood frame dwelling, the William Jones House exhibits certain simple bungalow
elements within a generally vernacular character. The house was probably built in late 1907 or early
1908 by William and Jennie Jones, who had purchased the property in August 1907. Various
families lived here throughout the years prior to 1910 but it is not clear if ownership repeatedly
transferred or if the house became a rental. By 1948 Deevern Hastings resided here and in 1964 Al
Coblentz, a heavy equipment operator, lived at this address. The Jones House retains substantial
integrity and effectively conveys its historic development period.
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ID# 71.0 Survey #177

FOX, WILLIAM F. HOUSE 1899¢
269 B STREET 391E09BA 5100
Other: Vernacular |Queen Anne] Primary/Contributing

Exhibiting a design and materials of substantially earlier date than 1899 and probably moved to this
site, the William Fox House was first owned by the son of Heaton Fox, one of Ashland’s earliest
settlers and a founder of the Methodist Episcopal Church. William Fox owned a moving and
transfer business in partnership with David Good. He later served as an Ashland City Councilman.
In 1904 the house was sold to Anna Robbins and following an intervening series of transfers was
acquired by Fox's old partner David Good in 1913. The narrow house was substantially augmented
by two additions; a rear bedroom in 1980 and a side bedroom in 1998. The latter addition was
undertaken in connection with the conversion of the home to use as a the “Fox House” Bed and
Breakfast. While altered from its original narrow footprint, the compatible additions do not
seriously diminish the integrity of the structure or damage its ability to relate its original
development period.

ID# 72.0 Survey #178

HEFFLING, JOHN HOUSE 1898¢
259 B STREET 391E09BA 5200
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A fine single-story wood frame vernacular dwelling with an inset porch, the Heffling House was
completed in 1898 and valued at $800 in the New Years’ building summary published by the
Ashland Tidings on January 1, 1899. In 1900 Heffling sold the house to William Fox, who lived
next door, and who apparently used it as a rental. Later occupants included Frank Crouch, manager
of the National Packing Company and Russell M. Hitma, who lived here in 1948. The Heffling
House retains high integrity and effectively relates it historic period of development.

1D # 73.0 Survey #179

STEPHENSON, GEORGE W. RENTAL HOUSE II 1900
249 B STREET 391E09BA 5300

Builder: Riggs, George
Eclectic Styles: Queen Anne Primary/Contributing

A fine, highly decorated, example of a double-bay front cottage, the George W. Stephenson Rental
House 1I was built by George Riggs in 1899-1900. Stephenson, operator of a livery, was one of
Ashland’s largest real estate owners and by 1904 owned seven different dwellings in the city. By
1910 Stephenson himself was living in this house and in 1913 he transferred tit?e to his daughter,
Emma Archibald. Similar in design and date of construction to the James Van Sant Rentals I and II,
located in the next block of B Street to the east,!? the Stephenson Rental House II retains high
integrity and effectively conveys it historic period of development.

ID# 74.0 Survey #1380

STEPHENSON-HARVEY HOUSE 1900
237 B STREET 391E09BA 5400
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

Local real estate investor George Stephenson purchased this property in 1891 and about 1900 the
earlier dwelling was razed for tge construction of this one-story wood-frame cottage. The Ashland
Tidings noted the improvement in its January 1901 building review, valuing the new structure at
$1200. (Tidings 7-Jan-1907). Stephenson, who owned many other properties in the area, sold the
house in 1907 to Auletta L. Harvey, who maintained ownership untif1935. A hipped-roof volume

12 Gee 1D Numbers 86.000 and 87.000.
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with a wraparound porch, the Stephenson-Harvey House retains high integrity and effectively
conveys its historic period of development.

ID # 75.0 Survey #181

ZELLER-MARKLE HOUSE 1884-6
225 B STREET 391E09BA 5500
Other: Vernacular [Cottage| Primary/Contributing

In 1884 D. W. Zeller, a local blacksmith, started construction of this house, with work valued at
$400 reported in the local paper the following New Years. Two vears later the Ashland Tidings
reported “Mr. Zeller is improving his cottage on Spring Street and will make a handsome dwelling of
it.” (Tidings, 5-Feb-1886.) Zeller sold the house to éeorge and Julia Markle, George also workinﬁ
as a blacksmith, a short time later and they in turn sold the house to J. S. Silsby in 1895. We
detailed, particularly in the porch and %able ends, the Zeller-Markle House was thoroughly
renovated in 1995-96 with a large compatible addition to the rear. The Zeller-Markle House retains
sufficient integrity to effectively relate its historic period of development.

ID# 76.0
ASHLAND PUBLIC WORKS SHOP 1964
340 A STREET 391E09BA 700
Builder: Golden-Fields Construction [1986 Remodel]
Other: Utilitarian Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

Owned by the City of Ashland since 1954 (JCD 390:235), this structure dates from the early 1960s
and the relocation of the city’s shops from the corner of First and Lithia Way (See ID #45.0). As
first constructed, this structure consisted of a large concrete warehouse ¥acility surrounded by
covered storage areas for various electric and plumbing materials needed by the City of Ashland’s
municipal water and electric utility. In 1986 after the city sold the property and relocated its shops,
Ashland Hardware moved to this location from its longtime downtown store and the open storage
areas were enclosed to create a series of retail spaces.

ID# 77.0 Survey #152

UNKNOWN HOUSE 1890c
248 SECONDST N 391E09BA 2201
Other: Vernacular Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

Substantial confusion regarding the construction of this one-story wood-frame dwelling remains.
Reportedly built in the late 19th century according to Assessors records, and clearly standing by
1928 as documented in Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps, no owners or occupants were determined
prior to 1948 when Newton Ward and Clarene W. Holmes were apparently renting the property.
Substantially modified with replacement windows and siding covering the entire south-facing alley
elevation, as well as a large (undated but post-1928) addition to the rear, this house retains general
integrity in volume and mass but does not adequately reflect its historic period of development at

this time.
ID# 78.0
WALLBANK, ERIK HOUSE 1988
246 SECONDST N 391E09BA 2300
Builder: Wallbank, Erik
Modern Period: Northwest Regional Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame dwelling was built in 1988. While not a historic structure,
ilg is generally compatible in volume, mass and use of materials with the character of the Railroad
istrict.
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ID# 79.0
SCHOENWALD, JOHN HOUSE 1959
266-268 SECONDST N 391E09BA 2400
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This lot was owned by Albert E. Powell for fifty years before purchase by John Schoenwald in 1959.
Construction of this single story wood-frame volume likely occurred shortly thereafter. Off the
alleyway on the east property line there are two additional rental units on this same tax lot, both
wood-frame gable structures of indeterminate age with standing seam metal roofs. None of these
buildings are considered compatible with the historic character of the Railroad District.

1D # 80.0 Survey #153

WHITMORE, 8. 1. HOUSE 1902¢
265 THIRD ST 391E09BA 2500
Other: Vernacular |Cottage] Primary/Contributing

The one-story wood-frame S. I. Whitmore House was probably constructed in 1902 for rental use.
Whitmore sold the house in 1904 to Clyde A. Payne and in 1910 James Hendricks and his famil
lived here. A simple hipped-roof structure with a lel front porch, the Whitmore House retains hig
integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID # 81.0 Survey #154

BESWICK RENTAL HOUSE [ . 1901
257 THIRD ST 391E09BA 2600
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

Built as one of two rental properties developed by Richard Beswick and his wife, in September 1901
the Ashland Tidings report'ecf that “Mrs. R. Beswick is building two cottages for rent on 3™ Street
between A and B Streets.” In 1902 Beswick sold this cottage to Ariana Rainey who owned it until
1920, apparently continuing the rental use. In 1948 both Cﬁester D. Baugus and Noragene Roberts
are listecf at this address, probably indicating a multiple-use configuration. The house was vacant
according to the 1964 Polk City Directory. The Beswick Rental House I retains sufficient integrity
to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 82.0 Survey #155

BESWICK RENTAL HOUSE 11 1901
253 THIRD ST 391E09BA 2700
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This one and one-story wood-frame vernacular dwelling was built as a rental in 1901 in conjunction
with ID #81, above. The original owners, the Richard Beswick family retained possession until
1909 when the house was sold to Samuel Davies, a barber in the partnership of Davies and Yeo.
Davies would later establish his own firm, the Mirror Barber, which was located on Fourth Street in
the Railroad District from almost 50 years.!3 Davies sold the Beswick House in 1910 to Mrs. Jennie
Eccleston, whose family retained ownership through 1921. The Beswick Rental House I1 was
substantially renovated and modernized in the mid-1990s while maintaining its historic character. It
continues to retain sufficient integrity to relate the building’s historic period of development.

13" Davies “Mirror Barber” was located at 243 4% Street in the building known as the Peerless Rooms. (See ID #
101.000)
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1D # 83.0 Survey #156

BESWICK RENTAL HOUSE I1I 1900¢
247 THIRD ST 391E09BA 2800
Other: Vernacular {Queen Anne) Primary/Contributing

Built for the Beswick family as part of its rental development on this side of Third Street in the first
years of the 20" century, the one and one-half story wood frame Beswick Rental House III was
designed in a slightly more elaborate fashion than its neighbors. The Beswicks sold the house in
1907 to Earl J. Roach, a driver for the Ashland Transter and Storage company. Subsequent
occupants include Jess M. Townsend in 1948 and Mrs. Bertha L. Lantis, who lived her in 1964. The
Beswick Rental House III retains its decoratively shingled gable end with plain boxed cornice as well
as a large front porch below a hipped roof. The building retains high integrity and effectively relates
its historic development.

ID # 84.0 Survey #168

MILLS-POLEY HOUSE 1887
385 B STREET 391E09BA 4200
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne} Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story L-shaped vernacular dwelling with some Queen Anne influence was built
in 1887 according to the Ashland Tidings which reported “Mr. W. G. Mills is building a dwelling for
himself on his lots in the railroad addition.” (Tidings, 30-Dec-1887) In 1889 Mills sold the house to
David Whetstone and four years later, in 1892, it was purchased by Joseph Poley, who with his
family retained ownership for many years. The house was vacant in 1948 according to city
directories but was owned and occupied by Clarence Kinney, a retiree, and his wife Lillie, in 1964.
The Mills-Poley House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

1D # 85.0 Survey #169

COOKE, NICHOLAS HOUSE 1910c
375 B STREET 391E09BA 4300
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

A small one-story wood frame cottage with a hipped roof and full front porch, the Nicholas Cooke
House was probably built circa 1910, shortly after the land was sold to Cooke by J. S. Roser. Cooke
died shortly thereafter and his widow Anna remained in the house. The family retained ownership
until 1921. In 1948 Kenneth J. Madden lived here and by 1964 Mrs. Eva Hughes was the owner
and occupant. The Cooke House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of

development.

ID # 86.0 Survey #170
VAN SANT, J. K. RENTAL HOUSE 1 1899¢
363 B STREET 391E09BA 4400
Eclectic Styles: Queen Anne Primary/Contributing

A modified double-bay front design, this one and one-half story wood-frame dwelling was built circa
1899 for rental use by J. K. Van Sant, a prominent businessman and real estate investor in the
Ashland area at the turn of the century. Sold after Van Sant’s death in 1909, the house was
occupied by G. A. Andrews in 1948 who remained as the owner and occupant at least through 1964,
At that point a second unit was being rented to the rear. Originally sirnifzr or identical in design to
the house to the west, the double-bay windows below the hipped front porch were removed
sometime after 1928. Nevertheless, substantial original detailing remains in the projecting gable
ends of the former bays, the front porch and other trim and the Van Sant Rental I retains su?ﬁcient
integrity to relate its historic period of development.
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ID# 87.0 Survey #171

VAN SANT, J. K. RENTAL HOUSE 11 1899¢
355 B STREET 391E09BA 4500
Eclectic Styles: Queen Anne Primary/Contributing

Built in 1899 as a matched rental to the property to the east, the Van Sant Rental House II retains a
high degree of integrity in exterior detailing. Elaborate trim, including frieze, scrolled brackets,
framed panels and other details highlight the projecting twin bays of the facade. Like its neighbor,
the Van Sant Rental House 11 was solcF following the 1909 death of real estate investor James K. Van
Sant. In 1948 Earl F. Downing lived here and 1964 the house was rented to Walter Reeves, a
janitor for the Ashland School District. The Van Sant Rental House II retains a high degree of
integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 88.0 Survey#172

GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE 11 1901
343 B STREET 391E09BA 4600
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood frame dwelling was built as one of the many rental properties in
the Railroad District owned by Lucinda Ganiard, a widow, at the turn of the 20" century. Shortly
after her purchase of the lot in 1901, the Ashland Tidings reported “Mrs. Oscar Ganiard is erecting
two neat cottages on the corner of Spring [B] and Second Street.” (Tidings, 7-Oct-1901) The
Ganiard Renta% 11 has been somewEat modified, with replacement aluminum windows and
aluminum siding. A flat roof front porch, an undated alteration, probably replaced a hipped porch
similar to that at 333 B Street. While suffering some modification, the general character of the
Ganiard House in volume and mass and continues to reflect the historic period of development.

ID# 89.0 Survey #173

GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE 111 1901
333 BSTREET 391E09BA 4700
Other: Vernacufar Primary/Contributing

Built in conjunction with the house at 343 B Street, the Ganiard Rental House III is also a one and
one-half story wood frame dwelling. L-shaped, with a wrapped front porch that follows the
projecting gable, the Ganiard Rental retains high integrity to its historic period of development.

ID# 90.0 Survey 174

GRUBB, MILLARD HOUSE 1922
311 B STREET 391E09BA 4800

Builder: Thatcher & McFarland
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

In recent years the site of an art gallery, the Millard Grubb House was built for a third-generation
member of the pioneer Ashland family of Samuel and Elizabeth Grubb. “Millard Grubb is building a
fine new bungalow at 2" and B streets. Thatcher and McFarland are the contractors.” (Tidings, 26-
Apr-1922) The Grubb House is an excellent example of the Bungalow style, with a full front porch,
paired porch columns, 1/1 wood sash windows, bellcast eaves and other typical features all present.
The Grubb House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 91.0 Survey #7142

LOOMIS, E.F. BUILDING 1899
287 FOURTH ST 391E09BA 100
American L. 19th C: Chicago Schoo! Primary/Contributing

This prominent two-story brick volume anchors the corner of the original Railroad District
commercial area, historically facing the Ashland RR Depot. Built in 1899, the Ashland Tidings
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reported “E. F. Loomis has bought the northwest corner lot of 4™ and A streets near the depot. He
wi'ljl build a large brick building there and remove the older structure.” (Tidings, 6-Jan-1898)
Loomis, a grocer, moved his longtime Railroad District grocery store into the structure in 1899. The
following year a single-story brick addition was built to the west, generally matching the original
volume in detailing. Loomis sold the building to J. H. Haun in 1901. By 1928 the Express Office
was located in the corner storefront and 1948 directories show the building as occupied by “Snider’s
Coffee” and “Reed Upholstery and Mattress.” In recent years, the corner of the Loomis Building
has been used for a selection of restaurants, an upholstery shop, and is currently a photography
studio. A small attached wood-frame single story volume is built at the west rear of the original
building and has been long occupied by a g%ass company. Office and professional spaces occupy the
storefronts facing 4" Street and the second floor. The Loomis Building has been somewhat altered
in character, most notably by heavy sandblasting of the brick exterior in the 1970s. It remains,
however, a significant building within the 4'" Street commercial corridor and sufficiently relates its
historic period of development.

ID# 92.0
SCHOOLHOUSE R ELECTRIC 1957
281 FOURTH ST 391E09BA 101
Other: Industrial Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

A single-story concrete block structure long the location of a local electrical contractor, this structure
was built in the late 1950s. Now the 4 Street Studio, a professional space, the building while not
historic is generally compatible with the surrounding commercial uses.

ID# 93.0 Survey #7143 C .
POWELL, WILLIAM HOUSE 1889c¢

462 A STREET 391E09BA 200
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A simple single story wood-frame dwelling, the Powell House gains substantial note from its builder
and original occupant, William Powell. Powell purchased these lots 1889 and built this house
shortly thereafter. He became locally known for his apple cart, from which he sold apples and other
products to Ashland’s passing travelers with the aid of numerous of children. 1In July 1901 the
Ashland Tidings announced that “William Powell, depot fruit dealer, has built a building on Railroad
Street and will begin the cider making industry.” (Tidings 25-Jul-1901) “Mr. Powell’'s Apple Cider”
would become a famous local product and remain so for many years.  Powell died in 1913 and his
family retained ownership of this property through the 1940s.” Essentially unaltered on its exterior,
the Powell House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID # 94.0 Survey #144

GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE 1V 1899
450 A STREET 391E09BA 300

Builder: Goff, Edgar
Other: Vernacular [Cottage} Primary/Contributing

Yet another of the many rental dwellings built for Mrs. Ganiard in the late 19" and early 20
century, this Ganiard Rental House IV is a single story hipped roof volume with a full front porch
and simple vernacular cottage details. In 1899 the Ashland Tidings reported “Mrs. Lucinda Ganiard
has let a contract to E. W. Goff to build two neat cottages for rent on A Street...the two will cost
$1000.” (Tidings, 27-Mar-1899, 3:2) In 1910 the house was rented to Ralph Bluett, a concrete
worker and H. L. Taylor lived here in 1948. The Ganiard Rental House IV retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.
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1D # 95.0 Survey #145

GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE V 1899
438 A STREET 391E09BA 400

Builder: Goff, Edgar
Other: Vernacular [Cottage| . Primary/Contributing

Similar in both design and history to the house at 450 A Street, the Ganiard Rental House V was
one of many rentals owned by Mrs. Lucinda Ganiard in the Railroad District during the early 20*
century. A one-story wood frame vernacular cottage, the house is differentiated from its neighbor
by the small shed dormer centered above the full-width front porch. James Robinson, a fruit
vendor, lived here in 1910 and in 1948 the house was occupied by L. A. Daly. A widow, Mrs. Clara
Pierson, owned and occupied the Ganiard Rental House V in 1964. The house retains high integrity
and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID # 96.0 Survey #146

PELTON, JOHN RENTAL HOUSE 1890¢
426 A STREET 391E09BA 500
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

This small single-story wood-frame dwelling was originally constructed in 1889-89 as rental for John
and Lottie Pelton, longtime residents of the Railroad District. Lottie Pelton was the child and heir
of Oscar and Lucinda Ganiard. The Peltons sold the house in 1894 to Charles Cook and by 1905 it
was owned by Mrs. M. F. Goble, whose family remained here until the 1930s. In 1964 the building
was apparently used for commercial purposes, as “Harold’s Tune Up and Brake” is listed at this
address in city directories. Comparisons of the present structure with that depicted in 1928
Sanborn Maps indicate major alteration, notably the removal of a front bay window. Various other
changes in window type, siding and other aspects dramatically diminish the integrity of the Pelton
Rental House and prevent its from accurately reflecting its historic period of development.

ID# 97.0 Survey #157

ENDERS-CORBETT HOUSE 1909¢
248 THIRD ST 391E09BA 2900
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne} Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story vernacular dwelling exhibits several typical Queen Anne details and is
notable for its fine two-story front porch and balcony with a centralpfront- acing gable that creates a
well-articulated facade elevation. The property was purchased by local merchant Henry G. Enders
in 1908 and he may have initiated construction shortly thereafter or purchased a completed building.
In 1910 John M. Easterling, a noted Railroad District merchant lived here.!4 Shortly thereafter
James Corbett, a miner, purchased the house and retained it through 1935 when its was subject to a
tax foreclosure. The Enders-Corbett House retains very high integrity in exterior detai{ing and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

1D # 98.0 Survey #7158

CORBETT-HUGHES HOUSE 1910¢
258 THIRD ST 391E09BA 3000
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A small one-story wood frame bungalow, the Corbett-Hughes House was probably built as a rental
for James L. Corbett, who lived next store at 248 Third Street. The house was sold to Calfin P.
Hughes in 1912 and he lived here into the 1920s. Later occupants include J. A. Hendrix, who
owned and occupied the house in 1948. His widow, Eliza, remained here at least through 1964.

14 Easterling operated a restaurant on 4 Street and was the owner\builder of the major addition that created the

Peerless Rooms.
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While somewhat modified with replacement siding, the Corbett-Hughes House retains sufficient
integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 99.0 Survey #159

DAVISON, FRANK HOUSE 1901¢
266 THIRD ST 391E09BA 3100
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A single-story wood frame dwelling in the simple bungalow style, this house was constructed circa
1901 for local grocer, Frank Davidson. Davidson lived here only a short time, selling in 1902 to T.
R. Badger, who himself had apparently sold by 1910. Long a rental, later occupants include Lyman
Barger, who lived here in 1948 and Mrs. Alice M. Moon, who owned and occupied the house in
1964. While somewhat modified with replacement siding and a rebuilt-front porch, the Frank
Davidson House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 100.0 Survey #160

POSITIVELY FOURTH STREET 1982
265 FOURTH ST 391E09BA 3200
Modern Period: Commercial Compatibie/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

Following the loss of the historic structure on this site, 2 wood-frame building named “Positively 4%
Street” that provided concert space and event rental was built here in the early 1980s and then,
after a fire, it was rebuilt in 1982 by contractor Erik Wallbank. That building has been successively
remodeled and enlarged to create the present structure. While not historic, and volumetrically at
odds with the traditional development pattern of the district, the building is generally compatibl}é in
character with this area of the Railroad District.

ID# 101.0 Survey #161

PEERLESS ROOMS BUILDING 1900/04
243 FOURTH ST 391E09BA 3400
American L. 19th C: Commercial Primary/Contributing {NR-Listed)

Construction of the two-story bearing masonry “Peerless Rooms Building” occurred in two phases,
beginning with a small single story volume that forms the “storefront” of the building in 1900 by
Mrs. Lucinda Ganiard and completed with a major rear and upper floor addition in 1904 when the
building was owned by John M. Easterling. Known as the Peerless Rooms, an early working-class
travelers accommodation serving railroad passengers, the building was also the longtime home of
“The Mirror Barber,” owned and operated by Samuel S. Davies. The Peerless Rooms was listed on
the NRHP in 1992 and following a Certified Rehabilitation is now operated as the “Peerless Hotel.”

ID# 102.0 Survey #162

AURAL CLINIC [Former Bakery\Mission Site] 1995
233 FOURTH ST 391E09BA 3500

Builder: Frantz, Tom
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

The majority of the early concrete and wood-frame building that stood on this site during the
historic period was demolished in two phases prior to 1990, for many years resulting in the
freestanding concrete facade opening onto a dirt lot. The present two-story stucco building, one of
the first structures in southern Oregon to be built using a stacked foam block system, was erected in
1995 and provides professional office space. While not historic, the building is generally compatible
in volurne and mass with the commercial character of this portion of the Rai roag District.
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ID# 103.0 Survey #163

NININGER, CHARLES BUILDING 11 1899
215 FOURTH ST 391E09BA 3600
American L. 19th C: Commercial Primary/Contributing

A large two-story bearing brick volume that dominates a prominent intersection in the heart of the
Railroad District, construction of the Charles Nininger Building II was reported in the Ashland
Tidings in early 1898. “...the Nininger Block at Fourth and Spring [B] is going up.” (Tidings, 18-
Apr-1898, 3:3) Built on the former site of the Nininger home, Charles and his wife Sarah moved to
Ashland in 1884 and eventually owned a number of properties in the Railroad District including a
livery stable and a hotel. In 1900 the building was the location of the Loomis and Nelson Grocery,
who apparently had moved their store from the opposite end of this block. While the Niningers
movedp g’om Ashland in 1906 they retained ownersﬁjp of this property and continued to lease it to
Loomis and Nelson, who remained here at least through 1910. A “General Store” was located here
in 1928 and twenty years later, in 1948, the building had been converted to multiple family use and
was known as the “Harris Apartments” with three units on the main floor and six on the second.
Now known as “The Bundini Building” the Nininger Building remains multi-family upstairs with the
lower floor offering both a small retail space facing B Street and a large dance studio. The Charles
Nininger Building had been variously modified over its life but retains high integrity and effectively
relates its historic period of development.

ID# 104.0 Survey #i64

LONG, M. N. RENTAL HOUSE Il 1888
463 B STREET 391E09BA 3700
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

Originally designed as a vernacular [-House, the M. N. Long Rental House II was built in 1888, for
longtime Ashland resident Nimrod Long. “M. N. Long is having two dwellings built for rent on his
lots in the railroad addition.” (Tidings, 27-Apr-188, 3:2) Long sold the house to Charles E.
Nininger, owner of the adjacent commercial building, in 1895 and in 1904 it was again sold to Louisa
D. Humphrey, a widow, who lived here at least through 1910. The bungalow-style front porch,
presumably replacing an earlier vernacular form, pre-dates 1928 according to Sanborn Fire Maps. In
1948 the house was occupied by Val Inlow, member of a longtime Ashland family. The M. N. Long
Rental House Il retains high integrity and effectively relates it historic period of development.

ID# 105.0 Survey #165

LONG, M. N. RENTAL HOUSE | 1888
455 B STREET ’ 391E09BA 3800
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

Built in 1888 in tandem with the adjoining structure, the M. N. Long Rental House II was
constructed for Nimrod Long, member of a pioneer Ashland family. Like its neighbor, this house
was sold to Charles Nininger in 1895 and again in 1904, when it was purchased as a rental by Horace
T. Mitchell, who retained ownership until 1922. The one and one-half story wood-frame M. N.
Long Rental House Il is designed in a classic [-House vernacular form. The building retains high
integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 106.0 Survey #166

SPIEGEL, GOTTLIEB BUILDING 1902/08¢
447 BSTREET 391E09BA 3900
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

Construction of this single-story wood frame vernacular storefront began in 1902 when Gottlieb F.
Spiegel, a shoemaker, built a single building for his shop at 447 B and, apparently, a second similar
volume at 441 B that he rented to various other businesses. Around 1908 the buildings were
modified and connected to form the present single volume. The Spiegel Building was alternately
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used for both commercial and residential purposes. Gottlieb Spiegel retained ownershjf and his
estate sold the building in 1920. In 1948 Minna Vedder lived at 447 and M. W. Maxwell lived at
441. By 1964 two other individuals were living here. In the 1980s the property was again in use for
commercial purposes, a cabinet shop, but it again used as a residence at this writing. The Gottlieb
Spiegel Building, a rare surviving example of a wood-frame commercial construction in Ashland,
retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 107.0 Survey #167

ABBOTT-PRESCOTT HOUSE 1910c¢
435 B STREET 391E09BA 4000
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A one and one-half story wood frame building in the simple bungalow style, the Abbott-Prescott
House was built for William M. Abbott sometime after his acquisition of the site from Gottlieb
Spiegel. Abbott, a gardener, lived on Blaine Street and apparently kept this property as a rental until
1911 when he sold it to Clarence and Anna Prescott. The Prescotts retained ownership until May
1920. Later occupants include C. O. Holman, in 1948, and Clarence P. Hanson, in 1964. The
Abbott-Prescott House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

1D# 108.0
VORIS DUPLEX 1976
224-230 THIRD ST 39IE09BA 4100
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This wood-frame duplex was built in 1975-76 under the ownership of R. Voris on a site long owned
by the Whittle Family and sold via probate journal 68:365:8 in 1964.

ID# 109.0 Survey #190

PINKSTON-BARTGES HOUSE 1889
426 B STREET 391E09BA 6700
Other: Vernacular [Queen Annej Primary/Contributing

Construction of the two-story wood-framed Pinkston-Bartges House began in early 1889. “J. H.
Pinkston, SP brakeman, willrgave a new handsome residence on lots recently purcgased on S{)rin
gB] Street between Third and Fourth.” (Tidings, 27-Feb-1889, 3:2) Construction was complete

y June, at an estimated cost of $1200. Pinkston sold the house to another SP brakeman, Walter
Bartges, in April 1900. Bartges owned the property until 1920 when it was sold to F. F. Whittle,
whose famjgl retained ownership for almost 50 years. The Pinkston-Bartges House retains very high
integrity and effectively relates it historic period of development.

ID# 110.0 Survey #191

ROYSTON, DOTT AND EARL HOUSE 1947¢c
440 B STREET 391E09BA 6800
Other: Vernacular Secondary/Contributing

This small single-story wood-frame building was probably built at U. S. Army Cantonment ‘Camp
White” in 1942 and they moved to this lot circa 1947, shortly after the site was purchased by Dott
Williams. (JCD 386:37) Hundreds of Camp White’s 1300 structures were relocated and modified
to solve post-war construction needs throughout the state and many such homes are located in the
Ashland area. Williams, a widow at the time, later re-married Early Royston and the couple
remained here at least through 1964. While the small attached porch was likely added to the
original Camp White volume, the Royston House retains high integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.
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ID# 111.0
JOHNSON, HAROLD AND MARGUERITE HSE 1962¢
460 B STREET 391E09BA 7000
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

A single-story wood-frame dwelling with scored wood shingle siding, this dwelling was probably
constructed shortly after the property was sold by Margaret Whittle to Harold G. and Marguerite
Johnson in 1962. (JCD 350:484)

ID# 112.0
HERZMAN APARTMENTS 1974
464 B STREET 391E09BA 7200
Builder: Ladar Construction
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

Throughout the historic period this prominent corner lot was the site of a large two-story masonry
commercial structure that helped anchor this major intersection within the Railroad District. In the
early 1960s, as an element of the City’s ill-fated plan to utilize urban renewal moneys to “revitalize”
the Railroad District, this corner was apparently one of the first reconstruction projects that would
replace original district properties with modern “multi-family” residential. After the lot was cleared,
public outcry to the purposed mass demolition within the Railroad District apparently contributed
to a long delay in any new construction here. The Herzman Apartments were built by Ladar
Construction for owner Larry Herzman in 1974.

ID# 113.0 Survey # #192

ENGWICHT, GEORGE HOUSE . 1899
161 FOURTH ST 391E09BA 7300
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

This small single-story wood-frame vernacular cottage was constructed in the Summer of 1899 for
George Engwicht, a S P Railroad conductor. Engwicht sold the house in July 1902 and after a series
of transactions it was purchased by Lydia and H. A. Barney, who retained ownership until 1920. In
1948 Leo J. Connor was living here and by 1964 the house was owned and occupied by William D.
Keddie, a laborer with the city water department. The Engwicht House retains_ sufficient integrity
to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 114.0 Survey #193

BURNS, WILLIAM AND ELLA HOUSE 1900¢
143 FOURTH ST 391E09BA 7400
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

Built for William Burns, an SP conductor, and his wife Ella circa 1900, this one story wood framed
vernacular dwelling boast a full-width front porch with a projecting hipped-roof. Burns died shortly
after construction and his widow married Ernest Coston, also a conductor, circa 1908. They couple
remained here until 1920. In 1948 N. I. Whetstone was living in the house and remained in 1964.
Later the house was owned and occupied by Gus Clements, manager of the Pioneer Village Meat
department. The Clements family retained ownership at least through the early 1990s. The Burns
house retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 115.0 Survey #194

WHITE, HENRY RENTAL HOUSE I 1915¢
131 FOURTH ST 391E09BA 7500
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A one story wood framed bungalow-style dwelling, the Henry White Rental House II was probably
built circa 1915, following White’s purchase of the property from H. L. Hackett. White, who lived
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at 1023 East Main, listed his occupation as “Farmer” in the 1910 city directory and likely had this
house built for rental purposes. White retained ownership until his death in 1922. Mary Hale is
listed at this address in 1948 and in 1964 the house was owned and occupied by retirees John L and
Grace Berry. The Henry White Rental House II retains high integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.

ID# 116.0 Survey #195

WHITE, HENRY RENTAL HOUSE 111 1912¢
109 FOURTH ST | 391E09BA 7600
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A fine example of a bungalow duplex, the Henry White Rental House I was probablK built shortly
after White's purchase of the property from John Morris in October 1912. White, who also built a
rental house next door 1915, was a “Farmer,” who lived at 1023 East Main Street according to city
directories. In 1919 White sold this duplex to Annie Burnham, who in turn sold it to Mary Courts
in 1922. In 1948 William B. Blackmer and John J. O’Connor were living in the two units. In 1964
Dale Haggard, of Haggard Heating and Sheet Metal, owned and occupied the dwelling. With its
twin brick chimneys and clipped gable roofs, the White Rental House 111 is a well detailed bungalow
form and retains high integrity to effectively relate its historic period of development.

ID# 117.0 Survey #196

VAN SANT, J. K. HOUSE 1898
1067 FOURTH ST 391E09BA 7700
Other: Vernacular [Italianate] Primary/Contributing

A large two-story wood frame vernacular dwelling with Italianate elements, this structure was built
in 1898 for J. K. Van Sant, an influential businessman and community leader. In early 1898 the
Ashland Tidings reported that “....lumber is on the ground for J. K. Van Sant’s new home.”
(Tidings, 20-1898, 3:2) Van Sant, who moved to Ashland in 1888, operated a grocery store and
owned a number of rental properties throughout the Railroad District. He was also active in the
Ashland Board of Trade (a forerunner of a modern Chamber of Commerce), the Presbyterian
Church and the Republican Party. Van Sant and his wife lived in this house until their newer home
on Oak Street was completed in'1907.15 By 1948 the Van Sant House had been converted to multi-
family use under the “LeBounty Apartments” name with four units. In 1964 the property is listed as
the “De-La Bounte Apartments,” possibly a continuation of the same operation, although now with
five units. By 1991 the house was known as the Bee and Dee Apartments. While the Van Sant
House has had various alterations in connection with the change to multiple-family use, notably the
addition of the Craftsman-style front porch (now partially enc%osed] and a rear single story addition
(both post-1928 according to Sanborn Maps, but seemingly pre-WWI1I) the Van Sant House retains
sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 118.0
SMITH-LEONARD RENTAL HOUSE 1964c
467 C STREET 391E09BA 7800
Modern Period: Ranch House Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

Reportedly built in 1964, this property was owned by Charles Leonard and Vawn Q. Smith from
1952 retained through 1975. (JCD 363:427). Apparently used as a rental, Victor A. Alcock was the
tenant listed in the 1964 city directory for the area. A two story wood-frame building that may in
fact be older than 1964, no structure is listed at this address in 1948. The building is generally
compatible in volume, mass, and materials with the surrounding character of the Railroad District.

15 See ID # 15.000.
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ID# 119.0 Survey #197

NORTSTROM, JOHN & OLIVE RENTAL 1930c
114 THIRD ST 391E09BA 8000
Historic Period : Norman Farmhouse Secondary/Contributing

This fine one and one-half story wood-frame dwelling in the Norman Farmhouse style was probabli
built as a rental in the 1930s by Johan [John] and Olive Blanche Nortstrom who lived on Oa
Street. It is not clear if the couple had owned the earlier house on this lot, as shown in 1928
Sanborn Insurance Maps, or what happened to that structure prior to the construction of this one.
In 1944, after John’s death, Olive Nortstrom sold the property to Barbara J. Olson. (JCD 248:166)
Olson lived here for eight years, selling the house to Charles Leonard and Vawn th mith in 1952.
(JCD 375:276) This cou %,e divided the lots (see ID #120.0) and retained ownership of this house
until 1983. One of the few Historic Period style dwellings in the district, the Nortstrom Rental
House retains very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 119.100
HARTLEY, ROY RENTAL 1 1942¢
130 THIRD ST 391E09BA 8101
Other: Vernacular [Ranch) Secondary/Contributing

This small hipped roof cottage is built of concrete block and dates post-1928, as it does not appear
on the Sanborn Fire Insurance Map of Ashland done in that year. Athough dated at 1930 by the
Jackson County Assessor the building was most likely built after 1942 when the property was
purchased by Roy C. Hartley. (JCD 237:102) No occupant is listed in 1948 and Hanlgy, who lived
next door, probaﬁly kept this house as rental. In 1964 James H. Dickson rented the house and two
years later Hartley soldpit to Charles L. and Vawn Q. Smith as part of the other holdings in this area.
In the early 1990s the concrete was covered with the present wood cladding but the building retains
sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development. :

ID# 120.0
SMITH, CHARLES & VAWN RENTAL 1952¢
457 C STREET 391E09BA 8001
Other: Vernacular Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

While listed as being constructed in 1910 by Assessors records, this small single-story wood-frame
cottage does not appear on 1928 Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps and more likely dates from 1952
when the lots were divided from the corner parcel under the ownership of Charles L. and Vawn Q.
Smith. Smith, known as “Leonard,” was a department head at the Montgomery Wards and lived
with his family on Oak Street in 1952. He apparently kept both this house and ID# 119.0 as
rentals. In 1979 the house was transferred to a son, Victor W. and soon left Smith Family
ownership. While not historic, the Smith Rental is generally compatible in volume and materials
with the character of the Railroad District.

ID# 121.0 Survey #198

GROAT, W. A. HOUSE 1900
138 THIRD ST 391E09BA 8100
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne} Primary/Contributing

A one and one-half story wood frame vernacular ell with a Queen Anne-influenced projecting bay
window and trim, the W. A. Groat House was built in 1900 according to the local newspaper.
(Tidings, 11-Jun-1900) Groat occupied the home only a short time and in 1901 it was sold to Callie
Long, a widow. The Long family retained ownership until the early 1940s. By 1942 Roy Hartley
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was living here as well as running his music school, “The Studio,” from this location.16  Although
somewhat modified with replacement siding, the Groat House retains sufficient integrity to relate
its historic period of development.

ID# 122.0
WHETSTONE, NEWELL & BEULAH RENTAL HOUSE 1941c
142 THIRDST N 391E09BA 8200
Other: Vernacular [Ranch] Secondary/Contributing

This small hipped-roof wood frame structure was probably built in 1941 after the lots were
purchased from the City of Ashland by Newell I. and Beulah E. Whetstone. (JCD 240:482)
Newell, a machinist for the SP Railroad, was living on 4 Street in 1942 and remained there in 1948,
probably an indication that this house was kept as a rental during the booming WWII era. A second
small rental unit, possibly first used as a garage, is located at the rear of the grass and concrete
runner driveway. The Whetstone Rental House retains high integrity and eff%ctively relates its
historic period of development.

ID# 123.0 Survey #199

BOIVEN, HENRY AND NELLIE HOUSE 1900
156 THIRDST N 391E09BA 8300
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne| Primary/Contributing

A large two story wood-frame dwelling with strong (ﬁueen Anne stylistic influence, the Boiven
House was built in late 1900 following tﬁe purchase of the site by Harry and Nellie Boiven. Boiven,
a plumber, lived here only a short time and eventually moved to Klamath Falls, although he and
Nellie retained ownership until 1922. Lulu Bell Francis purchased the house in 1922 and remained
here for 22 years. By 1948 the house was occupied by O. F. Silver and in 1964 Charles Gann, a
retiree, livecf( here with his wife Clara, while renting out the rear building. In more recent years the
Boiven House has been converted to multiple family use, with two units plus the rear rental shown
by 1991. While the original historic appearance of the Boiven House has been somewhat obscured
by a variety of applied details and non-historic trim, the essential volume of the structure retains
integrity and the Euilding continues to relate its general historic period of development.

ID# 124.0 Survey #185

FIRST CHRISTIAN CHURCH OF ASHLAND 1947
318 B STREET 391E09BA 6100
Architect: Kelly, Walter E.

Historic Period: Gothic Secondary/Contributing

The Christian Church of Ashland has been located on this corner since the late 19 century when
they first acquired the property. (JCD 36:160, see also JCD 486:14:15) The first wood frame
structure was destroyed by fire in September 1946. “The building was filled with smoke and flames
when the fire department arrived and...every possible effort was made to save it but the flames
spread rapid(lff and this morning only the charred walls remained.” (Tidings, 12-Sep-1946, 1:7-8).
Four-year old Jackie Hall, who lived nearby, was rescued from the belfry and was later determined
to have set the fire while playing with matches. “Jackie was scared he would be punished and told
his parents and The Tidings reporter that another boy had set the fire and carried him up the stairs
to burn him up.” (Tidings, 14-Sep-1946, 1:2) Within a week the Church made plans to rebuild and
cleared the site of the cﬁarred remains, meeting in the Seventh Day Adventist Church at 4* and C
streets. In March 1947 plans by Portland architect Kelly were presented for the new 120" x 45’
concrete building and construction began in September of that year. (Tidings, 27-Mar-1947, 1:5 and
25-Sep-1947, 6:3). The First Christian Church building, an element of the Railroad District for 100

16 By 1964 Hartley apparently moved next store to 130 Third Street and was still operating “The Studio,” then
identified as the “Ashland Branch of the Sherwood School of Music” in city directories.
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years, has been somewhat modified with new windows and other details but retains sufficient
integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 125.0 Survey #186

PRATT, JOHN HOUSE 1895¢
338 B STREET 391E09BA 6200
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A well-articulated one and one-half story vernacular ell, the John Pratt House was built circa 1895
following Pratt’s purchase of the property. A tailor, Pratt lived here until his death in 1903 and his
family sold the house to the First Christian Church in 1907 for use as the minister’s residence. Rev.
George K. Berry lived here in 1910. No resident is listed in 1948 and 1964 list Emma B. Ahlstrom,
a widow, as the owner and occupant. The Pratt House retains very high integrity and effectively
relates its historic period of development.

ID# 126.0 Survey #187

HICKS, MARGARET RENTAL HOUSE 111 1901
350 B STREET 391E09BA 6300
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne] Primary/Contributing

In October 1901 the Ashland Tidings reported that “Mrs. Horace J. Hicks has material on [the]
ground for a $1100 cottage on Spring between J. H. Pratt and D. W. Stone.” gTidings, 7-Oct-1901,
3:2) Hicks, a widow, built several rental homes in Ashland around the turn-of-the-century. At her
death in 1908 this house was deeded to her son LeRoy who continued to use it as a rental until he
sold to R. E. Hale in 1920. In 1948 George and Lillian Musson lived here and by 1964 city
directories show the property as owned and occupied by retirees Gerald and Esther Sharp. A fine
example of hipped-roof wood frame vernacular cottage, the Hicks Rental House IIl has minor
window modification but otherwise retains high integrity and effectively relates it historic period

development.
ID# 127.0 Survey #1388
JOHNSON, STEVE HOUSE (STONE-LOOMIS SITE) 1993
366 B STREET J91E09BA 6400
Builder: Asher Homes (Asher, Steve)
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

The one-story Stone-Loomis House that was built on this site in 1896 and for a time was owned and
occupied by prominent Railroad District grocer E. F. Loomis, was partially destroyed by fire in
October 1990. The building was razed in January 1991. The present two-story residence and rear
single story unit were constructed on the site in 1993. While not historic, the new construction is
generally compatible with the traditional development pattern of the Railroad District.

ID# 128.0
DE MARINIS, SUSAN OFFICE 1992
376 B STREET 391E09BA 6500
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historie/Non-Contributing

This small one-story wood-frame dwelling was built in 1992 as a mixed-use residential and
professional office space. While not historic, it is generally compatible with the character of the
Railroad District.
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ID# 129.0 Survey #189

KANE, E. C. HOUSE 1886¢
386 B STREET 391E09BA 6600

Builder: Ayers, C.W.
Eclectic Styles: Queen Anne Primary/Contributing {NR-Listed]

This elaborate one-story wood-frame dwelling was built circa 1886 for E. C. Kane, an early Ashland
station master for the SP Railroad. In 1888 the Ashland Tidings reported “E. C. Kane is having his
cottage on Spring [B} Street enlarged and greatly improved...” and identified local builder C. W.
Ayers as having charge of the worlg(. (Tidings, 14-Sep-1888, 3:4) Kane's family remained in the
house through 1920. Thoroughly renovated as part of its conversion to professional office use, the
E. C. Kane House was listed on the NRHP in 1986.

ID# 130.0 Survey #200

HOSLEY, ROY HOUSE 1912¢
155 THIRD ST 391E09BA 8400
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A fine example of a single-story wood frame bungalow, the Hosley House was apparentl

constructed in 1912 following purchase of the lots by Roy E. and Pochanatas Mildred Hosely. Bot

of longtime Ashland families, Roy Hosley worked for the Southern Pacific as a brakeman. The
family remained in the home though 1930 and by 1948 Joe Champion, a machinist for SP, owned
the house and remained here at least though 1964. The house has been clad with asbestos shingle
siding and the front entry steps, likely originally wood, have been rebuilt with concrete.
Interestingly, each riser is decorated with embedded pieces of polished rock. Despite these minor
modifications, the Hosley House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of

development.

ID# 131.0 Survey #201
WELLS, ERASTUS I. AND ELLEN HOUSE 1902¢
143 THIRD ST 391E09BA 8500
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This fine bungalow was built sometime between 1902 and 1905, probably in 1902 for W. R. Keefer,
who intended it for rental use. Erastus I. and Ellen Wells purchased the dwelling in 1905 and, while
Erastus apparently died shortly thereafter, Ellen would remain in the home until 1920. John
Halfhill lived here in 1948 and by 1964 retirees William and Agnes Sams owned and occupied the
residence. Though re-sided with asbestos shingles, the Wells House retains very high integrity and
effectively relates it historic period of development.

I1D# 132.0 Survey #202

BLEVINS, F. M. RENTAL HOUSE 1912¢
125 THIRD ST 391E09BA 8600
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

A single story wood-frame vernacular cottage, the Blevins Rental House was build sometime after
the 1910 dpurchase of this site by F. M. Blevins, probably for rental usage. Blevins sold the house to
Belle Anderson in 1919 and by 1948 the house was occupied by William Bruin. Although simply
detailed, the Blevins Rental House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of
development.
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ID# 133.0 Survey #203

VAN TASSEL, MARGARET HOUSE 1903¢
117 THIRD ST 391E09BA 8700
Other: Vernacular {Cottage] Primary/Contributing

A one story wood frame vernacular cottage, Margaret Van Tassel bought this property form W. C.
Gibson in?;te 1902 and likely had the dwelling built shortly thereafter. In 1906 the house was sold
to Mollie Songer, of the prominent Ashland pioneer family, who used it as 2 rental. Tenants
included William A. Cottrell, an SP brakeman who resided here in 1910. Charles R. Lane, a mill
worker with Double Dee Lumber, owned and occupied the house in 1964. Somewhat modified
with replacement windows and other details, the Van Tassel House retains sufficient integrity to
relate its historic period of development.

ID# 134.0 Survey #204

SILSBY, COLONEL WILLIAM H. HOUSE 1896
111 THIRDST N 391E09BA 8800
Eclectic Styles: Queen Anne Primary/Contributing [NR-Listed|

This elaborate two-story wood-frame dwelling in the Queen Anne style was completed in 1896 for
Judge Thomas J. Howell who had purchased the structure already under construction from E. E.
Witte. Howell sold the property to William Silsby by November of that year and the Ashland
Tidings reported “Thomas Howell finished it up in handsome style and made it one of the attractive
residences of Ashland, disposing of it last week to “Mr. Silsby.” Retired, Colonel William Silsby
moved to Ashland from Pennsylvania and invested in fruit orchards. After his death in 1901 his
widow Helen remained in the ﬁouse until 1920 when she sold it to J. M. Casebeer. By 1948 the
house was in multiple-family use and by 1964 offered four apartments according to city directories.
Thoroughly renovated for use as professional office space, the Silsby House was listed on the NRHP
in 1984 and is now used as a bed and breakfast.

ID# 135.0 Survey #2605

DANFORD, BEECHER AND KATIE HOUSE 1920¢
108 SECONDST N 391E09BA 8900

Builder: Danford, Beecher
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story bungalow dwelling is prominently sited at the corner of Second and C
streets, near the southern edge of the District. Built circa 1920 following demolition of an earlier
structure, the original owner and builder was Beecher Danford and his wife Katie Grubb Danford.
The family remained in this location until after WWII. By 1964 the house was in use as multiple
family residential, with at least two units. In the late 1980s the Beecher and Katie Danford House
was restored by local contractor Rod Reid for use as professional office space. The Beecher and
Katie Danford House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 136.0 Survey #206

HICKS, MARGARET HOUSE 1901
120 SECONDST N 391E09BA 9000
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne} Primary/Contributing

An ell-shaped vernacular cottage, the one-story wood-framed Margaret Hicks House was built in
1901. The Ashland Tidings noted at the time that “Mrs. M. L. Hicks will soon begin construction of
a home on Second Street.” (Tidings, 29-Apr-1901, 3:3) Used as a rental, Hicks' family retained
ownership after her death in 1908 and finally sold the property to James W. Wiley in October 1914,
By 1948 the house had become a multiple-family residence, with four tenants shown living here in
city directories. Somewhat altered, with replacement windows and asbestos siding, the Hicks
House was completely rehabilitated for professional office use by in 1991. New double-hung sash
and narrow horizontal siding were installed and a large front porch was created. While the
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renovation is not entirely historically-based, the Hicks House retains sufficient integrity to relate its
historic period of development.

ID# 137.0 Survey #207

ALWINE, ALVIN HOUSE 1947¢
136 SECOND ST 391E09BA 9100
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Secondary/Contributing

This small bungalow was constructed sometime after 1928, according to Sanborn Fire Insurance

Maps, and probably dates from 1947 when the lot was sold to Alvin Alwine. (JCD 286:395) City

iigg(c)tories or 1948 show Alwine living here and he retained ownership until his death in the late
s.

In 1997-98 a second structure was built on the rear of the building by contractor Don Greene.
Identified as ID 137.100, this building is evaluated as Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing.

ID# 138.0 Survey #208

HARGADINE, CHARLES AND CARRIE HOUSE 1900
144 SECONDST N 391E09BA 9200
Other: Vernacular [Bungalow) Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood frame dwelling was built in 1900. “C. H. Hargadine is building a
cottage on 2™ Street which he will occupy.” (Tidings, 11-Jun-1900) Hargadine sold the house in
1920 and it is not clear if the Craftsman inspired front elevation was part of original construction or
added to the building at a later date however it clearly was built prior to 1928 as shown in available
Sanborn Insurance Maps. In 1948 Reginald Duke Lorton was living here. His widow, Gertrude,
remained in this house at least through 1991 and her name remains on the title at this writing.
While the Hargadine House has been somewhat modified with applied wide-board siding, aluminum
replacement windows and modifications to the original porch balustrade it retains essential integrity
and adequately relates its historic period of development.

ID# 140.0'7 Survey #183

PELTON, JOHN AND CHARLOTTE HOUSE 1894
228 BSTREET 391iE09BA 5600
Architect: Schmidt, W. J. Builder: Schmidt, W. J.
Eclectic Styles: Stick Primary/Contributing {NR-Listed]

An impressive two-story wood-frame dwelling in the Stick Style, the Pelton House was built by W.
J. Schmidt for this prominent couple, both of pioneer Jackson County families. “Sheriff J. E.
Pelton’s new residence on Spring [B!3 Street is being built by W. J. Schmidt, Architect and Builder,
for $1750.” (Tidings, 12-Apr-1894, 3:2) Pelton, of a well-known ranch and farming family, married
Charlotte “Lottie” Ganiarcf,3 daughter of Oscar and Lucinda Ganiard, influential Railroad District
property owners. After the Pelton’s divorce in 1900, Lottie remained in house until 1926. Used as
rental by the late 1980s, the Pelton House was seriously damaged by fire in August 1991 and
following considerable public outcry was sold to the present owner, a contractor, who meticulously
restored the home for use as the Pelton House Bed and Breakfast. A separate historic carriage house
is located to the rear, facing First Street. The Pelton House was listed on the NRHP in 1993.

17 ID #139.000 was deleted during review and reassigned as parcel 124.100, a parking lot associated with the First
Christian Church.
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ID# 141.0 Survey #184

EDLUND, GUSTAVUS HOUSE 1899
252 B STREET 391E09BA 5700
Eclectic Styles: Queen Anne Primary/Contributing

A fine one-story wood frame cottage with Queen Anne detail, the Edlund House was built in 1899.
“George Edlund is erecting a residence on his lot on Spring [B] between Second and Third.”
gl;idings, 27-Feb-1899). Edlund worked as an engineer for the SP Railroad and also served on the

hland City Council and as Chairman of the fire and water committee. Edlund and his wife Emma
remained here until 1916. Mrs. Lola Adolph lived here in 1948 and Bertha Sawyer owned and
occuﬁiled the home in 1964, renting out portion to Mrs. Daisy Savage. The Edlund House retains

very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 142.0
SCHOENWALD APTS 1965
276 B STREET 391E09BA 5800
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This multi-unit single story apartment complex was built in 1965 at the rear of the so-called “Inlow”
lot, at the corner of B and Second Street. The property was owned by J. Shoenwald, who
purchased the site in 1961 from Clyde and Harriet Beeson. (See JCD 313:39) After construction
of the units, Shoenwald retained ownership until 1972 when the property was transferred to Carol
D. and Marge Anderson.

ID# 143.0 Survey #209

PLUMERTH, JACOB HOUSE 1892¢
159 SECONDST N 391E09BA 9400

Builder: Plumerth, Jacob
Other: Vernacular {Queen Anne] Primary/Contributing

A one and one-half story vernacular dwelling with a finely detailed front porch and projecting bay
window to the north, this house was built by contractor Jacob Plumerth in 1892 aftper he and his
wife Maria purchased the lot from George Andrews. Plumerth likely used this property as a rental,
continuing to live in another home on B Street that he and his wife had built in 1884. In 1909 this
house was sold to Mark W. Smith, an SP brakeman who retained it until 1914. In 1948 the
Plumerth House was occupied by J. A. Bradshaw and by 1964 Mrs. Dora L. Kerby lived here. The
Plumerth House retains a high degree of integrity and effectively relates its historic period of
development.

ID# 144.0 Survey #210

SHOOK, ISAAC AND MARTHA HOUSE 1890c¢
153 SECONDST N 391E09BA 9500
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne] Primary/Contributing

A one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular ell, construction of this dwelling likely began c1890
following the wedding of Isaac Shook and Martha Payne. In 1903 the couple sold the house to
Charles S. Inglerock, an SP conductor and in 1909 it was again sold to Sherman Morehouse, one of
the many investors in Railroad District property during this period. Morehouse used the house as a
rental. James V. Williams lived here in 1948 and by 1964 Mrs. Iva L. Blackwell was the owner and
occupant, whose family remained here into the 1990s. The Shook House retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.
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ID# 145.0 Survey #211

MOREHOUSE, SHERMAN RENTAL HOUSE 1910¢
139 SECONDST N 391E09BA 9600
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A single-story wood frame vernacular cottage with elements of Colonial Revival styling, the Sherman
Morehouse Rental was built circa 1910 after this property was purchased by Morehouse, an early
area investor. Morehouse rented the house out until March 1918 when it was sold to Julia F.
Morris. Fred Wimer lived here in 1948 and remained here through at least 1964 when city
directories list he and wife Carrie as the owners. While altered with the application of asbestos
siding, the Morehouse Rental retains sufficient integrity to effectively relate its historic period of
development.

ID# 146.0 Survey#212

SHOOK, ISAAC RENTAL HOUSE 1900
125 SECONDST N 391E09BA 9700

Builder: Veghte, C. H.
Eclectic Styles: Stick/Eastlake Primary/Contributing

A finely detailed one and one-half story wood frame dwelling in the Eastlake tradition, this structure
was built for Isaac N. Shook, a retired farmer and real estate investor with several holdings in
Railroad District around the turn of the 20™ century. “l. N. Shook is building a cozy new residence
of neat architecture on Second Ave. The cost of the rental house is $1200. C. H. Veghte is the
contractor.” (Tidings, 1-Mar-1900, 3:3) Shook sold the property to Laura Ferguson in 1908, who
apparently retained it as a rental. Two units are listed at t%is address in the 1948 city directory and
by 1964 the house was owned and occupied by Rowland Parks, who had lived at this address in
1948 as well. The Shook Rental House was converted to professional office use in the late 1980s.
The house retains very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 147.0
SHELL STATION/ROCKET PHOTO 1957
275 C STREET 391E09BA 9800
Modern Period: Highway Commercial/Strip Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This standardized “Shell Station” of light tan and red baked enamel panels over a metal framework
was built in 1957 following transfer of the property to the Shell Oil Company. After the station
closed it was minimally remodeled to its present use as one-hour photo processing laboratory. While
very much intact as an example of a late-1950s era highway commetciarand built in a locally unique
construction style, the Shell Station/Rocket Photo does not reflect the traditional development
pattern within the historic periods of the Railroad District.

I1D# 148.0
ASHLAND POST OFFICE 1966
120 FIRSTST N 391E09BA 9900
Modern Period; Commercial Builder: Sheldon Pollack Construction, Co.

Noa-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This single-story flat-roofed masonry building was constructed on this corner as the home of the new
Ashland Post Office in 1966, following purchase of the lot by Sheldon L. Pollack Construction
Company from Jim Busch. The building was sold in 1971 and has been owned by the USPO since
1994. Faced in random-coursed stone veneer and devoid of any historic detail or proportion, the
Post Office is not compatible with the traditional development of the Railroad District.
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ID# 149.0 Survey #11

ASHLAND FRUIT & PRODUCE ASSOC BUILDING (04K ST TANK & STEEL) 1912
COR OAK AND A STREETS 391E04CD 1300
Other: Industrial Primary/Contributing

This concrete and wood-frame single-story industrial structure was opened in 1912 on land leased
from the Southern Pacific Railroad as the warehouse and offices of the Ashland Fruit and Produce
Association. “The Association has been in existence for over 20 years and its record as ever been a
progressive one. ...In order to accommodate the ever increasing business, a large reinforced
concrete building has just been erected at the corner of Oak and A streets. The new building...is 69’
x 140’ in dimension and was designed especially with a view toward convenience and economy.”
(Ashland Record, 5-June-1912, see also Tidings, 29-Apr-1912, 1:6)) It is not clear when the
association closed but in 1945 the land and the guilding were purchased by Harry R. Morris and his
“QOak Street Tank and Steel Company” moved from downtown to this location, where they remain
at this writing. (JCD 264:221-2) While various modifications and additions to the building deviate
from the original character of the building, some are significant in their own right. Most notable is
the fence along A Street, made from surplus iron wheels taken from the garbage carts used at Camp
White. Though much of the building is clad in corrugated metal, the concrete Qak Street elevation
remains as built and sufficient other elements such as the wooden roof vents, survive so that Ashland
Fruit and Produce Association Building retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of

development

1D# 150.0
ASHLAND HARDWARE\A STREET OFFICE 1997
249 A STREET 391E09BA 14600
Architect: White, Jerome Builder: Golden-Fields Construction Co.
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

Built on the portions of the former SP Railroad grounds, including the area of the first depot in
Ashland, this one and two story structure combines both wood-frame and concrete block elements.
Designed by architect Jerome White, with Doyle Brightenburg as designer, the building is based in
part on the traditional railroad depot style. While not a historic resource, in mass, materials and
general detail it is compatible with the traditional character of the district.

ID# 151.0
JOHN FIELDS BUILDING 1995
325 A STREET 391E09BA 14603
Architect: Brightenburg, Doyle |[Designer] Builder: Golden-Fields Construction (Fields, John)
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

Built following the subdivision of the railroad grounds, this single-story concrete block structure with
cast-stone arcies and detailing was built in 1995, one of the earliest commercial infill projects on the
north side of A Street. While not historic, it is generally compatible in design with the character of
the Railroad District.

ID# 152.0
GRANGE CO-OP 1960
421 A STREET 391E09BA 14601

Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

A barrel-vaulted concrete block structure, this retail location of the Grange Co-op opened in 1960
and has been in operation since.18 First built on land leased from the Southern Pacific Railroad, for
many years it was the only non-railroad related structure south of the tracks in this area. Although

18 Mr. David DeYoung, Grange Co-Op, personal communication with the Author, 8-January-1998.
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not historic, the Grange Co-Op is generally compatible with the industrial character of this portion
of the Railroad District.

ID# 153.0
HOXMEIER BUILDING 1995
485 A STREET 391E09AB 6500
Builder: Hoxmeier, Steve
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

A single-story wood-frame building in modern interpretation of the bungalow style, this building was
erected in the former SP Railroad grounds in 1995. While not historic, and residential in design
within a nominally commercial area, t is generally compatible with the character of the Railroad

District

ID# 153.0011°
Vacant Parcel 0
0 A STREET 391E09AB 6501

Vacant

Located at the NE corner of the intersection of 4™ and A streets in the heart of the original
commercial railroad district, this vacant parcel is a part of the former SP Railroad grounds.

ID# 154.0
B W SQUARED BLDG 1997
545 A STREET 391E09AB 6502
Architect: White, Jerome Builder: Jon Turrell Construction
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

This two-story wood-frame building was erected in the former SP Railroad grounds in 1997.
Desi?ned with corner-projecting bay to the west and a three-sided bay to the east, its recessed entry,

simple 2/1 double hung sash and vernacular falsefront-inspired style is generally compatible with the
character of the Railroad District.
ID# 155.0
MCMULLAN-SHELTON BLDG 1997
565 A STREET 391E09AB 6503
Builder: Shostrom Brothers Ltd
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

Under construction as this is written, this latest infill volume in the former SP Railroad grounds is
somewhat reminiscent of the vernacular falsefront commercial form and is generally compatible with
the character of the Railroad District in volume and massing. While it employs non-traditional
stucco and integral ornamentation it is basically consistent with the character of the District.

1D# 156.0
ASHLAND INSURANCE 1994
585 A STREET 391E09AB 6504
Architect: Kistler, Raymond Builder: Sturlee Construction
Modern Period: Commercial Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

This wood-framed and metal-roofed gable office structure was erected in the former Southern
Pacific Railroad grounds in 1991. Of wood and metal construction, the building is in keeping with
the industrial developments along the right-of-way and while clearly non-historic is general
consistent with the character of the District.

19 Separately owned from #153, this identification was created during review to maintain sequence
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ID# 157.0
JEGA GALLERY 1994
621 A STREET 391E09AB 6505
Architect: White, Jerome Builder: Sturlee Construction
Modern Period: Commercial Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

Reading as two-hipped-roof wood-framed volumes connected by a recessed element, this modern
office and residential structure is essentially reminiscent in volume of the early residential
architecture of the Railroad District.

ID# 158.0
BEMIS-SANDLER BLDG 1996
645 A STREET 391E09AB 6506
Architect: Architectural Design Works (Nickels, Jac) Builder: Bemis Construction
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

A large two-story brick and stucco-clad structure, this office building while somewhat volumetrically
consistent with the surrounding area uses non-historic materials and higher-grade materials than
typify the traditional development pattern of the Railroad District.

ID# 158.00120

VACANT LOT 0
0 A STREET 391E09AB 6507
Vacant

A part of the former SP Railroad grounds, this site on the north side of A Street between 5% and 6™
is currently vacant and undeveloped.

ID# 159.0
RAILROAD DISTRICT PARK 1994
785 A STREET 391E09AB 6509

Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

Completed in 1994 the Ashland Railroad District Park was developed for public recreational uses
within the former Southern Pacific right-of-way area following considerable neighborhood outery on
the need for a city park in the area. Two buildings, a covered picnic area and a gathroom facility are
present. At the center of the park is a plaque commemorating the Southern Emigrant or
“Applegate” Trail that passed near this portion of the Bear Creek Valley during Oregon’s pioneer
period. At the SW corner of the park, lining A Street, a few of the of 18” square concrete piers
remain from the original depot period, the support foundation for a former railroad water tank.

ID# 160.0
JACKSON DENTAL OFFICE 1994
277 FIFTH STREET 391E09AB 5000
Builder: North Pacific Construction (Boldt, Darrell)
Modern Period: Commercial Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

A single-story stucco-ciad office structure, this multi-unit professional office was built in 1994,

20 Separately owned from #160, this identification was created during review to maintain sequence.
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ID# 161.0
EURO-MEK FOREIGN AUTO REPAIR 1973
564 A STREET J1E09AB 5100
Other: Utilitarian Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

'frhiT single-story concrete block garage building was built in 1972-1973 and serves an auto repair
acility.

ID# 162.0 Survey #43

POWELL, THADDEUS RENTAL HOUSE 1925¢
562 A STREET 391E09AB 5200
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A one-story wood-frame dwelling in the bungalow style, this house was built shortly after the
property was purchased by Thaddeus Powell, area confectioner, in 1922. Powell sold the house to
Ethel Miller in 1932, who remained here as late as 1948, while apparently renting out two rooms to
others. In 1964 the house was owned and occupied by Mrs. Janell Conley, who worked as a
waitress at the Rogue Valley Country Club. The Powell Rental House was “modernized” with
applied siding that obscures much of its original detailing, believed to survive beneath the present
cladding. Although modified, the Powell Rental House retains essential integrity in volume and mass
and sufficiently relates its historic period of development.

ID# 163.0 Survey #44

EASTERLING, JOHN M. BUILDING [VFW Building| 1908¢
552 A STREET 391E09AB 5300
Other: Vernacular [Commercial] Primary/Contributing

This building was constructed circa 1908 by businessman John M. Easterling, who operated the
Peerless Rooms and various restaurants in the area at the turn-of-the-century. Arriving in Ashland in
1903, the Ashland Tidings noted “J. M. Easterling, a wealthy businessman from Nebraska, has
bought three lots on the corner of A and Fifth streets, including the residence. Easterling plans a
hotel for the corner....” (Tidings, 14-Dec-1903, 3:1) Perhaps deciding instead to augment the
Lucinda Ganiard building on 4* for hotel use (which would become the Peerless), Easterling’s plans
for this site remained dormant. The 1911 Sanborn Map shows the present building standing and in
use as a restaurant. By 1928 the site was occupied by a “store” of unknown type and in 1948 it
housed “The Depot Café.” With the end of passenger service in 1955, the Easterling Building was
leased to the V. F W, Post 3423 who remain today. One story and built of textured concrete block,
the Easterling Building’s facade has been somewhat altered over the years with the application of a
masonry veneer. Nevertheless, the building retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic
period of development as one of the area’s early commercial structures.

ID# 164.0 Survey #45

VAN SANT, J. K. BUILDING 1905¢
542 A STREET 391E09AB 5400
Other: Vernacular |Commerecial] Primary/Contributing

This simple falsefront-type vernacular store is one of the few remaining wood-frame commercial
buildings within the Railroad District. It was likely built c1905 for area resident and real estate
investor James K. Van Sant. Van Sant had bought the property in 1902 for $200 and then sold it to
John Easterling in 1906 for $1200, indicating construction of the building. The 1907 Sanborn Map
of the area shows the Van Sant Building in use as a restaurant, which Easterling apparently ran.
Easterling sold the building to Fred Bressfer in 1909 and it remained in use as a restaurant for many
years. The 1928 Sanborn Maps documents a “Lunch Counter” at this location and in 1948 it
provided space for “Mac’s Shoe Shop” and the Wilcox Transfer Company. Siskiyou Poultry
Wholesale was located here in 1964. The present occupant, a crafts store, is one of a several similar
uses that have occupied the building in recent years. The J. K. Van Sant Building is an early wood-
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frame commercial structure in the Railroad District and retains very high integrity to its historic
period of development.

ID# 165.0
FURNITURE DEPOT BUILDING 1980/84
500 A STREET : 391E09AB 5500
Builder: Papen, Frank
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

The small group of commercial storefronts that historically occulpied this corner was razed post-
1964 and in 1984 a single-story bearing masonry commercial building was erected on the site. A
second floor, built of wood-frame, was added in 1989 by Frank Papen, the property owner

In 1996 a one-story stucco-clad volume was built at the southern property line, facing Fourth Street by
the same builder. Designed to echo the Ashland Hose Company No. 2, this new infill structure is
identified as ID 165.100 and is also considered to be Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing. .

ID# 166.0 Survey #46

ASHLAND HOSE COMPANY NO. 2 1908
264 FOURTH ST 391E09AB 5600

Builder: Jordan, Frank
Historic Pericd: California Mission Primary/Contributing

A single-story bearing masonry building constructed of cast concrete block, this structure was built
in 1908 as Ashland’s second fire station, to serve the thriving Railroad District. Motivation for the
structure likely stemmed from a devastating fire in May 1903 that destroyed much of the Fourth
Street commercial corridor. “Work has begun on a new concrete building on 4* Street which will
serve as fire department headquarters in that area.” (Tidings, 27-August-1908, 1:3) The building
also served as an auxiliary police station, complete with drunk tank, probably a necessity given the
many bars and taverns located here during the railroad’s heyday. The iron bars of the cell remain
visible on the buildings north elevation. The Ashland Hose Company building was damaged by fire
in the mid-1930s and had been vacant for many years when the present tenant, Haskins Garage,
moved in and rehabilitated the building. The Ashland Hose Company No. 2 Building retains
exceptionally high integrity and effectively relates its original period of significance.

ID# ' 168.02!
WHITTLE TRANSFER CO. WAREHOUSE 1947
264 FOURTH ST 391E09AB 5800
Other: Utilitarian Secondary/Contributing

The original building on this site, the Mitchell Brothers Livery Stable burned in the early 1900s and
was eventually replaced with another large frame structure that was used by the Whittle Transfer
Company as a storage facility. This building too burned. “Whittle Transfer Company Building [was]
completely destroyed by fire last night.” {Tidings 17-Feb-1937) In 1947 the Whittle Company built
the present structure. “It is a 50 x 100 foot building located on Fourth Street between B and A
streets. The new structure is said to be as near fireproof as it is possible to build.” (Tidings, 12-
Mar-1947, 1:3) A hotogra h of the new “all metal” gable warehouse published at the time shows
the present wood-frame building, clad in corrugated metal, essentially as it exists today. The shed
roof wing, built in compatible materials, was adgded later at some undocumented time. The present
owner purchased the site in 1985 and the building remains in industrial-storage use. The Whittle
Transfer Company Storage Warehouse retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period
of development.

21 ID #167.000, was deleted during review. This site is a very small vacant parcel at the rear of ID #166.000, still
owned by the City of Ashland, and apparently a remnant associated with the former Ashland Hose Company use.
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ID# 169.0
HENNAN, PRICE HOUSE 1947
246 FOURTH ST 391E09AB 5801
Other: Vernacular |Ranch} Secondary/Contributing

This one-story wood-frame structure was moved to this site in 1947 from U. S. Army Cantonment
Camp White. Price Hennan purchased a barracks building from the camp in early 1947 for $471
and after relocation and remodeling, lived in this house on land that had been subdivided from the
Whittle property next door. (Tidings, 10-Mar-1947, l:’ﬁ’ James McCulloch was listed as living here
in 1964. The house is now used as a medical clinic. The Hennan House retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 170.0 Survey #47

NININGER, CHARLES RENTAL HOUSE 1902¢
259 FIFTH ST 391E09AB 5900
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A single-story wood-frame dwelling now clad with asbestos shingles, construction of this house -
occurred shortly after E. K. Anderson sold the lot to Charles Nininger in late 1901. Nininger kept
the house as a rental until 1915 when it was sold to W. T. Mitchell. Lewis Calhoun owned and
occupied the building as early as 1948 and remained here at least through 1964 according to city
directories. Simple in design, the Nininger Rental retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic
period of development.

ID# 171.0 Survey #48

MITCHELL, HENRY HOUSE 1901c
235 FIFTH ST 391E09AB 6000
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This house was probably built circa 1901 after Henry E. and Horace T. Mitchell, who operated the
Mitchell Brothers Livery Stable on Fourth Street purchased the property from Eugenia Atkinson.
The house is a fine example of a wood-frame vernacular ell, with inset hipped-porch. In 1910
Clarence R. Closser, a traveling salesman, was renting the house along with his parents Clarence E.
and Allie. Closser later worked as a car repairman for the Southern Pacific. By 1964 the house was
owned and occupied by Erskine T. Moody, a retiree. The Mitchell House retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 172.0 Survey #49

SPAYDE, MARY ADA HOUSE 1928¢
223 FIFTH ST 391E09AB 6100
Other: Vernacular [Transitional] Primary/Contributing

As late as 1928, Sanborn Maps show this corner vacant and it was reportedly shortly after that when
the present structure was moved to this location for Burl Smith. The original location of the home,
as documented by available aerial views, was at the NE corner of Second and C Streets.?2 Smith
soon deeded both the house and property to his daughter, Mary Ada Spayde, who retained
ownership for the rest of her life. In the late 1970s the house was converted to multiple-family
residential and during the 1980s it was known as “The Pinel House,” a group home for
developmentally delayed adults. Converted to professional office space in the 1990s, the Spayde
House has been somewhat modified but retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of
development.

22 Terry Skibby, personal communication with the Author, 6-February-1998.
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ID# 173.0
SMITH, KELCY AND RUBY HOUSE 1949¢
565 B STREET 391E09AB 6200
Other: Vernacular [Ranch] Secondary/Contributing

This building was apparently built after 1948 for Kelcy and Ruby Smith, who had purchased the
land jointly with William and Lola Harper. SJCD 250:691) While not listed in the 1948 ci
directory, the building is dated at 1949 by the Jackson County Assessor. A simple one and one-half
story wood-frame vernacular cottage, the Smith House may have been moved from Camp White.
The Smith’s were still living at the site in 1964, the same year in which the Harpers were removed
from the title, possibly indicating a family connection. The Smith House retains sufficient integrity
to relate its historic period of development.

1D# 174.0 Survey #50

NININGER, CHARLES BUILDING It 1903
220 FOURTH ST 391E09AB 6300
Other: Vernacular [Commercial) Primary/Contributing

A two-story wood-frame commercial building, this building was erected in 1903. “Nininger's two
story veneered brick on the corner of Fourth and B is almost complete.” (Tidings, 27-Aug-1903, 3:3)
Nininger, a local real estate investor with several properties in the Railroad District, built this
structure to lease and the original tenant was apparently a hardware store. Later owners include
George Tostevin, who operated a grocery store here. In 1922 the building was purchased by E. W.
Flackus who also had a store here. By 1948 the building had been converte(f to multiple-family
residential under the name “Harper Apartments” and city directories list seven apartments along
with one storefront use at this address. Bill Unger owned the building, renamed “Unger
Apartments” in 1964 and in the early 1990s it became known as “The Armitage” according to the
1991 City Directory. Sometime in the 1950s the original brick veneer was removed and the
building was clad with red asphalt shingles. By the late-1970s that covering was itself covered by a
layer of wooden shingles, the present exterior cladding. Although modified from its presumed
original alppearance, the Nininger Building retains essential integrity in both mass and volume and

adequately relates its historic period of development.

ID# 175.0 .
HERZMAN APARTMENT COMPLEX 1971
549 B STREET 391E09AB 6301
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This two-story stucco-clad wood-frame building was erected in 1971, following purchase of the lots
by Larry A. Herzman.

ID# 176.0
BOULTON RENTAL HOUSE 1947¢c
695 B STREET 391E09AB 3500
Other: Vernacular [Ranch] Secondary/Contributing

In 1928 this corner lot was the site of a “dilapidated house” according to Sanborn Insurance Maps.
While not entirely clear, that structure was razed and the subject one and one-half story wood-frame
dwelling was either built or moved to the site around 1947. First owned by the family of Richard
Boulton, a millworker at the Sugar Pine Lumber Company, the house was apparently held as a
rental. Boulton lived with his wife Agnes and a son, John E., on Palm Street as early as 1942 and the
family does not seem to have ever occupied this dwelling. In 1948 W. R. Bibby was residing at the
house, presumably renting from Boulton. In 1953 John Edward Boulton and Neil Hudson Boulton
sold the house to William L. and Elizabeth Leonard, probably as part of Richard’s estate. (See JCD
387:16-18 and JCD 87:18-19) The Leonards sold to Harold R. Jacobs the following year and he
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remained here for many years. While somewhat modified, the Boulton Rental House retains
sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 177.0
OLSON, EDGAR AND THELMA HOUSE 1957
671 B STREET 391E09AB 3600
Other: Vernacular [Ranchj Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

This one-story hipped-roof wood-frame dwelling was built in 1957 following sale of the lot from
Lora B. Davis (widow of Sam Davis, See ID #191.0) to Edgar and Thelma Olson. The Olson family
retains ownership at this writing. A simple vernacular cottage, the Olson House is generally
compatible with the scale of the district.

ID# 178.0 Survey #35

FRULAN, JOHN AND CLARA HOUSE 1888
661 B STREET 391E09AB 3700

Builder: Frulan, John
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

Begun in 1888, this one and one-half story vernacular ell dwelling was constructed by prolific local
building contractor John Frulan for his own use. “John Frulan complete da residence adjacent to J.
H. Cole in the Railroad Addition.” (Tidings, 14-Sep-1888, 3:4) In 1900 Frulan bought Cole’s house
and razed it, expanding and improving his family’s own residence. After Frulan’s death, his widow
Clara, and then his son Walter, remained in the gouse through the late 1920s. The house was vacant
for both the 1948 and 1964 city directories. Retaining high integrity, the Frulan House effectively
relates its historic period of development.

ID# 179.0 Survey #36 '

AHLSTROM, NILS RENTAL HOUSE 1908¢
637 B STREET 391E09AB 3800
Other; Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This single story wood-frame vernacular dwelling was built circa 1908 as a rental by Nils Ahlstrom, a
longtime SP employee who lived on 5% Street. Ahlstrom purchased this site in 1893 and after an
earlier dwelling was razed. Early residents included Corinne and Edwin Holcomb. In 1919 the
house was purchased from the Ahlstrom family by Hazel H. Adams. In 1948 two residents are
listed here, possibly indicating a multiple-family rental period although in 1964 the house was owned
and occupied by Mrs. Margaret Freeman. The Ahlstrom House has been re-sided with aluminum
but retains an essential integrity in mass and volume that continues to reflect its historic period of
development.

ID# 180.0 Survey #37

TREFERN, MARY HOUSE 1920c¢
625 B STREET 391E09AB 3900
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

On land owned by the prominent Ahlstrom family, this single-story bungalow was probably built
c1920 followinﬁ sale of the site to Mary Trefern. She continued to occupy the house for 20 years.
In 1948 J. R. Elder lived here with a tenant, Cleono Flesher, living at 625" B Street, according to
city directories. Vernon H. Dean, a mill worker, lived here in 1964. In recent years the enclosed
front porch has been used as a small antique shop. The Trefern House retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.



NPS Form 10-900-A OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section Number: _ 7 Page: 52 Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District, Ashland, OR

ID# 181.0 Survey #38

EARLY YERNACULAR HOUSE 1898¢
236 FIFTH ST 391E09AB 4000
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

The social history of this small one-story wood-framed vernacular dwelling is uncertain. Although
assessors information dates the building at 1887 it does not appear in either the 1890 E. L. Moore
Birdseye view or the Sanborn Fire Insurance map of that same year. The building is shown on the
1898 Sanborn and is clearly visible in available images of the Ahlstrom House, to the east. By the
early 1940s the house was owned by a local bank, likely indicating the default of an earlier owner.
M. W. and Margarete Page owned the property in 1942, probably as a rental, and sold it on contract
to Lyle Howell in 1946. After Howel]")s cféath the administrator of the estate acknowledged failure
to complete the contract and so for $240 the house reverted to Mrs. Page, now a widow. (See JCD
331:412-21) Later owners included Maud Hutchison. Long a rental and in generally poor condition,
this early vernacular dwelling has had some minor alterations to its openings but retains integrity
substantial integrity to its historic period of development.

ID# 182.0 Survey #39

AHLSTROM, NILS HOUSE 1888
248 FIFTH ST 391E09AB 4100

Builder: Frulan, John
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing [NR-Listed)

This two-story vernacular dwelling was constructed in 1888 for SP conductor Nils Ahlstrom and

family, longtime residents and property owners in the Railroad District. “Mr. Ahlstrom’s two story

dwelfir g on Fifth Street was raisetf this week.” (Tidings, 12-Oct-1888) Retaining an exceptionally

high degree of integrity and remaining one of the oldest dwellings in the Railroad District, the
strom House was independently listed on the NRHP in 1979,

I1D# 183.0 Survey #40

AHLSTROM, NILS RENTAL HOUSE 1900c
266 FIFTH ST 391E09AB 4200
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This two-story wood-frame dwelling with a prominent double front porch was built circa 1900,
probably for rental purposes by Nils Ahlstrom, who lived to the south. The Ahlstrom family
retainecY ownership until 1918 when the house was purchased by Anna Elvera Rouse. Originally a
duplex, with twin entries on both the first and second floors, Wm. B. Elliott and Lyman Barger are
both listed at this address in 1948. James M. Neill was living here in 1964 according to city
directories. Its porch recently rehabilitated, the Ahlstrom Rental House retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 184.0 Survey 41

AHLSTROM, NORTH HOUSE 1920c
247 SIXTH ST 391E09AB 4300
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A small one-storg wood-frame dwelling in the simple bungalow style, the North Ahlstrom house was
probably built shortly after the land was transferred from longtime Railroad District resident Nils
Ahlstrom to his son North in 1918. North Ahlstrom retained ownership until 1937 when the house
was sold to Bertha Jacobs. In 1948 the house was occupied by Jessie A. Edwards and 1964 city
directories show the house as owned and occupied by George and Irene Robinson, who still retain
the property. The North Ahlstrom House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic
period of development.
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ID# 185.0 Survey #42

EVERTON, WALTER HOUSE 1918¢
265 SIXTH ST J91EQ9AB 4400
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

Once part of the Nils Ahlstrom holdings in this area of the district, construction of this single-story
wood frame bungalow likely occurred after Walter Everton acquired the property from Nils’ son,
Tegner, in July 1918. Everton, an SP engineer, lived here until May 1922 when the house was sold
to Walter O’Donoghue. Two residents are listed in the 1948, probably indicating the house was in
rental use and by 1964 the house was owned and occupied by Charles and Jean Avery, retirees. The
Everton House retains sufficient integrity to related its historic period of development.

ID# 186.0
GILLIAM, LAWRENCE AND EDNA HOUSE 1946¢
267 SIXTH ST 391E09AB 4500
Builder: Gilliam, Lawrence
Other: Vernacular [Ranch] Secondary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame cottage was built in 1946, shortly after the land was
acquired by Lawrence E. and Edna Gilliam. (JCD 277:36) Gilliam, who listed his occupation as
“Real Estate” apparently built the house for himself and was living here according to the 1948 city
directory.2> He and his wife retained ownership at least through 1976. The Gilliam House retains
high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 187.0
FARQUAR, GEORGE AND NELLIE HOUSE 1947¢
297 SIXTH ST 391E09AB 4600
Builder: Gilliam, Lawrence
Other: Vernacular [Ranch| Secondary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame dwelling was apparently built circa 1947 by Lawrence
Gilliam for resale and was first occupied by George and Nellie Farquar, who bought the house in
1948 and lived here until September 1950 when they sold it George and Ursula Bagley. (JCD
339:295) The Bagley’s retained ownership through 1963 when, following a rapid series of deed
transfers the house was purchased by Joseph W. and Jeanette King. Similar in design to ID #186.0
and probably sharing some aspects of the same development history, the Farquar House has been
somewhat modified with applied siding but otherwise retains high integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.

ID# 188.0
YOUNG-DAVENPORT HOUSE [Moved] 1910¢
664 A STREET 391E09AB 4700
Builder: Lewis, Jim [Move and Restoration]
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This fine wood-frame bungalow was originally built in Medford, probably ¢.1910, during that city’s
rapid “Orchard Boom” expansion.24 Located at 405 North Central in 1930 it was occupied by Kate
Young, who remained there through 1942 when she shared the house with Mrs. Hes)en Minkler,
possibly a relative. Minkler lived in the house alone by 1948. Sometime prior to 1966 the front

23 Lenn Hannon, personal communication with the Author, 30-Dec-1997.

24 This date is solely conjectural, based upon architectural design and the building trends in Medford. No research
beyond available city directories was undertaken as part of this project and no resident was located in the 1910
Polk’s Directory.
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porch was removed and the dwelling was hidden behind a two-story concrete block commercial
volume housing Davenport Appliance Shop. Wm. J. Davenport apparently resided in the house.
After the Medford site was purchased as a part of an expanding auto dealership, the Young-
Davenport House was relocated to the Ashland Railroad District and a historically appropriate front
porch was reconstructed from available structural information. While not original to the district, the
Young-Davenport retains very high integrity and is compatible with the traditional character of the
area. It is considered a contributing resource under Consideration “B” as it applies within district

nominations.
ID# 189.0 Survey #213, in griginal location
CASEY, JOHN R. HOUSE [Moved] 1909
640 A STREET 391E09AB 4800
Builder: Lewis, Jim [Move and Restoration]
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame dwelling originally stood at 134 N. Pioneer Street. Original
construction was noted in the Ashland Tidings in January 1909. “Postmaster Casey is building a fine
bungalow adjacent to his residence on [Pioneer]. He will rent the old house. The new one is
modern, a model in that area...” (Tidings, 17-Jan-1909) In the early 1990s, as plans for the
construction of a municipal parking lot threatened the Casey House, the structure was purchased by
a local contractor and relocated to its present location on A Street. A compatible two-story addition
to the rear was built in 1995-96. Originally built within the Railroad District and then relocated and
rehabilitated in its current location, the Casey House retains very high integrity and is considered a
contributing resource under Consideration “B” as it applies within district nominations.

ID# 190.0 Survey #5123

ASHLAND DEPOT HOTEL, SOUTH WING . 1887
624 A STREET 391E09AB 4801
Architect: Davis, T. J. (for Southern Pacific RR) Builder: Southern Pacific Railroad

Primary/Contributing [NR-Listed|

Originally built in 1887 as the south “kitchen” wing of the massive three-story Ashland Depot Hotel,
by 1937 following the demolition of that structure, this one-story wood-frame volume was
remodeled and served as Ashland’s depot through the 1955 end of passenger service in the Rogue
River Valley. Later used as the Ashland freight depot and railroad office, the building was f:ft
vacant with the end of all Southern Pacific presence in Ashland in 1985. Faced with demolition, in
1990 the depot was moved to this site, approximately 200 feet to the SW, across A Street, from its
original location. Thoroughly renovateclp gy local restoration contractor Jim Lewis, the Ashland
Depot Hotel, South Wing remains a centerpiece of the Railroad District and is the oldest railroad-
related structure in Jackson County. One of Ashland’s most significant structures, the Ashland
Depot Hotel, South Wing was listed independently on the NRHP in 1990.

ID# 191.0 Survey #26

PARKER-DAVIES HOUSE 1890c
784 A STREET 391E09AB 2000
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A two-story vernacular dwelling in the “I-House” tradition, the Parker- Davies House was built prior
to 1890 and is visible in the birdseye view of Ashland published that year by E. S. Moore. The
owners at that time were E. E. and Annie Parker. In 1904 the Parkers sold the house to George
Andrews and by 1907 it was owned by SP Engineer William J. Wallace. “William Wallace of
Southern Pacific Company is remodeling and enlarging his house...” (Tidings, 23-Apr-1908, 1:6) In

25 Survey #51 refers to this structure in its original location, across A Street, upon a different tax lot. Tax lot 1801, the
present site, was vacant and no survey number was assigned in the Clay-Atwood study.



NPS Form 10-900-A OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86)

United States Department of the interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section Number: __7 Page: 55 Ashiand Railroad Addition Historic District, Ashland, OR

January 1911 Wallace sold the house to Samuel S. Davies, operator of “The Mirror Barber” on 4t
Street, and his wife Lora, who would remain here for five decades. (JCD 84:479) The Davies
family sold the house in 1958 and by 1964 Mrs. Alta Briner lived here. While poorly maintained
and suffering various insensitive modifications, particularly the removal of its much deteriorated
front porch, the Parker-Davies House still retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic
period of development.

ID# 192.0 Survey #27

FLOOK-GRUBB HOUSE 1890¢
762 A STREET 391E09AB 2100
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half wood-frame vernacular building was probably constructed for John and Ethna
Flook shortly after they purchased the land from H. D. Maxum in late 1898. The Flooks lived here
until 1908 when they sold the house to Ella Grubb, a descendent of Ashland pioneers Samuel and
Elizabeth Grubb. Ella lived here with several of her siblings and retained ownership in the 1920s.
By 1948 the house was owned and occupied by Harry E. Massey and Grace_ Massey, who had
arrived in Ashland by covered wagon from Nebraska during the pioneer period.26 They remained
through at least 1964 according to city directories. In recent years the house has been converted to
professional office use and while somewhat modified continues to retain sufficient integrity to relate
its historic period of development.

1D# 193.0
SANDLER BUILDING 1989
750 A STREET J91E09AB 2300
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

A large two-story wood-frame building this structure was built in 1989 as professional office space.
While compatible in materials and general design, the lot placement and massing of this structure are
not consistent with the traditional development of the Railroad District.

ID# 194.0
HANNON, LEONARD T. AND IRENE HOUSE 1 1946
294 SIXTH ST 391E09AB 2400
Builder: Hannon, Leonard T.
Other: Vernacular [Ranch] Secondary/Contributing

This house was built in 1946 as the home of Leonard T. and Irene Hannon after acquiring land from
their parents H. E. and Grace 1. Massey, who resided to the east. Hannon, who worked for the city,
Furchased a Camp White Barracks building and used that lumber to construct this dwelling, which
or many years retained the original Camp White windows. In 1955, following construction of a
second home to the south, the family moved and retained this property as a rental.?’ Although re-
sided and somewhat modified, the simply designed Hannon House I retains sufficient integrity to
relate its historic period of development.

26 Lenn Hannon, personal communication with the Author, 30-Dec-1997. Hannon, a longtime member of the Oregon
Senate, is the grandson of H. E. and Irene Massey.

27 Lenn Hannon, personal communication with the Author, 30-Dec-1997. Hannon, a longtime member of the Oregon
Senate, lived in this house with his parents.
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ID# 195.0
HANNON, LEONARD T, AND IRENE HOUSE 11 1955
268 SIXTH ST 391E09AB 2401
Builder: Hannon, Leonard T.
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This one-story wood-frame house was built in 1955 on a former garden plot and was the home of
Leonard T. & Irene Hannon for many years following their move from ID #194.00 to the east.

ID# 196.0
HANNON, LEONARD T. RENTAL HOUSE 1966
266 SIXTH ST 391E09AB 2500
Builder: Hannon, Leonard T.
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

An earlier dwelling at this location was long the home of Leo and Hedwid J. Schoeninger, who had
purchased the site in 1943. (JCD 246:425) In 1966, the Schoeningers sold the house to Leonard T.
Hannon, who razed that structure and built the present single-story wood frame structure as a rental

next to his family’s home.

ID# 197.0
TURNER, O. B. HOUSE 1908
256 SIXTH ST 391E09AB 2600
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A small one-story wood-frame building, this dwelling was reportedly built in 1905 and in 1910 was
purchased by O. B. Turner. (84:133-5). Turner, who among other things worked as a “powder
monkey” on the construction of the original Pacific Highway over the Siskléyou Mountains in 1912-
1913, was related to the Massey and Hannon families of this block.?8 Mr. Turner retained
ownership throughout his life, living here into the 1960s. A small undated shed addition to the
south expands the original gable volume and a separate wood-frame structure is located at the rear
of the property. While somewhat modified, the Turner House retains sufficient integrity to relate

its historic period of development.
ID# 198.0 Survey #28

WALKER, LUNSFORD HOUSE 1902¢
263 SEVENTH ST 391E09AB 2700
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This one-story bungalow-style dwelling was built circa 1902 following the purchase of the lots by
Lunsford L. and Margaret Anna Walker. Mr. Walker worked as a SP car repairman. He died about
1908 and two years later, in January 1910, Mrs. Walker died and her estate sold the property to L.
D. Good in 1914. By 1948 the house was occupied by Arthur D. Hamaker and in 1964 Donald A.
Stevenson lived here. The Walker House retains hig% integrity and effectively relates its historic

pericd of development.

ID# 199.0 Survey #29
McCLUNG-PETERSON HOUSE 1902¢
247 SEVENTH ST 391E09AB 2800
Other: Vernacular jCottage} Primary/Contributing

A simple hipped-roof wood-frame vernacular cottage with a full front porch, this dwellir(xf was
probably constructed ¢1902 after Clyde H. McClung purchased the site from George H. Andrews.

28 Hannon, op cit.



NPS Form 10-900-A OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section Number: _7 Page: 57 Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District, Ashland, OR

McClung, a SP fireman sold the house to Nels Peterson, a car inspector for SP, in 1904. After a
series of rapid sales, Sherman Morehouse, an investor with several properties in the Railroad
District, purchased the property in 1909. The Morehouse family retained ownership for rental use
until 1923 when Carrie B. Morehouse sold the house to George Sapannaus. Raymond Taylor lived
here in 1948 and in 1964, apparently a rental, the house was occupied by Raymond J. Powell with a
second unit at 247 V4 listed as vacant. The McClung-Peterson House retains fairly high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID # 200.0 Survey #30

POIRERA, JOSEPH HOUSE 1889¢
785 B STREET 391E09AB 2900
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This one-story wood-frame vernacular ell was probably built sometime prior to 1890 and appears in
the E. S. Moore birdseye view of Ashland published that year. In1900 the property was owned by
Joseph Poirera, a wiper for the SP Railroad, who sold the property the following year to L. Kitchum.
Other owners included Ira D. Pittman, in 1909 and Ephraim Hackett, a retired miner, who bought
the house in 1910. Ray M. Parr was living here in 1948 and the house was listed as vacant in the
1964 city directory. The Poirera House is among the older dwellings in the railroad district and
retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development. See JCD 44:54 and 44:106

ID# 201.0 Survey #31

DUNKIN, JAMES HOUSE 1893¢
773 B STREET 391E09AB 3000
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A fine single-story vernacular ell, this wood frame dwelling was probably built in 1893-94 following
the sale of the lots from land agent George Andrews to James W. and Sarah Dunkin. (JCD 27:265,
29:452) In 1897 the Dunkins sold the house to Francis M. Blevins for $1500. Long used for rental
purposes, in 1910 the house was occupied by Charles Cavender, a fireman with the SP Railroad.
Anna Stockstill lived here in 1948 and retirees Louis H. and Anna Pankey owned and occupied the
house in 1964. Recently renovated by local contractor Walt Stokes, the Dunkin House retains high
integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

1D # 202.0
SILVER, CATHERINE HOUSE 1940c
763 B STREET 391E09AB 3100
Altered Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

This single story wood-frame dwelling was apparently built in 1940 and was the home of Catherine
Silver, widow of Theodore Silver, who had the house built on land the owned by the family at least
since the early 1930s. (JCD 185:598). The house was transferred to Mrs. Silver’s son Leland Ralph
Silver in 1959. Modernized with new siding and non-historic windows, the Silver House does not
currently relate it historic period of development at.

1D # 203.0 Survey #32

HEDBERG-SILVER HOUSE 1904/1955
743 B STREET 391E09AB 3200
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne} Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood frame dwelling was originally located at 90 Second Street where it
had been built in 1904 for SP lineman Gustaf Hedberg. In 1955 Leland Silver, the son of Theodore
and Catherine Silver (see #202) purchased the house after its condemnation in anticipation of the
widening of North Main Street through Ashland. Silver relocated the house to this site and his
family retains ownership. The Hedberg-Silver house, relocated within the railroad district over 40
years ago, retains very high integrity and accurately reflects its historic period of development.
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ID# 204.0 Survey#33

BROWN, MATTIE RENTAL HOUSE 1898¢
733 B STREET 391E09AB 3300
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A small single-story vernacular dwelling, this wood-frame structure was built ¢1898 by Charles and
Mattie Brown for use as a rental. Charles Brown died shortly after its completion and his widow
remzined in the family home to the west. Mattie found employment in a laundry to support her
family and continued to rent this house. The Brown family sold the house to Ambros Wenker in
1946, who apparently continued the rental use. Marie L. Krenock is listed at the address in 1948
and in 1964 Mrs. Ida Bryant lived here. The Brown Rental retains sufficient integrity to relate its
historic period of development.

ID # 205.0 Survey 434

BROWN, CHARLES AND MATTIE HOUSE 1898¢
725 B STREET 391E09AB 3400
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular dwelling was built c1898 as the home of Charles
and Mattie Brown. Mattie Brown and her children remained her after Charles’ death shortly after
completion and the family retained the property until 1946 when it was purchased by Ambros
Wenker. In 1948 Cornelius Rost is listed at this address in city directories and remained as the
owner and occupant in 1964. The Rost Family continues to own the property. The Brown House
retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID # 206.0 Survey #15

COSSAIRT-EAST HOUSE 1900¢
885 B STREET 391E09AB 600
Other: Vernacular |Cottage] Primary/Contributing

A one-story wood-framed vernacular cottage with a full-width front porch, the Cossairt-East House
was built ¢1900 as a rental for Henry and Nancy Cossairt. The Cossairts owned several other
properties in Ashland and Henry Cossairt listed his occupation as “landlord” in the 1900 census.
The house was sold in 1907 and then Hughes East, a retiree, purchased it in 1910. Long a rental,
Nicholas Ritzinger was living here in 1948 and in 1964 Hally B. and Judith Ferguson, occupied the
house. The Cossairt-East House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of
development. ‘

ID# 207.6
RITZINGER-FLACKUS HOUSE 1948
871 B STREET 391E09AB 700
Other: Vernacular |Ranch] Secondary/Contributing

This single-story wood-frame dwelling was built in 1948 for Lawrence J. and Hazel Ritzinger who
had acquired the property from N. and Theresa Ritzinger in 1947. (JCD 285:122)29 In 1952
Thomas and Lena Flackus purchased the house and they would remain here through at least through
1964. (JCD 365:56) The Ritzinger-Flackus House retains high integrity and effictively relates its
historic period of development.

29 N. and Theresa, possibly Lawrence's parents, had bought what was presumably a vacant parcel in 1942.
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ID# 208.0 Survey #16

HANSEN, HANS HOUSE 1904¢
855 B STREET 391E09AB 800
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

Construction of this single-story vernacular cottage probably dates from shortly after the site was
purchased by Hans Hansen in August 1904. Hansen is listed here in both 1906 and 1910 directories
and the family retained ownership until 1913 when the house was acquired by the Southern Oregon
Conference of the Free Methodist Church. In 1948 C. E. Abbott resided here and the 1964 city
directory shows Claude H. Long at this address. The Hansen House retains sufficient integrity to
relate its historic period of development.

ID # 209.0 Survey #17

CAREY, R. L. HOUSE c1889
843 B STREET 391E09AB 900
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

Construction of this one and one-half story wood frame dwelling occurred circa 1889 and the house
is depicted in the E. S. Moore birdseye view of Ashland published in 1890. A vernacular I-house set
erpendicular to the road, the Carey House likely was designed to face Seventh Street, accountin,
or the side-facing orientation of the porch today. The Carey’s sold the property to John W. an
Margaret Lanchlan in August 1899 and by 1910 it was owned by SamueFTorrence, whose family
remained here at least through 1948 when Mary Adell Torrence is shown at the address. The Carey

House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 210.0 Survey #18

DODSON, W, D. HOUSE 1914¢
234 SEVENTH ST 391E09AB 1000
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

Construction of the original single-story portion of this bungalow-style dwelling probably occurred
<1914 following the purchase of the site by W. D. Dodson. The property was foreclosed in 1919 by
the Jackson County Sheriff for taxes. Boyd Jones lived here in 1948, according to city directories,
and in 1964 the house was owned and occupied by Thomas E. and Anna Thompson. Leander Wade
is listed at 234%2 Seventh Street, apparently the rental until in second-story addition above the
attached garage. Substantially altered and expanded via a series of additions and other changes, the
Dodson remains generally compatible with the district but no longer retains sufficient integrity to
relate its historic period of development.

ID# 211.0 Survey #19

DAWSON-REYNOLDS HOUSE 1899
248 SEVENTH ST 391E09AB 1100
Altered Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

Construction of this single-story wood-frame vernacular ell began in 1899 for J. A. Dawson. “J. A.
Dawson has recently completed a house for his own occupancy in the Railroad Addition.” (Tidings,
8-Mar-1899, 3:3-4) Dawson soon sold the property and by 1906 Zacherus Reynolds and his wife
Eurchased the property. (JCD 78:286) Later owners including Adam Beagle, who purchased the
ouse from Jackson County Federal Savings in 1941. (JCD 229:24{) Beagle and his wife Mae
remained here through 1973. While the Dawson-Reynolds House has been modified with applied
siding below the eave-line and its windows have been replaced, some original detailing remains in the
gable end and other areas. It does not, however, currently reflect its historic original period of
development. A separate non-historic volume to the rear provides additional rental units.
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ID# 212.0
OLSON TRIPLEX 1980
260 SEVENTH ST 391E09AB 1200
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This single story wood-frame unit’ was built by Wallace Olson in 1979-1980 and provides three
rental units.

ID # 213.0 Survey #20

CROWSON,FRANK AND ANNA HOUSE 1904¢
253 EIGHTH ST 391E09AB 1300
Other: Vernacular Primary/Ceontributing

Construction of this fine one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular ell likely occurred c1904
after Frank and Anna Crowson purchased the lots. The Crowsons occupied the residence for at
least a time and retained title as late as 1939 when the house was foreclosed by the Jackson County
Sheriff for unpaid taxes. John W. Wimer lived here in 1948 with Charles R. Weeks listed in the
rear at the same address, indicating a rental use. Harold O. Rau, a carpenter, and his wife Ruth,
rented in 1964. The Crowson House retains high integrity and effective y relates its historic period
of development.

ID# 214.0 Survey #21

NEELEY-SETTLES HSE SITE [McCulloch House] 1994
267 EIGHTH ST 391E09AB 1400

Builder: McCulloch, Kenneth
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

The single story vernacular dwelling, the 1903c Neeley-Settles House that long occupied this site
was substantially demolished and rebuilt in an enlarged and expanded design in March 1993. While
encompassing elements of the original structure and remaining generally compatible with the
district, this structure is considered to be a new building.

ID # 215.0 Survey 22

BUTLER, JOHN HOUSE 1920¢
886 A STREET 391E09AB 1500

Builder: Butler, E. N. (Attrib)
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A small single-story wood-frame dwelling with simple elements of the bungalow form, the Butler
House was probably built after 1918 when the land was purchased by John. F. Butler for $500. A
family member, E. N. Butler built several bungalows in Ashland in the 1920s and likely built this
one. Butler sold the property to Peter Murray in 1923. In 1948 the house was occupied by P. C.
Woods and in 1964 it was owned and occupied by SP employee Merced Chacon and his wife
Ventura. The Butler House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID # 216.0
THE CABINET WORKS 1985¢
864 A STREET 391E09AB 1600
Other: Utilitarian Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This lar%e wood-frame building, long used as a cabinet shop, was probablﬁ built shortly prior to the
1989 split of this tax lot from that of the Herbig House (ID #217.0), to the east.
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ID# 217.0 Survey#23

HERBIG, THOMAS AND M. L. HOUSE 0
868 A STREET 391E09AB 1601
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A single-story wood frame dwelling in the bungalow style, this structure was probably built shortly
after M. L. Swab and Thomas Herbig were married in 1906. The couple sold the house to Louis H.
Wyant in 1909, who retained ownership until 1925. There is no listing for the Herbig House in
1948 but the 1964 city directory show Mike Taylor as the owner and occupant. By 1991 the Herbig
House was converted for use a hair salon. With only minor changes, the house retains sufficient
integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 218.0 Survey #24

DEWS, OLIVER RENTAL HOUSE 1903c
854 A STREET 391E09AB 1700
Other: Vernacular |Cottage) Primary/Contributing

A small single-story wood-frame hipped-roof vernacular cottage, the Dews Rental House was built in
1903 after the land was sold to Oliver and Hattie Dews, who resided next door. Dews, who
operated a drayage business, kept this house for rental purposes. Hattie Dews sold the property to
M. A. Walker in 1909 and the E)llowing year it was being rented by Joseph Bailey, a hostler for the
railroad. M. C. Weber lived here in 1948 and in 1964 Frank H. Breaszeale was the tenant. The
Dews Rental House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 219.0
WALT ANDERS AUTO REPAIR 1976
842 A STREET 391E09AB 1800
Other: Utilitarian Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This utilitarian concrete volume was apparently built in 1976 and the following year is listed as the
site of the Walt Anders Auto Repair Shop which occupied the site for many years.

ID # 220.0 Survey #25

DEWS, OLIVER HOUSE 1902¢
832 A STREET 391E09AB 1900
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This single-story wood-frame vernacular ell was probably built sometime after Oliver B. and Hattie
Dews purchased the property in 1902 from E. McNair Holmes. Dews, who operated a drayage
business at the time tfu‘s house was built, was later employed by the railroad as a car repairer. In
1910 Hattie and her two step-children Edmund and Ellen lived here. The house remainecf in family
ownershilg form many years and was a rented to George and Anna Graham by 1914. In 1948
Warren E. Mapes lived here and the 1964 city directory shows Fred Hoffman as the owner and
occupant. Somewhat modified with the application of exterior shingles, the Dews House
nevertheless retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 221.0
BELL, GLEN AND OPAL HOUSE 1948¢c
286 EIGHTH ST 391E09AB 100
Other: Vernacular [Ranch} Secondary/Contributing

This small single-story wood frame vernacular cottage was probably built about 1948, shortly after
the property was purchased by Glen C. and Opal Bell. (JCD 292:65) Bell, a millworker at Double
Dee Lumber in 1964, remained here after Opal died in 1993. A shingle clad volume with a small
entrant porch and separate garage of compatible design, the Bell House retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.
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ID# 222.0
HAHN-JACKSON HOUSE 1942
270 EIGHTH ST 391E09AB 200
Builder: Hahn, Edwin |Attrib]
Other: Vernacular [Ranch] Secondary/Contributing

The initial construction of this house is unclear although the assessor dates the building at 1910. A
small rectangular volume, possibly this structure but not likely, is shown on the 1928 Sanborn Fire
Insurance Map of the area. In 1942 the site was purchased by Edwin H. Hahn, a carpenter with
Tru-Mix Construction Company who lived at 925 B Street. Hahn either remodeled the earlier
structure to its present configuration or built a new rental. In 1948 Hahn sold the house to Virfinia
Ruth Jackson. (JCD 301:236) and, including a series of repossessions, she remained on the title as
late as 1986. Although the non-historic double car garage dominates the streetscape House, the

Hahn-Jackson volume retains essential integrity with its historic period of development.
ID# 223.0 Survey #12

STRONG-LARAMORE HOUSE 1996
248 EIGHTH ST 391E09AB 300
Designer: Richard Vezie and Associates

Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

The small single story wood-frame dwelling on this site was originally constructed c1948 and
occupied by Thomas Firstbroock in 1948 who soon sold to Samuel A and Waneata Donaldson who
retained ownership through 1973. (JCD 293:87-8) In 1994 local designer Richard Vezie &
Associates designed the major front porch and second floor addition that transformed the house into
an essentially new Craftsman style dwelling for owners Tom Strong and Janet Laramore. While
incorporating the earlier structure to some degree, this building is considered a new structure.

ID# 224.0 Survey#13

SMITH, WILLIAM AND ANNIE HOUSE 1902
925 B STREET 391E09AB 400
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne) Primary/Contributing

This hipped-roof wood frame vernacular cottage with Queen Anne details was built in 1902 for
William and Annie Smith. “Mrs. W. K. Smith has let the contract for a new cottage on B Street.”
(Tidings, 8-Sep-1902, 3:3) The Smith family retained ownership until 1923 when the property was
sold to James Butler. By 1942 Edward H. Hahn, a carpenter for the Tru-Mix Concrete Company,
was the owner and his widow, Virgie, remained here at least as late at 1991 according to city
directories. The Smith House retains very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of

development.

ID# 225.0
HAHN RENTAL HOUSE 1955
238 EIGHTHST 391E09AB 401
Other: Vernacular [Ranch] Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

This small wood-frame dwelling was built circa 1955 during the ownership of Edward H. Hahn, who
purchased the Smith House to the south in 1942. In 1964 Hahn’'s tenants were Albert M. and
Peggy L. Ward. The property was split off into a separate tax lot in 1977. (JCD 77-24398/JV 78-
016525) While not historic, the simple design and materials of the structure are generally
compatible with the character of the Railroad District during the secondary period of significance.
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1D # 226.0 Survey #14

COOLEY, BENSON D. HOUSE 1902
939 B STREET 391E09AB 500
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne) Primary/Contributing

This one-story wood-frame vernacular dwelling with Queen Anne detailing was built shortly after
the property was purchased by SP brakeman Benson D. Cooley in April 1902. Cooley sold the
house in 1905 to M. M. Blackman and by 1910 it was apparently being used as a rental. 1948
directories list Henry M. Mannin at this address and the house was listed as “vacant” in the 1964
directory. A “gable” form main volume with a projecting front-facing gable and shed roof porch, the
Cooley House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID # 227.0 Survey #134

PAYNE, ANDREW S, HOUSE 1900
954 B STREET 391E09AD 2600

‘ Builder: Payne, Andrew S (Attrib)
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne) Primary/Contributing

A well-detailed vernacular ell with Queen Anne elements, the one and one-story wood-frame
Andrew Payne House was built in 1900 and is documented by the Ashland Tidings' New Years
edition as a “new cottage in the Railroad District” costing $500. (Tidings, 7-Jan-1901) Payne, a
carpenter responsible for many homes in Ashland during the period, almost certainly built this
structure for Kis own family. In 1912 Payne sold the home to Millie Sherward and later residents
include Thomas Leffler, who lived here from 1917 through the 1930s. In 1948 John T. Otterson
was living at this address and in 1964 Bruce W. Rogers, and engineer with the State Highway
Department, and his wife Ellen owned and occu ie%l the house. The Payne House has been
somewhat modified in recent years and is in only fair condition but retains very high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 228.0 Survey #135

THROOP, ELMER HOUSE 1901¢
940 B STREET 391E09AD 2700
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

Construction of this single-story wood-frame hipped-roof vernacular cottage probably dates from
1901, after the land was purchased by Elmer E. Throop. Throop, a brakeman for the Southern
Pacific, sold the house to C. C. Roberts in 1907 and by the following year noted area builder Charles
Veghte owned the property, probably as a rental. Veghte retained ownership through 1926.
Mayme Orr lived here in 1948 and the 1964 city directory [ists Irwin F. and Louise Taylor, of Taylor
Brothers Lumber Company, as the occupants and owners. The Throop House retains high integrity
and effectively relates its historic period of development.

1D # 229.0 Survey #136

LINDSAY, WILLIAM HOUSE 1901
928 B STREET 391 E09AD 2800
Other: Vernacular |Queen Anne| Primary/Contributing

The original cFortions of this single-story wood-frame dwelling date from 1901 when SP brakeman
William Lindsay purchased the site. “William Lindsay, a railroad man, is erecting a commodious
residence for his own use on B Street.” ST idings, 28-Mar-1901, 2:4) Lindsay sold the house to L. P.
Orr in 1905. Later occupants include Jesse Morgan in 1910 and by 1948 C. A. Talley was livin
here. Charles D. McFarlan, an announcer for KDéV radio, and his wife Wilma owned and occupie
the home according to the 1964 city directory. In the early 1990s the Lindsay House was
significantly enlarged and expanded, creating the long elevation lining 8" street. While modified, the
Lindsay House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.
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ID# 230.0 Survey #137

HARRINGTON, ELMER AND BERTIE HOUSE 1907¢
156 EIGHTH ST 391EQ09AD 2900
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

This wood-frame single-story hipped-roof vernacular cottage was probably built in 1907, shortly
after Eimer and Bertie Harrington purchased the lots from Clarence Poley. The house was standing
by November 1907, when the Ashland Tidings noted a death at the “Harrington Home on Eighth,
between B and C.” (Tidings, 13-Nov-1907, 3:3) Elmer Harrington, employed at the Southern
Pacific roundhouse in Ashland, sold the property to area businessman Gottlieb Spiegel in 1908, who
retained the house as a rental. In 1948 the Harrington House was occupied by Clinton H. Moore.
In 1947 Moore built a garage on the property. (Tidings, 7-May-1947, 1:7) In 1964 Mrs. Frances R.
Moore, Clinton’s widow, was the owner and occupant. The Harrington House retains sufficient
integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 231.0 Survey #138

BILLINGS-STERRETT HOUSE 1948¢
132 EIGHTH ST ' 391E09AD 3000
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Secondary/Contributing

Construction of this small single-story wood-frame bungalow is uncertain as it is dated at 1927 by
the Jackson County Assessor but does not appear in the Sanborn Fire Insurance Map of the area
published the following year. The construction pattern, with early appearing door and window
surrounds and narrow, double-drop, horizontal wood siding support the possibility that the structure
was relocated to this site. The earliest known occupant in this location are William and Wanda
Sterrett who were apparently renting the house from Ralph Billings in 1948. Billings, a large
landowner and member of a pioneer Ashland family, may well have moved the house onto this lot in
response to the huge real estate demand following WWII. Billings sold the property to the Sterretts
in 1952. (JCD 352:328) In 1956 the Sterretts sold the property to Elsie M. Desavedo, a widow.
Though probably of earlier construction, the Billings-Sterrett House retains sufficient integrity to
relate its documented period of development during the Secondary period of significance within the
Railroad District’s history.

ID# 232.0 Survey #1393

HARP-LONG HOUSE 1904c¢
130 EIGHTH ST 391E09AD 3100
Other: Vernacular [Bungalow] Primary/Contributing

This single-story wood-framed dwelling in the vernacular form was probably built in 1904 followin
the purchase of the lots by W. J. Harp, a painter. Harp is listed at the house in 1906 and remaine
here until 1909 when the home was sold to Albert M. Long, a plumber with Provost Brothers. Long
and his wife Effie remained here for many years, selling the house to Etta Morris in 1935. No
occupant is listed in the 1948 directory however by 1964 the house was a rental, occupied by Ted L.
Huff, a logger, and his wife Gladys. The Harp-Long retains high integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.

30 There was apparently an error in the photographs connected with these survey numbers in the Ashland Cultural
Resource Inventory, confusing the descriptions for sites #139 and #138.
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ID # 233.0 Survey #140

ENGWICHT-MC MILLAN HOUSE 1905
110 EIGHTH ST 391E09AD 3200
Other: Vernacular [Cottage| Primary/Contributing

A fine hipped-roof vernacular cottage with wrap-around porch and elements of the bungalow style,
the Engwicht-McMillan House was built for Southern Pacific conductor George En%wic t in 1905,
prior to his move from their earlier Railroad District home at Fourth and B Streets.3! In December
1909 the house was sold to Alexander and Eva McMillian, described as wealthy ranchers from
Montana. Alexander McMillan died in 1932 and his widow remained in the home until 1949 when
the house was sold to Sam J. and Victoria Pospyhla, who owned and occupied the house for many
years. Though unsuccessfully nominated for individual listing on the NRHP in 1979, the Engwicht-
McMillan House retains very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 234.0
VACANT LOT 0
0 C STREET 391E09AD 3300

Vacant

In 1949 this lot was owned by J. E. Hays who sold it Sam and Victoria Pothyla, who lived to the
west. (See ID 233.0). Following subdivision, the parcel has remained vacant for a number of years.

ID# 235.0
PROSPHYLA RENTAL HOUSE 1949¢
973 C STREET 391E09AD 3400
Altered Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

While not entirely certain, this small sin%le-story wood-frame building was either built or moved to
this in the late 1940s, and may be one of the many Camp White structures that were converted to
private residential use during that period. Most logically the house was put this site subsequent to
the land transfer to Sam and Victoria Prosphyla in 1949 and was retainedp by that couple as a rental.
In 1960 the Prosphya’s sold the house to Mildred Schribner, a single women and the deed of
transfer makes reference to barn that straddled the then recently divided lot. (JCD 494:147) The
Prosphya Rental House, a simple structure, has been resided and had its windows altered and does
not currently retain sufficient visual integrity to relate its historic period of development

ID# 236.0
JACOBS RENTAL HOUSE 1910¢
985 MAINST E 391E09AD 3500
Other: Yernacular Primary/Contributing

The exact construction and social history of this fine one-story vernacular ell is unclear however it is
dated at 1910 by the assessor and clearly pre-dates 1928, as it appears on Sanborn Fire Insurance
Maps. The earliest identified owner is Myrtle Jacobs, widow of E. F. Jacobs and the daughter-in-law
of area landowner William Jacobs. (see 237.00) As a result, the house is assumed to have been a
rental developed by the Jacobs family. Built of wood frame with a finely detailed cobblestone
pergola, the Jacobs Rental retains early appearing gable end decoration and although partially resided
with wood shingles, retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

31 See ID #113.000, located at 161 Fourth Street.
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1D # 237.0
JACOBS-SLACK HOUSE 1920c
975 MAINST E 391E09AD 3600
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This fine one-story bungalow-style dwelling was built c1920 and is shown on the 1928 Sanborn Fire
Insurance Map of the area. William P. Jacobs, apparently the grandson of the original owner,
retained possession until 1948 when he sold the house to Billy E. and Ruth P. Slack. Billy Slack, a
manager at Provost Furniture, remained here through the early 1960s. (JCD 368:46) The Jacobs-
Slack House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 238.0
THOMPSON, MAE G. HOUSE 1949
959 MAINST E 391E09AD 3700
Altered Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

Ownership information for this small one-story wood-frame dwelling, built circa 1949 according to
Assessor information, is unclear. After the death of the earliest identified owner, Mae G.
Thompson, her estate sold the property to James Henry and Fredyce M Burr. in 1952, (JCD
363:85]) The present owners have occupied the house since the early 1960s. Modified with non-

original siding, window and roof alterations the Thompson House does not reflect its historic period
of development.

ID# 239.0
CALLIE WINTERS’ GROCERY 1940¢
917 MAINST E 391E09AD 3800
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Secondary/Contributing

This one-story concrete block building was apparently built in 1940 for John and Callie Winters who
owned the ot and had resided in the adjacent house at 92 Eighth Street since 1930. (JCD 182:308).
City directories for 1948 list Callie Winters Grocery at the corner of 8th and East Main, in
reference to this structure. In 1964 Winters divided the parcel and sold this corner to Harold
Johnson who operated Johnson’s East Main Grocery here at least through late 1970s. Later the
“Ashland Country Grocery” and a variety of small eateries until the early 1990s conversion into the
present coffee and sandwich shop, the Callie Winters’ Grocery building remains one of the few
commercial uses at this end of the district and while somewhat modified retains sufficient integrity
to relate its historic period of development.

1D # 240.0
NEWMAN APARTMENTS 1967
943 MAIN ST E 391E09AD 3801
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This two-story muitiple family apartment complex was built in 1967 after the land was subdivided
and sold by John and Callie Winters in 1964. (see ID 239 and 241). The original owners of the
apartment units were Loren and Velma E Newman.

ID# 241.0 Survey #141

READER, MRS. J. K. RENTAL HOUSE 1909c¢
92 EIGHTH ST 391E09AD 3802
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

Construction of this simple wood-frame bungalow probably dates from 1909, after the site was
purchased by Lou Reader. Reader, wife of prominent Ashland doctor J. K. Reader, owned several
rental properties in the Railroad District likely the original use of this residence. In 1930 the house
and surrounding land were purchased by John and Callie Winters, who lived here for many years and
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operated a grocery store on the corner of Eighth and East Main Street. In 1964 Willie E. Choat
rented the house and that same year the southern portion of the lot was subdivided and sold. The
Reader Rental House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID # 2420
REID, ETHEL S. HOUSE : 1926
933 MAINST E 391E09AD 3900
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This fine single-story wood-framed bungalow with a small projecting porch stoop and clipped gable
ends was built in 1926 after the land was sold to Ethel S. Reid, a longtime teacher at the Ashland
Junior High School. (JCD 158:603). It appears in the 1928 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map of the area
essentially as it stands today. Ms. Reid lived here, occasionally renting a room or sharing the house,
after her retirement and still occupied the house as late as 1964 according to Polk City Directories.
The Reid House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID # 243.0 Survey #53

BOOTH, OREN HOUSE » 1915¢
882 B STREET 391E09AC 100
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A one and one-half story wood-frame bungalow, the Booth House was erected following the
demolition of an earlier structure on this site around 1915 when the property was bought by Oren
Booth from Hattie Gleason Whitmore. Booth, an SP fireman, retainetf ownership until 1928. C. E.
Converse lived here in 1948 and by 1964 the house was being rented by Glenn E. Eager, a hea
equipment operator, and his wife Lonnie. Enlarged with a compatible rear addition, the Boot
House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 244.0 Survey #54

HOLMES-FLACKUS HOUSE 1888/10
872 BSTREET 391E09AC 200
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

Initial construction of this one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular dwelling is somewhat
unclear. William and Harriet Holmes purchased the property in 1888 for the Oregon and
Transcontinental Land Company and built a home that stood on the site at least until 1906 when
Harriet Holmes rented it to Martha Isabella Davies. William Flackus, owner of the Shasta Grocery,
purchased the site in June 1910 and either enlarged the earlier dwelling or raised it for construction
of the present volume. Flackus_retained ownership, apparently as a rental, until 1942 when the
house was sold to Albert Meyer.32 Fred J. Haynes is listed at this address in 1948 and Arthur W.
Meyer, a conductor with the SP Railroad, his wife Elaine owned and occupied the house in 1964.
While somewhat modified by the installation of asbestos siding, the Holmes-Flackus House retains
sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID #244.100, a two-story infill structure of Craftsman-inspired design was built on the western
portion of the Holmes-Flackus site in the 1990s. While somewhat out of scale and more grand than
the traditional construction in the District, the stepped facade of the dwelling minimizes its impact on
the streetscape and it is considered Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

32 The 1942 city directory lists Flackus as living at 819 Siskiyou Boulevard.
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ID # 245.0
GRAVES, HAROLD AND ETHYLENE HOUSE . 1956
840 B STREET 391E09AC 300
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This small one-story wood frame dwelling was probably built in 1956 after Harold G. and Ethylene
Graves purchased the lots from Carol E. and Zella E. Converse. (JCD 432:362) The Converses had
acquired the lots in 1949 from Henry M. and Annie Jensen. (JCD 312:415)." Although somewhat
compatible in volume and mass with the small dwellings of the secondary period, the Graves House
has been substantially modified with metal roofing, new windows and siding.

ID# 246.0 Survey #55

TIBBETTS, ELMO HOUSE 1901
826 B STREET 39IEQ9AC 400
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular dwelling, the Tibbetts House was built in 1901
after SP fireman Tibbetts purchased the property from land agent George Andrews. The Ashland
Tidings reported that Tibbetts was building an $800 dwelling in the Railroad District. With his wife
Tibbetts moved to Hornbrook, California in March 1902 and sold this house to W. I. McNutt, a
blacksmith. McNutt sold in 1906 and the house was used as a rental. A separate building at the
south property line was built prior to 1928 and Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps for that year show it in
use as a “plumbers shop” and storage building. 1948 the house was occupied by Anna Prescott, and
Marie Prescott, a longtime Public School teacher, retains ownership at this writing. The Tibbetts
House, retains very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

1D # 247.0 Survey #56

LONG, OSMER AND L1LA HOUSE 1901c
117 EIGHTH ST 391E09AC 501
Other: Vernacular |Cottage| . Primary/Contributing

This single-story hipped-roof vernacular cottage was built circa 1901 after the land was purchased by
Osmer and Lila Long. Long, an SP brakeman, improved the property in 1904 and retained
ownership, possibly as a rental, until 1925 when the house was soﬁ:l to Lynn D. Brown. By 1948
William E. Brewer was living here and retirees Lewis and Eleberta Aulman owned and occupied the
house according to 1964 city directories. Somewhat modified with replacement siding, the
enclosure of the front porch and aluminum slider windows, the Long House suffers some diminished
integrity but minimally reflects its historic period of development.

ID# 248.0
MODERN HOUSE 1988
125 EIGHTH ST 391E09AC 600
Modern Period: Ranch House Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

This lot was owned by A. P. Rhoades from 1925 though 1954. (JCD 156:631) After a number of
transfers the property was purchased by Thomas and Della Ortega in 1968 and remained in the
family for many vears. The present dwelling, a single-story wood-frame structure, may include
portions of an earlier structure but, while compatible, is not considered to historic.

ID # 249.0 Survey #57

MORRIS PORTER HOUSE 1890¢
143 EIGHTH ST 391E09AC 700
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

Dated at 1900 and referred to as the “Denny-Porter House” in the Ashland Cultural Resource
Inventory, this fine one and one-half story vernacular structure is visible in the 1890 E. L. Moore
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birdseye view of Ashland and so dates at least from that period. The ownership is uncertain until
1895 when Levi Morris purchased this property from area land agent George Andrews.33 (JCD
50:172) By 1901 was owned by Frances N. Denny and in 1905 SP conductor Caleb Porter
urchased the house in for $1050. The Porter family lived here and retained ownership for the next
ifty years. The Morris-Porter House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period

of development

ID# 250.0 Survey #58 .
EGGLESTON-DAVIS HOUSE 1903¢
155 EIGHTH ST 391E09AC 800
Other: Vernacular [Queen Annej Primary/Contributing

This single story wood-frame vernacular dwelling with Queen Anne influenced detailing was
probably built as a rental for Rebecca Eggleston, who purchased the lots in May 1903. Eggleston
sold the house to George W. David in 1908 and David, a shoemaker, lived here untit 1910 when
Mary J. Wolfe purchased the house. At that time the Ashland Tidings noted “G. W. Davis sells his
residence property on Eighty Street to Mrs. Wolfe, who will occupy it.” (Tidings, 28-Mar-1910,
5:2). William S. Garren %ived here in 1948 and Mrs. Cora Garren, his widow, remained as owner
and occupant in 1964. The Eggleston-Davis House retains high integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.

ID # 251.0 Survey #59

CHURCHMAN, GEORGE HOUSE 1902¢

156 SEVENTH ST 391E09AC 900
Builder: Churchman, George[Attrib.|

Other: Vernacular [{Cottage| Historic, Non-Contributing in Current Condition _

George Churchman, a carpenter, purchased three lots on Seventh Street in February 1902 and likely
built this one-story wood-frame vernacular dwelling for his own use shortly thereafter. By 1906 the
family was living elsewhere in Ashland and in 1907 sold the Seventh Street house to C. A. Harris for
$1000. Ray Stringer lived at this address in 1948 and remained as the owner and occupant at least
through 1964. The Churchman House has been modified with vinyl siding and new windows and
does not currently relate its historic period of development.

ID# 252.0 Survey #62

SOVERNS, CARLETON B. HOUSE 1905¢
140 SEVENTH ST 391E09AC 1000
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This single-story wood-frame bungalow was probably built in 1905 shortly after Carleton B. Soverns
purchased the site from are specu%ator George H. Andrews. Soverns, a gardener, lived here though
1910 when the structure became a rental. Soverns died in 1911 and Slyvenus Corbett took
possession, retaining ownership until 1917. In 1948 the house was apparently in rental use as Sadie
Simpson, Nancy Beers, and Ruth Stinson are all listed at this address. The Soverns House exhibits
several decorative exterior elements typical of the bungalow style and retains sufficient integrity to
relate its historic period of development.

33 Andrews, who sold land for the Railroad appears at some point on virtually every deed in the area and while this may
in fact have been his own personal property that is not at all documented.
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ID # 253.0 Survey #63

COX, ALLEN E. AND SARAH HOUSE 1900
132 SEVENTH ST 391E09AC 1100
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A small vernacular cottage, this house was built in 1900 as the home of Allen Cox. “A. E. Cox, one
of the SP employees, has recently completed a new cottage in the railroad addition.” (Tidings, 11-
Jun-1900) Cox improved the house onls a year later, a fact also noted in the local press. (Tidings, 7-
Jan-1901). Cox and his wife Sarah remained in this house until 1909 when John Illingworth, a
brakeman for the railroad, purchased the home. By 1942 Glen Austin Prescott, a compositor for the
Ashland Daily Tidings lived here with his wife Marian, a saleswoman at the J C Penney store. The
Prescotts remained as the owners and occupants through 1964 and as late as 1991 Marian remained
in the longtime family home. The Cox House retains high integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.

ID # 254.0
EGL1 RENTAL HOUSE 1900/1980s
120 SEVENTH ST 391E09AC 1200
Altered Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

Dated at 1900 by the Jackson County Assessot, it is unclear if the original structure on this site as
shown in 1928 “Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps survives beneath the late-1980s renovation and
addition that yielded the present footprint. While generally compatible in volume with the
character of the historic district, this structure is not considered to retain any tangible connection
with its original period of development.

ID # 255.0 Survey #64

MC CUNE, JOSEPH HOUSE 1904
108 SEVENTH ST 391E09AC 1300
Other: Vernacular |Cottage| Primary/Contributing

This one-story wood-frame vernacular cottage was built as a rental in 1904 for Joseph McCune, an
area fruit grower. In a year-end report, the Ashland Tidings noted that McCune's house at corner of
C and Seventh was complete at a cost of $800.” S']I' idings, 29-Dec-1904, 3:3} The property was
sold to John M. Abbott in 1912 and two years later he sold it to Bertha Corthell. The directory for
1948 lists Mrs. Corthell as the widow of Edgar) as still living here. She would remain at least
through 1958. Kenneth F. Adams, a serviceman with the California-Pacific Utilities, and his wife
Marjorie owned and occupied the house in 1964. The McCune House retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 256.0 Survey #65

SMITH, GEORGE W. AND EL1ZABETH HOUSE 1900c
107 SEVENTH ST 391E09AC 1400
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A one-story wood-frame vernacular ell, this house was likely built shortly after local land agent
Georfge Andrews sold the property to George W. Smith in August 1899. Smith, formerly Ashland's
Chiet of Police, died soon after completion and his widow Elizabeth moved from the house while
the couple’s sons, John N. and Burl C. Smith, remained. Elizabeth Smith died in 1908 and Burl
Smith, a brakeman for the railroad, died in 1918. The family sold the property shortly thereafter.
In 1948 the Smith House was occupied by both Charles ller and Dicft(J Besse, possibly indicating
rental use. Susan L. Tice, a student, lived here in 1964.

A separate volume is located at the rear of TL 1400 with the address of 757 C Street and is identified
as ID# 256.100. A small one-story wood-frame building, its construction is uncertain and it is
considered Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing
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ID # 257.0 Survey #66

SNYDER, VALANDINGHAM AND SARAH HOUSE 1908
119 SEVENTH ST 391E09AC 1500
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This one-story wood-frame bungalow dwelling was built in 1908 after the lots were sold by
Benjamin Eggleston. “Val Snyder, Southern Pacific conductor, is remodeling and adding to his
dwelling” (Tidings, 23-Apr-1908, 1:6) This is almost certainly in reference to a smaller cottage that
was located upon the lot when Snyder acquired it. Snyder and his wife Sarah remained in the house
until late 1910 when they sold to Clayton S. Borror, a carpenter. Another railroad employee,
fireman Joseph Bailey, lived here in 1914. In 1948 the house was occupied by Marshall Woodell
and in 1964 Eugene A. Brown, a teacher, and his wife Helen, owned and occupied the house. The
Snyder House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID # 258.0 Survey #67

PFAFF, CHARLES HOUSE 1905¢
137 SEVENTH ST 391E09AC 1600
Other: Vernacular |Bungaiow) Primary/Contributing

A small one-story wood-frame vernacular dwelling with a simple bungalow-influence, the Pfaff
House may have been standing when purchased by Charles Pfaff in February 1905. Pfaff, a fireman
for the Southern Pacific, lived here until 1909 when the house was sold to Alexander Hall, another
railroad employee. In 1948 both Jesse A. Ferren and Robert F. Brown are listed at this address,
Eossibly indicating a rental situation. SP engineer Jesse Ferren and his wife Eva had lived in the

ouse as early as 1942 and Eva retained ownership at least through 1964. The Pfaff House retains
sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 259.0 Survey #68

BAKER, ADAM AND LYDIA HOUSE 1895¢
155 SEVENTH ST ' 391E09AC 1700
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular dwelling was probably built shortly after the lot
was purchased by Adam and Lydia Baker in early 1895. er Adam'’s death, Lydia sold the house
to E. N. Story in October 1905 and moved to another house located on A Street. Story apparent]
used the property as a rental and Clarence Tostevine, operator of the Star Theater, lived ﬁere wi
his family in 1910. By 1942 RaK Stringer, a serviceman with California-Pacific Utilities, and his wife
Leah owned and occupied the house. They would remain through at least 1991 and Leah Stringer
remains on the title of the house at this writing. Somewhat modified with the non-compatible
installation of wide board exterior siding, the Baker House nevertheless retains sufficient integrity to
relate its historic period of development.

ID # 260.0 Survey #69

COX-CAVIN HOUSE 1900c
774 B STREET 391E09AC 1800

Builder: Cox, Joseph [Attrib.]
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A sinﬂe story wood-frame vernacular ell, this house was likely begun in 1899 after Joseph and
Josephine Cox gurchased the property from land agent George Andrews. Cox, who was a
carpenter, probably built the house himself. He and his family lived here only a short time, selling
to E. Allen Cavin, 2 miner, in July 1901. Cavin and his wife retained ownership until 1929. LeRoy
Hill was living here in 1948 and the 1964 city directory lists Mrs. Lucy E. Heirs as the owner and
occupant. The Cox-Cavin House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of
development.



NPS Form 10-900-A OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section Number: _ 7 Page: 72 Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District, Ashland, OR
ID # 261.0
HILYER DUPLEX ' 1988
165 SEVENTH ST 391E09AC 1801
Builder: Crestwood Builders (Harker, Richard)
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This single-story wood-frame building was built for owner Barbara Hilyer. (Permit # 121387)
ID# 262.0 Survey #70

POWELL, D. SHERMAN RENTAL HOUSE 1913¢
762 B STREET 391E09AC 1900

Builder: Powell, Sherman D.
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

One of the finest examples of the bungalow style in the district, this one-story wood-frame building
with “elephantine” stone porch pillars was built by contractor Sherman Powell as a rental shortly
after his acquisition of the lots in August 1913. Powell, who resided in the District on Oak Street,
retained title until 1922 when it was transferred to Alden Powell, presumably a son. J. E. Hendricks
lived at this address in 1948 and the house was owned and occupied by Mrs. Annie Hendricks, his
widow, as late as 1964. The Powell Rental House, of exemplary architectural design, retains very
high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

1D # 263.0 .
MILLER-LANG HOUSE 1992
758 B STREET 391E09AC 2000
Architect: Dan Horton
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

The design of this two-story wood frame volume, apparently built partially upon the foundation of
the smaller dwelling that stood on this site during the historic period, was loosely based upon the
work of the famed California architects Greene and Greene. While moderately compatible in
design and use of material, the scale and volume of this structure are considered inconsistent with
the traditional development pattern of this area of the Railroad District.

ID # 264.0
GREENE DUPLEX 3 1978
724 B STREET 391EQ09AC 2100
Modern Period: Ranch House Builder: Greenwood Homes [Don Greene)

Non-Compatibie/Non-Contributing

This two-story multiple-family wood-frame structure was built in 1978 following subdivision and
sale of the land by longtime owner Sadie Inghram.

ID # 265.0 Survey #71

DILHAN, JOSEPH AND JESSIE HOUSE 1912¢
164 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 2101
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

Construction of this simple single-story wood-frame bungalow likely dates from 1912, just after the
property was purchased by Joseph and Jessie Dilhan. Dilhan, a plumber, lived here with his family
until Septemnber 1920 when the house was sold to John McMichael, a hostler for the Southern
Pacific. Two years later T. F. and Bessie Smith purchased the house. As early as 1942 Chester and
Sadie Ingram owned and occupied the house, remaining here at least through 1964. The Dilhan
House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.



NPS Form 10-900-A OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section Number: _ 7 Page: 73 Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District, Ashland, OR

ID# 266.0 Survey#72

UNIDENTIFIED HOUSE [HUDSON RENTAL) 1895¢
156 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 2200
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This two-story wood-frame vernacular ell was built circa 1895 according to assessors information
and appears on the 1907 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map, the first of Ashland since 1890. The earliest
identitied owners are James and Flora Hudson, who sold the property to Peter S. and June V. Streit
in September 1946. (JCD 273:278) Hudson, a plumber and area real estate speculator, lived on
Oak Street in 1942 and probably kept this home as a rental. In 1947 Fred and Norma Carlisle

urchased the home and retained ownership through 1963. (JCD 278:419) In the early 1990s the

ouse was substantially renovated, including new siding, windows and trim but retains sufficient
integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 267.0 Survey#73

RICE, JOHN REYV. RENTAL HOUSE . 1888
150 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 2300

- Builder: Beaver,D. L.
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This one-story wood-frame vernacular dwelling is a modest example of the I-House form.
Contractor D. L. Beaver built the house for Rev. John Rice, who maintained it as a rental, accordin:

the period account in the Ashland Tidings. (Tidings, 4-Jan-1889) Rice retained the property unti
1897 when it was sold to J. H. Horn who continued the rental use. Early tenants include Giles G.
Parnham in 1910 and two years later Ethel Barton, a widow. In 1948 the house was vacant and the
1964 directory shows Ralph W. Barton living here. The Rice House retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 268.0 Survey #74

CHISHOLM-OGG HOUSE 1902¢
142 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 2400
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This small single-story wood-frame dwelling was probably built in 1902 after E. Chisholm purchased
the property. Likely a rental, Chisholm sold the house to George Ogg, a berry grower, in 1906.
Ogg retained ownership through 1918, continuing the rental usage. By 1948 the house was occupied
by Sherman L. Kiser. Although significantly enlarged with a compatible rear addition and thoroughly
renovated in 1997, the Chisholm-Ogg House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period

of development.

1D # 269.0 Survey #75
BLEDSOE, HATTIE HOUSE 1905¢
132 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 2500
Other: Vernacular [Bungalow]| Primary/Contributing

A single-story wood-frame volume, this dwelliril:ﬁ was likely constructed between 1900 and 1905 for
Mrs. Hattie Bledsoe. In March 1910 J. M. Griffin, a miner, purchased the home for $1200 and kept
it as rental. By 1948 the Bledsoe House was occupied by C. C. Campbell. Minimally altered for its
present use as a medical office, the Bledsoe House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic
period of development.
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ID# 270.0 Survey#76

CHURCH OF THE HOLY ROSARY 1889
100 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 2700

Builder: Ayers, C. W,
Other: Vernacular [Gothic] Primary/Contributing

Built in 1889 following a successful fund-raising drive, the Church of the Holy Rosary was built by
contractor C. W. Ayers as the Ashland’s first permanent Catholic church. The Church of the Holy
Rosary was dedicated on September 18, 1890 and remained the focus of the Ashland parish until
1959 when a new building was constructed in the south part of town. By 1964 the Pentecostal
Church of God was located here and continues to hold services in the building. A finely detailed
structure with a well-articulated tower and gothic-arched window detailing, the Church of the Holy
Rosary retains very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development. A
related parish hall [ID 270.1] was completed c197y4 and is located to the east on TL 2600.

1D # 271.0 Survey#77

BADGER, CLARENCE HOUSE 1908¢
107 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 2800
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A fairly rare local example of bearing decorative concrete block construction, the Badger House was
probably built in 1908, shortly after the family purchased the corner site. Thomas Badger, a
member of the family, lived here in 1910 and it later became a rental. Alice Parker lived here in
1948 and by 1964 the house was occupied by Vern O. Ingle, the pastor of the Pentecostal Church
located across Sixth Street. Few so-called “miracle” block structures, a nationally popular building
form during the pre-WWI era, exist in Ashland and the Badger House is one of only two within the
Railroad District.34 The-Badger House retains high integrity and effectively ref’ates its historic
period of development.

ID# 272.0
HELMS-DILLE HOUSE [Duplex] 1900
657 C STREET 391E09AC 2900
Altered Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

The western one and one-half story gable portion of this aggregated volume reportedly dates from
the turn of the century and shows in the 1928 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map of the are with an oddl
shaped rear addition. In 1945 the house was owned by Mollie Reid Hell)ms, probably as a rental.
Helms sold the property to Lavonne and Charles A. Clark in 1948. (JCD 308:61) The couple
continued the rental use, as Edward Mason and Lavonne, under the surname Dille, remained
associated with the property through 1961. Resided, with large picture windows and other non-
compatible alterations, the Helms-Dille House no longer retains sufficient integrity to relate its
historic period of development.

1D # 273.0 Survey #78

VAN HORNE-WELLS HOUSE 1895¢
123 SIXTHST 391E09AC 3000
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A fine single-story wood-frame dwelling in the vernacular I-House form, construction of this house
probably dates from 1895 after Lewis W. Van Horne purchased the property from land agent
George Andrews, although the present structure may incorporate elements of an earlier dwelling.

34 The Ashland Hose Company No. 2 (ID #166.000) and the Potter Rooming House (ID #292.000) are also built of
decorative concrete block. Various landscape elements, such as retaining walls, porch supports and similar, are also
located within the District area.



NPS Form 10-900-A OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section Number: __7 Page: 75 Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District, Ashland, OR

Van Horne sold the house to James F. and Emily Wells in 1902 and they retained ownership until
Emily's death in 1929. No occupant is listed at this address in either the 1948 or 1964 city
directories, possibly indicating rental use. The Van-Horne Wells House retains very high integrity
and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID # 274.0
NORRIS-CLEVENGER HOUSE 1940¢
133 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 3100
Altered Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

The ownership of this small two-story stucco-clad wood-frame dwelling prior to 1940 is uncertain
although it was apparently seized by Jackson County for back taxes. No structure is shown on the
site in the 1928 Sanborn Maps and it was likely built during the ownership of Alfred Norris, a large
area landowner, for rental use. In 1940 Norris sold to Robert C. Pitts who then sold it to Walter C.
Clevenger. (JCD 278:406) Clevenger is listed at the address in 1948 directories and is likely the
first owner-occupant. Of uncertain original appearance but seemingly altered in exterior clacf'ding,
windows, and otRer detail, the Norris Rental House does not retains sufficient integrity to relate its
historic period of development at this time.

ID# 275.0 Survey #80

WISE, HERMAN AND MARJORIE HOUSE 1947¢
153 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 3200
Altered Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

A simple wood-frame gable dwelling, this structure could possibly be one of the many buildings first
constructed for use at U. S. Army cantonment “Camp White” in 1942. After the war, 100s of
structures with design and scale similar to this home were sold at auction and relocated throughout
Oregon. The 1948 directory lists this address as the residence of Herman and Marjorie Wise,
owners of the property. (JCD 315:285) The Wises retained ownership though 1959. By 1964
Jessie V. Corman was the owner and occupant. The Wise House has been substantially modified
with replacement siding, windows and other changes and no longer retains sufficient integrity to
relate its historic period of development.

ID# 276.0 Survey #81

STEPHENSON, G. W. RENTAL HOUSE I 1903¢
155 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 3300
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular dwelling was probably built as a rental property
for area investor George W. Stephenson after he purchased the site in June 1903. Stephenson
retained ownership until 1916, when the house was sold to Mrs. Carrie Riggs. In 1942 SP laborer
Holly R. Lee and his wife Clara were the owners and they retained ownership at least through 1964.
The Stephenson Rental House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of

development.
1D # 277.0 Survey #82
FARRA-MC FARLAND HOUSE 1888
692 B STREET 391E09AC 3400
Builder: Tabor, Mr.
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This large two-story wood-frame vernacular dwelling was built in 1888. “E. L. Farra of Willow
Springs will have a two story cottage built in the railroad addition. Mr. Tabor of Evans Creek, will
do the work.” (Tidings, 14-Sep-1888, 3:4)  Farra sold the house to Albert E. McFarland, a
carpenter, and his wife Abbie in early 1897." After her husband’s death in 1910, Abbie McFarland
retained ownership of the property until 1928. In 1948 the house was occupied by Charles E.
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Roberson. The Farra-McFarland House was substantially renovated in the early 1990s with a major
addition to the rear, construction of a non-historic second-floor projecting bay and the application of
various exterior detailing. While not entirely consistent with the history of the dwelling, the house
does retain sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 278.0 Survey #83

LOOMIS, WILLIAM F. HOUSE 1899
662 B STREET 391E09AC 3500
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne} Primary/Contributing

This large two-story wood-frame dwelling with Queen Anne influenced detailing was built in 1899
for Railroad District grocery owner William F. Loomis and his wife Clara. Loomis, partner in the
prominent 4% Street Loomis and Nelson grocery store, purchased the site in April 1899 and began
construction three months later. “W. F. Loomis is building a $600 residence on B Street on two lots
purchased from William Fox.” (Tidings, 17-July-1899, 3:3) The house was enlarged by the addition
of the second floor sometime between 1911 and 1928, as documented by Sanborn Fire Insurance
Maps, probably post-1920 when the house was sold to Mary A. Courts. 1948 city directories show
the Loomis House as two apartment units, a use which remained at least through 1964. By 1991
the house was in use as seven apartment units according to city directories. While somewhat
modified and adapted for multiple-family usage, the Loomis House retains sufficient integrity to
relate its historic period of development.

1D # 279.0 Survey #84

HARRIS, CARL N. HOUSE 1915¢
660 B STREET 391EWAC 3600
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

The front volume of this finely detailed one and one-half story wood-frame bungalow stﬁle dwelling
was built about 1915 following the purchase of the lots by Carl N. Harris, a Southern Pacific
switchman. The family remained in the house through 1948. In 1964 Jack H. Gruber, of Gruber’s
Shoe Repair, owned the house and lived here with his wife Jessie and their family. Although
somewhat modified by a post-WWII rear two story addition, (post-1983) the Harris House retains
high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development. -

ID # 280.0 Survey #85

KEPLER-ELLIS HOUSE 1890¢
626 B Street |164 Fifth Street] 391E09AC 3700
Other: Vernacular [Bungalow] Primary/Contributing

Construction of this one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular dwelling dates from 1890 and
the purchase of the site by Irwin D. Kepler. Mr. Kepler died in 1893 and his widow Louisa sold the
house to Harmon and Jennie Ellis in 1899. Sometime prior to 1928 a second structure was built at
the south edge of the site. Shown in the 1928 Sanborn Map as a dwelling with a 162 Fifth Street
address, this unit was occupied by Henry B. Jones in 1948 and the main house facing B Street was
occupied l()f’ Charles E. Avery, a car inspector for the railroad. Earl R. Avery, presumably a son,
owned and occupied the house in 1964.35 The Kepler-Ellis House retains ﬁigh integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

35 The Kepler-Ellis House has been identified at various times as both 626 B Street and 164 Fifth Street.
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ID# 281.0 Survey#86

MELLUS, RICHARD HOUSE 1888
156 FIFTHST 391E09AC 3800

Builder: Plumerth, J.C.
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This large two-story wood-frame vernacular ell was built in two phases, beginning in 1888 when the
land was purchasegby Richard and Anne Melius. The couple retained contractor J. C. Plumerth to
built the residence and barn for $1200, according to the local paper. (Tidings, 4-Jan-1889) Melius
was an engineer for the Southern Pacific and Anne owned and operated the Delmonico Hotel, near
the Depot. The 1890 E. L. Moore birdseye view of Ashland shows the original two-story I-House
portion of the Melius House. This was augmented sometime around 1900 with the construction of
the front-facing gable wing, transforming the house into its present ell configuration. Anne Melius
sold the house in 1903 to Richard Roberts, whose family remained here into the late 1930s.
Thomas L. Aldrich lived here in 1948 and by 1964 the house was owned and occupied by Mrs. Anna
Keil. The Melius House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 282.0 Survey #87

BANKS, JOHN HOUSE 1888
132 FIFTH ST : 391E09AC 3900
Other: Vernacular [Eclectic] Primary/Contributing

This rather eclectic one and one-half story vernacular dwelling was built in 1888 following purchase
of the lots by John and Mary Banks. Shortly afterward, the Ashland Tidings reported that
construction of a new dwelling had been started on the site as well as a small rental cottage, for a
total cost of $1100. The Banks family retained ownership through 1918. In 1948 C. C. Campbell is
listed at this address and Gene W. SKelton, and crew chief for the U. S. Forest Service, owned and
occupied the house with his wife Lois in 1964. While fpossibly modified in detail, the Banks House

retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID # 283.0
LYN APARTMENTS 1965
108 FIFTH ST 391E09AC 4000
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This multiple unit single story apartment complex was constructed in 1965.

ID # 284.0 Survey #89

MC GINNIS, LUKE RENTAL HOUSE 1 1902
107 FIFTH ST 391E09AC 4100
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame bungalow-style dwelling was built in 1902 for Luke
McGinnis, just prior to his division of the corner parcel into two. This structure was constructed on
the eastern 89 feet and then sold to D. G. Tibbets in January 1904. Long used as a rental, by 1964
the house was owned and occupied by William M. and Blanche Harper. The McGinnis Rental I
retains very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID # 285.0 Survey #90

MC GINNIS, LUKE RENTAL HOUSE II 1900
561 C STREET J91E09AC 4200
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A single story wood-frame vernacular [-House, this structure was probably built in 1900 after the lot
was purchased by Luke McGinnis, and was apparently used as a rental. In 1902 McGinnis divided
the lot into two parcels and then sold the eastern portion of the property to H. Pohland. At the
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time the Ashland Tidings reported “Luke McGinnis has begun construction. of another tenement
cottage on Fifth Street.” (Tidings, 8-Sep-1902, 3:3, emphasis added, see ID 284.00, above) This
dwelling, built on the western 53 feet of the lots, was owned and occupied by Clyde and Lucille
Lacy and their children as early as 1942. Lacy, an employee of the Southern Pacific, remained here
at least through 1964. Although somewhat modified with applied asbestos siding and other changes,
the McGinnis Rental House retains sufficient integrity to relgte its historic period of development.

ID# 286.0 Survey #91

BAER, VICTORIA HOUSE 1902¢
129 FIFTH ST 391E09AC 4300
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A large one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular dwelling, construction probably dates from
shortly after the lots were purchased by Victoria Baer in August 1902. Baer, who had lived on Third
Street beginning in 1888, was a widow and apparently built this house for her own occupancy.
Remarrieci she sold the home in 1910 to Jennie Perrine, whose family long operated a popular
department store in Ashland. Kenneth Perrine, probably a son or grandson, lived in the house
according to 1948 city directories. By 1964 the house was owned and occupied by Mrs. Bessie L.
Buchannan. Originally similar in plan to the house buiit for Mrs. Baer’s son Edward to the north, the
Victoria Baer House was augmentéd with a compatible addition to the south sometime after 1928.
Despite this modification, the Baer House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of
development.

1D # 287.0 Survey #92

BAER, EDWARD HOUSE 1902
137 FIFTH ST 391E09AC 4400
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

Built in 1902 after Edward Baer purchased this lot from the ubiquitous George Andrews,
construction of this wood-frame one and one-half story vernacular I-House was reported in the
Ashland Tidings. “A new cottage was started of Fifth Street for Mrs. E. Baer.” Built in similar
design to his mother’s house to tie south, Baer and his wife sold the house to H. L. White in 1907.
White apparently maintained the property as a rental, with later tenants including Elber Bush, a
railroad engineer and, by 1912, James and Adelaide Nesbitt. In 1948 the house was occupied by
John P. Cherney. The Baer House retains very high integrity and effectively relates its ﬁjstoric
period of development.

ID# 288.0 Survey #93

TAYLOR, JOHN HOUSE 1908
155 FIFTH ST 391E09AC 4500

Builder: Taylor, John
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

This fine wood-frame single story vernacular cottage was built in 1908 following the purchase of the
property by John Taylor, an area carpenter. Taylor is shown living in the house in the 1910
directory but sold the property later that year. In 1948 the Taylor House was occupied by Dale Lee
and LeRoy Fox. John Boﬁn a retiree, owned and occupied the house with his wife Anna in 1964,
The Taylor House, notable for its finely detailed trim and central dormer, retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.
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ID # 289.0 Survey 94

WOLFE, JULIUS P. HOUSE 1910
586 B STREET 391E09AC 4600
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

The original dwelling on this prominent corner site was burned in 1905 and following 2 series of
property transfers, the lots were purchased by Julius P. and Mamie Wolfe in 1909. Construction of
this large two-story wood-frame dwelling began shortly thereafter. Julius Wolfe, manager of the
Southern Pacific’s Depot Hotel, was an important figure in the Railroad District. His wife Mamie
retained ownership and remained in the home until her death in July 1955. Owned by Floyd
Babcock in 1964, the Wolfe House was used for rental purposes prior to the 1990s when it was
completely gutted and rehabilitated for use as a women'’s crisis shelter. The property is now the site
of the Wolfe House Bed and Breakfast and though much of the original materials were lost in the
mid-1990s rehabilitation, the house retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of

development.

ID# 290.0 Survey #95
WHITE, HENRY RENTAL HOUSE 1900¢
556 B STREET 391EQ09AC 4700
Other: Vernacular |Queen Anne| Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular 1-House was probably built around 1900 as a
rental for Henry L. White, a farmer who lived elsewhere in Ashlanct3 White, who had purchased the
lot in 1890, sold the house to Annabel Fox for $1200 in 1902. By 1914 Jesse and Jane Morgan had
acquired the pr(()iperty and remained here until 1937. In 1948 A. Ross and Mary Harden were living
here with their daughters and after her husband’s death Mary Harden remained here as late as 1964.
Retainin§ substantial detail and integrity, the White Rental House effectively relates its historic

period of development.

1D # 291.0 Survey #96
WINKLER, WALTER RENTAL HOUSE 1915¢
544 B STREET 391E09AC 4800
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

The exact history of this two-story wood-frame building in the Craftsman Bungalow style is unclear
however it appears to have been constructed or moved to this site around 1915 and is in place at this
site according to Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps of 1928. SP conductor Walter Winkler, who lived
around the corner on 4™ Street, purchased the property for rental use in 1930 and retained
ownership for some 30 years. Howard Davis and George Hess are listed at the address in the 1948
directory. Hess, who also worked as a conductor for the railroad had lived elsewhere in the District
as early as 1942. In 1964 the house was rented by Mrs. Myrtle Hoveland, a clerk at Perrine’s
Department Store, and Mrs. Elizabeth M. Tucker, a retiree. Although the Winkler Rental House
has modest alterations that hide its front porch and disrupt its historic character, the house retains
high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 292.0 Survey #88

POTTER ROOMING HOUSE 1911
160 FOURTH ST 391E09AC 4900

Builder: Potter, Samuel A
Other: Vernacular [Commercial] Primary/Contributing

A large apartment house, this two-story bearing masonry structure was built in 1911 by Samuel A.
Potter, a concrete contractor, who established it as the Potter Rooming House with Hugh Cole as
the proprietor. Originally the home laundry was located in one of the two first floor storefronts
with rooms for rent above. Potter sold the building to Belle Butcher in 1916 and the storefront uses
were abandoned in favor of additional apartments sometime between 1928 and 1948, when the city
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directory showed the building as “The LeRay Apartments” with at least 18 units. A small single-
story concrete addition to the south post-dates 1928, according to available Sanborn Fire Insurance
Maps. Built of hollow-core concrete block, the Potter Rooming House is an important visual
element in the Railroad District and remains one of the best examples of a pre-WWI multiple-family
housing uses in the area. While somewhat modified on its first floor, the Potter Rooming House
retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID # 293.0 Survey #98

VEGHTE, CHARLES HOUSE 1898
144 FOURTH ST 391E09AC 5000

Builder: Veghte, Charles
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular ell was built in 1898 after noted Ashland
contractor Charles H. Veghte and his wife Ida purchased the earlier building on the site from
William Slaughter. That earlier volume, apparently forming the southern wing of the present
building, was substantially remodeled and enlgrged it to the present configuration by Veghte for his
own occupancy. At the time the Ashland Tidings noted “C. H. Veghte is making an addition to his
home on 4% Street....[it will be] almost a new house.” (Tidings, 17-Oct-1898, 3:2)36 The Veghtes
sold the property in 1902. e Veghte House retains high integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.

ID# 294.0 Survey #99

WOODEN, WILLIAM HOUSE 1901
130 FOURTH ST 391E09AC 5100
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] " Primary/Contributing

A small hipped-roof vernacular cottage, this wood-frame dwelling was built in 1900 as one of two
cottages erected for William Wooden, an SP car inspector, and his wife Alice at a total cost of
$1600. (Tidings, 7-Jan-1901) The couple retained ownership of the house until 1906 when it was
sold to M. S. Parker. In 1948 the Wooden House was occupied by Joe Champion and in 1964 the
city directory lists Leroy Thompson as the owner and occupant. While modified with applied
plywood siding, the Wooden House retains its original volume and the majority of its decorate trim
to sufficiently relate its historic period of development.

ID # 296.037 Survey #97

MC FARLAND, ALBERT E. RENTAL HOUSE 1912¢
162 FOURTH ST J9NEMAC 4803

Builder: McFarland, Albert E. [Attrib.]
Other: Vernacular |Cottage] Primary/Contributing

This single story wood-frame vernacular cottage was apparently built by local contractor Albert
McFarland as a rental. McFarland had purchased the property much earlier but Sanborn Maps
indicate the structure to have been constructed after 1911. McFarland, who lived on B Street,
retained this house until 1932 when it was foreclosed upon by Jackson County. Subsequently, SP
conductor William Winkler lived here with his wife Carrie and maintained a rental property around
the corner. T&See ID #291.0) By 1964 the house was occupied by rented by Henry and Elsie
girosslman. e McFarland House retains high integrity and ef&ctive y relates its historic period of
evelopment.

36 The E. L. Moore birdseye view from 1890 shows the earlier gable volume, without the northern ell, on this site.

37 During review Site #295 (TL 5200) was combined with TL 295.000, to coincide with the on-going redrafting and
combination of these two lots by the Jackson County Assessor.
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ID# 297.0
APARTMENT COMPLEX 1964
525 C STREET/ 120 FOURTH ST 391E09AC 5200/5201
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This single-story wood and stucco apartment complex was constructed circa 1964 following the
removal of an earlier residence on this site. With two individual volumes, each with approximately
5 units, this site 1D number refers to a number of individual address on both C and Fourth Streets.

ID # 298.0
ASHLAND 7™ DAY ADVENTIST CHURCH 1910c
84 FOURTH ST 391EQ9AC 5300
ALTERED Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

The north portion of this structure is the early wood-framed “Adventist Church” extant on this
corner as early as 1910 and remaining the home of the congregation at least through the WWII era.
By 1964 the building was in use as the home of the Ashland Mortuary and it is uncertain when the
extended gable wing to the south was construction although it clearly post-dates 1928 according to
available Sanborn Maps.38 In the late 1970s the building is listed under the address “90 Fourth
Street” as the annex of the Church of the Nazarene, whose main building was located on the
opposite corner and that use remained at least through 1986. Ashland’s Waldorf School occupied
the site by 1991 and in 1996 the present use as the office of Headwaters, an environmental
organization began. While incorporating a very early religious building with a long tradition on this
corner in the Railroad District subsequent additions and alterations have diminished the integrity of
the Adventist Church and it no longer relates its historic period of development.

ID# 299.0 Survey #100

PORTER, FRANK J. HOUSE 1917¢
548 C STREET 391E09AC 5400
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This one-story wood-frame bungalow was probably built for Frank J. Porter, a brakeman for the
Southern Pacific a short time after this southern portion of lots 1-3 were split and sold by the
Southern Oregon Conference of Seventh Day Adventists whose church was located on the corner.
Axel Dyrud, a conductor with the railroad, purchased the property in 1919 and kept it until 1937.
Sometime after 1928 the Porter House was enlarged with a shed-roof extension to the east,
probably originally a garage that replaced the earlier separate structure that stood at the south
property line. Despite this incompatible addition, the Porter House retains sufficient integrity to
relate its historic period of development.

ID # 300.0 Survey #101

SCHULTZ, A. F. HOUSE 11 1891c
78 FOURTH ST 39IE09AC 5600
Other: Vernacular [Gothic Revival| Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular dwelling with Gothic Revival characteristics was
built circa 1891 after the lot was purchased by A. Frederick Schultz, although it is not clear if
Schultz himself lived here or rented the property out. Schultz was locally prominent and had lived
in Ashland since 1888. He occupied another residence on Main Street, and in 1895 purchased the
Ashland Depot Hotel. He sold tEis house in 1900 for $1000 and by 1906 it was owned by Charles
W. Fraley, who retained ownership through 1923. In 1948 both Mrs. Elisabeth Smith and James

38 It is possible that that the front -facing gable wing that forms the southern portion of the present structure
incorporates an 1928 or earlier dwelling that was addressed as 84 Fourth Street although this has not been
thoroughly investigated.
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Covert are listed at this address, indicating rental use. The 1964 directory shows the house as
owned and occupied by Charles M. Jackson, a roofer, and his wife Lola. The Schultz House retains
very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 301.0
HASKINS, SARAH J. HOUSE N 1945
70 FOURTH ST 391E09AC 5700
Other: Vernacular [Ranch] Secondary/Contributing

This small wood-frame cottage was probably built around the time the land was purchased blil Sarah
J. Haskins in 1945. (JCD 261:512) Haskins lived here into the 1950s and Sadie and William J.
Chipman purchased the house following a Circuit Court Journal transaction in 1956. It is possible
that the original dwelling consisted of one or two of the present three gabled steps that form this

building, although all three portions of the building are of similar and historically appropriate
materiagls. The Haskins House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period o
development.

ID# 302.0
DWYER, JOHN HOUSE 1988
64 FOURTH ST 391E09AC 5800
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This single-story wood-frame dwelling was built in 1988. No building is identified on this parcel in
the 1928 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map.

ID# 303.0
CARTER PROPERTY/SMALL RENTAL HOUSE 1974
58 FOURTH ST 391E09AC 5900
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

On property owned by Ima E. Carter from 1946 to 1980, this small single story wood frame volume
was built in 1974 and originally used as rental. (JCD 274:411) Pearl S. Stafford lived here in 1977.

ID # 304.0
DAVIS-AINSWORTH LAW OFFICE BUILDING 1975
521 MAINST E 391E09AC 6000
Modern Period: Commercial Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

The larger dwelling that stood on this corner in 1928 was apparently remodeled for use as “Hawley's
Corner Grocery” by 1948. The present office complex was built on the site following demolition of
the earlier structure in 1975.

ID# 305.0 Survey #102

CALLAHAN-MANSFIELD HOUSE 1928¢
549 MAINST E 391E09AC 6100
Other: Vernacular Secondary/Contributing

This sinFle-story wood-frame dwelling appears in the 1928 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map of Ashland
when all of Block Q was owned by John E. Callahan. In 1929 Callahan sold his entire xiwlding toJ.
M. Searing. (JCD 152:25) Searing’s estate sold the house to Mattie A. Hatcher in 1936. (JCD
238:8) and following a series of transfers the property was again sold to Alva E. Mansfield, SP
fireman, and his wite Beulah, who occupied the house at least through 1964. (JCD 248:134)
Although modified with the application of exterior cladding, an altered front porch, and in poor
gondlition, the Callahan-Mansfield House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of
evelopment.
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ID # 306.0 Survey #103

WILSON-BYRD HOUSE 1922
555 MAINST E 39IE09AC 6200
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A well-detailed single-story wood frame bungalow, this dwelling was built circa 1922 and is shown in
the 1928 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map of the area. Owned by L. F. Wilson, it was apparently in
rental use in 1948 when Christina Simpson was living here. Mrs. Ada N. Byrd purchased the house
in 1951 and remained here from many years. (JCD 352:330). The Wilson-Byrd retains very high
integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development

ID# 307.0 Survey #104

VAN SANT-BRYANT HOUSE 1901c
573 MAINST E 391E09AC 6300
Other: Vernacular |Queen Anne] Primary/Contributing

A large two-story wood-frame vernacular dwelling, this house was probably built as a rental shortly
after prominent businessman and real estate speculator James K. Van Sant purchased the lots in
1901. In 1904 Van Sant sold the house to P. E. Pettyman who sold to John Pernan in 1909. Pernan
lived here a short time before selling the house to Charles J. and Anna Bryant. Bryant, a mine
superintendent, lived here until March 1915. By 1948 the house was in rental use, with five
individual apartments listed at the address. Mrs. Cathleen McLean, a widow, was the owner and
occupant in 1964. While somewhat modified, particular by the application of asbestos siding and

the non-compatible E;cture window of the facade, the Van Sant-Bryant House retains sufficient
integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID # 308.0 Survey #105

HUBBARD-HARDY HOUSE 1889¢
581 MAINST E : 391E09AC 6400
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular structure with a prominent wrap-around front
porch, was built sometime after the lots were purchased by Lydia Hubbard in October 1888. While
note entirely clear, it seems to appear on the E. L. Moore birdseye view of Ashland published in
1890. Hubbard sold the property in 1893 and after a series of transactions it was purchased by
William and Fanny Hardy in 1908, who lived here according to the 1910 Polk Directory. Fanny
Hardy sold the house in 1920, presumably after William’s death. In 1948 the house was apparently
in rental use, with two tenants listed and by 1964 it was rented by Ernest H. Fuller. Now converted
to professional office use, an incompatible shed dormer is present on the west elevation, but
otherwise the Hubbard-Hardy House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period
of development.

ID # 309.0 Survey #106

PALETHORPE, GEORGE HOUSE 1888
585 MAINST E 391E09AC 6500
Other: Vernacular [Transitional] Primary/Contributing

A fine example of a vernacular or “transitional box” construction, the two-story wood-frame
Palethorpe House was built in 1888. “G. H. Palethorpe has the kitchen up on his new house on
Main and foundation is laid.” (Tidings, 12-Oct-1888) The house complete by year’s end at total cost
of $1600. Palethorpe, who operated a restaurant in the Railroad Addition, apparently lived here
until 1903 and then, after a series of transactions, the house was purchased by Henry Andrews in
1910, who used it as a rental. Leonard G. Wirz, a lumberman, lived here in 1948 and in 1964 the
house was owned and occupied b{ Mt. Bertha E. Sargent. Somewhat rundown the Palethorpe was
completely renovated in the early 1990s and retains very high integrity to effectively relate its
historic period of development.
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1D # 310.0 Survey #107

GANIARD, SARAH RENTAL HOUSE 1902¢
41 FIFTH ST . 391E09AC 6600
Other: Vernacular |Cottage] Primary/Ceontributing

A small one-story wood-frame vernacular cottage, this hipped roof dwelling was built in 1902 after
Sarah Ganiard acquired title from her mother, who had Euilt a home next door in 1900. Ganiard,
widow of Judson Ganiard (Oscar Ganiard’s brother) apparently used the house as a rental. In 1915
G. W. McNabb, an SP boilermaker, purchased both this property and Ganiard’s mother’s house.
Sanborn Maps show the two parcels had been divided by 1928. The 1948 city directory shows
Harold J. and Jacqueline Bibea living here. The Ganiard Rental House retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID # 311.0 Survey #108

O'DONOGHUE, LAURA HOUSE 1900
47 FIFTH ST 391E09AC 6700
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This one-story wood-frame dwelling in the simple bungalow style was built in 1900, shortly after the
lots were purchased by Mrs. Laura O’'Donoghue. At the time the Ashland Tidings reported
“...construction of a neat cottage on 5% Street in the Railroad Addition for Mrs. O’Donoghue is
almost completed.” Mrs. O'Donoghue’s daughter, Sarah Ganiard, built a rental to the south, on
land that was originally associated with this dwelling. (See ID #312) Laura O’Donoghue died in
1910 and her estate sold this house to George McNabb in 1915. Effie Galbraith lived here in 1948
according to city directories and by 1964 the house was owned and occupied by Bernard Morrow.
Sometime after 1988 the front porch of the O’'Donoghue House was rebuilt with the early paired,
lattice-like, porch supports replaced with the present 4x4s. The original wood-skirted foundation
was likely replaced at the same time. The O’Donoghue House retains sufficient integrity to relate
its historic period of development.

ID# 312.0 Survey #109

CROCKER, MERTON HOUSE 1900
57 FIFTH ST 391E09AC 6800
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne] Primary/Contributing

A fine one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular structure with both Queen Anne and Gothic
stylistic influences, the Merton Crocker House was built in early 1900, shortly after Crocker and his
wife Mattie purchased the site. “M. V. Crocker’s new residence near the Cat%olic Church is nearing
completion.” (Tidings, 11-Jun-1900) Crocker work as engineer for the Southern Pacific. After
moving to East Main Street, the couple sold this house in 1904 and it was rented to Guy C. Jacobs,
a railroad clerk. In1948 E. A. Myers lived at this address and in 1964 the house was rented by
Alden C. Joy. In 1988 the rear portion of this site was divided for construction of another dwelling,
reducing the lot traditionally associated with Crocker House. The Merton Crocker House retains
very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 313.0
JAMISON, HAROLD & MARJORIE HOUSE 1988
60 GOLDEN SPIKE WAY 391E09AC 6801
Builder: Taylor Made Builders
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

This one and one-half story wood-frame dwelling was built in 1988 on the rear portion of the lot
long associated with the Merton Crocker House. Developed by Raymond and Sandra Spaulding this
dwelling is not historic but remains generally compatible in volume and mass with the character of
this portion of the Railroad District.
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ID# 314.0 Survey #110

FLAGG, W. H. HOUSE 911c
77 FIFTHST 391E09AC 6900
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A one story woof-frame bungalow, this house dates from about 1911 following the transfer of the
lots to W. H. Flagg who either razed or substantially remodeled an earlier 1902¢ structure built on
this site for Mr. and Mrs. Harley Fox. Flagg, a plumber, retained ownership through 1920. As early
as 1942 the house was occupied by Roy Nye, who worked at Camp White, and his wife Laurene.
The couple owned and occupied the house at least through 1964. The Flagg House retains very high
integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 315.0 Survey#111

KING-MATHES RENTAL HOUSE 1908¢
582 C STREET 391E09AC 7000
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A small, one-story wood-frame vernacular dwelling, this structure was probably built for Burton E.
King in 1908. King, an SP fireman, owned and occupied the house on the east portion of the lot (ID
# 316.0) and apparently kept this house as rental. In 1909 the entire parcel was sold to H. G.
Mathes, who continued to rent out this building. In 1922 Mathes sold this western portion and its
dwelling to J. E. Callahan. Mrs. Ramona Anderson is listed at the site in 1948 city directories and by
1964 the house was rented by Wm. L. Ryberg. Though clad with asbestos shingle siding, the King-
Mathes Rental House retains i,\igh integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 316.0 Survey #112

KING, BURTON F. HOUSE 1908¢
586 C STREET 391E09AC 7100
Other: Vernacular [Cottage} Primary/Contributing

A fine wood-frame hipped-roof vernacular cottage, this single-story dwelling was probably built
shortly after August 1908, when the lots were purchased by railroad brakeman Burton F. King. King
sold the house and its associated rental unit (see ID #315.0) to H. G. Mathes in 1909, who
apparently converted this house to rental use as well. Myrtle Helms was living here in 1912,
according to Polk’s Jackson County Directory. By 1948, the King House was occupied by George E.
Miller and in 1964 the house was owned and occupied by George W. Van Buskirk and his wife
Marie. The King House retains very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of

development.

ID# 317.0 Survey #113
MILLER-VAN VACTOR HOUSE 1899¢
90 FIFTH ST ‘ 391E09AC 7200
Other: Vernacular [Italianate] Primary/Contributing

like front porch roof and shingle detailing. Built in early 1899 after the property was purchased by
Elva and Eva Miller, the house was sold in 1904 to William E. Van Vactor, an SP engineer. At the
time the Ashland Tidings noted “W. E. Van Vactor has bought of Eva and Elva Miller the residence
property at 5* and C for $1000.” (Tidings, 19-Jun-1905, 2:3) Van Vactor retained ownership until
1920. In 1948 Mrs. June Carmean was living here, probably as a tenant. Robert W. Troutman, a
sheetmetal worker, and his wife Mary, rented the property in 1964. The estate of George Van
Buskirk (see #316.0) sold the property to William Emerson in 1978, who retains ownership at this
writing. The Miller-Van Vactor House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic
period of development.

This well-detailed truncated }éilpped-roof cotta%e in the vernacular form is notable for its mansard-
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ID# 318.0 Survey#1i4

EASLICK, WILLIAM RENTAL HOUSE 1903¢
72 FIFTH ST 391E09AC 7300
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

A one-story wood-framed vernacular cottage, this house was built shortly after the land was

urchased by W. W. Eastlick and his new bride, the former Mary Rose. The couple, who lived at 77
gixth Street, kept this house as a rental until 1906, when it was purchased by Cushman
Cunningham. Various railroad employees rented the house in the early years of the 20% century. By
1942 Ecglith Newcomb was living here, remained at least through 1964. While the construction of a
non-compatible multiple-family unit along the rear of the lot ias impinged upon the setting of the
Eastlick House, the original volume retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of
development

A second major structure on this tax lot, a multiple-family apartment unit, is under joint ownership
with the Eastlick House and designed as ID # 318.1. This resource is considered “Non-
Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing”

ID# 319.0 Survey #115

SENSENY-MC GINNIS HOUSE 1900
60 FIFTH ST 391E09AC 7400

Builder: Senseny, Ben
Other: Vernacular {Queen Anne] Primary/Contributing

This large single story wood-frame vernacular dwelling with Queen Anne influenced detailing was
begun in 1900 by area contractor Ben Senseny, originally for his own occupancy. For unknown
reasons, Senseny sold the property in mid-construction. “Ben Senseny has sold his house in the
Railroad Addition to Luke McGinnis for $800. The house is just partially complete and McGinnis
will finish it and rent it out.” (Tidings, 2-Jul-1900, 3:3) McGinnis, who had other Railroad District
property, only retained the building a short time.% In 1908 SP engineer Roy S. Hale and his wife
Mary E{la purchased the house. Mary Ella remained here after Roy’'s death, and finally sold the
property in 1943. Henry Lorenz lived at this address in 1948 and Cecil T. Cleary rented the house
according to 1964 directories. While somewhat altered, particularly by the recent application of a
een standing seam metal roof, the Senseny-McGinnis still retains sufficient integrity to relate its
istoric period of development.

ID# 320.0
FAITH TEMPLE 1928¢
48 FIFTH ST (625 East Main) 391E09AC 7600
Altered Histori¢/Non-Contributing in Current Condition

The present rectangular wood-volume incorporates elements of the church structure that has been
located on this corner since at least 1928, as shown in Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps, and was for
many years used as the Faith Temple, under the direction of Rev. Leo Wine. By 1966 the present
church organization had located here under the Ashland Foursquare Church name. The Faith
Temple was resided and modernized in the 1980s and, while somewhat compatible in volume and
continuation of use, no longer retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

In 1988 the Ashland Foursquare Church purchased an adjacent property and after demolishing the
older structure on that site built a “Fellowship Hall” in 1994. Jay Corster served as the contractor
and Roger Kauble, a local engineer, was responsible for the plan. This latter structure, a wood-frame

39 See 1D #284.000 and 285.000 for other properties associated with Luke McGinnis.
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single story volume in a modest bungalow style, is identZied as ID 320.100 and considered a
“Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing” feature. (Ashland Building Permit# 9412016)

ID# 321.0 Survey#116

SHULTZ, A. F. HOUSE 1 1888¢
637 MAINST E 391E09AC 7700
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A simple one-story wood-frame cottage, construction of this structure apparently dates from 1888
when the Ashlanfiy Tidings reported “...a neat residence for A. F Shultz was begun this week...on
Main Street.” (Tidings, 7-Oct-1888) Shultz, part owner of the Ashland Depot Hotel, sold the
property to Arthur F. Hunt in 1899. Mr. Hunt, a stockraiser, keep the house until 1909 and from
1910 until 1942 the house occupied by the Thomas Cox Family. The house was used as a rental,
with three tenants, by 1948. Joe A. Millard owned and occupied the home in 1964. There is some
indication that Shultz’s 1888 home was either remodeled or replaced by the present structure circa
1895, during Schultz’s ownership. In either instance the house retains high integrity and effectively
relates its historic period of devefo;:ment.

ID# 322.0 Survey#117

MORRIS, J. W, B, & CYNTHIA HOUSE 1900¢
649 MAINST E 391E09AC 7800
Other: Vernacular |Cottage| Primary/Contributing

This wood frame gable volume was built circa 1900 and shows with the added north wing in the
1928 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map in essentially the same footprint as now. The original owner was
John W. B. Morris who in 1910 transferred the house to his wife Cynthia after his sentencing to a
prison term. (JCD 75:184) By 1940 Lenna B. Spindler owned the property and later was joined on
the title by Raymond D. Abel. (JCD 226:327) While the original g‘ont porch of the Morris House
has been incompatibly enclosed with large glass panels, the house otherwise remains fairly intact and
retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 323.0 Survey #118

MORRIS, J. W, B. RENTAL 1902¢
665 MAIN ST E 391EQ9AC 7900
Other: Vernacular [Cottage| Primary/Contributing

This one-story hipped-roof cottage was built as a rental for John W. B. Morris, who lived with his
family next door. The Morris Famnily retained ownership until 1910 when John's wife Cynthia sold
the home after her husband had been sentenced to a prison term. Used as a rental, the house was
occupied by Frederick E. Walters, a fireman with the Southern Pacific. In 1942 the Morris Rental
was occupied by Noel E. Taylor, also a fireman with the railroad, and his wife Iva. The Taylors
remained at this address into the 1970s. The Morris Rental House retains very high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 324.0 Survey #119

LONG, ELIZA RENTAL HOUSE 1909¢
675 MAINST E 391E09AC 8000
Other: Vernacular |Cottage] Primary/Contributing

A fine single-story hipped-roof cottage, this structure was built around 1909 as a rental for Mrs.
Eliza Long. In 1910 she sold the property to Henry Andrews who owned and rented the house until
1920. By 1948 the house was occupied by Rodney Merriman and the 1964 city directory shows the
house as vacant. The shed roof addition at the NE rear was built by 1910. "Anna Stockstill lived
here in 1948 and retirees Louis H. and Anna Pankey owned and occupied the house in 1964. The
Long House retain sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.
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ID# 325.0 Survey #120

SLINGERLAND, GILBERT R. RENTAL HOUSE : 1909¢
685 MAIN ST E 391E09AC 8100
Other: Vernacular . Secondary/Contributing

This one story wood-frame dwelling was apparently built in 1909 after the site was purchased by
Gilbert R.. Slingerland in November 1908. Slingerland, an employee of the Carson-Smith Lumber
Company, retained the house until July 1910 when he sold to Henry Andrews, who had also
purchased the house at 675 E Main. Andrews kept the property as a rental until 1915. By 1948
Lambert Bartlett was living here and in 1964 the house was owned and occupied by Mrs. Olive
Spencer. The Slingerland House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of

development.

ID# 326.0 Survey #121
LUCAS, ROBERT AND RUTH HOUSE 1897
59 SIXTHST 391E09AC 8200
Eclectic Styles: Queen Anne Primary/Contributing [NR-Listed]

This fine two and one-half story wood-frame building was constructed in 1897 for Robert and Ruth
Lucas, who may have lived in the small house on the east property line (still standing) during
construction. In 1899 the house was sold to Sumner Parker, for whom Ashland’s local airport is
named. Parker, a local rancher, lived here until his death and his widow Alice remained in the house
until 1948. The Robert and Ruth Lucas House (also known as the Lucas-Parker House) and its
nearly identical neighbor were jointly listed on the National Register of Historic Places in 1987.

ID# 327.0 Survey #122

ROSE, MARY E. HOUSE . ' 1897
77 SIXTH ST 391EQ09AC 8300
Eclectic Styles: Queen Anne Primary/Contributing |NR-Listed]

This two and one-half story wood-frame building was built in 1897 under the ownership of F. D.
Robbins who sold it upon completion to Mary E. Rose. “Mrs. M.E. Rose has purchased the new
house near Holy Rosary Church from F. D. Robbins.” (Tidings, 25-Oct-1897, 3:2) In 1923 after
Mary’s death, her son Karl acquired the house and remained here until 1943. The Mary E. Rose
House and its nearly identical neighbor were jointly listed on the National Register in 1987

ID# 328.0 ‘
OLSON DUPLEX 1970
670 C STREET 39IEQ9AC 8400
Builder: Olson, Wallace
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Noa-Contributing

This single story wood-frame duplex was constructed in 1970. Built with mixed T-111 wood,
horizontal wood, and brick exterior surfaces, it is not consistent with the traditional development
pattern of the Railroad District.

ID# 329.0 Survey #123

MONROE, GEORGE HOUSE 1912
90 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 8500
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

Construction of this single-story wood-frame bungalow began in 1912 after SPacific foreman George
Monroe purchased the land from Howard Rose. Monroe lived here until 1920 when he and his wife
sold the property to William Stanford. By 1948 William Parker was living here and in 1964 the
Willis Scott owned and occupied the house. Although re-sided in the 1990s, the Munroe House
retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.
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ID# 330.0 Survey#124

ROSE BROTHERS RENTAL HOUSE 1912¢
78 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 8600
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This fine one-story wood-frame bungalow dwelling with traditional bungalow front porch and
window detailing was built in 1912 as a rental for Charles and Howard Rose, prominent Ashland
businessmen and owners of “Rose Brothers Confectionery.” The Rose brothers retained ownership
until 1922 when the house was sold to Isaac Meese. In 1948 the house was occupied by Charles A.
Smith. Floyd Grimes rented the property in 1964. The Rose Brothers Rental House retains high
integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 331.0 Survey #125

LUDLOW_STEVENS HOUSE 1909
746 C STREET 391E09AC 8700
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A single-story vernacular ell, this wood-frame house was built in 1910 after the lots were purchased
by E. L. Ludlow. “E. L. Ludow has bought four lots....near the Catholic Church from P. O. Smith,
which he plans to considerably improve.” (Tidings, 6-Dec-1909) Just a few weeks later the paper
reported that Ludlow was already underway. In July 1911 Bertrand R. Stevens, a teacher,
purchased the property and the family retained ownership until 1930. The Ludlow-Stevens House
retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 332.0 Survey#126

BRYANT-TURNER HOUSE [Modified} 1990¢
774 C STREET 391E09AC 8800
Other: Vernacular Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

The social history of this mixed one and one-haif to two story wood-frame dwelling is unclear.
Dated at 1905 by the County Assessor, the one and one-half story gable portion shows in 1928
Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps when the house was owned by Grover N. and Mary Bryant. A series
of transfers throughout this period involving the Bryants and Ruth Turner left the ownership unclear
until 1944 when the Bryants assume full control and retain ownership through the earg 1980s.
(JCD 254:605) No owner prior to the early 1920s was located. In the 1990s the two-story gable
wing was constructed, yielding the present ell footprint and the building was rehabilitated with the
new full-with front porch.*0 While generally compatible and incorporating at least some elements of
the original dwelling, this structure is essentially as built in the 1990s and is accordingly considered a
compatible, non-historic, feature within the Railroad District.

ID# 333.0 Survey #127

POLEY, W. M. RENTAL HOUSE 1903c¢
89 SEVENTH ST 391E09AC 8900
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

This one-story vernacular cottage was built as a rental in 1903. “Mrs. Wilmer M. Poley has bought
Lots 1 and 2 in Block S at the corner of 7" of C Streets.” (E‘Jidings, 26-Feb-1903, 2:5) Poley, wife a
Erominent druggist who lived elsewhere in Ashland, kept this as a rental until 1914.41 In 1948 the

ouse was occupied by Mrs. Della Perry and in 1964 the house was owned by Mrs. Lila Tucker, who

40 Although built recently, no information on the permit or the contractor for this addition and remodel was located in
the “C Street” file at the City of Ashland Building Department.

41 The Poley’s own house, at 64 Gresham, outside the district, was designed by prominent Rogue Valley architect Frank
Chamberlain Clark.
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moved sometime prior to 1977. The Poley House retains high integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.

ID# 334.0
PNB/US WEST SWITCHING BUILDING 1959%¢
50 SIXTH ST 391E09AC 9000

Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

Vacant as late as 1928, this corner site was purchased by Pacific Northwest Bell in 1959 and the
present single-story masonry building was erected as a switching and operations facility. (JCD
480:235)

ID# 335.0 Survey #60

WILSON, MERRITT AND NANCY HOUSE 1905¢
767 MAIN ST E 391E09AC 9300
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne| Primary/Contributing

Construction of this one and one-half story wood-frame dwelling probably began shortly after the
lots were purchased by Merritt D. and Nancy Wilson in 1904. Atter Merritt’s death in 1911-12, his
wife remained here until her own death in 1914. George Creighton, a retiree, lived in the home in
1914. By 1948 the house was apparently a rental, wit%\ two tenants listed at the address. Ed H.
McDougall rented the house in 1964. The Merritt House retains sufficient integrity to relate its
historic period of development.

ID# 336.0 Survey#128

FREE METHODIST CHURCH PARSONAGE 1908¢
775 MAIN ST E (777 Main E) 391E09AC 9400
Other: Vernacular |Italianate| Primary/Contributing

A fine two-story vernacular wood-frame dwelling with Queen Anne detailing, this dwelling was built
about 1908, following the purchase of land by the Free Methodist Church in 1904, Construction of
the Church to the east, and this parsonage, occurred after 1906 and the buildings are documented as
standing by 1910 when Rev. Nathan Weller lived here according to Poﬁ(’s Jackson County
Directory. The Rev. Charles Brown lived here in 1942 and R. A. Haskins was the minister six years
later. The Church retained owner of the parsonage until the mid-1970s and the church remained in
operation itself until at least 1977. Vacant that year, the parsonage was owned and occupied by Rita
L. Woods in 1986. The Free Methodist Parsonage retains very high integrity and effectively relates
its historic period of development.

ID# 337.0 Survey 461

FREE METHODIST CHURCH 1908c¢
777 MAINST E 391E09AC 9500
Other: Vernacular |Gothic Elements]| Primary/Contributing

This large wood-framed building was erected by the Free Methodist Church about 1908, after their
purchase of the prominent corner site in 1904. The Church, which has previously met in the
Adventist Church at 4" and C in the Railroad District,4? was clearly meeting here by 1910 when
Rev. Nathan Weller is listed as the minister in Polk’s Jackson County Directory. The Church
continued services here until at least 1977, with the minister residing in a church-owned house next
store for most if not all that period.. By the mid-1980s the building was owned and occupied by
David Fienstien and Donna Edens. By the early 1990s the building has become a Tai Chi and Aikio
studio and remains so at this writing. Somewhat altered with applied siding and other changes, the
Free Methodist Church retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

42 gee ID # 298.000.
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ID# 338.0
GREENE DUPLEX 1978
30 SEVENTH ST 391E09AC 9600
Builder: Greenwood Homes [Greene, Don]
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This corner was long owned by the City of Ashland, which had purchased the site in 1920 and
retained: ownership until 1977. (JCD 127:521 and 130:482) Sanborn Maps of Ashland in 1928
show the lot as vacant. In 1977 the city sold the property to the Eresent owner who built this multi-
family wood-framed structure in 1978. The eastern portion of the lot was subdivided to create tax
lot 9601, identified as ID #339.100. :

iD# 339.0
GREENE DUPLEX 2 1978
835 MAIN ST E 391E09AC 9601
Builder: Greenwood Homes [Greene, Don]
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

Built in conjunction with the above, this two-story wood-frame duplex was completed in 1978
under building permit 8685.

ID# 340.0 Survey #129

EVENSON, EVEN HOUSE 1907¢
90 SEVENTH ST 391E09AC 9700

Builder: Hakanson, John (Attrib.)
Other: Vernacular [Bungalow] . Primary/Contributing

This fine one and one-half story vernacular house is notable for its comparatively rare “clipped” or
jerkinhead head gables within the Railroad District. Probably built in 1907, shortly after the corner
lot was purchased by local contractor John Hakanson, the house was sold to Even Christian Evenson
in 1909. Evenson, a saw filer, retained ownership until 1920 when the house was purchased by
Almira Henry. Andrew DeLisle, a lineman for the Pacific Telephone and Telegraph Company, lived
here in 1948 and the current owners Clyde A. Hutson, and his wife Mary owned and occupied the
house by 1964. Well-detailed, the Evenson House retains high integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.

ID# 341.0
RANCH HOUSE INFILL 1978
850 C STREET 391E09AC 9800
Builder: G & W Construction
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This site was owned by Dora A. Holden in 1940 and was later sold to Leonora Broili. In 1978 the
property was purchased by Rodger Galligan and Earl Warner who built this present single-story
wood frame dwelling under building permit # #8904,

ID# 342.0 Survey #130

HOWETT-BAGLEY HOUSE 1901¢
855 MAINST E 391E09AC 9900
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A large one-story vernacular ell, this wood-frame dwelling was probably built in 1901 after the site
was purchased by Joseph Howlett, a nurseryman. Howlett livecf here for five years and then sold to
Fenton M. Bagley in May 1906. Bagley, a?xl'uitgrower, lived here until 1910. Later owner included
George Dunn, a2 member of the state legislature, who kept this house as rental until 1923. Two
tenants are listed in the 1948 city directory. In 1960 the house, then occupied by Frank Brown, was
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damaged by fire. (MMT, 1-Jan-1960, 1:6) The Howett-Bagley House retains sufficient integrity to
relate its historic period of development.

ID# 343.0 Survey #131

POTTER, S. A. HOUSE SITE (Cooley House) 1991
867 MAINST E 391E09AC 10000

Builder: Cooley, Clay
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

The S. A. Potter House, a small one-story hipped roof cottage that was built on this site around
1908 was demolished in 1991 and replaced with the present one and one-half story wood frame
vernacular-inspired structure, built by Clay Cooley.

ID# 344.0
BOSTWICK, EVERETT & NINA HOUSE 1952
860 C STREET 391E09AC 10100
No Style Non-Compatible/Noa-Contributing

This oddly-proportioned flat-roof dwelling was constructed circa 1952 under the ownership of
Everett and Nina Bostwick, who purchased the site in 1943 and retained it though 1957. Likely
used as rental, John W. Sills is listed at this address in 1964 directory.

ID# 345.0 Survey #132

LANE, CLARENCE HOUSE [Moved] 1900c
880 C STREET 391E09AC 10200
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

This small hipped-roof vernacular cottage was originally located on Siskiyou Boulevard behind Lane’s
Confectionery, serving as the home of [ongtime and much beloved Ashland resident Clarence Lane.
Known as “Mr. Ashland,” Lane’s business was a popular local fixture for many years.*3 The house
was relocated to this site following the demolition of Ashland Junior High School and prior to
construction of the modern office complex that now occupies its former location.#4 Although
moved, the Lane House retains very higi integrity and is entirely compatible with the traditional
development pattern of the Railroad District. '

ID# 346.0 Survey #7133

INLOW-SHERARD HOUSE 1905
881 MAINST E 391E09AC 10300
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne| Primary/Contributing

A fine one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular ell, construction of this house Iikeli began just
after the site was purchased by Edward and Millie Inlow in 1904. Inlow, who worked for the
Southern Pacific, died a short time later and Millie remarried Albert Sherard, a teamster, in 1912.
The new couple remained in this house until 1921. R. R. Misenheimer is listed at this address in
1948 and by 1964 Pat A. Dexter was renting the home. The Inlow-Sherard House retains high
integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

43 See K. Gabrielle, “Clarence Lane,” Southern Oregon Heritage, Vol. 3, No. 2, 1997, p. 35.
44 Terry Skibby, personal communication with the Author, 6-February-1998.
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ID# 347.0
CHURCH OF THE NAZERENE [RV UNITARIAN] 1960¢
87 FOURTH ST 391E09BD 100
Modern Period: International Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

Built to replace the earlier Church of the Nazarene that had stood on this site since 1906, the
present rmasonry volume was erected in the early 1960s and remained the coniregation’s home until
the 1990s when the building was sold the to the Rogue Valley Unitarian Church.

ID# 348.0
STAUFFER, E. L. AND EVA HOUSE 1946¢
65 FOURTH ST 391E09BD 200
No Style Secondary/Contributing

This small single-story wood-frame dwelling was likely built or moved to site sometime after 1946
when the lot was purchased by E. L. and Eva C. Stauffer. (JCD 273:467). It may be one of the
many Camp White-related dwellings that were relocated to the Railroad District during that period.
The Stauffer family retained the property through 1959 when it was sold to the Church of the
Nazarene. With that Church’s move lgom this area, the property was again sold in 1990. Simple in
design, the Stauffer House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 349.0
MODERN DUPLEX 1964
57 FOURTH ST 391E09BD 300
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This lot was vacant according to Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps of the area for 1928 and does not
appear to have had any dwelling upon it throughout the historic period. The present wood-framed
duplex with shallow-pitched gable roof was built in 1964

ID# 350.0 Survey#242

GIBSON, W. C. HOUSE 1900¢
49 FOURTH ST . .391E09BD 400
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

A single-story vernacular cottag‘?vwith a truncated hipped-roof, this wood-frame dwelling was built

around 1900 after local grocer W. C. Gibson purchased the site. In 1906 J. H. Hensely purchased

the house and then sold it the following year to Angie McConnell. Mrs. McConnell retained

ownership until 1927, Frank L. and Myrtle Nutter has acquired the house by 1942 and in 1948

Mrs. Nutter, probably widowed, was renting a portion of her home to Mrs. Mary Alice Edward,
ossibly accounting for the second entry door on the front porch. The Gibson House retains very
igh integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 351.0 Survey#243

BROWN-DECKER HOUSE 1901c
39 FOURTH ST 391E09BD 500
Other: Vernacular [Altered] Primary/Contributing

This single story wood-frame dwelling with its unusual centered projecting bay portion to the front
was apparently constructed around 1901 when Charles P. Brown purchased the property. The
following year Rev. Samuel E. Decker, the pastor of the German Baptist Brethren Church
purchased the house. In 1905 the Ashland Tidings noted “The Reverend S. E. Decker has sold his
residence property on Fourth Street to F. L. Foster for $1500.” The house was sold again in 1907 to
Fred Neil, who retained ownership until the late 1920s. G. H. Corcoran is listed at this address in
1948 and by 1964 the house was owned and occupied by Roy W. McNeal. The front portion of the
building was converted to a hair saloon use by the early 1980s and remains so today, with a
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residential use in the rear portion of the building. While somewhat modified, and possibly altered in
height following fire damage, the general footprint of the Brown-Decker House is as it appeared in
1928 Sanborn Insurance Maps and the building retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period

of development.

ID# 352.0
ASHLAND PROFESSIONAL CENTER. 1958
485 MAINST E 391E09BD 600
Modern Period: Commercial Non-Cempatible\Non-Contributing

Constructed in 1958 according to County Assessor’s information, the Ashland Professional Center is
a u-shaped single-story masonry office complex built of brick with multi-light wood sash windows.
Hipped-roof, and retaining several large trees in front, the building is fine example of its era but is
not compatible in design or scale with the traditional development pattern of the Railroad District.

ID# 354.04

ROGUE FEDERAL CREDIT UNION 1984
415 LITHIA WAY 391E09BD 1000
Architect: Matson, Lawrence E. Builder: Taylor-Made Builders
Modern Period: Commercial Non-Compatibie\Non-Contributing

This oddly shaped parcel was created in 1955 by the realignment of Highway 99 when the land was
owned by Philip and Susie M. Hodgen. In 1972 the Jackson Public Service Federal Credit Union
purchased the site and architect Donal Rounds designed the first building for the firm, immediately
renamed the Rogue Federal Credit Union. That structure was razed in 1984 for construction of the
present two-story masonry volume :

ID# 355.0 Survey #244

GOFF, EDGAR AND KATE HOUSE 11 : _ 1899
50 THIRDST N 391E09BD 1100

Builder: Goff, Edgar [Attrib.]
Other: Vernacular {Queen Anne] Primary/Contributing

A fine one and one-half wood story dwelling, this vernacular structure is one of two reported as
under construction for Edgar Goff by the Ashland Tidings in August 1899. (Tidings, 29-Aug-1899)
Goft, a builder, likely erected the house for resale and along with his wife Kate sold the structure to
F. D. Robbins in 1901. By 1948 it was owned by Albert Deer, who leased a room out. Larkin A.
and Lola Deer, retirees, owned and occupied the house in 1964 and were likely related to Albert. In
the 1980s the house was converted to professional office uses and rehabilitated. The Goff House II
retains high integrity and effectively relgtes its historic period of development.

ID# 356.0 Survey #245

GOFF, EDGAR AND KATE HOUSE I (Abdill-Ellis Lambda Ctr) 1900
56 THIRDST N 391E09BD 1200

Builder: Goff, Edgar [Attrib.]
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne] Primary/Contributing

This one-story wood-framed vernacular cottage with intersecting hipped roofs and a large front
porch was built in 1899, by Edgar Goff, a contractor who purchased the lot in 1899 from land agent
George Andrews. In August tie Ashland Tidings reported “E. W. Goff will begin construction of
two houses on Third Street” in reference to this structure and its neighbor, ID #355.0. It is not
clear if the Goff’s themselves lived in the house prior to its sale to A. H. Connors in 1906. Sherman
Moorhouse, owner of a number of Railroad District property, purchased the house in 1907 and

45 Use of ID # 353.000 was removed during evaluation and is not associated with any RR District property.
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made his own residence here as late as 1910. By 1948 the house was the site of the Henderson and
Macklin Saw Mill offices, as well as serving as the residence of Loran A. Macklin. Margaret Ramsay,
a music teacher, was living here in 1956. In the 1996 the house was transformed to its present use,
a community center and support facility for the southern Oregon gay and lesbian community, and
was dedicated as the Abdill-Ellis Lambda Center. The Goff House retains very high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 357.0 Survey #246

HICKS, MARGARET HOUSE 11 1900c
64 THIRDST N 391E09BD 1300
Other: Vernacular {Queen Anne} Primary/Contributing

This single-story wood-framed cottage was built about 1900, after Margaret Hicks, an area landlord,
purchased the site from Kate Goff. Hicks, widow of Horace Hicks, apparently kept the house as
rental until he death in 1908. Her son, Clifford, sold the property two years ?ater to G. H.
Hedberg, a lineman for both SP and the Western Union Telephone company, who apparently rented
it out.#5 In 1948 the house was occupied by Guy M. ancr Elinor L. Powell, as well as Jesse M.
Kilgore. Elinor Powell, apparently Guy’s moti,)er, lived here as early as 1942. Dale E. Cox rented
the house in 1964. Now used as professional office, the Hicks House retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 358.0 Survey 4247

EVANS, JULIA HOUSE II 1899
70 THIRD ST 391E09BD 1400

Builder: Perham, E. G.
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne] Primary/Contributing

This fine one and one-half story vernacular ell with extensive Queen Anne detail was built in 1899
for Julia Evans. The Ashland Tidings noted at the time that “Mrs. Julia Evans lets the contract for
two houses in the railroad addition, $1100 each. E. G. Perham, Contractor. A prominent and well-
designed structure, a photo of the Evans House Il was published in the Ashland Tidings Souvenir
Edition in 1900. Mors. Evans sold this house to William F. Songer in 1903 and that family retained
ownership through 1920, apparently for rental purposes. By 1948 the house was occupied by Alpha
M. Colvin, a widow, and Rosa M. Perkins, also a widow, probably indicating a rental situation.*” In
excellent condition, the Evans House II, one of two bilaterally symmetrical dwellings, retains very
high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 359.0 Survey#

EVANS, JULIA HOUSE | 1899
74 THIRDST N 391E09BD 1500

Builder: Perham, E. G.
Other: Vernacular |Queen Anne| Primary/Contributing

Matching the house at 70 Third Street, above, the Julia Evans House 1 was also built in 1899 by
noted bridge contractor Edward G. Perham. Mrs. Evans lived here while renting the other home out
and retained ownership after 1910 when she herself was living on East Main Street. Evans sold the
house in 1911. Robert E. Van Vleet, owner of the East Side Market, his wife Katherine, lived in the
house in 1942 and remained at least through 1948. In 1964 J. A. Putnam owned and occupied the
home with a separate rental at 74%2 Third Street listed as “vacant” in the city directory. In excellent
condition, the Evans House I, one of two bilaterally symmetrical dwellings, retains very high
integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

46 The 1910 Polk Directory lists Hedberg as residing at 90 2™ Street.
47 Mrs. Colvin and Mrs. Perkins had lived together at 113 Pine Street in 1942, according to available city directories.
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ID# 360.0 Survey#249

GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE 1 ' 1899
78 THIRDST N 391E09BD 1600
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne) Primary/Contributing

A one and one-half story wood-frame vernacular ell with Queen Anne detailing, this house was built
in 1899 as a rental for Lucinda Ganiard, owner of a number of Railroad District properties. With
her husband, Mrs. Ganiard had purchased the site in 1890 however it was not until after her
husband’s death that the Ashland Tidings reported “Mrs. Ganiard has let the contract for another
cottage on Third Street” in reference to this property. (Tidings, 4-May-1899, 3:2) Shortly after
completion, Ganiard deeded the property to her daughter, Lottie Pelton who retained it as a rental
for many years. By 1948 the Ganiard Rental House was occupied by Wayne La Tourrett. In 1964
Freas H. Connors rented the main house while Mrs. Jennie Edmundson is listed as renting 78Y2
Third Street. The Ganiard Rental retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of

development.

ID# 361.0 Survey #250
MOREHOUSE, SHERMAN HOUSE 1912¢
94 THIRDST N 391E09BD 1700
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

One of the best examples of the Craftsman Bungalow style within the Railroad District, this fine
one story wood-frame dwelling demonstrates typical features of the style including the cobblestone
or “River Rock” details of the front porch, the projecting pergola-like porch extension, low-pitched
gable roof and multi-light “cottage” type windows. Built about 1912 for local real estate investor
Sherman Morehouse, apparently for his own occupancy, the house may also have been built by
Morehouse, a carpenter. The family retained ownership through 1939 when the house was sold to
George Loosely and his wife Emma, who remained here at least until 1942. Isaac T. Robinson lived
at this address in 1948 and by 1964 the house was owned and occupied by Aubrey C. Miles.
Converted into a professional office space by the 1980s, the house remains as offices today. The
Morehouse House retains very higﬂ integrity and effectively relates its historic period of
development.

A separate, non-contributing multi-family residential unit, identified as ID 361.100, is located at the
rear of the property. This two-story wood-frame volume was apparently built in the 1970s

ID# 362.0 Survey #251

MOREHOUSE, SHERMAN RENTAL HOUSE 1 1908¢
87 THIRDST N 391E09BD 1800
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Primary/Contributing

A single-story wood-frame bungalow, this building was built as a rental for local rea] estate investor
Sherman Morehouse, whose own bungalow-style residence was located directly across Third Street.
Morehouse had purchased the site in 1904 and after removing the earlier German Baptist Brethren
Church that stood here, built this structure about 1908. Retained as rental, the Morehouse Family
lost the house in foreclosure proceedings during the Great Depression. The house was apparently
being rented in 1948 and Km}i’ B. Oeser, of Qeser’s Flying A Service station, next door, lived here
with his wife Geraldine in 1964, remaining here at least through 1977. By the early 1980s the
building had been converted to its present, professional office space, usage. While somewhat
modified, particularly by the application of wide metal siding and replacement of the original
windows, the Morehouse Rental exhibits integrity with its general volume and mass and sufficiently
relates its historic period of development..
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ID# 363.0
OESER’S FLYING A SERVICE 1958
345 LITHIA WAY 391E09BD 1801
Other: Utilitarian Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

First built in 1958 as the location of Oeser'’s Flying A Service Station, oi)erated by Karl Oeser who
lived on Third Street (Site 362.0) this building was substantially remodeled and enlarged in the late
1980s. Remaining a gas station and service facility, the building does reflect the 1950s era changes to
the southern edge of the Railroad District and its interface with the downtown commercial core
subsequent to the opening of Lithia Way as the northbound lane of Highway 99 but is not related to

the traditional development pattern of the area during the historic period of significance.

ID# 364.0
VAN VLEET REAL ESTATE OFFICE 1960s/1979
375 LITHIA WAY 391E09BD 2100
Modern Period: Commercial Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

Originally constructed as a single story building early 1960s, Van Vleet & Associates Real Estate has
been located here since at least 1964. The masonry, or masonry veneer first floor, was augmented
by a wood-frame second story in 1979 that was built by the Medford Construction Company in a
Tudor Revival inspired design, part of a short-lived attempt to use an Elizabethan treatment in the
downtown to support the Oregon Shakespearean Festival Association.

ID# 365.0
ASHLAND FIRE STATION #1 1954
455 SISKIYOU BLVD 391E09AC 15300
Other: Utilitarian Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

This prominent corner site was long the location of the Congregational Church, a large wood-framed
edifice with a tall steeple that dominated this area of Ashland prior to its 1926 demolition. A short
time later, the corner site as occupied by a small kiosk-type gas station that soon evolved into Steve
Zurka's garage, a business that remained at this site through 1948. In 1954 the property was
purchased by the City of Ashland and enlarged and remodeled to the present fire station use. (JCD
390:239-41) Although generally compatible with the character of the post-WWII Railroad District,
this structure is not related to the traditional development pattern within the district during its
period of historic significance.*8

ID# 366.0
TACO TIME |BLUE MOUNTAIN] 1972
457 SISKIYOU BLVD 391E09AC 15200
Modern Period: Commercial Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

Originally the site of the “Temple of Truth,” a large stone structure built c1910, later occupants of
this building included the Ashland Foursquare Church and, after WWII, the Assembly of God. That
structure was demolished sometime prior to 1964. The small building facing Siskiyou was first built
as a Taco Time restaurant in the early 1970s. Later remodeled for use as “Michael’s,” another
restaurant, the building now houses Blue Mountain, a coffee bar. The rear of the lot, f’acing East
Main Street and thus included in this survey, is used for parking.

48 Kramer, George. Some General Comments of the McCall’s Addition and the East Main Additions to the Ashland
Cultural Inventory, 1-June-1992.
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ID# 367.0 Survey #3884

McCALL, JESSE A. HOUSE , 1890/02
550 MAINST E 391E09AC 14900
Other: Vernacular Primary/Contributing

The main portion of this two-story vernacular wood frame dwelling was built some prior to October
1890. In July 1902 the Ashland Tidings reported that Jesse McCall [is building] an attractive
dwelling on East Main Street at a cost of about $1500.” This apparently refers to additional
remodeling or a major addition to the earlier structure. Subsequent additions to the rear, based
upon available Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps, all date prior to 1911. McCall, son of Martin L.
McCall the original developer of this part of Ashland, lived in this house for a number of years.
Following McCall’s divorce, the house was sold to Charles Rose, who maintained it as a rental until
1923. Later owners included George L. and Sarah Carey who apparently operated the building a
multiple family rental. Since the 1970s the McCall has been in commercial use as a hair saloon.
While somewhat modified with asbestos shingle siding and other changes, the McCall House retains
sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of devefopment.

ID# 368.0 Survey#885

ROSE, CHARLES & LAURA HOUSE 1907
568 MAINST E 391E09AC 14803
Architect: Clark, Frank Chamberlain [Attrib.]

Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

This single-story wood-frame cottage was built prior to June 1907 possibly for Jesse McCall but has
long been known as the home of Cixarles and Laura Rose. Rose, who with his brother operated the
Rose Brothers Confectionery for over 20 years. The building is attributed to locally prominent
architect Frank Chamberlain Clark but than has not been conclusively documented. The Roses
remained the owners of the property until 1923 although by 1920 they were apparently renting to
Osmer W. Long, an SP Railroad conductor, and his wife Eliza. Following Eliza’s death, Long married
a neighbor, Minda DeWitt and the couple lived in this home. Minda Long retained ownership and
resided here until her own death in the 1960s. The building was converted to restaurant use under
the name Clark Cottage in 1981 and is today operated as “Cucina Biazzi” following substantial
renovation. Although somewhat compromised by the last renovation efforts, the Rose House retains
sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 369.0 Survey #886

LONG, O.W. AND MINDA RENTAL 1941
574 MAINST E 391E09AC 14801
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Secondary/Contributing

This parcel remained vacant throughout the primary period of significance and it was only following
a rather complex transfer of property that it came into the possession of Osmer and Minda Long,
who lived immediately to the west. The Longs may have had this structure built for rental purposes
sometime prior to 1948, when it appears on Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps, but it is consideredrﬁkely
that the dwelling was moved onto this site sometime after WWII and may have been one of the
many structures from Camp White that were relocated throughout the Rogue Valley during that
period. The Long Rental was renovated in 1992 in connection with the construction of the separate
structure to the rear and while modified, continues to reflect its historic period of development.

Built by Ashland contractor R. B. Meiser in 1992, the separate two-story tri-plex at the rear of the
parcel is identified as ID# 369.100 and considered to be a Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-
Contributing feature.
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ID# 370.0 Survey #3887

CURRIE, JOSEPH T. BOARDING HOUSE 1908¢
386 MAINST E 391E09AC 14802
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne} Primary/Contributing

This two-story vernacular dwelling dates from 1908 and was originally built for Joseph T. Currie.
“Jos. Curry (sic) is building a large modern house of nine rooms on lots on East Main Street in the
Congregational Church block.” (Tidings, 27-Aug-1908) Currie, a miner, ran a boarding house in
this dwelling for many years under the management of Margaret Thom, his sister. The house
reportedly served as a temporary hospital foﬁowing the 1909 fire that damaged the Southern
Oregon Hospital on Second Street. Currie sold the house to William and Minda DeWitt in 1923
who continued to rent out rooms. After William’s death, Minda married Osmer Long, a neighbor,
and the couple kept this building for rental purposes. Mrs. Long sold the house to Robert Hendrix,
a longtime tenant, in 1965. Tﬁe Currie Boarding House was converted to use as the “Edinburg
Lodge,” one of Ashland’s earliest Bed and Breakfast accommodations in 1981. Following extensive
renovation in 1994, the enlarged Currie Boarding House is operated as the Anne Hathaway House.
While somewhat altered, the Currie Boarding House retains ﬁjgh integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.

ID# 371.0 Survey #888

UNKNOWN HOUSE 1920¢
598 MAIN 391E09AC 14300
Other: Arts & Crafts: Craftsman Bungalow Primary/Contributing

The social history of this single-story wood-frame bungalow is uncertain. The lot was originally
designated as a roadway in the plat of the McCall’s addition but in 1901 that street was vacated as
gart of the construction of the East Side School. By 1907 a small structure is shown on the site and
1928 the present dwelling is on the site. The first occupant of this house that can be clearly
identified is Chester A. Roberts, a laborer, who lived here in 1937. While lacking in social history,
this structure retains very high integrity and effectively relates its historic period ofg development.

ID# 372.0 Survey #8389

READER, J.LK. RENTAL HOUSE 1890c
600 MAINST E : 391E09AC 14200
Other: Vernacular {Mixed| Primary/Contributing

Constructed in a series of phases, the earliest portions of this complex volume date c1890 and are
visible in the E. L. Moore birdseye view of Ashland from that year. By 1907 the bungalow-style
front porch had been added to tge structure and by 1911 the rear gable addition was on the site.
Early references to this property identi&v it as 610 East Main Street. The earliest identified owner
of the house is Dr. J. K. and Lou Reader, who purchased it from the Ashland Building and Loan
Association in 1898 and probably kept it as a rental. The house was apparently substantially
renovated in 1947 when a D. J. Hughes was given a permit for $1000 worth of worth at this
address. (Tidings, 7-Mag-1947, 1:7) Again renovated in the mid-1990s for use as a vacation
accommodation and dubbed “The Rogue House,” the Reader Rental House retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

A second structure was apparently moved to the southern portion of this lot sometime after WWII.
This single-story wood-frame bungalow-style dwelling is identified as ID #372.100 and is considered
to be Secondary/Contributing within the Railroad District.
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ID# 373.0
ASHLANDER APARTMENTS 1980
SE corner of Sherman and East Main 391E09ACC
Modern Period: Northwest Regional Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This large multi-unit condominium complex was developed by W. H. Hampton and William G.
Wickholm shortly after their purchase of the land in 1979. Constituting a number of individual tax
lots and ownership accounts, this non-compatible resource is collectively treated under ID # 373.0
for evaluation purposes. ‘

ID# 374.0
ASHLAND CEMETERY 0
0 MAIN ST E (between Sheridan & Dewey) 391E09AC 12600
No Style Primary/Contributing [NR-Listed)

The Ashland Cemetery, now city-owned and managed, was established as one of Ashland’s earliest
burial locations with interments dating from the mid-19*" century. The Cemetery was listed on the
National Register as a contributing feature with the Historic Cemeteries of Ashland, Oregon and
Environs, 1851-1925 MPS.

ID# 375.0
MAUPIN, CHARLES AND ELLA HOUSE 1945
27 DEWEY ST (formerly 850 £ Main) 391E09AC 12500
Other: Vernacular Secondary/Contributing

This single story wood-frame dwelling was apparently built or moved to this site in 1945 after the
land was purchased by Charles and Ella Maupin. (JCD 263:389) Mrs. Maupin, by then a widow,
was still living here at late as 1964 according to Polk City Directories. Terry Huff owned and
occupied the property in the late 1970s. Remodeled and renovated by Jerry Nutter Construction in
1994, Maupin House while altered, retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of

development.

ID# 376.0
CRAFTSMAN INFILL HOUSE 1994
24 DEWEY ST.... 391E09AC 10400
Architect: Murray, Donald P. [Designer| Builder: Murray, Donaid P.
Modern Period: Late 20th C Historic Period Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

This single-story wood-frame dwelling was designed and built by Donald P. Murray in 1994 to be
compatible with the surrounding historic character. Earlier owners of this site include Archie and
Anna Hibnes, who purchased the lots in 1952 and retained them at least through 1963. (JCD
367:398). It is not clear if there ever was an earlier dwelling on this corner but the lot was vacant
prior to the construction of the present structure.

ID# 377.0
CROWSON-ADDISON HOUSE 1907¢
916 MAINST E 391E09AD 4000
Other: Vernacular [Cottage| Primary Contributing

The exact history of this fine single-story wood-frame hipped-roof cottage is unclear but the building
was probably built sometime prior to 1907 and is depicted on the 1928 Sanborn Fire Insurance Map
of this area. The Lot, number 45 of the Miners Addition, was sold by developer E. E. Miner to
George and Wealthy Crowson as part of a larger transaction including Lots 41-47 in October 1889.
(JCD 32:480) The Crowsons retained ownership until 1907 and may have built and lived in this
house but that has not been verified. In April 1907 Crowsons sold the same seven lots to William
and Effie Addison for $1400. (JCD 59:22) Over the next year the Addisons sold off various lots
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but retained ownership of Lot 45, probably indicating existence of the house by that time. (See JCD
59:602, 72:180 and 75:580) Later owners of the house include Thomas H. Callahan, who sold the
house to Jennie Bullock in 1943. (JCD 241:139) The Crowson-Addison House retains high integrity
and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 378.0 v
McCONNELL APTS. 1968
35 ALIDA ST 391E09AD 4100
. Builder: Newman, Loren
Modern Period: Ranch House Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing

This large two-story wood and stucco multi-unit afartment complex was built by Loren Newman on
this site in 1968 for then-owner Duane McConnell.

ID # 379.0 .
BRYANT, T.W. & DELPHIA HOUSE 1889¢
968 MAINST E 391E09AD 5700
Other: Vernacular [Cottage] Primary/Contributing

This fine wood-frame, truncated hipped-roof, cottage was probably built 1889 after T. W. Byrant
purchased Lot 1 of the Miners Addition from E. W. Miner on 26-Januarl\;1 889. (JCD 17:489)
Delphia Bryant, presumably T.W. Bryant’s widow, sold the home to John B. Shafer, a retired
farmer, in 1906. (JCD 56:195) Shafer, a 72-year old widower, is shown living at this house in 1910
census along with his son F. F. Shafer, daughter-in-law Hettie, and the younger couple’s son
Emmette, age 2. By 1942 the Bryant House was owned and occupied by Clessen G. and Alice
MacDonald, who sold to Rank and Edna Bowers the following year. (JCD 264:508) The Bryant
House, with a full front porch and decorative central chimney, retains very high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 380.0
FLORA, FRANK AND GLADYS HOUSE 1959
988 MAIN ST E 391E09AD 5800
Modern Period: Ranch House Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing

This one-story wood-frame dwelling was likely built c1959 after the lot was purchased by Frank A.

and Gladys B. Flora. gJCD 460:440) Flora, a switchman for the Southern Pacific, lived here until

his death in early 1985. Built with the typical elements of the ranch house style, including large
icture windows, low-pitched roof, and simple detailing, the Flora House while not historic, retains

Dgh integrity and is generally compatible in volume with the character of this portion of the Railroad
istrict.

SUMMARY:

More than 100 years since its original development period the residential and commercial
resources of the “Ashland Railroad District” retain a high degree of integrity and continue to
convey the area’s unique history and development pattern within the City of Ashland. Today,
nearly 70% of the District’s resources retain sufficient integrity to the historic periods of
significance to effectively convey their history and accurately document the associations for
which they are significant.
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With the arrival of the first rail car into Ashland in early 1884, followed by the completion of the through
line into California in 1887, this southernmost community in the Jackson County became a major port of
entry into Oregon and the Pacific Northwest. The sub-section that grew around Ashland’s new Southern
Pacific Railroad Depot was platted in 1883 in anticipation of the train’s arrival and quickly developed
into a distinct region within the city, an area that was largely governed by “train time” throughout the
primary historic period. Ashland Railroad District provided housing and traveler-based commercial
services that were almost entirely related to the railroad. After 1927, when Southern Pacific shifted its
main route to the east, the Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District became a quiet backwater within
the larger city, removed from the auto-related development pressures that overtook downtown. During
and after World War II, the old Railroad Addition become a focus for affordable residential and modest
industrial uses. Today, more than 110 years since its original development, the Ashland Railroad
Addition Historic District retains a strong visual connection to it early heyday and accurately reflects
both the history and the associations that make it significant.

HisToRIC CONTEXT:
INmiAL DeveLoPMENT 1883-1927

Ashland is located at the south end of the Bear Creek Valley in Jackson County, Oregon. Although
explorers and trappers passed through southern Oregon between 1825 and 1850, no permanent residents
settled in the area until gold was discovered near the present site of Jacksonville during the Winter of
1851-52. At the same time, the Donation Land Claim Act of 1850 encouraged families to seek free,
farmable land in the Oregon Territory. Jackson County was officially designated by the Oregon
Territorial legislature on January 12, 1852.

During the first week of 1852 several miners-turned-settlers crossed the Siskiyou Divide and stopped on
the banks of what they soon called Mill Creek, now Ashland Creek. Here they built a sawmill, flour mill,
boardinghouse and simple frame dwellings. The Oregon-California Trail passed near the small
settlement and soon the route made a permanent loop in front of the flour mill. By 1855 the small
community of Ashland Mills had a post office, hotel, store, cabinet shop, livery, blacksmith shop and
several homes in addition to the flour mill and sawmill. Construction of a woolen mill and a college
augmented local opportunities, but farming and ranching supported the town’s economic base. (Farnham,
1955:41)

Ashland’s commercial district expanded gradually around the clearing in front of the flour mill and
residential neighborhoods developed nearby on Granite and Church Street, as well as on Main, Pine
(Helman) and Oak Streets. Ashland was incorporated as a town on October 13, 1874, and by 1880
counted 842 residents. (US Census Bureau, 1880)
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In the early 1880s Ashland, along with all of Jackson County, eagerly awaited the Oregon and California
Railroad as it pushed over the mountainous passes south of Roseburg, which had served as the line’s
southern terminus since December 1872. In October 1883, Lindsay Applegate sold 156.75 acres to the
north of Ashland’s Original Town Plat to the railroad company and the company’s surveyors began to
survey a major addition that would double Ashland’s size. They oriented the blocks, lettered A through
T, on a true north grid with the railroad yards lying north of A Street and extending roughly the length of
the addition. Typical lots in the Addition were twenty-five feet wide and either 122 or 142 feet in depth.
All the streets were to be seventy feet wide except for A Street, lining the right-of-way, which was only
forty feet wide. B Street was planned as the Addition’s central avenue with house lots on both sides
oriented toward the street.. The final plat of the Railroad Addition to the Town of Ashland was recorded
February 26, 1884. (JCD 2:42, 10:531; 11:177; 16:2; and Tidings, 25-Jan-1884; 16-Feb-1884; 7-Dec-
1888, 3:2)

As the construction crews of the Oregon and California Railroad surveyed grades and then laid the new
line through the Rogue River Valley, Ashland’s citizens eagerly awaited the arrival of the rails and
closely watched the line’s progress. In the spring of 1884, Abel Helman recorded in his diary:

April 17 Track of O.&C.R.R. reaching the Plaining [sic] mill
April 24 Train of O&C.R.R. crossed the bridge at Ashland
April 25 The construction train went over to the Ashland Depot
April 30 First passenger car came into Ashland

May 3 First passenger engion fsic] came in Ashland

May 4  First train of passenger cars came in Ashland

The first passenger train pulled into Ashland on May 4, 1884, filled with Ashlanders shouting and
waving from the windows. The local citizens had gone five miles north to ride the train into town. Local
dignitaries spoke at the railroad station and the Ashland Brass Band played.

Despite the delay in the line’s completion to Ashland, the immediate impact of the rails from the north
was dramatic. As the terminus of the line, the town realized an immediate influx of people, money and
improvements. Reviewing the city’s growth during the year, the local newspaper noted that 89 new
houses and 33 “other” buildings had been constructed. (Tidings, 2-Jan-1885) This rapid growth resulted
in Ashland’s incorporation as a city in 1885, and in the eventual acquisition of a water system and
electric lighting plant.

Railroad lots sold rapidly as individuals and families purchased land for new homes. Some enterprising
people bought adjacent lots for rental houses or to hold for later investments. The blocks filled in a
random pattern. One early Ashland resident recalled:
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You’ll find that most of these old houses were built in the eighties and
the nineties. The houses were spotted all around here. A fellow would
say, ‘I want a corner lot...that’s all I want.” Between him and the next
one there’d only be one house. Then somebody would come along and
buy up the lots. That’s the way it filled up. (Atwood, 1976: 9). -

Carpenters constructed numerous residences between 1884 and 1888. Builders John Frulan, W. J.
Schmidt, C.W. Ayers, and C. H. Veghte found ample work as they built homes for residents such as Nils
A. Ahlstrom, Mary Hoffman Vining and E. C. Kane.! Builders also erected wood commercial buildings
on the south side of A Street and along both sides of Fourth Street.

Three years would pass before the tracks from California would enter the valley and north and south rail
lines would finally be joined at Ashland. During this time railroad construction crews labored in the
rugged Siskiyou mountains that divide Oregon and California south of Ashiand. The first route through
the mountains, involving the blasting of the Buck Rock Tunnel, a more expensive and longer route, but
one that offered a relatively manageable 2% grade to the valley floor. Despite blasting more than 1600
feet into the hard serpentine rock, the Buck Rock Tunnel was abandoned in early 1887 following the
purchase of the Oregon and California Railroad by the Southern Pacific Railroad line. A new, shorter,
and less expensive if steeper, grade was quickly cut through the mountains. While Ashland would finally
be linked to California, the wisdom of the new “Siskiyou Grade, with its steep 3.3% rise, would be long
debated.. Its route, a tortuously steep climb that in one seventeen mile segment, rises 2,235 feet, still
remains one of the steepest rail lines in the United States. (Lawrence, 1972)

On December 17, 1887 officials drove the Golden Spike that connected the Southern Pacific Railroad’s
San Francisco — Portland Line at Ashland. Charles Crocker, Southern Pacific’s vice-president arrived on
a special car and drove the final spike with a sledgehammer that signaled the event via telegraph to the
rest of the nation. Ashland welcomed the event with all the ceremony it deserved, including music,
speeches and the arrival of dignitaries by train from both Portland and San Francisco. The Portland
Oregonian lauded the accomplishment:

Through the flinty, hard heart of the Siskiyou Mountains, the road has
been built, the lines of shining steel laid, and now the ‘iron nag’ rushes
through and over those frowning barriers and its loud shrieks wake the
echoes of those wide solitudes.

The local newspaper described the celebration:

The first passenger train from California came into the depot amid the
surroundings of bonfires and illumination. Every house in town

! See Sites 182.0 (Nils Ahlstrom), 50.0 (Mary Vining) and 129.0 (E. C. Kane)
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appeared to be illuminated with Japanese lanterns. In the business part
of town the stores were brilliantly lighted, and as the band played, a
cannon in front of the Ashland Mills was kept busy firing salutes.
(O’Harra, 1981:27)

The joining of the tracks in Ashland marked the completion of the circle of railroad around the United
States and established Ashland as the division point and working station for all passenger and freight
trains through the area. The economic impact on the once-sleeply community was dramatic, as the local
newspaper explained:

Ashland...is the end of the regular trip or run from south and north... for
engines and the crews, of freight and express trains, of messengers, and
of U. S. mail cierks. It is the end of a mountain division, which will
always employ more men than an equal stretch of road in the valley...
Ashland is the eating station for all passenger trains and a thirty minute
stop is made here by every train. (Tidings, 4-Jan-1889)

The huge Depot Hotel was competed early in the summer of 1888 and was soon followed by a new
roundhouse, car repair shop, and other functional railroad structures. Seventy five-men and their families
moved to Ashland during the year, creating a need for additional housing. (Egger-Gould, 1986:n.p.)
Developers platted ten new additions to the town in 1888, including four newly acquired acres in the
Railroad Addition, dubbed the Second Railroad Addition, that added blocks W, X, and Y. Families
crowded into all available dwellings and new construction boomed. Thirty-four new houses, as well as
the Roman Catholic Church of the Holy Rosary (Site 270.0), were built during 1889. In 1890 Ashland’s
population reached 1784, a 111 percent gain since 1880. (Tidings, 25-Nov-1889: 3:4; 2- Jan-1890, 3:3;
U.S. Bureau of Census, 1890)

By 1890, lodging houses, saloons, restaurants, stores and warehouses formed a separate commercial
district on A Street at the intersection of Fourth Street, and on Fourth Street between A and B streets.
Here residents, passengers, and railroad crews could conveniently purchase goods and services. The
Railroad Addition developed into a self-contained unit with convenient resources at hand (Egger-Gould,
1986: n.p)

The railroad also contributed directly to the development and success of the local orchard and livestock
industries. Local manufacturing plants such as the Ashland Woolen Mills, the Ashland Iron Works (Site
149.0), and the area timber industry all benefited from the availability of rail transport (Kramer, 1990:7)
However, as the nation plunged into a financial depression at the end of 1893, Ashland soon experienced
economic difficulties. The Railroad Addition’s first building boom ended in 1894 when the Southern
Pacific Railroad Company greatly reduced the station force along the line.
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Four difficult years passed before the local economy gradually began to improve. In November 1897, the
newspaper indicated that things might be getting better: “Ashland is enjoying a fair-sized building boom
at present, the first in a long time and new dwellings are springing up...the advent of good times”
(Tidings, 22-Nov-1897, 3:2). By October 1898, Ashland again had a severe housing shortage despite
substantial building activity. Residential and commercial construction continue steadily through the end
of 1899 (Tidings, 6-Oct-1898, 3:2).

As railroad business increased in 1898, the Railroad Addition’s second major period of growth began.
Newcomers moved to town and several prosperous investors such as J.K. Van Sant and Lucinda Ganiard
invested successfully in real estate. The Pinkston-Bartges, and J.K. Van Sant Houses were among the
new residences erected in the area. Large and substantial commercial buildings such as those erected by
Charles Nininger, Lucinda Ganiard, and E.F. Loomis appeared on Fourth Street during the next two
years.2

With extensive new growth and predominately wood-frame construction, the Railroad Addition
experienced frequent, disastrous fires. On July 18, 1898 a fire blazed in the vicinity of Fourth and A
Streets. Described as the “most extensive conflagration that has visited Ashland in years,” the fire,
which broke out in a restaurant kitchen, spread quickly to neighboring structures:

A brisk north wind, the work of the fire department and scores of willing
hands, alone, saved the spreading of the fire to the handsome S. P. Co.’s
railway station, which was very seriously threatened. (7Tidings, -18-Jul-
1898, 2:3-4.)

Building continued at a rapid pace after the turn of the century. In March 1901 the newspaper stated:
“There is still a house famine, heightened by the Southern Pacific ordering additional trainmen to
Ashland.” By December of that year about seventy-five new dwellings had been constructed in Ashland.
(Tidings, 8-Feb-1900, 3:2; 30-Jul-1900, 3:1; 25-Mar-1901, 2:3).

As railroad workers and tradesmen moved into the addition after 1900, builders constructed small
vernacular houses in substantial numbers. These simple one or one-and-a-half story frame houses with
gable or hipped roofs, dwellings such as those buiit for F.M. Blevins, Elmer Harrington, and Nicholas
Cooke, provided affordable housing for the brakemen, firemen, and conductors who were shifted to
Ashland by the railroad.> Others who selected the railroad district as a place to live included carpenters,
barbers, plumbers and painters. Widows and retired couples also favored the area’s modest dwellings.

On May 18, 1903 fire again broke out on Fourth Street and burned an entire row of wood structures until
Charles Nininger’s brick building at the corner of Fourth and B Streets checked the flames. The damage

2 See Sites 109.0 (Pinkston-Bartges) and 117.00 (Van Sant). The Fourth Avenue commercial structures included
Sites 101.0 and 103.0, among others.
3 See Sites 132.0 (Blevins), 230.0 (Harrington), and 85.0 (Cooke).
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figured in the thousands of dollars. Within a month the City passed new fire ordinances requiring that all
new buildings raised on Fourth Street and on Main Street be constructed of brick or stone (7idings, May
18, 1903, 3:3; June 8, 1903, 2:2). New masonry commercial structures such as those built by Charles
Nininger and John M. Easterling appeared on Fourth Street and on A Street.

In the spring of 1904 the Southern Pacific Railroad Company extensively improved its Ashland yards and
transferred additional employees to the city. The Railroad Addition, close to the depot and yards,
continued to draw many of the new arrivals. As home construction expanded Spring, or B Street, was
extended to Mountain Avenue, continuing at an angle from the eastern border of the Second Railroad
Addition. For the first time, many of the houses built during this period replaced older structures as
builders responded to their client’s requirements.

In 1908, the City of Ashland hired builder Frank Jordan to construct the Ashland Hose Company No. 2 to
house fire equipment in the busy railroad area. In May 1909, the Ashland Tidings identified the railroad
addition as the most rapidly improving area in the city. (Zidings, 31-Mar-1904; 27-May-1907, 3:3; 10-
May-1909, 1:1)

Streets have been improved, shade trees set out...The most extensive
undertaking in the line of street improvements is now underway on “B”
Street, one of the principal thoroughfares leading to the depot. Grades
have been established and ...fine cement sidewalks of uniform width
with added parkways, constructed...When these improvements are
completed, “B” Street will be a favorite promenade. (Tidings, 10-May-
1909, 1:1)

Ashland’s population nearly doubled between 1900 and 1910. Orchardists planted fruit trees on Ashland
hillsides, and pears, cherries and peaches were soon being shipped nationwide. The Ashland Fruit and
Produce Association, long a fixture near the railroad, built a new and modern concrete warehouse at Oak
and A streets in 1911-12. Commercial development expanded out East Main Street and tourists came to
visit the District’s “Natatorium” on A street as well as Downtown’s Enders’ Department Store and the
seasonal Chautauqua festival. In 1909 the City dismantled the old Ashland Flour Mill on the Plaza and
began development of what would become Lithia Park. The Plaza and East Main Street were paved to
accommodate automobiles. By 1910, with a population of 5020, Ashland flourished. (US Bureau of the
Census, 1910)

In the Railroad Addition, as in other areas of Ashland, new residences filled in previously vacant parcels
or replaced older existing dwellings. Bungalows, such as those built for Millard Grubb, Beecher
Danford, and John Taylor, were constructed in ever-increasing numbers, bringing new architectural
styles into the area.* In 1911, Samuel A. Potter constructed the substantial Potter Rooming House on

4 See Sites 90.0 (Grubb), 135.0 (Danford) and 288.0 (Taylor)
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Fourth Street of textured concrete block, the same material Frank Jordan had wisely chosen for the 1909
Ashland Hose Company No. 2.5

Between 1911 and World War 1, there was a determined effort to establish Ashland as a resort spa town.
A “mineral springs” bond issue passed resoundingly in June 1914 and paid for the effort to pipe Lithia
water to fountains at the library, railroad depot and city park. Promoters widely advertised a new motto,
“Ashland Grows While Lithia Flows,” to attract visitors to town. The Western Better Roads Movement
began construction of the Pacific Highway over the Siskiyou Mountains in 1913. East Main and North
Main streets through Ashland became part of this interstate route. The formal opening of the Pacific
Highway from Ashland to Central Point was held late in 1914. (O’Harra, 1981:88-96) In 1913 a large
National Guard Armory (Site 30.0) was constructed at the corner of Oak and B streets. Ashland
supported the war effort and in April 1917, after the the United States had declared war on Germany, the
city gathered at the Depot in force to send its sons of First Company on their way.

The years following World War | saw new growth in Ashland despite the failure of several old
institutions, including the Natatorium, the Chautauqua and the long-held dream for a resort city. In 1925
a group of Ashland businessmen, determined to revive Ashland, opened the nine-story Lithia Springs
Hotel in the central commercial district. The venture could not, however, offset the devastating effect of
the Southern Pacific Railroad’s Natron Cut-off. This new route was an entirely logical result of the
Southern Pacific’s decision to abandon the Buck Rock Tunnel route more than forty years ago. The Cut-
off created a straighter and more economic route between Weed, California and Eugene, Oregon that was
opened in 1927. This new Main Cascade Line eliminated the steep Siskiyou Mountain grade and re-
routed the fast freight and best passenger service between California and Portland away from Ashland.
(O’Harra, 1981:122) As many of Ashland’s railroad employees were shifted to elsewhere in the
Southern Pacific system or moved to other jobs, they left vacant houses in the Railroad District, a
reduced school population, and declining business incomes city-wide. One local resident recalled that
local opinion held, “Grass will grow in our streets when the railroad goes.” (Waldron, 1988:10)

The relatively small number of new buildings constructed in the railroad district between 1913 and 1930
reflects the city’s absorption in World War I, a slowing economy, and the opening of the Natron Cutoff
in 1927, with its accompanying exodus of railroad families from Ashland and economic effects.

BUILDERS, ARCRITECTS & OTHER SIGNIFICANT INDIVIDUALS;

The vast majority of the structures in the Raiiroad District were built and designed by unknown
individuals or their first owners from vernacular designs, probably without any formal set of plans or
blueprints. Few of these early contractors and carpenters can be named. However, several of Ashland’s
most prominent builders did work in the Railroad District, often on their own homes and then later on

5 See Sites 292.0 (Potter Rooming House) and 166.0 (Ashland Hose Co.)
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rental or investment property. Coupled with investors and- others whose names are connected with a
number of properties in the area, biographical sketches of some of the more influential individuals during
the historic periods are;

Ahistrom, Nils

Born in Sweden in 1830, conductor Nils Ahlstrom arrived in the Railroad District at least by
1888, when he was stationed here by the Southern Pacific Railroad. He purchased most or all of
Block E and hired John Frulan to build his family’s home (182.0) facing Fifth Street. Ahistrom
later built several rental properties in the block, and his son, North, also is responsible for
development in the area. (See 183.0 through 185.0). Emma Ahlstrom, widow of Nils son
Frederick J., lived in the Railroad District into the 1960s. (See 125.0)

Ayers C.W..

Clarence W. Ayers moved to Ashland about 1880 and established an active construction business.
He was responsible for many residential and commercial buildings in Ashland including the S.B.
Galey House and former Roper residence on Siskiyou Boulevard, and the E. K. Anderson House
on Wagner Creek, near Talent, Oregon. Examples of his work in the Railroad Historic District
include the former Church of the Holy Rosary (270.0); the Chilcott-Shaw House (52.0) and the E.
C. Kane House (129.0). Following his divorce from Elizabeth Hargadine Ayers in 1895, C.W.
Ayers left Ashland permanently.

Clark, Frank Chamberliain:

Born in New York in 1872, Clark moved to Ashland to design a building for Southern Oregon
Normal School. He maintained an office in Ashland until 1911 when he moved to Medford. A
trained architect, Clark eventually designed hundreds of residential, commercial and public
buildings throughout Southern Oregon until his death in 1957. Examples of buildings designed by
Clark in Ashland are the Ashland Elk’s Building, the Enders Building, the former Christian
Science Church, the Ashland Masonic Building, and several residences. The Tony and Lulu
Franco House (22.0) and the Anna and Ida Hargrove House (24.0) in the Railroad Historic District
are credited to Clark.

Easterling, John M.

Arriving in Ashland in 1903 at the age of thirty-six, Kentucky-born Easterling was reported as a
“wealthy businessman from Nebraska.” He immediately invested in a number of commercial
properties in the Fourth and A street area and ran several restaurant and hotel operations as well
as leasing out property to others. He developed both the Easterling Building (163.0) and greatly
expanded and operated the Peeriess Rooms Building (101.0) among his many ventures and by
1910 was sufficiently successful to list his occupation in the 1910 as “retired” despite his
relatively young age.
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Frulan, John

A native of Norway, John Frulan moved to Ashland in 1888 where he completed a residence in
the Railroad Historic District the same year. Examples of dwellings constructed by Frulan in the
District include the John and Clara Frulan House (178.0) and the Nils Ahlstrom House (182.0).
John Frulan died in Ashland in May, 1902 at the age of 63 years.

Ganiard, Mrs. Lucinda

Originally in partnership with her husband Oscar and then later as a widow, Mrs. Ganiard was one
of the major landholders and investors in the Railroad District in the years surrounding the turn of
the century. While developing commercial property (101.0) Mrs. Ganiard’s chief impact was
through the construction of at least six rental properties in the district (for example 41.0, 88.0, and
89.0). Her daughter, Lottie Pelton, continued the families investments in the arca and several
other members of the Ganiard Family also lived and developed property in the District’s historic
period.

Jordan, Frank.

Frank Jordan came to Ashland shortly after 1900 and worked as a builder for many years.
Specializing in brick and concrete work, he constructed the P.W. Paulson Building on Oak Street
in 1905 and the Bank of Ashland Extension Building on North Main Street in 1906. In 1909 he
did the concrete work for the new Granite City Hospital. In 1916 Jordan won the assignment to
remodel the jail in Ashland City Hall. The following year Frank Jordan completed the cement
wall for the new Ashland Chautauqua structure. Jordan’s work in the Railroad Historic District is
exemplified in the Ashland Hose Company No. 2 (166.0) on Fourth Street, constructed in 1908.

Plumerth, J.C.

Jacob C. Plumerth, a native of Canada moved to Ashland in 1882, where he built a family
residence on B Street. Responsible for building several dwellings in Ashland, Plumerth’s work in
the Railroad Historic District includes the Jacob Plumerth House (143.0) and the Richard Mellus
House (281.0). Although the Plumerths moved briefly to East Portland in 1889, they continued to
maintain their residence in Ashland. By 1910, Maria Plumerth, a widow, lived on Sixth Street in
Ashland.

Perham, Edward G.:

Edward G. Perham is noted primarily as a bridge contractor. His earliest known work in Jackson
County was the repair of a Gold Hill bridge for Jackson County. Later he would repair the first
Bybee Bridge, of wood, over the Rogue River and by 1909-1910, while apparently living in Coos
County, was the successful bidder for both the new steel Bybee Bridge and the 1912 Bear Creek
Bridge in Medford. Perham has been identified as the primary contractor for six separate Jackson
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and Josephine County bridges built prior to 1913.6 His identified work in the Railroad District are
the two houses he buiit for Julia Evans in 1899. (358.0 and 359.0)

Potter, S.A.

Samuel A. Potter, who was born in 1858 moved to Ashland about 1900 to work for the Southern
Pacific Railroad as a laborer. He began concrete contracting business known as Lindsay and
Potter, (later as S.A. Potter and Son) and constructed two hollow cement block commercial
structures on East Main Street in 1904, the S.B. Stoner and the W.C. Sanderson Buildings .
Examples of his work in the Railroad Historic District include the Potter Rooming House on
Fourth Street (292.0), constructed in 1911 and the S.A. Potter House (343.0) on East Main Street.

Schmidt, W.J.

A resident of Ashland since 1880, Schmidt designed and constructed several distinctive houses
and public buildings, including Ashland City Hall (1891), the Trinity Episcopal Church (1895)
and the G.M. Grainger House (189.0). The John and Charlotte Pelton House (140.0) exemplifies
his work in the Railroad Historic District. Schmidt left Ashland in 1898. In 1901he supervised
construction of the courthouse for Garfield County, Washington.

Van Sant, James K.

A prominent businessman and investor, Van Sant arrived in Ashland in 1888 and ran a grocery
store. His first house in the District was built in 1898 (117.0) and he invested in both commercial
and residential rental properties, of which at least four remain. (86.0, 87.0, 164.0 and 307.0) After
his retirement, Van Sant built a second house in the District (15.0) and remained an area resident
until his death in 1909.

Veghte C.H.

Born in New York in 1852, Charles Veghte came to Ashland in the 1880s. He worked for many
years as a carpenter with his father-in-law Baldwin Beach and by 1900 was proprietor of a brick
kiln. During his long career as a builder in Ashland Veghte was responsible for several of the
city’s notable homes and commercial buildings. Examples of Veghte’s work in the Railroad
Historic District include the National Guard Armory (30.0); the Isaac Shook House (146.0); and
the Charles Veghte House (293.0) Veghte and his wife sold their Ashland home in 1919 and
moved to Santa Monica, California where he died in May, 1921.

6 Kramer, George. Request for Determination of Eligibility “Big Butte Creek Road Bridge {Second Bybee/now Cobletgh
Road Bridge],” October 1994.
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DEPRESSION AND THE WORLD WaR 11 Era 1928-1949

The Railroad Addition’s secondary period of development began just prior to the onset of the Great
Depression, after the opening of the Natron Cut-off. The already severely impacted local economy
worsened considerably with the stock market crash in October 1929 and the beginning of the national
economic crisis. As the decade wore on, the City increasingly helped many residents by providing free
electricity and water. And while some people could afford to build new houses, most made do or
contracted for remodeling projects. As the local and national economies continued to decline, the
requirements of owning a home became more difficult. Many properties in the Railroad District were
sold by the Jackson County Sheriff during the 1930s when their owners failed to pay property taxes.
Others were repossessed by local financial institutions. Renters, retirees, and those on stable or
subsidized incomes increasingly occupied Railroad Addition houses during this period and many once
grand and prosperous dwellings were converted to multiple family use. Only a few new dwellings were
built during these lean years and structures such as the Thaddeus Powell Rental House and the John and
Olive Nortstrom Rental House exemplify the construction activity of this era.”

During the 1930s the Southern Pacific Railroad terminated through-passenger service between Portland
and Oakland via Ashland. One train per day ran from Portland to Ashland and another from San
Francisco to Grants Pass and then returned, through train service in Ashland was over. (O’Harra,
1981:130) In 1937 Southern Pacific announced plans to raze the huge three-story Ashland Depot Hotel,
buiit in 1888.

The present station building is really a relic of a busier former day in
railroading here and will be completely torn down to be replaced by an
attractive one-story building...(Tidings, 27-July-1937, 1:1)

In the end however, Ashland’s limited rail needs would be served by the remodel of a one-story wing of
the 1887 building, originally the kitchen, and no new depot would be constructed. Remodeling of the
kitchen wing, despite the vehement protests by the local Chamber of Commerce that Ashland deserved
better, was completed by Summer 1937.

With the onset of World War II, Ashland, like the rest of the country, turned its attention to the war
effort. In February 1942 construction of U. S. Army cantonment of Camp White began on the Agate
Desert, north of Medford. By the time the camp was formally dedicated in September 1942 more than
1300 buildings stood on the 43,000 acre site.

By year’s end, an entire city for 40,000 people stood where less than a
year before there had been nothing but a few scattered ranches and
farms. (Kramer, 1992:28)

7 See Sites 162.0 (Powell) and 119.0 (Nortstrom)
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Approximately 110,000 men and women took their basic training at Camp White before the war ended
and thousands of civilians flocked to the area to take jobs on the base as well as in the hundreds of new
service jobs it created in the valley’s cities and towns. Ashland, as well as other communities tried to
accommodate the influx of military personnel as local streets filled with young men on weekend passes.
(O’Harra, 1981:141) In an era of gas rationing, passenger rail service in the entire Rogue River Valley
enjoyed a momentary resurgence as soldiers and their families moved through the area. The booming
local economy and tight job market led the military to regulate rental rates to insure against profiteering.
Still, a vacant dwelling anywhere in the region was a prized commodity for the entire war period and
long vacant homes and outbuildings throughout the Railroad District were suddenly purchased, spruced
up, and rented to willing tenants.

Following World War II, Ashland saw renewed population growth, but experienced delays in new
housing construction as manufacturing concerns slowly returned to peacetime production. Lath, plaster,
doors, and plumbing parts were virtually unavailable and construction lumber was difficult to obtain
despite the fact that area mills were turning out material at capacity rates. (Tidings, 31-Aug-1945, 1:3)
There were other problems too. As the local newspaper explained:

Another handicap to builders is the shortage of skilled laborers, which
has resulted in many amateur carpenters doing much of their own work,
which does not result in maximum building efficiency. (ZTidings, 31-
Aug-1945,1:3)

Building pressures in Ashland and other parts of Jackson County were somewhat eased in 1947 when the
War Assets Administration, (WAA) an agency setup to oversee the disposition of surplus military goods,
began the sale of buildings from Camp White to the general public. The hundreds of buildings were
separated into various groups and auctioned off throughout the year, first to “priority” bidders including
local governments, schools and religious institutions, and then, finally, the general public.8 The well-
built and fully-appointed structures sold rapidly to a public long waiting for construction materials.
Successful bidders bought buildings and then moved them whoie to their lots for use as homes, storage
buildings, or shops while others dismantled a mess hall, barracks or officer’s quarters structures for its
valuable wood, wiring and plumbing and then built new structures from the salvaged materials. (Kramer,
1992:107)

Between 1947 and 1949 buyers relocated a number of Camp White buildings to Ashland where they
constituted an important part of post-war development in the Railroad Addition. Plain in appearance,
these solid buildings were typically characterized by frame construction, multi-light windows and low-
pitched gable roofs. Typical of the relocated Camp White Buildings is the Price Hennan House on

8 Many Camp White structures are still in use at local schools, including buildings at both Ashland High School
and Southern Oregon State University, remnants of their status as priority.-bidders more than a half century

ago.
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Fourth Street (Site 169.0) while the Leonard T. and Irene Hannon House on Sixth Street (Site 194.0) was
built of materials salvaged from one of Camp White’s barracks.

Two major mid-century road projects changed Ashland’s physical configuration. In 1942, Main Street, a
part of the Pacific Highway, was widened and re-directed. Businesses moved and old buildings on the
Plaza were cut back or razed. Engineers created a “floating island” in the middle of the Plaza (Tidings,
1-Apr-1941; 7-Apr-1942; 10-Apr-1942; 4-Sept-1942). In 1955, a one-way northbound avenue was
introduced between Siskiyou Boulevard and Helman Street, creating Lithia Way and widening C Street
along its route, skirting the southern edge of the original Railroad Addition plat and forming a clear
boundary between the District and the Original Town. Several early residences in the path of the new
Lithia Way were moved or demolished to make way for the a thoroughfare. The Hedberg-Silver House,
at 743 B Street House (Site 203.0) is one such structure, relocated within the Railroad District following
it condemnation for the highway’s construction.

As use of the private automobile increased in the post-war years and ticket revenues waned, the Southern
Pacific Railroad finally terminated all passenger service to Ashland. On August 6, 1955 the passenger
train left for Eugene for the last time and Ashland residents crowded to the depot to buy tickets for one
last ride. (Austin & Dill, 1987:264). People took photographs and the spectators waved goodbye. The
Ashiand Daily Tidings reported:

With the last tickets sold, Conductor Byrd took a final look around for
late passengers and signaled "highball" to Engineer Burgess. No. 330
eased out of the Ashland station on its last run, with more than 35
passengers aboard. (7idings, 8-Aug-1955, 1:3-6).

Despite legal action by the State Public Utilities Commission to force the Southern Pacific Company to
resume service, scheduled passenger service in Ashland ended and has never returned.® The once
expansive railroad grounds fell into disrepair. By the mid-1960s Southern Pacific had dismantled the
giant brick roundhouse but continued to use the turntable. (O’Harra, 1981:117; Egger-Gould, 1986: n.p.
and Tidings, 6-Aug-1955, 1:8) By the end of the decade even the turntable was removed.

Development and change marked Ashland in the 1960s and 1970s. The town had more people, new
schools, businesses, and institutions. The Oregon Shakespeare Festival’s outdoor Elizabethan theater,
constructed in 1959, brought new residents and visitors to Ashland. The new Ashland Hospital was built
in 1961 and the same year, the First National Bank (now Wells Fargo) replaced the old Ashland Hotel.
Interstate 5 was opened between Ashland’s north and south interchanges in 1964, taking the heavy traffic
off Siskiyou Boulevard and North Main Street. With the opening of the Angus Bowmer Theater in 1970
tourism became a major year-round source of income in Ashland.

% Today Amtrak follows the Cascade Line, the route of the Natron Cut-off, connecting Oregon and California
through Klamath Falls, and continues to avoid the steep grade of the Siskiyous.
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During the 1960s planning decisions left the future of the Railroad Addition uncertain. The Depression
and war years many properties had been lost through tax foreclosures and increased non-resident
property ownership had resulted in neglected properties. The increased housing density of the War years
and subsequent population boom resulted in a surfeit of what was deemed “substandard” construction
and the area was considered eligible for “urban renewal” and Federal aide for redeveloping “blighted”
areas. The City of Ashland considered sacrificing the railroad residential area to Ashland’s commercial
and industrial growth. At one time a plan to raze the majority of the area’s dwellings and replace them
with “modern” multi-family housing was seriously debated. Fortunately, however, the town’s
commercial district developed to the east and as the population increased, committed owner-occupants
brought vitality back to the railroad neighborhood.

Rapid growth and accompanying planning requirements consumed civic energy. In 1964 a group of
Ashland citizens petitioned the city council to give immediate attention to a long-range plan that would
assure Ashland orderly and progressive growth. The town’s first zoning ordinance was adopted in the
same year. In the mid-1970s increased local interest in historic preservation led to the establishment of
the Ashland Historic Commission and local designation of the Railroad Addition as a historic district. In
1984 the City completed an initial inventory of structures within the district and the Oregon State
Historic Preservation Office confirmed the area’s eligibility for listing in the National Register of
Historic Places (State Historic Preservation Office, October 26, 1984).

By the 1980s the few freight train crews based in Ashland were housed in nondescript portable units on
the site of the old Ashland Depot Hotel, the repair sheds of the railroad grounds were all gone, and only
the small freight depot and a small brick “toolhouse” remained from what had once been the bustling hub
of the Ashland economy. In 1987 the Southern Pacific pulied its last crews out of Ashland, closed the
old freight depot and applied to the city for its demolition. In early 1988 Oregon’s two U. S. Senators,
Robert Packwood and Mark Hatfield joined Southern Pacific management and local dignitaries to
celebrate the centennial of the driving Ashland’s “golden spike.” In the early 1990s, Southern Pacific
closed the long-troubled Siskiyou Line and for the first time in more than 100 years trains no longer
stopped, or even passed through, Ashland.

lronically, Southern Pacific’s departure heralded renewal in the Railroad Addition. Interest in the
historic resources of the Railroad District after its local designation as a historic district continued and in
1988-89 the City updated the initial cultural resources inventory. More area homes were restored and
today 11 buildings in the District are already listed independently on the National Register of Historic
Places. In 1990 a local contractor purchased the remodeled 1937 South Wing of the old Ashland Depot
Hotel, moved it across A Street, and restored it to its original appearance.!® Southern Pacific divided its
old right-of-way facing A Street into lots and sold the property for private development, sparking a

10 Relocated across A Street in 1990, the “South Wing, Ashland Depot Hotel” is independently listed on the
NRHP. (Site 190.0)
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resurgence of commercial activity in the District. In 1994 the Railroad District’s residents organized and
successfully pursued the city’s development of Railroad Park along A Street.

PERIODS OF SIGNIFICANCE:

Two major periods of significance have been identified within the development pattern of the Ashland
Railroad District. These are;

Privary; (1883-1927)!1

The primary period of significance begins in October 1883 with the acquisition and survey of the
Railroad Addition in anticipation of the arrival of the Oregon and California Railroad line from the north,
establishing Ashland as Oregon’s terminus. Continuing through the booming years of the late 9™
century, with the completion of the line over the Siskiyou and the transfer of the route to the Southern
Pacific Railroad, the period encompasses the entire original development of the area through Ashland’s
heyday as a “railroad” town. The primary period ends in 1927, following the opening of the Cascade
Line through Klamath Falls and the construction of the Natron Cut-off, shifting Southern Pacific’s main
line, the buik of its passenger and freight traffic, away from the Ashland route. Today, 230 contributing
resources, more than 60% of the area’s fotal properties, date from the primary period of significance,
including all 11 individually presently listed in the National Register. Another eight resources, while
built in the years 1883-1927, do not currently reflect their historic period of development but might be
rehabilitated to do so. '

SECONDARY: (1928-1949)

The secondary period of significance begins in 1928, following the opening of the Natron Cut-off and the
relocation of Southern Pacific’s main line away from Ashland, continuing thorough the District’s lean
building years and decline of the 1930s and the double effect of both the loss of the railroad and the
national economic crisis prior to World War II. The secondary period closes with the resumed building
activity and new home construction, including the relocation of Camp White structures, that occurred in
the period 1946-1949 as the Railroad District onice again saw increased population and new construction.
Today, 37 contributing resources, approximately 10% of the area’s fotal properties, date from the

I One resource included within the district boundary, the John A. McCall House (Site 17.0) slightly pre-dates the
arrival of the railroad and was initially constructed in response to a slightly different economic model than the
majority of the area’s homes. It later was joined on Oak Street by other, larger, homes of business owners
and investors.. Already listed on the National Register, the 1883 McCall House is included within the district
boundary and counted as contributing despite its somewhat disparate development history.
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secondary period of significance. Another ten resources, while built in the years 1928-1949, do not
currently reflect their historic period of development but might be rehabilitated to do so.

RESOURCE QUANTIFICATION:

As an aide to understanding the general architectural, visual and economic composition of the Ashland
Railroad District, the resources within the boundary area have been analyzed and quantified based upon
several key characteristics. In addition to the detailed analysis by evaluation or “rank” as per the
guidelines of NR Bulletin 16, District resources are quantified by Year of Construction and Architectural
Style to help illustrate the general building trends and pattern within the area.

ANALYSIS BY EVALUATION/RANKING: QUANTITY % TOTAL
Total Number of Resources within boundaries: 382 100%
Contributing Resources, Total: T 267 69.90%

Primary Contributing (1883-1927) 219 57.33%
Secondary Contributing (1928-1949) 37 9.69%
Previously NR-Listed 11 2.88%
Non-Contributing, Total: 110 28.80%
Historic/Non-Contributing in Current Condition 18 4.71%
Non-Compatible/Non-Contributing 55 14.40%
Compatible/Non-Historic/Non-Contributing 37 9.69%
Vacant |Sites], Total 5 1.31%
ANALYSIS BY DATE OF CONSTRUCTION [ALL BUILT RESOURCES]
1883-1889 30 7.98%
1890-1899 44 11.7%
1900-1909 122 32.45%
1910-1919 32 8.51%
1920-1929 15 3.99%
1930-1939 4 1.06%
1940-1949 39 10.37%
1950-1959 17 4.52%
1960-1969 18 4.79%
1970-1979 16 4.26%
1980-1989 15 3.99%
1990~ 24 6.38
ANALYSIS BY ARCHITECTURAL STYLE [267 CONTRIBUTING RESOURCES ONLY]:
Other: Vernacular 185 69.28%
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow 43 16.10%
Arts & Crafts: Craftsman 14 5.24%
Late 19™ Eclectic Styles 11 4.12%

Other Styles (5 or less examples each) 14 5.24%
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SUMMARY:

Today, the Railroad District, while substantially quieter than during its heyday, remains a clearly defined
entity within the City of Ashland. The 382 resources of the District retain a very high degree of integrity
in setting, workmanship and use of materials, with almost 7 out of 10 area structures remaining from the
District’s two periods of significance and retaining sufficient integrity to relate their historic appearance
and convey the original development pattern. In the mid-1990s, after Southern Pacific had puiled out of
the Rogue River Valley entirely, the old Siskiyou grade and the original rail line between California and
Eugene, Oregon were sold to a new operator. Freight trains can once again be heard through Ashland, as
muitiple diesel engines gather speed for the pull up the still daunting grade of the Siskiyou Mountains.
Today, the visual character and overall feeling of the Railroad District remains much as it once was and
the area admirably and effectively relates the associations which make it significant under Criteria “A”
for listing on the National Register of Historic Places.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION:

The nominated area includes the plat of the Railroad Addition to the Toun of Ashland as filed in February 1884
and recorded in Jackson County “Road Records” Vol. 2, page 42, the entire area of the Second Railroad Addition to
the Town of Ashland, as filed in January 1889 and recorded in Jackson County Deed Records Vol. 18, page 16, all
of Blocks 19, 20, 22 and 23 and lots 1 and 4 of Block 21 of the Chitwood Tract, as filed in February 1887 and
recorded in Jackson County Deed Records Vol. 13, pages 447-8, Lots 1-12 of McCall's Addition, Lots 1-4 and
Lots 45-47 of White’s Addition, all lots in Miner’s Addition with frontage on East Main Street, all lots in Blocks 3,
15 and 19 of the Original Town Plat of Ashland with frontage facing B Street or facing Oak Street north of Lithia
Way and south of Van Ness Street, the Railroad Village Subdivision, the Golden Spike Subdivision and all other
unspecified lots and parcels that lie with the boundary encompassing all of the following:

Beginning at the intersection of Oak Street and Van Ness streets following the northern boundary of Tax
Lot 5801 as shown on Jackson County Assessors Plat 391E4CC and continuing in a southerly direction
along the northernmost property lines of all those tax lots facing Oak Street in Block 15 of the Original
Town Plat of Ashland then west along the northern property line of Tax Lot 6900, then turning south
along the western property line of that same tax lot and crossing B Street and continuing along the
western property line of Tax Lot 11000 as shown on Assessors Plat 391E9BB and continuing in a
southerly direction to the northern line of Tax Lot 11600 on that same plat and running southeasterly
along the northern side of Lithia Way, following said line southerly to C Street and continuing to the
intersection of C Street and East Main Street, then following the southern line of Tax Lot 15300 as
shown on Assessors Plat 391E9AC and following the southern line of that parcel to the SE corner of Tax
Lot 15300, thence north along the eastern line of Tax Lot 15300 to its intersection with the southern
line of Tax Lot 14900, then along the northern lines of all those tax lots of the McCall’s Addition facing
north on East Main Street and continuing easterly along the rear lot line of all tax lots facing East Main
Street to the easternmost line of Tax Lot 5800 as shown on Assessors Plat 391E9AD, that being the
western side of Morse Street, then north across East Main Street and along the eastern boundary of the
Second Railroad Addition (being the western boundary of DLC 43), thence continuing north along that
same boundary (being the eastern boundary of Block Y of the Railroad Addition) to the intersection of
that line and the Southern Pacific Railroad tracks, then west following those tracks to the point of
beginning, it being the intent of the above to outline the area of Ashland more succinctly defined as;

all those lands within the roughly rectangular area framed by the Southern Pacific Railroad
Right-of-Way, Eighth Street, East Main Street, C Street, Lithia Way, Oak Street, and Van
Ness, including all properties facing A, Oak, B and East Main streets outside the platted
boundary of the original Railroad and Second Railroad additions.



NPS Form 10-900-A OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Section Number: 10 Page: _2 Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District, Ashland, OR

BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION:

The nominated area includes the lands of the Railroad and Second Railroad additions of Ashland as well as all those
properties that line the railroad track right of way and that face Oak, B and East Main streets north of the
traditional downtown core, west of the Second Railroad Addition, and east of Water Street. This area
encompasses generally mirrors the boundaries of the Railroad District as generally recognized and designated by
the City of Ashland’s historic review authority for the past 20 years. Visually, the edges of the proposed district
through historic lot division, architectural scale, use, or other qualities accurately delineate the traditional
development pattern of the historic periods as detailed in Sections 7 and 8 of this nomination. The wide open
commercial and industrially-zoned parcels north of the railroad tracks form a clearly defined separation for the
northern boundary while the two entries at the east, on both B and East Main streets, are created by the angled
connection in the streets created by the intersection of the Second Railroad to surrounding lands, an angle which
limits the internal viewscape from that point to a sufficient degree to document the varied development of the area
within and beyond the district. Large street trees and architectural characteristics support the southern and
western boundary lines, where the lower, residentially-inspired development pattern of the District abuts the more
traditional downtown and auto-inspired developments of Ashland's commercial core. 1n short, the area defined by
the above boundary includes all those areas traditionally associated with the arrival and established of the railroad
in Ashland, its eventual decline, and accurately encompasses the entire portion of the city that is directly related to
that period of development and retains sufficient integrity to relate the pertinent association. The edges of the
district reflect changes in land use, development and architectural character that separate and divide the district
from its surroundings with adequate and recognizable variation.

UTM References:
Zone - 10

A -523850/4671840
B - 524740/ 4671520
C-524740/ 4671140
D - 524150/ 4671170
E - 523720 /4671540
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1. Historic View: Birdseye View of Ashland
Looking: SE, from Scenic Ave
Photographer: Unknown
Date of Photograph: c1890
Negative: Terry Skibby Collection

2. Historic View: Aerial View
Looking: SE, from Third & C Streets
Photographer: Unknown
Date of Photograph: post-1898
Negative: Terry Skibby Collection

3. Historic View: Fifth Street, between A & B
Looking: NE, (ID #181.0, 182.0 & 813.0)
Photographer: Unknown
Date of Photograph: ¢1900
Negative: Terry Skibby Collection

4.  Historic View: Paving “B Street”
Looking: East, from near 2™ Street
Photographer: Unknown
Date of Photograph: c1910
Negative: Terry Skibby Collection

S.  Historic View: B and First Streets
Looking: SE, ID #75.0 in foreground
Photographer: Unknown
Date of Photograph: ¢1910
Negative: Terry Skibby Collection

6. Historic View: Qak Street
Looking: NW, from “Lithia Way”
Photographer: Unknown
Date of Photograph: ¢1900
Negative: Terry Skibby Collection

7. Historic View: Potter Rooming Hse (#292.)
' Looking: SE, on Fourth Street
Photographer: Unknown
Date of Photograph: ¢.1915
Negative: Terry Skibby Collection

10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

Historic View: Aerial View, RR District
Looking: S, over RR Right-of-Way
Photographer: Unknown

Date of Photograph: 1961

Negative: Terry Skibby Collection

Historic View: Fourth Street, RR District
Looking: NE, from B Street
Photographer: Unknown

" Date of Photograph: ¢1960s

Negative: Terry Skibby Collection

Current View: RR District, from North
Looking: Southwest, across Tracks
Photographer: George Kramer

Date of Photograph: Spring 1998

Negative: Collection of the Photographer (11)

Current View: Seventh St, from North
Looking: South, across Tracks

Photographer: George Kramer

Date of Photograph: Spring 1998

Negative: Collection of the Photographer (12)

Current View: B Street, eastern entry
Looking: West

Photographer: George Kramer

Date of Photograph: Spring 1998

Negative: Collection of the Photographer (14)

Current View: E. Main, eastern entry
Looking: West

Photographer: George Kramer

Date of Photograph: Spring 1998

Negative: Collection of the Photographer (15)

Current View: East Main & Lithia Way
Looking: East, from Siskiyou/N. Main St
Photographer: George Kramer

Date of Photograph: Spring 1998

Negative: Collection of the Photographer (16)
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15.

16.

17.

18.

Current View: Qak Street entry

Looking: North, from Lithia Way
Photographer: George Kramer

Date of Photograph: Spring 1998

Negative: Collection of the Photographer (17)

Current View: Qak Street entry

Looking: South, across Tracks

Photographer: George Kramer

Date of Photograph: Spring 1998

Negative: Collection of the Photographer (18)

Current View: B Street, interior view
Looking: West, from 3" & B streets
Photographer: George Kramer

Date of Photograph: Spring 1998

Negative: Collection of the Photographer (5)

Current View: Fourth Street, interior view
Looking: North, from 4" and B streets
Photographer: George Kramer

Date of Photograph: Spring 1998

Negative: Collection of the Photographer (2)

ALL PHOTOS OF INDIVIDUAL RESOURCES SHARE THE

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

FOLLOWING INFORMATION:
Photographer: George Kramer
Date of Photograph: Winter 1997-1998
Negative: Collection of the Photographer

Current: POWELL THADDEUS HSE, #1.0
Looking: SW, from Oak Street

Current: MC NAIR W. H. & LORENA HSE, #2.0
Looking: W, from Oak Street

Current: MC NAIR W. H. HSE, #3.0
Looking: SW, from Qak Street

Current: POWELL D. SHERMAN HSE, #5.0
Looking: SW, from Oak Street

Current: LOOSELY GEORGE HSE, #6.0
Looking: W, from Qak Street

Current: MERLEY JOSIAH HSE, #7.0
Looking: W, from Qak Street

Current: BARNES ALBERT HSE, #8.0
Looking: NW, from Qak Street

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31

32.

33

34.

3s.

36.

37.

38.

39.

41.

42.

43.

45.

46.

Current: SMITH ELLIOTT HSE, #9.0
Looking: SW, from Qak Street

Current: THOMPSON RENTAL, #10.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: CHAPMAN-MICKELSON HSE, #11.0
Looking: NE, from Oak and B streets

Current; MILLER V. D. & MYRTLE RENTAL #12.0
Looking: SW, from B Street

Current: DAMON GEORGE HSE, #13.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: ANGLE LEVIL. HSE, #14.0
Looking: W, from Oak and B streets

Current: VAN SANT JAMES K. HSE II, #15.0
Looking: SW, from Qak Street

Current: SHERWIN EUGENE A. HSE, #16.0
Looking: SW, from Oak Street

Current: MC CALL JOHN HSE, #17.0
Looking: SW, from Oak Street

Current: HAMPTON HOMES REAL ESTATE, #18.0
Looking: SW, from Oak Street

Current: DON WOLFE EXXON STATION, #19.0
Looking: NE, from Oak and Lithia Way

Current: BOB CRESAP INSURANCE BLDG, #20.¢
Looking: NE, from Pioneer Street

Current: COFFEE GEORGE HSE, #21.0
Looking: NE, from Qak Street

Cument: FRANCO TONY & LULU HSE, #22.0
Looking: E, from Oak Street

Current: NEW OFFICE BLDG, #23.0
Looking: SE, from Oak and B streets

Current: HARGROVE ANNA & IDA HSE, #24.0
Looking: W, from B and Pioneer streets

Current: BELL CLARENCE & RACHEL, #25.0
Looking: W, from Pioneer Street

Current: MURPHY ROY G. RENTAL, #26.0
Looking: W, from Pioneer Street

Current: PIONEER TV/ARCHIES CLEANERS, #27.0
Looking: SW, from Pioneer Street

Current: ENDERS WHLS GRO [Cantwells], #28.0
Looking: NE, from Oak Street

Current: PIONEER CAR WASH, #29.0
Looking: SE, from parking lot



NPS Form 10-900-A

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places

Continuation Sheet

Section Number: PHOTOS Page: _3

OMB Approval No. 1024-0018 (8-86)

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District, Ashland, OR

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

65.

66.

67.

Current: ASHLAND NATL GUARD ARMORY, #30.0
Looking: NE, from Oak and B streets

Current: SHAW RENTAL, #31.0
Looking: NE, from B street

Current: HOSLEY CHARLES HSE, #32.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: ROYLE H. STEVE RENTALS, #33.0
Looking: NE, from B Street

Current: GOSNELL EVA HSE, #34.0
Looking: NE, from B Street

Current: RICHARDSON-GOOD HSE, #35.0
Looking: NW, from B Street

Current: RICE MARY HSE, #36.0
Looking: NW, from B Street

Current: BLALOCK WALTER HSE, #37.0
Looking: NE, from B and Pioneer streets

Current: HERITAGE BANK, #38.0
Looking: NE, from Pioneer Street

Current: ASHLAND COMM FOOD STORE, #39.0
Looking: NW, from First Street

Current: TOWN HALL, #40.0
Looking: NE, from Pioneer Street

Current: GANIARD LUCINDA RENTAL VI, #41.0
Looking: E, from Pioneer Street

Current: HAY WAREHSE, #42.0
Looking: SW, from A Street

Cumrent: OAK ST TANK STORAGE BLDG, #43.0
Looking: W, from A Street

Current: J. W. COPEL& LUMBER YARD, #44.0
Looking: NW, from Lithia Way

Current: TEMPEST COURT, #45.0
Looking: N, from Lithia Way and First

Current: LOSHER JAMES W. HSE, #47.0
Looking: E, from Pioneer Street

Current: MULIT LLOYD HSE, #48.0
Looking: E, from Pioneer Street

Current: VINING-WHITE HSE, #49.0
Looking: SW, from B Street

Current: VINING MARY HSE, #50.0
Looking: SW, from B Street

Current: ANDERSON BELLE HSE, #51.0
Looking: S, from B Street

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

79.

80.

81.

82.

83.

84.

8s.

86.

87.

88.

Current: CHILCOTT-SHAW HSE, #52.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: WOODS MARC & ALTA HSE, #53.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: RALPH HELEN RENTAL, #54.0
Looking: W, from First Street

Current: FERGUSON JAMES HSE, #55.0
Looking: SW, from B Street

Current: MCMORRIS R. & M. HSE, #56.0
Looking: SW, from A Street

Current: BLUNCK ELMER HSE, #57.0
Looking: NW, from Second Street

Current: WHITE FIR LUMBER CO BLDG, #58.0
Looking: SW, from A Street

Current: SOUTH VALLEY AUTO REPAIR, #59.0
Looking: 8, from A Street

Current: [Related House], #59.0
Looking: SE, from First Street

Current: HALL-THOMPSON HSE, #60.0
Looking: SW, from alley off First Street

Current: GHEA THOS & MARTHA D. HSE, #61.0
Looking: E, from First Street

Current: OLSON-FITZGERALD HSE, #62.0
Looking: E, from First Street (on right of image)

Current: HARPER-LUNCEFORFD RENTAL, #63.0
Looking: E, from First Strect

Current: HARPER E. L. & VERNA HSE, #64.0
Looking: E, from First Street

Current: FAULCONER ALFRED HSE, #65.0
Looking: NE, from alley off First Street

Current;: LOVE G. W. RENTAL |, #66.0
Looking: SW, from Second Street

Current: LOVE G. W. RENTAL II, #67.0
Looking: W, from Second Street

Current: [MARSHALL] CARPENTER-LOVE, #68.0
Looking: NW, from Second Street

Current: HOSLEY CHARLES HSE, #69.0
Looking: W, from Second Street

Current: JONES WILLIAM HSE, #70.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: FOX WILLIAM F. HSE, #71.0
Looking: N, from B Street
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89.

90.

91.

92.

93.

94.

95.

96.

97.

98.

100.

10l.

102.

103.

104.

105.

106.

107.

108.

109.

Current: HEFFLING JOHN HSE, #72.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: STEPHENSON GEO. W. RENTAL 1, #73.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: STEPHENSON-HARVEY HSE, #74.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: ZELLER-MARKLE HSE, #75.0
Looking: NE, from B and First streets

Current: ASHLAND PUBLIC WORKS SHOPS, #76.0
Looking: W, from parking lot off A Street

Current: UNKNOWN HSE, #77.0
Looking: E, from Second Street

Current: WALLBANK ERIK HSE, #78.0
Looking: E, from alley off Second Street

Current: SCHOENWALD JOHN HSES, #79.0
Looking: E, from Second Street

Current: SCHOENWALD JOHN HSES, #79.0
Looking: E. from alley off Second Street

Current: WHITMORE S. 1. HSE, #80.0
Looking: W, from Third Street

Current: BESWICK RENTAL |, #81.0
Looking: W, from Third Street

Current: BESWICK RENTAL 11, #82.0
Looking: W, from Third Street

Current: BESWICK RENTAL III, #83.0
Looking: NW, from Third Street

Current: MILLS-POLEY HSE, #84.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: COOKE NICHOLAS HSE, #85.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: VAN SANT J. K. RENTALT, #86.0
Looking: NW, from B Street

Current: VAN SANT J. K. RENTAL 1L, #87.0
Looking: NE, from B Street

Current: GANIARD LUCINDA RENTAL 11, #88.0
Looking: NW, from B Street

Current: GANIARD LUCINDA RENTAL HI, #89.0
Looking: NE, from B Street

Current: GRUBB MILLARD HSE, #90.0
Looking: NW, from B Street

Current: LOOMIS E.F. BLDG, #91.0
Looking: SW, from A and Fourth streets

110.

111

112,

113.

114.

115,

116.

117.

118.

119.

120.

121.

122

123,

124

125.

126.

127.

128.

129.

130.

Current: LOOMIS E.F. BLDG, related, #91.0
Looking: S, from A Street

Current: SCHOOLHSE R ELECTRIC, #92.0
Looking: W, from Fourth Street

Current: POWELL WILLIAM HSE, #93.0
Looking: SW, from A Street

Current: GANIARD LUCINDA RENTAL 1V, #94.0
Looking: S, from A Street

Cumrent: GANIARD LUCINDA RENTAL V, #95.0
Looking: SW, from A Street

Current: PELTON JOHN RENTAL, #96.0
Looking: SW, from A Street

Current: ENDERS-CORBETT HSE, #97.0
Looking: NE, from Third Street

Current: CORBETT-HUGHES HSE, #98.0
Looking: NE, from Third Street

Current: DAVISON FRANK HSE, #99.0
Looking: E. from Third Street

Current: POSITIVELY FOURTH STREET, #100.0
Looking: W, from Fourth Street

Current: PEERLESS ROOMS BLDG, #101.0
Looking: NW, from Fourth Street

Current: AURAL CLINIC, #102.0
Looking: NW, from Fourth Street

Current; NININGER CHARLES BLDG 11, #103.0
Looking: NW, from Fourth and B streets

Current: LONG M. N. RENTAL, #104.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: LONG M. N. RENTAL |, #105.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: SPIEGEL GOTTLIEB BLDG, #106.0
Looking: NW, from B Street

Current: ABBOTT-PRESCOTT HSE, #107.0
Looking: NW, from B Street

Current: VORIS DUPLEX, #108.0
Looking: NE, from B Street

Current: PINKSTON-BARTGES HSE, #109.0
Looking: SE, from B and Third streets

Current: ROYLSTON DOTT & EARL HSE, #110.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: JOHNSON H. & M. HSE, #111.0
Looking: S, from B Street
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131.

132.

133.

134.

135.

136.

137.

138.

139.

140.

141.

142.

143,

145.

146.

147.

148,

149.

150.

151,

Current: HERZMAN APARTMENTS, #112.0
Looking: SW, from B and Fourth street

Current: ENGWICHT GEORGE HSE, #113.0
Looking: SW, from Fourth Street

Current: BURNS WILLIAM & ELLA HSE, #114.0
Looking: W, from Fourth Street

Current: WHITE HENRY RENTAL 1, #115.0
Looking: W, from Fourth Street

Current: WHITE HENRY RENTAL Iil, #116.0
Looking: W, from Fourth Street

Current: VAN SANT J. K. HSE, #117.0
Looking: NW from Fourth and C streets

Current: SMITH-LEONARD RENTAL, #118.0
Looking: NW, from C Street

Current: NORTSTROM J. & O. RENTAL, #119.0
Looking: E, from Third Street

Current: HARTLEY ROY RENTAL 1, #119.100
Looking: E, from Third Street

Current; SMITH C. & V. RENTAL, #120.0
Looking: N, from C Street

Current: GROAT W. A. HSE, #121.0
Looking: E, from Third Street

Current: WHETSTONE N. & B. RENTAL, #122.0
Looking: E, from Third Street

Current: BOIVEN HENRY & NELLIE HSE, #123.0
Looking: E, from Third Street

Current: FIRST CHRISTIAN CHURCH, #124.0
Looking: E, from Second Street

Cumrent: PRATT JOHN HSE, #125.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: HICKS MARGARET RENTAL 111, #126.0
Looking: SW, from B Street

Current: JOHNSON STEVE HSE, #127.0
Looking: SW, from B Street

Current: DE MARINIS SUSAN OFFICE, #128.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: KANE E. C. HSE, #129.0
Looking: SW, from B and Third streets

Current: HOSLEY ROY HSE, #130.0
Looking: W, from Third Street

Current: WELLS ERASTUS . & ELLEN HSE, #131.0
Looking: W, from Third Street

152.

153.

154.

155.

156.

157.

158.

159.

160.

161.

162.

163.

164.

165.

166.

167.

168.

169.

170.

171.

172.

Current: BLEVINS F. M. RENTAL, #132.0
Looking: W, from Third Street

Current: VAN TASSEL. MARGARET HSE, #133.0
Looking: W, from Third Street

Current: SILSBY COLONEL WM H. HSE, #134.0
Looking: NW, from Third and C streets

Current: DANFORD BEECHER HSE, #135.0
Looking: NE, from Second and C streets

Current: HICKS MARGARET HSE, #136.0
Looking: E, from Second Street

Current: ALWINE ALVIN HSE, #137.0
Looking: E, from Second Street

Current: HARGADINE CHAS & CARRIE, #138.0
Looking: NE, from Second Street

Current: PELTON JOHN & CHARLOTTE, #140.0
Looking: SE, from First and B streets

Current: EDLUND GUSTAVUS HSE, #141.0
Looking: SW, from B Street

Current: SCHOENWALD APTS, #142.0
Looking: W, from Second Strect

Current: PLUMERTH JACOB HSE, #143.0
Looking: W, from Second Street

Current: SHOOK 1SAAC & MARTHA HSE, #144.0
Looking: W, from Second Street

Current: MOREHOUSE SHERMAN RNTL, #145.0
Looking: NW, from Second Street

Current: SHOOK ISAAC RENTAL, #146.0
Looking: W, from Second Strect

Current: SHELL STATION/ROCKET PHOTO, #147.0
Looking: NW, from Second and Lithia Way

Current: ASH POST OFFICE, #148.0
Looking: NE, from First and Lithia Way

Current: ASH FRUIT & PRODUCE ASSN, #149.0
Looking: W, from A Street

Current: ASHHDW & A ST OFF SUPPLY, #150.0
Looking: NE, from A Street

Current: JOHN FIELDS BLDG, #151.0
Looking: N, from A Street

Current: GRANGE CO-OP, #152.0
Looking: NW, from A Street

Current: HOXMEIER BLDG, #153.0
Looking: NW, from Fourth and A streets
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173.

174.

175.

176.

177.

178.

179.

180.

i81.

182.

183.

184,

185,

186.

187.

188.

189,

190.

191,

192.

193.

Current: B W SQUARED BLDG, #154.0
Looking: NE, from A Street

Current: MCMULLAN-SHELTON BLDG, #155.0
Looking: NE, from A Street

Current: ASHLAND INSURANCE, #156.0
Looking: NW, from A Street

Current: JEGA GALLERY, #157.0
Looking: NE, from A Street

Current: BEMIS-S&LER BLDG, #158.0
Looking: NE, from A Street

RAILROAD DISTRICT PARK, #159.0
Looking: West

Current: JACKSON DENTAL OFFICE, #160.0
Looking: SW, from Fifth and A streets

Current: EURO-MEK AUTO REPAIR, #161.0
Looking: S, from A Street

Current: POWELL THADDEUS RENTAL, #162.0
Looking: S, from A Street

Current: EASTERLING JOHN M. BLDG, #163.0
Looking: SW, from A Street

Current: VAN SANT J. K. BLDG, #164.0
Looking: SW, from A Street

Current: FURNITURE DEPOT, #165.0
Looking: SE, from Fourth and A streets

Current: FURNITURE DEPOT [Related], #165.0
Looking: E, from Fourth Streets

Current: ASHLAND HOSE COMPANY NO. 2, #166.0
Looking: SE, from Fourth Street

Current: WHITTLE TRANSFER CO. WHSE, #168.0
Looking: NE, from Fourth Street

Current: HENNAN PRICE HSE, #169.0
Looking: NE, from Fourth Street

Current: NININGER CHARLES RENTAL, #170.0
Looking: W, from Fifth Street

Cumrent;: MITCHELL HENRY HSE, #171.0
Looking: W, from Fifth Street

Current: SPAYDE MARY ADA HSE, #172.0
Looking: NW, from Fifth and B streets

Current: SMITH KELCY & RUBY HSE, #173.0
Looking: E, from B Street

Current: NININGER CHARLES BLDG 11, #174.0
Looking: NE, from Fourth and B streets

194.

195.

196.

197.

198.

199.

200.

201.

202.

203.

204.

205.

206.

207.

208.

209.

210.

211.

212,

213.

214

Current: HERZMAN APT COMPLEX, #175.0
Looking: E, from B Street

Current: BOULTON RENTAL, #176.0
Looking: NW, from B Street

Current: OLSON EDGAR & THELMA HSE, #177.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: FRULAN JOHN & CLARA HSE, #178.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: AHLSTROM NILS RENTAL, #179.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Cusrrent: TREFERN MARY HSE, #180.0
Looking: N, from B Street

Current: EARLY VERNACULAR HSE, #181.0
Looking: E, from Fifth Street

Current: AHLSTROM NILS HSE, #182.0
Looking: E, from Fifth Street

Current: AHLSTROM NILS RENTAL, #183.0
Looking: NE, from Fifth Street

Current: AHLSTROM NORTH HSE, #184.0
Looking: W, from Sixth Street

Current: EVERTON WALTER HSE, #185.0
Looking: W, from Sixth Street

Current: GILLIAM L. & E. HSE, #186.0
Looking: SW, from Sixth Street

Current: FARQUAR GEO & NELLIE HSE, #187.0
Looking: SW, from Sixth and A streets

Curmrent: YOUNG-DAVENPORT [Moved], #188.0
Looking: S, from A Street

Current: CASEY JOHN R. HSE [Moved), #189.0
Looking: SW, from A Street

Current: ASH DEPOT HOTEL SO WING, #190.0
Looking: SW, from A Street

Current: PARKER-DAVIES HSE, #191.0
Looking: SW, from A and Seventh streets

Current: FLOOK-GRUBB HSE, #192.0
Looking: S, from A Street

Current: SANDLER BLDG, #193.0
Looking: S, from A Street

Current: HANNON L. & 1. HSE 1, #194.0
Looking: E, from Sixth Street

Current: HANNON L. & [. HSEII, #195.0
Looking: E, from Sixth Street
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215. Current: HANNON LEONARD T. RENTAL, #196.0 236. Current: HERBIG THOMAS & M. L. HSE, #217.0
Looking: E, from Sixth Street Looking: S, from A Street

216. Current: TURNER O. B. HSE, #197.0 237. Current: DEWS OLIVER RENTAL, #218.0
Looking: E, from Sixth Street Looking: S, from A Street

217. Current: WALKER LUNSFORD HSE, #198.0 238. Current: WALT ANDERS AUTO REPAIR, #219.0
Looking: W, from Seventh Street Looking: S, from A Street

218. Current: McCLUNG-PETERSON HSE, #199.0 239. Current: DEWS OLIVER HSE, #220.0
Looking: W, from Seventh Street Looking: S, from A Street

219. Current: POIRERA JOSEPH HSE, #200.0 240. Current: BELL GLEN & OPAL HSE, #221.0
Looking: NW, from Seventh and B streets Looking: E, from Eighth and A streets

220. Current: DUNKIN JAMES HSE, #201.0 241. Current: HAHN-JACKSON HSE, #222.0
Looking: N, from B Street Looking: E, from Eighth Street

221, Current: SILVER CATHERINE HSE, #202.0 242, Current: STRONG-LARAMORE HSE, #223.0
Looking: N, from B Street Looking: E, from Eighth Street

222. Current: HEDBERG-SILVER HSE, #203.0 243. Current: SMITH WILLIAM & ANNIE HSE, #224.0
Looking: NW, from B Street Looking: NE, from Eighth and B streets

223. Current: BROWN MATTIE RENTAL, #204.0 244, Current: HAHN RENTAL, #225.0
Looking: N, from B Street Looking: E, from Eighth Street

224. Current: BROWN CHAS & MATTIE HSE, #205.0 245. Current: COOLEY BENSON D. HSE, #226.0
Looking: NW, from B and Seventh streets Looking: N, from B Street

225. Cumrent: COSSAIRT-EAST HSE, #206.0 246. Cumrent: PAYNE ANDREW S. HSE, #227.0
Looking: N, from B Street Looking: S, from B Street

226. Current: RITZINGER-FLACKUS HSE, #207.0 247. Current: THROOP ELMER HSE, #228.0
Looking: N, from B Street Looking: S, from B Street

227. Current: HANSEN HANS HSE, #208.0 248. Current: LINDSAY WILLIAM HSE, #229.0
Looking: NE, from B Street Looking: SE, from B and Eighth streets

228. Current: CAREY R. L. HSE, #209.0 249. Curmrent: HARRINGTON E. & B. HSE, #230.0
Looking: N, from B Street Looking: E, from Eighth Street

229, Current: DODSON W. D. HSE, #210.0 250. Current: BILLINGS-STERRETT HSE, #231.0
Looking: NE, from B Street Looking: E, from Eighth Street

230. Current: DAWSON-REYNOLDS HSE, #211.0 251. Current: HARP-LONG HSE, #232.0
Looking: E, from Seventh Street Looking: SE, from Eighth Street

231. Current: OLSON TRIPLEX, #212.0 252. Current: ENGWICHT-MC MILLAN HSE, #233.0
Looking: E, from Seventh Street Looking: NE, from Eighth and C streets

232. Current: CROWSON FRANK & ANNA HSE, #213.0 253. Current: PROSPHYLA RENTAL, #235.0
Looking: W, from Eighth Street Looking: N, from C Street

233. Current: NEELEY-SETTLES HSE SITE , #214.0 254, Current: JACOBS RENTAL, #236.0
Looking: W, from Eighth Street Looking: N, from East Main Street

234. Current: BUTLER JOHN HSE, #215.0 255. Current: JACOBS-SLACK HSE, #237.0
Looking: S, from Eighth and A streets Looking: N, from East Main Street

235. Current: WOOD-FRAME CABINET SHOP, #216.0 256. Current: THOMPSON MAE G. HSE, #238.0

Looking: SE, from A Street

Looking: N, from East Main Street
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257.

258.

259.

260.

261.

262.

263.

264.

265.

266.

267.

268.

269.

270.

271.

272,

273.

274.

275,

276.

2717.

Current: CALLE WINTERS' GROCERY, #239.0
Looking: N, from East Main Street

Current: NEWMAN APARTMENTS, #240.0
Looking: N, from East Main Street

Current: READER MRS. J. K. RENTAL, #241.0
Looking: SE, from Eighth and C streets

Current: REID ETHEL S. HSE, #242.0
Looking: N, from East Main Street

Current: BOOTH OREN HSE, #243.0
Looking: SW, from Eighth and B streets

Current: HOLMES-FLACKUS HSE, #244.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: GRAVES H. & E. HSE, #245.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: TIBBETTS ELMO HSE, #246.0
Looking: SE, from B and Seventh Street

Current: LONG OSMER & LILA HSE, #247.0
Looking: NW, from Eighth Street

Current: MODERN HSE, #248.0
Looking: W, from Eighth Street

Current: MORRIS-PORTER HSE, #249.0
Looking: W, from Eighth Street

Current: EGGLESTON-DAVIS HSE, #250.0
Looking: SW, from Eighth Street

Current: CHURCHMAN GEORGE HSE, #251.0
Looking: E, from Seventh Street

Current: SOVERNS CARLETON B. HSE, #252.0
Looking: E, from Seventh Street

Current: COX ALLEN E. & SARAH HSE, #253.0
Looking: E, from Seventh Street

Current: EGLI RENTAL, #254.0
Looking: E, from Seventh Street

Current: MC CUNE JOSEPH HSE, #255.0
Looking: E, from Seventh Street

Current: SMITH GEO. & ELIZABETH HSE, #256.0
Looking: W, from Seventh Street

Current: SMITH HOUSE, [refated], #256.1
Looking: N, from C Street

Current: SNYDER V. & SARAH HSE, #257.0
Looking: W, from Seventh Street

Current: PFAFF CHARLES HSE, #258.0
Looking: W, from Seventh Street

278.

279.

280.

281.

282.

283.

284.

285,

286.

287.

288.

289.

290.

291.

292,

293.

294,

295.

296.

297.

298.

Current: BAKER ADAM & LYDIA HSE, #259.0
Looking: W, from Seventh Street

Current: COX-CAVIN HSE, #260.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: HILYER DUPLEX, #261.0
Looking: W, from Seventh Street

Current: POWELL D. SHERMAN RENTAL, #262.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: MILLER-LANG HSE, #263.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: GREENE DUPLEX 3, #264.0
Looking: SE, from B and Seventh street

Current: DILHAN JOSEPH & JESSIE HSE, #265.0
Looking: E, from Seventh Street

Current: UNIDENTIFIED HSE, #266.0
Looking: E, from Seventh Street

Current: RICE JOHN REV. RENTAL, #267.0
Looking: E, from Seventh Street

Current: CHISHOLM-OGG HSE, #268.0
Looking: E, from Seventh Street

Current: BLEDSOE HATTIE HSE, #269.0
Looking: E, from Seventh Street

Current: CHURCH OF THE HOLY ROSARY, #270.0
Looking: NE, from Seventh and C streets

Current: BADGER CLARENCE HSE, #271.0
Looking: SW, from Seventh Street

Current: HELMS-DILLE HSE [DUPLEX], #272.0
Looking: NE, from C Street

Current: VAN HORNE-WELLS HSE, #273.0
Looking: N, from C Street

Current: NORRIS-CLEVENGER HSE, #274.0
Looking: E, from alley off C Street

Current: WISE HERMAN & MARJORIE HSE, #275.0
Looking: NW, from Sixth Street

Current: STEPHENSON G. W. RENTAL I, #276.0
Looking: W, from Sixth Street

Current: FARRA-MC FARL& HSE, #277.0
Looking: SW, from Sixth and B streets

Current: LOOMIS WILLIAM F. HSE, #278.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: HARRIS CARL N. HSE, #279.0
Looking: S, from B Street
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299,

300.

301,

302,

303.

304.

305.

306.

307.

308.

309.

310.

311

312.

313.

314

315.

316.

317,

318.

319.

Current: KEPLER-ELLIS HSE, #280.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: MELLUS RICHARD HSE, #281.0
Looking: E, from Fifth Street

Current: BANKS JOHN HSE, #282.0
Looking: E, from Fifth Street

Current: LYN APARTMENTS, #283.0
Looking: NE, from Fifth and C streets

Current: MC GINNIS LUKE RENTAL I, #284.0
Looking: NW, from Fifth and C streets

Current: MC GINNIS LUKE RENTAL II, #285.0
Looking: NE, from C Street

Current: BAER VICTORIA HSE, #286.0
Looking: W, from Fifth Street

Current: BAER EDWARD HSE, #287.0
Looking: W, from Fifth Street

Current: TAYLOR JOHN HSE, #288.0
Looking: W, from Fifth Street

Current: WOLFE JULIUS P. HSE, #289.0
Looking: SW, from Fifth and B streets

Current: WHITE HENRY RENTAL, #290.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: WINKLLER WALTER RENTAL, #291.0
Looking: S, from B Street

Current: POTTER ROOMING HSE, #292.0
Looking: E, from Fourth Street

Current: VEGHTE CHARLES HSE, #293.0
Looking: E, from Fourth Street

Current; WOODEN WILLIAM HSE, #294.0
Looking: E, from Fourth Street

Current: MC FARLAND A. E. RENTAL, #296.0
Looking: E, from Fourth Street

Current: APARTMENT COMPLEX, #297.0
Looking: NE, from Fourth and C streets

Current: ASH 7TH DAY ADVENTIST, #298.0
Looking: NE, from Fourth Street

Current: PORTER FRANK J. HSE, #299.0
Looking: SW, from C Street

Current: SCHULTZ A. F. HSE I, #300.0
Looking: SE, from Fourth Street

Current: HASKINS SARAH J. HSE, #301.0
Looking: E, from Fourth Street

320.

321.

322.

323.

324.

325.

326.

327.

328.

329,

330.

331,

332,

333.

334.

33s.

336.

337.

338.

339.

340.

Current: DWYER JOHN G. HSE, #302.,0
Looking: E, from Fourth Street

Current: CARTER/SM RENTAL, #303.0
Looking: E, from Fourth Street

Current: DAVIS-AINSWORTH LAW OFF, #304.0
Looking: NE, from Fourth and East Main streets

Current: CALLAHAN-MANSFIELD HSE, #305.0
Looking: N, from East Main Street

Current: WILSON-BYRD HSE, #306.0
Looking: N, from East Main Street

Current: VAN SANT-BRYANT HSE, #307.0
Looking: N, from East Main Street

Current: HUBBARD-HARDY HSE, #308.0
Looking: N, from East Main Street

Current: PALETHORPE GEORGE HSE, #309.0
Looking: NW, from Fifth and East Main streets

Current: GANIARD SARAH RENTAL, #310.0
Looking: W, from Fifth Street

Current: O'DONOGHUE LAURA HSE, #311.0
Looking: W, from Fifth Street

Current: CROCKER MERTON HSE, #312.0
Looking: SW, from Fifth Street

Current: JAMISON H. & M. HSE, #313.0
Looking: E, from alley off C Street

Current: FLAGG W. H. HSE, #314.0
Looking: W, from Fifth Street

Current: KING-MATHES RENTAL, #315.0
Looking: SW, from C Street

Current: KING BURTON F. HSE, #316.0
Looking: SW, from C Street

Current: MILLER-VAN VACTOR HSE, #317.0
Looking: SE, from Fifth and C streets

Current: EASLICK WILLIAM RENTAL, #318.0
Looking: E, from Fifth Street

Current: EASLICK APARTMENT UNITS, #318.1
Looking: SE, from Fifth Street

Current: SENSENY-MC GINNIS HSE, #319.0
Looking: S, from Fifth Street

Current: ASH FOURSQUARE CHURCH, #320.0
Looking: NE, from Fifth and East Main streets

Current: ASH FOURSQUARE HALL, #320.1
Looking: E, from Fifth Street
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341.

342,

343.

344,

345,

346.

347.

348.

349.

350.

351.

352.

353.

354.

355.

356.

357.

358.

359.

360.

361.

Current; SHULTZ A.F. HSE [, #321.0
Looking: N, from East Main Street

Current: MORRIS J. W. B. & CYNTHIA HSE, #322.0
Looking: N, from East Main Street

Current: MORRIS J. W. B. RENTAL, #323.0
Looking: N, from East Main Street

Current: LONG ELIZA RENTAL, #324.0
Looking: N, from East Main Street

Current: SLINGERLAND G. R. RENTAL, #325.0
Looking: N, from East Main Street

Current: LUCAS-PARKER HSE, #326.0
Looking: SW, from Sixth Street

Current: LUCAS-PARKER RELATED UNIT, #326.1
Looking: SW, from Sixth Street

Current: ROSE MARY E. HSE, #327.0
Looking: SW, from Sixth Street

Current: OLSON DUPLEX, #328.0
Looking: SW, from Sixth and C streets

Current: MONROE GEORGE HSE, #329.0
Looking: NE, from Sixth Street

Current; ROSE BROTHERS RENTAL, #330.0
Looking: NE, from Sixth Street

Current: LUDLOW-STEVENS HSE, #331.0
Looking: S, from C Street

Current: GROVER-TURNER HSE [Modified], #332.0
Looking: S, from C Street

Current: POLEY W. M. RENTAL, #333.0
Looking: SW, from Seventh Street

Current: PNB/US WEST SWITCHING BLDG, #334.0
Looking: NE, from East Main Street

Current: WILSON MERRITT & NANCY HSE, #335.0
Looking: NW, from East Main Street

Current: FREE METHODIST PARSONAGE, #336.0
Looking: NW, from East Main Street

Current: FREE METHODIST CHURCH, #337.0
Looking: NW, from East Main and Seventh streets

Current: GREENE DUPLEX, #338.0
Looking: SE, from East Main and Seventh streets

Current: GREENE DUPLEX 2, #339.0
Looking: NE, from East Main Street

Current: EVENSON EVEN HSE, #340.0
Looking: SE, from Seventh Street

362.

363.

364.

365.

366.

367.

368.

369.

370.

371

372

373.

374

37s.

376.

377.

378.

379.

380.

381.

382

Current: RANCH HSE INFILL, #341.0
Looking: S, from C Street

Current: HOWETT-BAGLEY HSE, #342.0
Looking: E, from East Main Street

Current;: POTTER S. A. HSE SITE, #343.0
Looking: E, from East Main Street

Current: BOSTWICK E. & NINA HSE, #344.0
Looking: SE, from C Street

Current: LANE CLARENCE HSE [MOVED], #345.0
Looking: S, from Eighth and C streets

Current: INLOW-SHERARD HSE, #346.0
Looking: S, from East Main Street

Current: CHURCH OF NAZERENE, #347.0
Looking: W, from Fourth Street

Cumrent: STAUFFER E. L. & EVA HSE, #348.0
Looking: W, from Fourth Street

Current: MODERN DUPLEX, #349.0
Looking: W, from Fourth Street

Current: GIBSON W. C. HSE, #350.0
Looking: W, from Fourth Street

Current: BROWN-DECKER HSE, #351.0
Looking: W, from Fourth Street

Current: ASHLAND PROFESSIONAL CTR, #352.0
Looking: N, from Lithia Way

Current: ROGUE FEDERAL CREDITUNION, #354.0
Looking: N, from Lithia Way

Current: GOFF EDGAR & KATE HSE 11, #355.0
Looking: E, from Third Street

Current: GOFF EDGAR & KATE HSE I, #356.0
Looking: SE, from Third Street

Current: HICKS MARGARET HSE 11, #357.0
Looking: E, from Third Street

Current: EVANS JULIA HSE 1, #358.0
Looking: NE, from Third Street

Current: EVANS JULIA HSE I, #359.0
Looking: NE, from Third Street

Current: GANIARD LUCINDA RENTAL 1, #360.0
Looking: SE, from Third Street

Current: MOREHOUSE SHERMAN HSE, #361.0
Looking: S, from Third Street

Current: MOREHOUSE SHERMAN RNTL I, #362.0
Looking: SW, from Third Street
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383.

384,

38s.

386.

387.

388.

389.

390.

391.

392

393.

394,

395.

396.

397.

398.

399.

400.

Current: OESER'S FLYING A SERVICE, #363.0
Looking: NW, from Lithia Way

Current: VAN VLEET REAL ESTATE, #364.0
Looking: NW, from Lithia Way

Current: ASHLAND FIRE STATION #1, #365.0
Looking: SE, from East Main and Lithia Way

Current: TACO TIME/BLUE MT, #366.0
Looking: S, from East Main Street

Current: McCALL JESSE A. HSE, #367.0
Looking: SW, from East Main Street

Current: ROSE CHARLES & LAURA HSE, #368.0
Looking: SW, from East Main Street

Current; LONG O.W. & MINDA RENTAL, #369.0
Looking: SW, from East Main Street

Current: CURRIE JOSEPH T. BOARDING H, #370.0
Looking: SW, from East Main Street

Current: UNKNOWN HSE, #371.0
Looking: SW, from East Main Street

Current: READER 1K. RENTAL, #372.0
Looking: SW, from East Main and Sherman streets

Current: THE ASHLANDER CONDOS, #373.0
Looking: SE, from East Main and Sherman streets

Current: ASHLAND CEMETERY, #374.0
Looking: S, from East Main Street

Current: MAUPIN CHARLES & ELLA HSE, #375.0
Looking: W, from Dewey Street

Current: CRAFTSMAN INFILL HSE, #376.0
Looking: E, from Dewey and East Main Street

Current: CROWSON-ADDISION HSE, #377.0
Looking: SE, from East Main Street

Current: McCONNELL APTS,, #378.0
Looking: SW, from East Main and Alida streets

Current: BRYANT T.W. & DELPHIA HSE, #379.0
Looking: SE from East Main Street

Cumrent: FLORA FRANK & GLADYS HSE, #380.0
Looking: SE, from East Main Street
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Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District, 1883-1949
Ashland, Jackson County, OR '

NRIS #99000533
Listed 5-May-1999

The purpose of this continuation sheet is to amend and clarify the evaluation terminology in the Ashland
Railroad Addition Historic District nomination form so that those terms are both consistent with federal and
Oregon State Historic Preservation Office terminology. Evaluation terms from the original submittal are
therefore changed as follows:

Original Evaluation Terminology Amended Evaluation Terminology
Primary Contributing Historic Contributing (incls previously NR-Listed)
Secondary Contributing Historic Contributing
Historic, Non-Contributing in _
Current Condition Historic, Non-Contributing
Compatible, Non-Historic, Non-
Contributing Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Compatible, Non-Historic,
Non-Contributing Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Vacant Vacant (no change)

The “Number of Resources within the Property” caluculations remain unchanged, with 256 contributing
buildings and 115 non-contributing buildings and sites. The breakdown, by evaluation using the new
terminology, is 267 Historic Contributing (including 11 previously NR-Listed), 18 Historic, Non-
Contributing, 92 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing, and 5 Vacant.

The evalation terminology of the Ashland Railroad Historic District is amended for consistency with federal

and Qregon State Historic Preservation terminology. The number of Historic Contributing resources in the
district remains 256 and the number of non-contribuing resources remains 115

A Lol

Deputy Oregon State Historic Preservation Officer Date: 3 ¢ M 2002
. [4
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Ashland Railroad Addition Historic; Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: REVISED TERMINOLOGY March 2002

Yr Built New Evalution Terminology

Site Name

POWELL, THADDEUS HOUSE

MC NAIR, W. H. AND LORENA HOUSE

MC NAIR, W. H. HOUSE

VACANT PARCEL

POWELL, D. SHERMAN HOUSE
LOOSELY, GEORGE HOUSE
MERLEY, JOSIAH HOUSE

BARNES, ALBERT HOUSE

SMITH, ELLIOTT HOUSE
THOMPSON RENTAL HOUSE
CHAPMAN-MICKELSON HOUSE
MILLER, V. D. & MYRTLE RENTAL [
DAMON, GEORGE HOUSE
ANGLE, LEVI L. HOUSE

VAN SANT, JAMES K. HOUSE II
SHERWIN, EUGENE A. HOUSE

MC CALL, JOHN HOUSE
HAMPTON HOMES REAL ESTATE
DON WOLFE EXXON STATION
BOB CRESAP INSURANCE BUILDING
COFFEE, GEORGE HOUSE
FRANCO, TONY AND LULU HOUSE
NEW OFFICE BUILDING

HARGROVE, ANNA AND IDA HOUSE
BELL, CLARENCE & RACHEL RENTAL

MURPHY, ROY G. RENTAL HOUSE
PIONEER TV/ARCHIES CLEANERS

ENDERS WHOLESALE GROCERY WHS [C 310

PIONEER CAR WASH

ASHLAND OR NATIONAL GUARD ARMORO08

SHAW RENTAL HOUSE
HOSLEY, CHARLES HOUSE
ROYLE, H. STEVE RENTALS
GOSNELL, EVA HOUSE
RICHARDSON-GOOD HOUSE
RICE, MARY HOUSE

BILALOCK, WALTER HOUSE
HERITAGE BANK (Vailey of the Ro

ASHLAND COMMUNITY FOOD STORE

TOWN HALL

GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE V

HAY WAREHOUSE

Address
337 OAKST
323  OAKST
303 OAKST
0 OAK ST
281 OAK ST
263 OAKST
247 OAK ST
239  QOAKST
221 OAK ST
11 B STREET
209 OAKST
8 B STREET
14 B STREET
191 OAK ST
181 OAK ST
17m OAK ST
153 OAKST
135 OAK ST
75 C STREET
147 PIONEER ST
154 OAKST
170 OAKST
190 OAKST
185 PIONEER ST
175 PIONEER ST
163 PIONEER ST
151 PIONEER ST
OAK ST
310 OAKST
OAK ST
185 B STREET
171 B STREET
161 B STREET
145 B STREET
135 B STREET
123 B STREET
111 B STREET
250 PIONEER ST
237 FIRST ST
294  PIONEER ST
309 PIONEER ST
309 PIONEER ST

z z Z z

1910c
1910
1909
1]
1900
1917¢
1908
1904
1907¢
1930
1902¢
1940/94
1925¢
1904c
1907¢
1900c
1883
1969
1961
1971
1908¢
1946¢
1996
1909
1941c
1941c
1959¢
1925/94
1961/93
1913
1931c
1886¢
1979
1941
1884
1895¢
1908
1979
1993
1991
1900c
1908

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Vacant

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing [MR-listed}
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contrbuting
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contobuting
Non-Historic, Non-Contnbuting
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contdbuting



Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: REVISED TERMINOLOGY March 2002

D # Site Name Address Yr Built New Evalution Terminology
43.000 OAK ST TANK STORAGE BLDG 0 PIONEER ST N 1980 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
44000  J. W. COPELAND LUMBER YARD 165  CSTREET 1940 Historic, Non-Contributing
45.000 TEMPEST COURT 123  FIRST ST 1965 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
46.000 MUNICIPAL PARKING LOT 0 C STREET 1990c Vacant
47.000 LOSHER, JAMES W. HOUSE 150  PIONEERST N 1904 Historic Contrbuting
48.000 MULIT, LLOYD HOUSE 162 PIONEER ST N 1905 Historic Contributing
49.000 VINING-WHITE HOUSE 180  PIONEER ST N 1884 Historic Contributing
50.000 VINING, MARY HOUSE 136 B STREET 1886/8%  Historic Contributing
51.000 ANDERSON, BELLE HOUSE 142 B STREET 1908c Historic Contributing
52.000 CHILCOTT-SHAW HOUSE 154 B STREET 1888 Historic Contributing
53.000  WOODS, MARC AND ALTA HOUSE 164 BSTREET 1945¢ Historic Contributing
54.000 RALPH, HELEN RENTAL HOUSE 165  FIRST ST 1895¢ Historic Contributing
55.000 FERGUSON, JAMES HOUSE 184  BSTREET 1912¢ Historic Contributing
56.000 MCMORRIS, RICHARIY AND MARIE HOU 280 A STREET 1943 Historic, Non-Contributing
57.000 BLUNCK, ELMER HOUSE 283 SECONDST N 1940c Historic Contributing
58.000 WHITE FIR LUBMER COMPANY BULDIN 258 A STREET 1951 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
59.000 SOUTH VALLEY AUTO REPAIR 246 ASTREET 1973 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
60.000 HALL THOMPSON HOUSE 270 FIRSTST N 1949¢ Historic Contsibuting
61.000 GHEA, THOMAS A. AND MARTHAD. H 272  FIRST ST N 1940 Historic Contributing
62.000 OLSON-FITZGERALD HOUSE 260  FIRST ST N 1945 Historic, Non-Contributing
63.000 HARPER-LUNCEFORFED RENTAL HOUSE 240  FIRST ST N 1944c Historic Contabuting
64.000 HARPER, E. L. AND VERNA HOUSE 236  FIRST ST N 1950 Non-Historic, Non-Contrbuting
65.000 FAULCONER, ALFRED HOUSE 234  FIRST ST N 1947¢ Historic Contributing
66.000 LOVE, G. W. RENTAL HOUSE I 269 SECOND ST N  1900c Historic Contributing
67.000 LOVE, G. W. RENTAL HOUSE 11 263 SECOND ST N 1900c Historic Contributing
68.000 [MARSHALL] CARPENTER-LOVE HOUSE 247 SECOND ST N  1886c Historic Contributing
69.000 HOSLEY, CHARLES HOUSE 239  SECOND ST N  1888c Historic Contributing
70.000  JONES, WILLIAM HOUSE 283 BSTREET 1908c - Historic Contributing
71.000 FOX, WILLIAM F. HOUSE 269 BSTREET 1899¢ Historic Contributing
72.000 HEFFLING, JOHN HOUSE 259  BSTREET 1898¢ Historic Contributing
73.000 STEPHENSON, GEORGE W. RENTAL HO 249  BSTREET 1900 Historic Contributing
74.000 STEPHENSON-HARVEY HOUSE 237  BSTREET 1900 Historic Contributing
75.000 ZELLER-MARKLE HOUSE 225  BSTREET 1884/86  Historic Contributing
76.000 ASHLAND PUBLIC WORKS SHOPS 340 A STREET 1964 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing .
77.000 UNKNOWN HOUSE 248  SECOND ST N 1890c Historic, Non-Contributing
78.000 WALLBANK, ERIK HOUSE 246 SECOND ST N 1988 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
79.000 SCHOENWALD, JOHN HOUSES 266 ~ SECOND ST N 1959 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
80.000 WHITMORE, S. I. HOUSE 265 THIRD ST 1902¢ Historic Contributing
81.000 BESWICK RIEENTAL HOUSE 1 257  THIRD ST 1901 Historic Contributing
82.000 BESWICK RENTAL HOUSE It 253  THIRD ST 1901 Historic Contributing
83.000 BESWICK RENTAL HQUSE I1I 247  THIRD ST 1900c Historic Contrbuting

84.000 MILLS-POLEY HOUSE 385 BSTREET 1899 Historic Contributing



Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: REVISED TERMINOLOGY March 2002

D # Site Name Address Yr Built New Evalution Terminology
85000 COOKE, NICHOLAS HOUSE 375 BSTREET 1910¢ Historic Contributing
86.000 VAN SANT, ]. K. RENTAL HOUSE 1 363 BSTREET 1899¢ Historic Contributing
87000 VAN SANT,J. K. RENTAL HOUSE II 355 BSTREET 1887 Historic Contsibuting
83.000  GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE1 343 BSTREET 1901 Historic Contributing
89.000 GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE1 333 BSTREET 1901 Historic Contribudng
90.000  GRUBB, MILLARD HOUSE 311 BSTREET 1922 Historic Contributing
91.000 LOOMIS, E.F. BUILDING 287 FOURTHST 1899 Historic Contributing
92.000 SCHOOLHOUSE R ELECTRIC 281 FOURTH ST 1957 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
93.000 POWELL, WILLIAM HOUSE 462 A STREET 188%¢ Historic Contributing
94.000  GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSET 450 A STREET 1899 Historic Contributing
95.000  GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTALHOUSE V 438 A STREET 1899 Historic Contributing
96.000 PELTON, JOHN RENTAL HOUSE 426 A STREET 1890c Historic, Non-Contributing
97.000 ENDERS-CORBETT HOUSE 248  THIRD ST 1909¢ Historic Contributing
98.000  CORBETT-HUGHES HOUSE : 258  THIRD ST 1910¢ Historic Contributing
99.000 DAVISON, FRANK HOUSE 266  THIRD ST 1901¢ Historic Contributing
100.000 POSITIVELY FOURTH STREET 265 FOURTH ST 1982 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
101.000 PEERLESS RGOMS BUILDING 243  FOURTH ST 1900/04  Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
102.000  AURAL CLINIC 233 FOURTH ST 1995 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
103.000 NININGER, CHARLES BUILDING II 215 FOURTH ST 1899 Historic Contributing
104000  LONG, M. N. RENTAL HOUSE 463 B STREET 1888 Historic Contributing
105.000 LONG, M. N. RENTAL HOUSE 1 455 B STREET 1888 Historic Contributing
106.000 SPIEGEL, GOTTLIEB BUILDING 447 B STREET 1908c Historic Contributng
107.000 ABBOTT-PRESCOTT HOUSE 435 B STREET 1910 Historic Contnbuting
108.000 VORIS DUPLEX 230 THIRD ST 1976 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
109.000 PINKSTON-BARTGES HOUSE 426 B STREET 1889 Historic Contributing
110000  ROYLSTON,DOTT AND EARLHOUSE 440 B STREET 1947¢ Historic Contributing
111.000  JOHNSON, HAROLD & MARGUERITE HS 460 B STREET 1960 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
112.000 HERZMAN APARTMENTS 464 B STREET 1974 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
113.000 ENGWICHT, GEORGE HOUSE 161  FOURTH ST 1899 Historic Contributing
114.600 BURNS, WILLIAM AND ELLA HOUSE 143  FOURTH ST 1900c Historic Contrbuting
115.000 WHITE, HENRY RENTAL HOUSE I 131 FOURTH ST 1915¢ Historic Contributing
116.000 WHITE, HENRY RENTAL HOUSE IIT 109  FOURTH ST 1912¢ Historic Contributing
117.000 VAN SANT, J. K. HOUSE 107 FOURTH ST 1898 Histonic Contributing
118.000 SMITH-LEONARD RENTAL HOUSE 467 CSTREET 1964c Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
119.000 NORTSTROM, JOHN & OLIVE RENTAL 114  THIRD ST 1930c Historic Contributing
119.100 HARTLEY, ROY RENTAL 1 130 THIRD ST 1942¢ Historic Contributing
120.000 SMITH, CHARLES & VAWN RENTAL 457  CSTREET 1952¢ Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
121.000 GROAT, W. A. HOUSE 138  THIRD ST 1900 Historic Contributing
122.000 WHETSTONE, NEWELL & BEULAH RENT 142  THIRD ST N 1941¢ Historic Contributing
123.000 BOIVEN, HENRY AND NELLIE HOUSE 156 THIRDST N 1900 Historic Contributing
124.000 FIRST CHRISTIAN CHURCH OF ASHLA 318 B STREET 1940 Historic Contsibuting

125.000 PRATT, JOHN HOUSE 338 B STREET 1895¢ Historic Contributing
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126.000
127.000
128.000
129.000
130.000
131.000
132.000
133.000
134.000
135.000
136.000
137.000
138.000
140.000
141.000
142.000
143.000
144.000
145.000
146.000
147.000
148.000
149.000
150.000
151.000
152.000
153.000
153.001
154.000
155.000
156.000
157.000
158.000
158.002
159.000
160.000
161.000
162.000
163.000
164.000
165.000
166.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: REVISED TERMINOLOGY March 2002

Site Name Address
HICKS, MARGARET RENTAL HOUSEIT 350 B STREET
JOHNSON, STEVE HOUSE (STONE-L00 366 B STREET
DE MARINIS, SUSAN OFFICE 376 B STREET
KANE, E. C. HOUSE 386 B STREET
HOSLEY, ROY HOUSE 155 THIRD ST
WELLS, ERASTUS I. AND ELLEN HOU 143 THIRD ST
BLEVINS, F. M. RENTAL HOUSE 125 THIRD ST
VAN TASSEL, MARGARET HOUSE 117  THIRD ST
SILSBY, COLONEL WILLIAM H. HOUS 111 THIRD ST
DANFORD, BEECHER HOUSE 108 SECOND ST
HICKS, MARGARET HOUSE 120 SECOND ST
ALWINE, ALVIN HOUSE 136 SECOND ST
HARGADINE, CHARLES AND CARRIEH 144  SECOND ST
PELTON, JOHN AND CHARLOTTE HOUS 228 B STREET
EDLUND, GUSTAVUS HOUSE 252 B STREET
SCHOENWALD APTS 276 B STREET
PLUMERTH, JACOB HOUSE 159 SECOND ST
SHOOK, ISAAC AND MARTHA HOUSE 153 SECOND ST
MOREHOUSE, SHERMAN RENTAL HOUS139 SECOND ST
SHOOK, ISAAC RENTAL HOUSE 125 SECOND ST
SHELL STATION/ROCKET PHOTO 275 C STREET
ASHLAND POST OFFICE - 120 FIRST ST-
ASHLAND FRUIT & PRODUCE ASSNWH 0 OAK ST
ASHLAND HARDWARE\A STREET OFFIC 249 A STREET
JOIIN FIELDS BUILDING 325 A STREET
GRANGE CO-OP 421 A STREET
HOXMEIER BUILDING 485 A STREET
VACANT PARCEL 0 A STREET
B W SQUARED BLDG 545 A STREET
MCMULLAN-SHELTON BLDG - 585 A STREET
ASHILAND INSURANCE 585 A STREETY
JEGA GALLERY 621 A STREET
BEMIS-SANDLER BUILDING 645 A STREET
VACANT PARCEL 0 A STREET
RAILROAD DISTRICT PARK 785 A STREET
JACKSON DENTAL OFFICE 580 A STREET
EURO-MEK FOREIGN AUTO REPAIR 564 A STREET
POWELL, THADDIZUS RENTAL HHQUSE 562 A SIREET
EASTERLING, JOHUN M. BUH.DING 552 A STRELET
VAN SANT, |. K. BUILDING 542 A STREET
FURNITURE DEPOT 500 A STREET
ASHILAND HOSE COMPANY NO. 2 264 FOURTH ST

N

N

zZ Z Z Z

zZ Z z Z

Yr Buiit New Evalution Terminology

1901 Historic Contributing

1993 Non-Historic, Non-Contsibuting
1992 Non-Historic, Non-Contsibuting
1886¢ Historic Contributing [NR-listed)
1912c Historic Contnbuting

1902¢ Historic Contributing

1912¢ Historic Contributing

1903¢ Historic Contributing

1896 Historic Contributing [NR-listed}
1920c Historic Contributing

1901 Historic Contributing

1947¢ Historic Contributing

1900 Historic Contributing

1894 Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
1899 Historic Contributing

1965 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1892c Historic Contributing

1890c Historic Contabuting

1910c Historic Contributing

1900 Historic Contributing

1957 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1966 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1912 Historic Contributing

1997 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1995 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1960 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1995 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
0 Vacant

1997 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1997 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1994 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1994 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1996 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
0 Vacant

1994 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1994 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1973 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1925¢ Historic Contributing

1908¢ Historic Contrbuting

1905¢ Historic Contributing

1980/84  Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1908 Historic Contributing



D #

168.000
169.000
170.000
171.000
172.000
173.000
174.000
175.000
176.000
177.000
178.000
179.000
180.000
181.000
182.000
183.000
184.000
185.000
186.000
187.000
188.000
185.000
190.000
191.000
192.000
193.000
194.000
195.000
196.000
197.000
198.000
199.000
200.000
201.000
202.000
203.000
204.000
205.000
206.000
207.000
208.000
209.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: REVISED TERMINOLOGY March 2002

Yr Built New Evalution Terminology

Site Name

WHITTLE TRANSFER CO. WAREHOUSE
HENNAN, PRICE HOUSE

NININGER, CHARLES RENTAL HOUSE
MITCHELL, HENRY HOUSE

SPAYDE, MARY ADA HOUSE

SMITH, KELCY AND RUBY HOUSE
NININGER, CHARLES BUILDING I1
HERZMAN APARTMENT COMPLEX
BOULTON RENTAL HOUSE

OLSON, EDGAR AND THELMA HOUSE
FRULAN, JOHN AND CLARA HOUSE
AHLSTROM, NILS RENTAL HOUSE
TREFERN, MARY HCUSE

EARLY VERNACULAR HOUSE
AHLSTROM, NILS HOUSE

AHLSTROM, NILS RENTAL HOUSE
AHLSTROM, NORTH HOUSE
EVERTON, WALTER HOUSE

GILLIAM, LAWRENCE AND EDNA HOUS 267
FARQUAR, GEORGE AND NELLIE HOUS 297

YOUNG-DAVENPORT HOUSE [Moved]
CASEY, JOHN R. HOUSE [Moved]

ASHLAND DEPOT HOTEL, SOUTH WING 624

PARKER-DAVIES HOUSE
FLOOK-GRUBB HOUSE
SANDLER BUILDING

HANNON, LEONARD T. AND IRENE HO 294
HANNON, LEONARD T. AND IRENE HO 268
HANNON, LEONARD T. RENTAL HOUSE 266

TURNER, O. B. HOUSE
WALKER, LUNSFORD HOUSE
McCLUNG-PETERSON HOUSE
POTRERA, JOSEPH HOUSE
DUNKIN, JAMES HOUSE

SILVER, CATHERINE HOUSE
HEDBERG-SILVER HOUSE
BROWN, MATTIE RENTAL HOUSE
BROWN, CHARLES AND MATTIE HOUS
COSSAIRT-EAST HOUSE
RITZINGER-FLACKUS HOUSE
HANSEN, HANS HOUSE

CAREY, R. L. HOUSE

Address
264 FOURTH ST
246  FOURTH ST
259  FIFTH ST
235 FIFTH ST
223  FIFTH ST
565 B STREET
220  FOURTH ST
549  BSTREET
695 B STREET
671 B STREET
661 B STREET
637 B STREET
625 BSTREET
236 FIFTH ST
248 FIFTH ST
266  FIFTH ST
247 SIEXTHST
265 SIXTHST
SIXTH ST
SIXTH ST
664 A STREET
640 A STREET
A STREET
784 A STREET
762 A STREET
750 A STREET
SIXTH ST
SIXTH ST
SIXTH ST
256 SIXTH ST
263 SEVENTH ST
247 SEVENTH ST
785 B STREET
773  BSTREET
763 B STREET
743 B STREET
733 B STREET
725 BSTREET
885 B STREET
871 B STREET
855 B STREET
843 B STREET

1937¢
1947
1902c
1901c
1928¢
1949c¢
1903
1971
1947¢
1957
1888
1908c
1920c
1887
1888
1900c
1920c
1918¢
1946¢
1947¢
1910c
1909
1887
1890c
1890c
1989
1946
1955
1966
1905
1902¢
1902¢
1889¢
1893c
1940c
1904
1898¢
1898c¢
1900c
1948
1904c
1889¢

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contrbuting

Historic Contabuting [NR-listed)
Historic Contributing

Historic Contrbuting

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Histotic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Histordc Contributing

Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Histonic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing



D #

210.000
211.000
212.000
213.000
214.000
215.000
216.000
217.000
218.000
219.000
220.000
221.000
222.000
223.000
224.000
225.000
226.000
227.000
228.000
229.000
230.000
231.000
232.000
233.000

234.000.

235.000
236.000
237.000
238.000
239.000
240.000
241.000
242.000
243.000
244.000
245.000
246.000
247.000
243.000
249.000
250.000
251.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: REVISED TERMINOLOGY March 2002

Site Name

DODSON, W. D. HOUSE
DAWSON-REYNOLDS HOUSE

OLSON TRIPLEX

CROWSON,FRANK AND ANNA HOUSE
NEELEY-SETTLES HSE SITE [McCul
BUTLER, JOHN HOUSE

WOOD-FRAME CABINET SHOP
HERBIG, THOMAS AND M. L. HOUSE
DEWS, OLIVER RENTAL HOUSE

WALT ANDERS AUTO REPAIR

DEWS, OLIVER HOUSE

BELL, GLEN AND OPAL HOUSE
HAHN-JACKSON HOUSE
STRONG-LARAMORE HOUSE

SMITH, WILLIAM AND ANNIE HOUSE
HAHN RENTAL HOUSE

COOLEY, BENSON D. HOUSE

PAYNE, ANDREW S. HOUSE

THROOP, ELMER HOUSE

LINDSAY, WILLIAM HOUSE

HARRINGTON, ELMER AND BERTIE HO

BILLINGS-STERRETT HOUSE
HARP-LONG HOUSE
ENGWICHT-MC MILLAN HOUSE
VACANT PARCEL

PROSPHYLA RENTAL HOUSE
JACOBS RENTAL HOUSE
JACOBS-SLACK HOUSE
THOMPSON, MAE G. HOUSE
CALLE WINTERS' GROCERY
NEWMAN APARTMENTS

READER, MRS. |. K. RENTAL HOUSE
REID, ETHEL S. HOUSE

BOOTH, OREN HOUSE
HOLMES-FLACKUS HOUSE

GRAVES, HAROLD AND ETHYLENE HOU840

TIBBETTS, ELMO HOUSE

LONG, OSMER AND LILA HOUSE
MODERN HOUSIE
MORRIS-PORTER HOUSE
EGGLESTON-DAVIS HOUSE
CHURCHMAN, GEORGE HOUSE

Address
234 SEVENTHST
248 SEVENTH ST
260 SEVENTH ST
253 EIGHTHST
267 EIGHTH ST
886 A STREET
864 A STREET
868 A STREET
854 A STREET
842 A STREET
832 A STREET
286 EIGHTHST
270 EIGHTH ST
248 EIGHTH ST
925 B STREET
238 EIGHTHST
939 B STREET
954 B STREET
940 B STREET
928 B STREET
156 EIGHTH ST
132 EIGHTH ST
130 EIGHTHST
110 EIGHTH ST

0 C STREET
973 C STREET
985 MAIN ST
975 MAIN ST
959 MAIN ST
917 MAIN ST
943 MAIN ST

92 EIGHTH ST
933 MAINST
882 BSTREET
872 BSTREET

B STREET

826 B STREET
117 EIGHTH ST
125 LIGHTH ST
143 LBIGHTH ST
155 EIGHTH ST
156  SEVENTH ST

[ea B es e A vs I w5

o

Yr Built New Evalution Terminology

1914¢ Historic, Non-Contributing

1899 Historic, Non-Contributing

1980 Non-Historic, Non-Contsibuting
1904c Historic Contributing

1994 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1920¢ Historic Contributing

1985¢ Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1908c Historic Contributing

1903¢ Historic Contributing

1976 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1902¢ Historic Contributing

1948¢ Histeric Contributing

1942 Historic Contributing

1996 Non—H.istork, Non-Contributing
1902 Historic Contributing

1955 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1902 Historic Contributing

1900 Historic Contributing

1901¢ Historic Contributing

1901 Historic Contributing

1907¢ Historic Contributing

1948¢ Historic Contributing

1904¢ Historic Contributing

1905 Historic Contributing

0 Vacant

1949¢ Historic, Non-Contributing
1910c Historic Contributing

1920¢ Historic Contributing

1949 Historic, Non-Contributing

1940 Historic Contributing

1967 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1909¢ Historic Contributing

1926 Historic Contributing

1915¢ Historic Contributing

1888/10  Historic Contributing

1956 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1901 Historic Contributing

1901¢ Historic Contributing

1988 Non-Historic, Non-Contabuting
1890c Historic Contributing

1903¢ Historic Contributing

1902c Historic, Non-Contributing



Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: REVISED TERMINOLOGY March 2002

D # Site Name Address Yr Built New Evalution Terminology
252.000 SOVERNS, CARLETON B. HOUSE 140 SEVENTH ST 1905¢ Historic Céncribuu'ng

253.000 COX, ALLEN E. AND SARAH HOUSE 132 SEVENTHST 1900 Historic Contributing

254.000 EGLI RENTAL HOUSE 120 SEVENTH ST 1900/80  Historic, Non-Contributing
255.000 MC CUNE, JOSEPH HOUSE 108  SEVENTH ST 1904 Historic Contributing

256.000 SMITH, GEORGE W. AND ELIZABETH 107 SEVENTH ST 1900¢ Historic Contributing

257.000 SNYDER, VALLANDINGHAM AND SARAHI19  SEVENTH ST 1908 Histordic Contributing

258.000 PFAFF, CHARLES HOUSE 137 SEVENTH ST 1905¢ Historic Contributing

259.000 BAKER, ADAM AND LYDIA HOUSE 155 SEVENTH ST 1895c¢ Historic Contributing

260.000 COX-CAVIN HOUSE 774 B STREET 1900c Historic Contﬁbut'mg

261.000 HILYER DUPLEX 165 SEVENTH ST 1988 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
262.000 POWELL, D. SHERMAN RENTAL HOUSE 762 B STREET 1913¢ Historic Contributing

263.000 MILLER-LANG HOUSE 758 BSTREET 1992 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
264.000 GREENE DUPLEX 3 724  BSTREET 1980 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
265.000 DILHAN, JOSEPH AND JESSIE HOUSE 164  SIXTH ST 1912¢ Historic Contrbuting

266.000 UNIDENTIFIED HOUSE [HUDSON RENT 156 SIXTH ST 1895¢ Historic Contributing

267.000 RICE, JOHN REV. RENTAL HOUSE 150 SIXTHST 1888 Historic Contributing

268.000 CHISHOLM-OGG HOUSE 142 SIXTHST 1902c Historic Contributing

269.000 BLEDSOE, HATTIE HOUSE 132 SIXTHST 1905¢ Historic Contributing

270.000 CHURCH OF THE HOLY ROSARY 100  SIXTH ST 1889 Historic Contributing

270.100 PENTACOSTAL CHURCH ANNEX..BLD 0 SIXTH ST 1974¢ Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
271.000 BADGER, CLARENCE HOUSE 107 SIXTH ST 1908¢ Historic Contributing

272.000 HELMS-DILLE HOUSE [DUPLEX] 657 CSITREET 1900 Historic, Non-Contributing
273.000 VAN HORNE-WELLS HOUSE 123 SIXTH ST 1895¢ Historic Contributing

274.000 NORRIS-CLEVENGER HOUSE 133 SIXTHST 1940c Historic, Non-Contrbuting
275.000 WISE, HERMAN AND MARJORIE HOUSE 153  SIXTH ST 1947¢ Historic, Non-Contributing
276.000 STEPHENSON, G. W. RENTAL HOUSE 155  SIXTHST 1903c Historic Contributing

277.000 FARRA-MC FARLAND HOUSE 692 B STREET 1888 Histosic Contributing

278.000 LOOMIS, WILLIAM F. HOUSE 662 B STREET 1899 Historic Contributing

279.000 HARRIS, CARL N. HOUSE ~ 660 BSTREET 1915¢ Historic Contributing

280.000 KEPLER-ELLIS HOUSEE 626 B STREET 1890c Historic Contributing

281.000 MELLUS, RICHARD HOUSE 156  FIFTH ST 1888 Historic Contributing

282.000 BANKS, JOHN HOUSE 132 FIFTH ST 1888 Historic Contributing

283.000 LYN APARTMENTS 108  FIFTH ST 1965 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
284.000 MC GINNIS, LUKE RENTAL HOUSE 1 107 FIFTHST 1902 Historic Contributing

285000 MC GINNIS, LUKE RENTAL HOUSE II 561 CSTREET 1900 Historic Contributing

286.000 BAER, VICTORIA HOUSE 129  FIFTH ST 1902¢ Historic Contributing

287.0600 BAER, EDWARID HOUSE 137  FIFTH ST 1902 Historic Contributing

288.000 TAYLOR, JOHN HOUSE 155  FIFTH ST 1908 Historic.Contributing

289.000 WOLFE, JULIUS P. HOUSE © 586 BSIRELT 1910 Historic Contributing

290.000 WHITE, HENRY RENTAL HOUSE 556 B STREET 1900c Historic Contributing

291.000 WINKLER, WALTER RENTAL HOUSE 544 B STREET 1915¢ Historic Contributing

292.000 POTTER ROOMING HOUSE 160 FOURTH ST 1911 Historic Contributing



D #

293.000
294.000
296.000
297.000
298.000
299.000
300.000
301.000
302.000
303.000
304.000
305.000
306.000
307.000
308.000
309.000
310.000
311.000
312.000
313.000
314.000
315.000
316.000
317.000
318.000
318.100
319.000
320.000
320.100
321.000
322.000
323.000
324.000
325.000
326.000
327.000
328.000
329.000
330.000
331.000
332.000
333.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: REVISED TERMINOLOGY March 2002

Site Name

VEGHTE, CHARLES HOUSE
WOODEN, WILLIAM HOUSE

MC FARLAND, ALBERT E. RENTAL HO

APARTMENT COMPLEX

ASHILLAND 7TH DAY ADVENTIST CHURC

PORTER, FRANK J. HOUSE
SCHULTZ, A. F. HOUSE 1I
HASKINS, SARAH J. HOUSE
DWYER, JOHN G. HOUSE

CARTER PROPERTY/SMALL RENTAL HO

DAVIS-AINSWORTH ET AL

CALLAHAN-MANSFIELD HOUSE

WILSON-BYRD HOUSE
VAN SANT-BRYANT HOUSE
HUBBARD-HARDY HOUSE

PALETHORPE, GEORGE HOUSE
GANIARD, SARAH RENTAL HOUSE
O'DONOGHUE, LAURA HOUSE

CROCKER, MERTON HOUSE

JAMISON, HAROLD & MARJORIE HOUS

FLAGG, W. H. HOUSE

KING-MATHES RENTAL HOUSE

KING, BURTON F. HOUSE

MILLER-VAN VACTOR HOUSE
EASLICK, WILLIAM RENTAIL HOUSE
EASLICK, APARTMENT UNITS

SENSENY-MC GINNIS HOUSE
ASH FOURSQUARE CHURCH

ASH FOURSQUARE CHURCH FELLOWSHI 48

SHULTZ, A. F. HOUSE 1

MORRIS, J. W. B. & CYNTHIA HOUS

MORRIS, J. W. B. RENTAL

LONG, ELIZA RENTAL HOUSE
SLINGERLAND, GILBERT R. RENTAL

LUCAS-PARKER HOUSE
ROSE, MARY E. HOUSE
OLSON DUPLEX

MONROE, GEORGE HOUSE

ROSE BROTIERS RENTAL HOUSE

LUDLOW-STEVENS HOUSE

BRYANT-TURNER HOUSE [Modified]
POLEY, W. M. RENTAL HOUSE

Address
144 FOURTH ST
130 FOURTH ST
162 FOURTH ST
525 CSTREET
84  FOURTH ST
548 CSTREET
78 FOURTHST
70 FOURTH ST
64 FOURTH ST
58  FOURTHST
521 MAIN ST E
549 MAINST E
555  MAIN ST E
573  MAIN ST E
581 MAIN ST E
585 MAIN ST E
#4 FIFTHST
47 FIFTHST
57 FIFTHST
60 GOLDEN SPIKE WAY
77 FIFTHST
582 CSTREET
586 CSTREET
90  FIPTHST
72 FIFTHST
72 FIFTHST
60  FIFTHST
0  MAINST E
FIFTH ST
637 MAINST E
649 MAIN ST E
665 MAIN ST E
675 MAIN ST E
685 MAIN ST E
50 SIXTHST
77 SIXTHST
670  CSTREET
90 SIXTIST
78 SIXTHST
746 C STREET
774 CSTREET
80  SEVENTH ST

Yr Built New Evalution Terminology

1898
1901
1912¢
1964
1910c
1917¢
1891c
1945
1988
1974
1975
1928¢
1922
1901c
1889¢
1888
1902c
1900
1900
1988
1911c
1908c
1908c
1899¢
1903¢
1980c
1900
1928¢c
1994
1895¢
1900c
1902¢
1909¢
1909¢
1898
1897
1970
1912
1912¢
1909
1990c
1903¢

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic, Non-Contributing
Histosic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contabuting

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contrbuting

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historc Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contrbuting
Historic Contributing

Historic Contabuting

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing



ID #

334.000
335.000
336.000
337.000
338.000
339.000
340.000
341.000
342.000
343.000
344.000
345.000
346.000
347.000
348.000
349.000
350.000
351.000
352.000
354.000
355.000
356.000
357.000
358.000
359.000
360.000
361.000
362.000
363.000
364.000
365.000
366.000
367.000
368.000
369.000
370.600
371.000
372.000
373.000
374.000
375.000
376.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: REVISED TERMINOLOGY March 2002

Site Name

PNB/US WEST SWITCHING BUILDING

WILSON, MERRITT AND NANCY HOUSE 767
FREE METHODI1ST CHURCH PARSONAGE?75

FREE METHODIST CHURCH

GREENE DUPLEX

GREENE DUPLEX 2

EVENSON, EVEN HOUSE

RANCH HOUSE INFILL
HOWETT-BAGLEY HOUSE

POTTER, S. A. HOUSE SITE
BOSTWICK, EVERETT & NINA HOUSE
LANE, CLARENCE HOUSE [MOVED)]
INLOW-SHERARD HOUSE

CHURCH OF THE NAZERENE [RV UNIT
STAUFFER, E. L. AND EVA HOUSE
MODERN DUPLEX

GIBSON, W. C. HOUSE
BROWN-DECKER HOUSE

ASHLAND PROFESSIONAL CENTER
ROGUE FEDERAL CREDITUNION
GOFF, EDGAR AND KATE HOUSE 11
GOFF, EDGAR AND KATE HOUSE I
HICKS, MARGARET HOUSE I

EVANS, JULIA HOUSE II

EVANS, JULIA HOUSE I

GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE I
MOREHOUSE, SHERMAN HOUSE

MOREHOUSE, SHERMAN RENTAL HOUSES87

OESER'S FLYING A SERVICE

VAN VLEET REAL ESTATE OFFICE
ASHLAND FIRE STATION #1

TACO TIME [BLUE MOUNTAIN)]
McCALL, JESSE A. HOUSE

ROSE, CHARLES & LAURA HOUSE
LONG, O.W. AND MINDA RENTAL
CURRIE, JOSEPH T. BOARDING HOUS
UNKNOWN HOUSE

READER, J.K. RENTAL HOUSE

THE ASHLAND{R CONDOS
ASHLAND CEMETERY

MAUPIN, CHARLES AND ELLA HOUSE
CRAFTSMAN INFILL HOUSE

Address
50 SIXTH ST
MAIN ST E
MAIN ST E
777 MAIN ST E
30 SEVENTH ST
835 MAIN ST E
920 SEVIENTH ST
850 CSTREET
855 MAINST E
867 MAINST E
860 C STREET
880 C STREET
881 MAIN ST E
87 FOURTH ST
65 FOURTH ST
57 FOURTH ST
49 FOURTH ST
39 FOURTH ST
485  MAIN ST E
415 LITHIA WAY
50 THIRD ST N
56 THIRD ST N
64 THIRD 8T N
70 THIRD ST
74 THIRD ST N
78 THIRD ST N
94 THIRD ST N
THIRD ST N
345 LITHIA WAY
375 LITHIA WAY
455 SISKIYQOU BLVD
457  SISKIYOU BLVD
550 MAINST E
568 MAINST E
574 MAINST o
586 MAINST E
598 MAIN ST E
600 MAIN ST Iz
MAIN ST i
0 MAIN ST Ii
27 DEWEY ST
24 DEWEY ST

Yr Built New Evalution Terminology

1959¢ Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1905c - Historic Contributing
1908c Histornic Contributing
1908c Historic Contributing
1978 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1978 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1907¢ Historic Contributing
1978 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1901¢ Historic Contributing
1991 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1952 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1900c Historic Contrbuting
1905 Histonic Contnibuting
1960c Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1946¢ Historic Contributing
1964 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1900c Historic Contributing
1901c Historic Contributing
1958 Non-Historic, Non-Contrbuting
1984 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1899 Historic Contributing
1900 Historic Contributing
1900c Historic Contributing
1899 Historic Contributing
1899 Historic Contributing
1899 Histosic Contributing
1912¢ Historic Contributing
1908¢c Historic Contributing
1958 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1960/79  Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1954 Non-Historic, Non-Contsibuting
1972 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1890/02  Historic Contributing
1907 Historic Contributing
1941 Historic Contributing
1908c Historic Contributing
1920c Historic Contributing
1890c Historic Contributing
1980 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1900c Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
1945 Historic Contributing
1994 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing



ID #

377.000
378.000
379.000
380.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: REVISED TERMINOLOGY March 2002

. Site Name Address
CROWSON-ADDISION HOUSE 916 MAIN 8T
McCONNELL APTS. 35 ALIDA ST
BRYANT, T.W. & DELPHIA HOUSE 968 MAIN ST

FLORA, FRANK AND GLADYS HOUSE 988  MAIN ST

TOTAL 382

E

Yr Built New Evalution Terminology

1900c
1964
1889¢
1959

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing



D #

153.001
158.002

59.000
150.000

58.000

56.000
151.000

76.000
152.000

96.000

95.000

94.000

93.000
153.000
165.000
164.000
154.000
163.000
162.000
161.000
160.000
155.000
156.000
157.000
190.000
189.000
158.000
188.000
193.000
192.000
191.000
159.000
220.000
219.000
218.000
216.000
217.000
215.000
378.000

12.000

10.000

13.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: By Site Address, March 2002

Site Name

VACANT PARCEL
VACANT PARCEL
SOUTH VALLEY AUTO REPAIR

ASHLAND HARDWARE\A STREET OFFIC 249
WHITE FIR LUBMER COMPANY BULDIN 258
MCMORRIS, RICHARD AND MARIE HOU 280

JOHN FIELDS BUILDING
ASHLAND PUBLIC WORKS SHOPS
GRANGE CO-OP

PELTON, JOHN RENTAL HOUSE

GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE V
GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE 1

POWELL, WILLIAM HOUSE
HOXMEIER BUILDING
FURNITURE DEPOT

VAN SANT, ]J. K. BUILDING

B W SQUARED BLDG
EASTERLING, JOHN M. BUILDING

POWELL, THADDEUS RENTAL HOUSE

EURO-MEK FOREIGN AUTO REPAIR
JACKSON DENTAL OFFICE
MCMULLAN-SHELTON BLDG
ASHLAND INSURANCE

JEGA GALLERY

ASHLAND DEPOT HOTEL, SOUTH WING 624

CASEY, JOHN R. HOUSE [Moved]
BEMIS-SANDLER BUILDING
YOUNG-DAVENPORT HOUSE [Moved]
SANDLER BUILDING

FLOOK-GRUBB HOUSE
PARKER-DAVIES HOUSE

RAILROAD DISTRICT PARK

DEWS, OLIVER HOUSE

WALT ANDERS AUTO REPAIR

DEWS, OLIVER RENTAL HOUSE
WOOD-FRAME CABINET SHOP
HERBIG, THOMAS AND M. L. HOUSE
BUTLER, JOHN HOUSE

McCONNELL APTS.

MILLER, V. D. & MYRTLE RENTAL |
THOMPSON RENTAL HOUSE
DAMON, GEORGE HOUSE

Address
0 A STREET
0 A STREET
246 A STREET
A STREET
A STREET
A SITREET
325 A STREET
340 A STREET
421 A STREET
426 A STREET
438 A STREET
450 A STREET
462 A STREET
485 A STREET
500 A STREET
542 A STREET
545 A STREET
552 A STREET
562 A STREET
564 A STREET
580 A STREET
585 A STREET
585 A STREET
621 A STREET
A STREET
640 A STREET
645 A STREET
664 A STREET
750 A STREET
762 A STREET
784 A STREET
785 A STREET
832 A STREET
842 A STREET
854 A STREET
864 A STREET
868 A STREET
886 A STRIET
35  ALIDA ST
8  BSTREET
11 BSTREET
14 B STREET

Yr Built New Evalution Terminology

0

0
1973
1997
1951
1943
1995
1964
1960
1890c¢
1899
1899
1889¢
1995
1980/84
1905¢
1997
1908c
1925¢
1973
1994
1997
1994
1994
1887
1909
1996
1910c
1989
1890c
1890c
1994
1902¢
1976
1903¢
1985¢
1908c
1920c
1964
1940/94
1930
1925¢

Vacant

Vacant

Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic, Non-Contrbuting
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Coatributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contsibuting
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contsibuting

Historic Contributing



Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: By Site Address, March 2002

D # Site Name Address Yr Built New Evalution Terminology
37.000 BLALOCK, WALTER HOUSE 111 BSTREET 1908 Historic Contributing
36.000 RICE, MARY HOUSE 123 B STREET 1895¢ Historic Contributing
35.000 RICHARDSON-GOOD HOUSE 135 B STREET 1884 Historic Contributing
50.000 VINING, MARY HOUSE 136 B STREET 1886/89  Historic Contributing
51.000 ANDERSON, BELLE HOUSE 142 B STREET 1908c Historic Contributing
34.000 GOSNELL, EVA HOUSE 145 B STREET 1941 Historic Contributing
52.000 CHILCOTT-SHAW HOUSE 154 B STREET 1888 Historic Contributing
33.000 ROYLE, H. STEVE RENTALS 161 B STREET 1979 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
53.000 WOODS, MARC AND ALTA HOUSE 164 B STREET 1945¢ Historic Contributing
32.000 HOSLEY, CHARLES HOUSE 171 B STREET 1886¢ Historic Contributing
55.000 FERGUSON, JAMES HOUSE 184 B STREET 1912¢ Historic Contributing
31.000 SHAW RENTAL HOUSE 185 B STREET 1931¢ Historic Contributing
75.000 ZELLER-MARKLE HOUSE 225 BSTREET 1884/86  Historic Contributing
140.000 PELTON, JOHN AND CHARLOTTE HOUS 228 B STREET 1894 Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
74.000 STEPHENSON-HARVEY HOUSE 237 BSTREET 1900 Historic Contributing -
73.000 STEPHENSON, GEORGE W. RENTAL HO 249 B STREET 1900 Historic Contributing
141.000 EDLUND, GUSTAVUS HOUSE 252 B STREET 1899 Historic Contributing
72.000 HEFFLING, JOHN HOUSE 259 BSTREET 1898c Historic Contnbuting
71.000 FOX, WILLIAM F. HOUSE 269 BSTREET 1899¢ Historic Contributing
142.000 SCHOENWALD APTS 276 BSTREET 1965 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
70.000  JONES, WILLIAM HOUSE 283 BSTREET 1908c Historic Contributing
90.000 GRUBB, MILLARD HOUSE 311 BSTREET 1922 Historic Contnibuting
124.000 FIRST CHRISTIAN CHURCH OF ASHLA 318 B STREET 1940 Historic Contributing
89.000 GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE1 333 B STREET 1901 Historic Contributing
125.000 PRATT, JOHN HOUSE 338 B STREET 1895¢ Historic Contrbuting
88.000 GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE1 343 BSTREET 1901 Historic Contributing
126.000 HICKS, MARGARET RENTAL HOUSEII 350 B STREET 1901 Historic Contributing
87.000 VAN SANT,J. K. RENTAL HOUSE II 355 BSTREET 1887 Historic Contributing
86.000 VAN SANT, J. K. RENTAL HOUSE I 363 BSTREET 1899¢ Historic Contributing
127.000  JOHNSON, STEVE HOUSE (STONE-L00 366 B STREET 1993 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
85.000 COQOKE, NICHOLAS HOUSE 375 BSTREET 1910c Historic Contributing
128.000 DE MARINIS, SUSAN OFFICE 376  BSTREET 1992 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
84.000 MILLS-POLEY HOUSE 385 BSTREET 1899 Historic Contributing
129.000 KANE, E. C. HOUSE 386 BSTREET 1886c Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
109.000 PINKSTON-BARTGES HOUSE 426 B STREET 1889 Historic Contributing
107.000 ABBOTT-PRESCOTT HOUSE 435 B STREET 1910 Historic Contrbuting
110.000 ROYLSTON, DOTT AND EARL HOUSE 440 B STREET 1947¢ Historic Contributing
106.000 SPIEGEL, GOTTLIEB BUILDING 447 BSTREET 1908¢ Historic Contributing
105.000 LONG, M. N. RENTAL HOUSE 1 455 B STREET 1888 Historic Contrbuting
111.000 JOHNSON, HAROLD & MARGUERITE HS 460 B STREET 1960 Non-Historic, Non-Contrnbuting
104.000 LONG, M. N. RENTAL HOUSE 463 B STREET 1888 Historic Contributing

112.000 HERZMAN APARTMENTS 464 B STREET 1974 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing



D #

291.000
175.000
290.000
173.000
289.000
180.000
280.000
179.000
279.000
178.000
278.000
177.000
277.000
176.000
264.000
205.000
204.000
203.000
263.000
262.000
202.000
201.000
260.000
200.000
246.000
245.000
209.000
208.000
207.000
244.000
243.000
206.000
224.000
229.000
226.000
228.000
227.000
234.000

46.000

44.000
147.000
120.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: By Site Address, March 2002

Site Name Address
WINKLER, WALTER RENTAL HOUSE 544 B STREET
HERZMAN APARTMENT COMPLEX 549 BSTREET
WHITE, HENRY RENTAL HOUSE 556 B STREET
SMITH, KELCY AND RUBY HOUSE 565 B STREET
WOLFE, JULIUS P. HOUSE 586 B STREET
TREFERN, MARY HOUSE 625 B STREET
KEPLER-ELLIS HOUSE 626 B STREET
AHLSTROM, NILS RENTAL HOUSE 637 BSTREET
HARRIS, CARL N. HOUSE 660 BSTREET
FRULAN, JOHN AND CLARA HOUSE 661 BSTREET
LOOMIS, WILLIAM F. HOUSE 662 BSTREET
OLSON, EDGAR AND THELMA HOUSE 671 B STREET
FARRA-MC FARLAND HOUSE 692 BSTREET
BOULTON RENTAL HOUSE 695 BSTREET
GREENE DUPLEX 3 724 B STREET
BROWN, CHARLES AND MATTIE HOUS 725 BSTREET
BROWN, MATTIE RENTAL HOUSE 733 B STREET
HEDBERG-SILVER HOUSE 743 BSTREET
MILLER-LANG HOUSE 758 B STREET
POWELL, D. SHERMAN RENTAL HOUSE 762 B STREET
SILVER, CATHERINE HOUSE 763 B STREET
DUNKIN, JAMES HOUSE 773 B STREET
COX-CAVIN HOUSE 774 B STREET
POIRERA, JOSEPH HOUSE 785 B STREET
TIBBETTS, ELMO HOUSE 826 BSTREET
GRAVES, HAROLD AND ETHYLENE HOU840 B STREET
CAREY,R. L. HOUSE 843 B STREET
HANSEN, HANS HOUSE 855 B STREET
RITZINGER-FLACKUS HOUSE 871 B STREET
HOLMES-FLACKUS HOUSE 872 B STREET
BOOTH, OREN HOUSE 882 B STREET
COSSAIRT-EAST HOUSE 885 B STREET
SMITH, WILLIAM AND ANNIE HOUSE 925 B STREET
LINDSAY, WILLIAM HOUSE 928 B STREET
COOLEY, BENSON D. HOUSE 939 B STREET
THROOP, ELMER HOUSE 940 B STREET
PAYNE, ANDREW S. HOUSE 954 B STREET
VACANT PARCEL 0 C STREET
MUNICIPAL PARKING LOT 1] C STREET
J. W. COPELAND LUMBER YARD 165 C STREEET
SHELL STATION/ROCKET PHOTO 275 CSTREET
SMITH, CHARLES & VAWN RENTAL 457  C STREET

Yr Built New Evalution Terminology

1915¢ Historic Contributing
1971 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1900c Historic Contributing
1949c Historic Contributing
1910 Historic Contributing
1920c Historic Contributing
1890c¢ Historic Contributing
1908¢ Historic Contributing
1915¢ Historic Contributing

1888 Historic Contributing
1899 Historic Contributing
1957 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1888 Historic Contributing
1947¢ Historic Contabuting
1980 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing

1898¢ Historic Contributing
1898¢ Historic Contributing

1904 Historic Contributing

1992 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1913¢ Historic Contributing

1940c Historic, Non-Contributing

1893c Historic Contributing
1900c Historic Contributing
1889c Historic Contributing
1901 Historic Contributing
1956 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1889¢ Historic Contributing
1904c Historic Contributing

1948 Historic Contabuting

1888/10  Historic Contributing

1915¢ Historic Contributing

1900¢ Historic Contsibuting

1902 Historic Contrbuting

1901 Historic Contributing

1902 Historic Contributing

1901¢ Historic Contributing

1900 Historic Contributing

0 Vacant

1990c Vacant

1940 Historic, Non-Contributing

1957 Non-Historic, Non-Contrbuting
1952¢ Non-Historic, Non-Contributing



D #

118.000
297.000
299.000
285.000
315.000
316.000
272.000
328.000
331.000

19.000
332.000
341.000
344.000
345.000
235.000
375.000
376.000
241.000
233.000
247.000
248.000
232.000
231.000
249.000
250.000
230.000
225.000
223.000
213.000
214.000
222.000
221.000
310.000
311.000
320.100
312.000
319.000
318.000
318.100
314.000
317.000
284.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: By Site Address, March 2002

Site Name Address
SMITH-LEONARD RENTAL HOUSE 467 CSTREET
APARTMENT COMPLEX 525 C STREET
PORTER, FRANK J. HOUSE 548 CSTREET
MC GINNIS, LUKE RENTAL HOUSE 11 561 C STREET
KING-MATHES RENTAL HOUSE 582 CSTREET
KING, BURTON F. HOUSE 586 CSTREET
HELMS-DILLE HOUSE [DUPLEX] 657 C STREET
OLSON DUPLEX 670 CSTREET
LUDLOW-STEVENS HOUSE 746  C STREET
DON WOLFE EXXON STATION 75 C STREET
BRYANT-TURNER HOUSE [Modified] 774  C STREET
RANCH HOUSE INFILL 850 C STREET
BOSTWICK, EVERETT & NINA HOUSE 860 C STREET
LANE, CLARENCE HOUSE [MOVED] 880 CSTREET
PROSPHYLA RENTAL HOUSE 973 C STREET
MAUPIN, CHARLES AND ELLA HOUSE 27 DEWEY ST
CRAFTSMAN INFILL HOUSE 24 DEWEY ST
READER, MRS. J. K. RENTAL HOUSE 92 EIGHTH ST
ENGWICHT-MC MILLAN HOUSE 110 EIGHTHST
LONG, OSMER AND LILA HOUSE 117  EIGHTHST
MODERN HOUSE 125 EIGHTHST
HARP-LONG HOUSE 130 EIGHTHST
BILLINGS-STERRETT HOUSE 132 EIGHTH ST
MORRIS-PORTER HOUSE : 143 EIGHTH ST
EGGLESTON-DAVIS HOUSE 155 EIGHTH ST
HARRINGTON, ELMER AND BERTIE HO 156 EIGHTH ST
HAHN RENTAL HOUSE 238 EIGHTH ST
STRONG-LARAMORE HOUSE 248 EIGHTHST
CROWSON,FRANK AND ANNA HOUSE 253 EIGHTH ST
NEELEY-SETTLES HSE SITE [McCul 267 EIGHTH ST
HAHN-JACKSON HOUSE 270  EIGHTH ST
BELL, GLEN AND OPAIL HOUSE 286  EIGHTH ST
GANIARD, SARAH RENTAL HOUSE 41 FIFTH ST
O'DONOGHUE, LAURA HOUSE 47 FIFTH ST
ASH FOURSQUARE CHURCH FELLOWSHI 48 FIFTH ST
CROCKER, MERTON HOUSE 57 FIFTH ST
SENSENY-MC GINNIS HOUSE 60 FIFTH ST
EASLICK, WILLIAM RENTAL HOUSE 72 FIFTH ST
EASLICK, APARTMENT UNITS 72 FIFTH ST
FLAGG, W. H. HOUSE 77 FIFTHST
MILLER-VAN VACTOR HOUSE 90 FIFTH ST
MC GINNIS, LUKE RENTAL HOUSE 1 107 FIFTH ST

Yr Built New Evalution Terminology

1964c Non-Historic, Non-Contributing

1964 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1917¢ Historic Contributing

1900 Historic Contributing

1908¢ Historic Contributing

1908¢ Historic Contributing

1900 Historic, Non-Contributing

1970 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1909 Historic Contributing

1961 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1990c¢ Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1978 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1952 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1900c¢ Historic Contributing

1949¢ Historic, Non-Contributing

1945 Historic Contsibuting

1994 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1909¢ Historic Contributing

1905 Historic Contributing

1901c Historic Contributing

1988 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1904¢ Historic Contributing

1948¢ Historic Contributing

1890c¢ Historic Contributing

1903¢ Historic Contributing

1907¢ Historic Contributing

1955 Non-Historc, Non-Contabuting
1996 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1904¢ Histosic Contributing

1994 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1942 Historic Contributing

1948¢ Historic Contributing

1902¢ Historic Contributing

1900 Historic Contrbuting

1994 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1900 Historic Contnbuting

1900 Historic Contributing

1903c Historic Contributing

1980c Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1911c Historic Contributing

1899c Historic Contributing

1902 Historic Contributing



ID #

283.000
286.000
282.000
287.000
288.000
281.000
172.000
171.000
181.000
182.000
170.000
183.000

45.000

54.000
148.000

65.000

64.000

39.000

63.000

62.000

60.000

61.000
351.000
350.000
349.000
303.000
302.000
348.000
301.000
300.000
298.000
347.000
117.000
116.000
294.000
115.000
114.000
293.000
292.000
113.000
296.000
103.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: By Site Address, March 2002

Site Name Address
LYN APARTMENTS 108  FIFTHST
BAER, VICTORIA HOUSE 120 FIFTH ST
BANKS, JOHN HOUSE 132 FIFTHST
BAER, EDWARD HOUSE 137 FIFTH ST
TAYLOR, JOHN HOUSE 155  FIFTH ST
MELLUS, RICHARD HOUSE 156  FIFTH ST
SPAYDE, MARY ADA HOUSE 223 FIFTH ST
MITCHELL, HENRY HOUSE 235 FIFTHST
EARLY VERNACULAR HOUSE 236  FIFTHST
AHLSTROM, NILS HOUSE 248 FIFTH ST
NININGER, CHARLES RENTAL HOUSE 250  FIFTH ST
AHLSTROM, NILS RENTAL HOUSE 266  FIFTH ST
TEMPEST COURT 123 FIRST ST
RALPH, HELEN RENTAL HOUSE 165 FIRST ST
ASHLAND POST OFFICE 120 FIRST' ST
FAULCONER, ALFRED HOUSE 234  FIRST ST
HARPER, E. L. AND VERNA HOUSE 236 FIRST ST
ASHLAND COMMUNITY FOOD STORE 237  FIRST ST
HARPER-LUNCEFORFD RENTAL HOUSE 240 FIRST ST
OLSON-FITZGERALD HOUSE 260  FIRST ST
HALL-THOMPSON HOUSE 270 FIRST ST
GHEA, THOMAS A. AND MARTHAD.H 272 FIRST ST
BROWN-DECKER HOUSE 39 FOURTH ST
GIBSON, W. C. HOUSE 49  FOURTH ST
MODERN DUPLEX 57 FOURTHST
CARTER PROPERTY/SMALL RENTAL HO 58  FOURTH ST
DWYER, JOHN G. HOUSE 64 FOURTH ST
STAUFFER, E. L. AND EVA HOUSE 65 FOURTH ST
HASKINS, SARAH J. HOUSE 70 FOURTH ST
SCHULTZ, A. F. HOUSE 11 78  FOURTH ST
ASHLAND 7TH DAY ADVENTIST CHURC 84  FOURTH ST
CHURCH OF THE NAZERENE [RV UNIT 87  FOURTH ST
VAN SANT, J. K. HOUSE 107 FOURTH ST
WHITE, HENRY RENTAL HOUSE HI 109 FOURTH ST
WOODEN, WILLIAM HOUSE 130  FOURTH ST
WHITE, HENRY RENTAL HOUSE 1I 131 FOURTH ST
BURNS, WILLIAM AND ELLA HOUSE 143 FOURTH ST
VEGHTE, CHARLES HOUSE 144  FOURTH ST
POTTER ROOMING HOUSE 160  FOURTH ST
ENGWICHT, GEORGE HOUSE 161 FOURTH ST
MC FARLAND, ALBERT E. RENTAL HO 162 FOURTH ST
NININGER, CHARLES BUILDING 11 215 FOURTH ST

Z zZ Z Z 2 Z Z Z

Yr Built New Evalution Terminology

1965 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1902c Historic Contributing

1888 Historic Contributing

1902 Historic Contributing

1908 Historic Contributing

1888 Historic Contributing

1928¢c Historic Contributing

1901¢ Historic Contributing

1887 Historic Contributing

1888 Historic Contributing {NR-listed]
1902c Historic Contributing

1900c Historic Contributing

1965 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1895¢ Historic Contributing

1966 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1947¢ Historic Contributing

1950 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1993 Non-Historic, Non-Contribufing
1944c Historic Contributing

1945 Historic, Non-Contributing
1949¢ Historic Contributing

1940 Historic Contributing

1901c Historic Contributing

1900c Historic Contrbuting .
1964 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1974 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1988 Non-Historic, Non-Contabuting
1946¢ Historic Contributing

1945 Historic Contributing

1891c Historic Contributing

1910c Historic, Non-Contributing
1960c Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
1898 Historic Contributing

1912¢ Historic Contributing

1901 Historic Contributing

1915¢ Historic Contributing

1900c¢ Historic Contributing

1898 Historic Contributing

1911 Historic Contributing

1899 Historic Contributing

1912¢ Historic Contributing

1899 Historic Contributing



D #

174.000
102.000
101.000
169.000
166.000
168.000
100.000

92.000

91.000
313.000
363.000
364.000
354.000
373.000
320.000
374.000
352.000
304.000
305.000
367.000
306.000
368.000
307.000
369.000
308.000
309.000
370.000
371.000
372.000
321.000
322.000
323.000
324.000
325.000
335.000
336.000
337.000
339.000
342.000
343.000
346.000
377.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: By Site Address, March 2002

Site Name

NININGER, CHARLES BUILDING I
AURAL CLINIC

PEERLESS ROOMS BUILDING
HENNAN, PRICE HOUSE
ASHLAND HOSE COMPANY NO. 2

WHITTLE TRANSFER CO. WAREHOUSE

POSITIVELY FOURTH STREET
SCHOOLHOUSE R ELECTRIC
LOOMIS, E.F. BUILDING

JAMISON, HAROLD & MARJORIE HOUS

OESER'S FLYING A SERVICE

VAN VLEET REAL ESTATE OFFICE
ROGUE FEDERAL CREDITUNION
THE ASHLANDER CONDOS

ASH FOURSQUARE CHURCH
ASHLAND CEMETERY

ASHLAND PROFESSIONAL CENTER
DAVIS-AINSWORTH ET AL
CALLAHAN-MANSFIELD HOUSE
McCALL, JESSE A. HOUSE
WILSON-BYRD HOUSE

ROSE, CHARLES & LAURA HOUSE
VAN SANT-BRYANT HOUSE

LONG, O.W. AND MINDA RENTAL
HUBBARD-HARDY HOUSE
PALETHORPE, GEORGE HOUSE
CURRIE, JOSEPH T. BOARDING HOUS
UNKNOWN HOUSE

READER, J. K. RENTAL HOUSE
SHULTZ, A. F. HOUSE 1

MORRIS, J. W. B. & CYNTHIA HOUS
MORRIS, J. W. B. RENTAL

LONG, ELIZA RENTAL HOUSE
SLINGERLAND, GILBERT R. RENTAL

WILSON, MERRITT AND NANCY HOUSE 767
FREE METHODIST CHURCH PARSONAGE/75

FREE METHODIST CHURCH
GREENE DUPLEX 2
HOWETT-BAGLEY HOUSE
POTTER, 8. A. HOUSE SITE
INLOW-SHERARD HOUSE
CROWSON-ADDISION HOUSE

GOLDEN SPIKE WAY

Address
220 FOURTHST
233 FOURTH ST
243  FOURTH ST
246 FOURTH ST
264 FOURTH ST
264 FOURTH ST
265 FOURTH ST
281 FOURTH ST
287 FOURTHST
60
345  LITHIA WAY
375  LITHIA WAY
415  LITHIA WAY
MAIN ST
0 MAIN ST
0  MAINST
485 MAIN ST
521  MAINST
549  MAIN ST
550  MAIN ST
555 MAIN ST
568 MAINST
573 MAINST
574  MAINST
581  MAINST
585 MAINST
586 MAIN ST
598 MAINST
600 MAINST
637 MAINST
649  MAINST
665 MAINST
675 MAINST
685 MAIN ST
MAIN ST
MAIN ST
777 MAIN ST
835 MAINST
855 MAINST
867 MAINST
881  MAINST
916 MAINST

[esiles liltes
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Yr Built New Evalution Terminology

1903
1995
1900/04
1947
1908
1937¢
1982
1957
1899
1988
1958
1960/79
1984
1980
1928¢
1900c
1958
1975
1928¢
1890/02
1922
1907
1901c
1941
1889¢
1888
1908¢
1920c
18%0c
1895¢
1900c
1902¢
1909¢
1909¢
1905¢
1908c
1908c
1978
1901c
1991
1905
1900¢

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contnbuting
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic, Non-Contributing
Histosic Contributing [NR-listed]
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contrdbuting

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
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239.000
242.000
240.000
238.000
379.000
237.000
236.000
380.000
4.000
149.000
18.000
17.000
21.000
22.000
16.000
15.000
23.000
14.000
30.000
11.000
9.000
8.000
7.000
6.000
5.000
3.000
28.000
29.000
2.000
1.000
43.000
20.000
47.000
27.000
48.000
26.000
25.000
49.000
24.000
38.000
40.000
41.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: By Site Address, March 2002

Site Name

CALLE WINTERS' GROCERY
REID, ETHEL S. HOUSE
NEWMAN APARTMENTS
THOMPSON, MAE G. HOUSE

BRYANT, T.W. & DELPHIA HOUSE

JACOBS-SLACK HOUSE
JACOBS RENTAL HOUSE

FLORA, FRANK AND GLADYS HOUSE

VACANT PARCEL

ASHLAND FRUIT & PRODUCE ASSN WH
HAMPTON HOMES REAL ESTATE

MC CALL, JOHN HOUSE
COFFEE, GEORGIE HOUSE

FRANCO, TONY AND LULU HOUSE
SHERWIN, EUGENE A. HOUSE
VAN SANT, JAMES K. HOUSE 11

NEW OFFICE BUILDING
ANGLE, LEVI L. HOUSE

ASHLAND OR NATIONAL GUARD ARMORO08

CHAPMAN-MICKELSON HCUSE

SMITH, ELLIOTT HOUSE
BARNES, ALBERT HOUSE
MERLEY, JOSIAH HOUSE
LOOSELY, GEORGE HOUSE

POWELL, D. SHERMAN HOUSE

MC NAIR, W. H. HOUSE

ENDERS WHOLESALE GROCERY WHS [C 310

PIONEER CAR WASH

MC NAIR, W. H. AND LORENA HOUSE

POWELL, THADDEUS HOUSE

OAK ST TANK STORAGE BLDG
BOB CRESAP INSURANCE BUILDING

LOSHER, JAMES W. HOUSE

PIONEER TV/ARCHIES CLEANERS

MULIT, LLOYD HOUSE

MURPHY, ROY G. RENTAL HOUSE
BELL, CLARENCE & RACHEL RENTAL

VINING-WHITE HOUSE

HARGROVE, ANNA AND IDA HOUSE
HERITAGE BANK (Valley of the Ro

TOWN HALL

Address
917 MAINST
933  MAINST
943  MAIN ST
959 MAIN ST
968 MAINST
975 MAINST
985  MAINST
988  MAIN ST
0 OAKST
0 OAK ST
135  OAKST
153  OQAKST
154  OQAKST
170 OAKST
171 OAKST
181 OAK ST
190 OAKST
191 OAK ST
OAK ST
209 OAKST
221 OAK ST
239  OQAKST
247  OAKST
263 OAKST
281 OAK ST
303  OQAKST
OAK ST
310  OAKST
323 OAKST
337  OAKST
0  PIONEERST
147  PIONEER ST
150 PIONEERST
151 PIONEERST
162  PIONEERST
163  PIONEER ST
175  PIONEERST
180 PIONEER §T
185  PIONEER $T
25¢  PIONEER ST
294 PIONEER ST
PIONEER ST

GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSE V309

jea e I vs i e B v B v i e s Al vs
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1940
1926
1967
1949
1889¢
1920c
1910c
1959
0
1912
1969
1883
1908c
1946¢
1900¢
1907c
1996
1904¢
1913
1902¢
1907c
1904
1908
1917¢
1900
1909
1925/94
1961/93
1910
1910c¢
1980
1971
1904
195%¢
1905
1941¢
1941c
1884
1909
1979
1991
1900c

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contsibuting

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Vacant

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing [INR-listed]
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contrbuting
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contrbuting
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contgbuting
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing

Historic Contributing
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42,000
135.000
136.000
146.000
137.000
145.000
138.000
144.000
143.000

69.000

78.000

68.000

77.000

67.000

79.000

66.000

57.000
338.000
© 333.000
340.000
256.000
255.000
257.000
254.000
253.000
258.000
252.000
259.000
251.000
261.000
210.000
199.000
211.000
212.000
198.000
365.000
366.000
270.100
326.000
327.000
330.000
329.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: By Site Address, March 2002

Site Name

HAY WAREHOUSE
DANFORD, BEECHER HOUSE
HICKS, MARGARET HOUSE

SHOOK, ISAAC RENTAL HOUSE

ALWINE, ALVIN HOUSE

MOREHOUSE, SHERMAN RENTAL HOUS139
HARGADINE, CHARLES AND CARRIEH 144

SHOOK, ISAAC AND MARTHA HOUSE

PLUMERTH, JACOB HOUSE
HOSLEY, CHARLES HOUSE
WALLBANK, ERIK HOUSE

[MARSHALL] CARPENTER-LOVE HOUSE

UNKNOWN HOUSE

LOVE, G. W. RENTAL HOUSE II
SCHOENWALD, JOHN HOUSES
LOVE, G. W. RENTAL HOUSE 1

BLUNCK, ELMER HOUSE
GREENE DUPLEX

POLEY, W. M. RENTAL HOUSE

EVENSON, EVEN HOUSE

SMITH, GEORGE W. AND ELIZABETH

MC CUNE, JOSEPH HOUSE

SNYDER, VALLANDINGHAM AND SARAHI19

EGLI RENTAL HOUSE

COX, ALLEN E. AND SARAH HOUSE

PFAFF, CHARLES HOUSE

SOVERNS, CARLETON B. HOUSE
BAKER, ADAM AND LYDIA HOUSE
CHURCHMAN, GEORGE HOUSE

HILYER DUPLEX
DODSON, W. D. HOUSE

McCLUNG-PETERSON HOUSE

DAWSON-REYNOLDS HOUSE
OLSON TRIPLEX

WALKER, LUNSFORD HOUSE
ASHLAND FIRE STATION #1

TACO TIME [BLUE MOUNTAIN)]
PENTACOSTAL CHURCH ANNEX...BLD

LUCAS-PARKER HOUSE
ROSE, MARY E. HOUSE

ROSE BROTHERS RENTAL HOUSE

MONROE, GEORGE HOUSE

Address
309 PIONEER ST
108 SECOND ST
120 SECOND ST
125 SECOND ST
136 SECOND ST
SECOND ST
SECOND ST
153  SECOND ST
159  SECOND ST
239  SECOND ST
246  SECOND ST
247  SECOND ST
248 SECOND ST
263 SECOND ST
266 SECOND ST
269 SECOND ST
283 SECOND ST
30 SEVENTH ST
8¢  SEVENTHST
20 SEVENTH 8T
107 SEVENTHST
108 SEVENTH ST
SEVENTH ST
120 SEVENTH ST
132 SEVENTH ST
137 SEVENTH ST
140 SEVENTHST
155 SEVENTH ST
156  SEVENTH ST
165 SEVENTHST
234  SEVENTH ST
247  SEVENTH ST
248  SEVENTH ST
260 SEVENTH ST
263 SEVENTH ST
455  SISKIYOU BLVD
457  SISKIYOU BLVD
0  SIXIHST
59  SIXTHST
77 SIXTHST
78  SIXTHST
90  SIXTH ST

Z Z Z 72 Z 272 2 2 Z 222 2 Z2ZZZ
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1908
1920¢
1901
1900
1947¢
1910c
1900
1890c¢
1892c
1888c
1988
1886¢
1890c
1900¢
1959
1900¢
1940c
1978
1903¢
1907¢c
1900¢
1904
1908
1900/80
1900
1905¢
1905¢
1895¢
1902c
1988
1914¢
1902¢
1899
1980
1902¢
1954
1972
1974¢
1898
1897
1912¢
1912

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Histornic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contrbuting

Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing

Historic, Non-Contsibuting
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing

Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Noa-Contributing
Historic Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
Historic Contabuting

Historic Contabuting



Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: By Site Address, March 2002

D # Site Name Address Yr Built New Evalution Terminology
270.000 CHURCH OF THE HOLY ROSARY 100 SIXTHST 1889 Historic Contributing
271.000 BADGER, CLARENCE HOUSE 107 SIXTHST 1908c Historic Contributing
'273.000 VAN HORNE-WELLS HOUSE 123  SIXTH ST 1895¢ Historic Contributing
269.000 BLEDSOE, HATTIE HOUSE 132 SIXTHST 1905¢ Historic Contnbuting
274.000 NORRIS-CLEVENGER HOUSE 133 SIXTHST 1940c Historic, Non-Contributing
268.000 CHISHOLM-OGG‘ HOUSE 142 SIXTHST 1902¢ Historic Contributing
267.000 RICE, JOHN REV. RENTAL HOUSE 150  SIXTHST 1888 Historic Contributing
275.000 WISE, HERMAN AND MARJORIE HOUSE 153  SIXTH ST 1947¢ Historic, Non-Contributing
276.000 STEPHENSON, G. W. RENTAL HOUSE 155 SIXTH ST 1903c Historic Contributing
266.000 UNIDENTIFIED HOUSE [HUDSON RENT 156  SIXTH ST 1895¢ Historic Contributing
265.000 DILHAN, JOSEPH AND JESSIE HOUSE 164  SIXTHST 1912¢ Historic Contributing
184.000 AHLSTROM, NORTH HOUSE 247  SIXTH ST 1920¢ Historic Contributing
197.000 TURNER, O. B. HOUSE 256  SIXTHST 1905 Historic Contributing
185.000 EVERTON, WALTER HOUSE 265 SIXTHST 1918¢ Historic Contributing
196.000 HANNON, LEONARD T. RENTAL HOUSE 266  SIXTH ST 1966 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
186.000 GILLIAM, LAWRENCE AND EDNA HOUS 267  SIXTH ST 1946¢ Historic Contributing
195.000 HANNON, LEONARD T. AND IRENE HO 268  SIXTHST 1955 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
194.000 HANNON, LEONARD T. AND IRENE HO 294  SIXTHST 1946 Historic Contributing
187.000 FARQUAR, GEORGE AND NELLIE HOUS 297  SIXTHST 1947c Historic Contributing
334.000 PNB/US WEST SWITCHING BUILDING 50 SIXTH ST 1959¢ Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
358.000 EVANS, JULIA HOUSE I 70  THIRD ST 1899 Historic Contributing
119.000 NORTSTROM, JOHN & OLIVE RENTAL 114  THIRD ST 1930c Historic Contributing
133.000 VAN TASSEL, MARGARET HOUSE 117  THIRD ST 1903¢ Historic Contributing
132.000 BLEVINS, F. M. RENTAL HOUSE 125 THIRD ST 1912¢ Historic Contributing
119.160 HARTLEY, ROY RENTAL 1 130  THIRD ST 1942¢ Historic Contributing
121.000 GROAT, W. A. HOUSE 138  THIRD ST 1900 Historic Contributing
131.000 WELLS, ERASTUS L. AND ELLEN HOU 143  THIRD ST 1902¢ Historic Contributing
130.000 HOSLEY, ROY HOUSE 155 THIRD ST 1912¢ Historic Contributing
108.000 VORIS DUPLEX 230  THIRD ST 1976 Non-Historic, Non-Contributing
83.000 BESWICK RENTAL HOUSE 1IT 247 THIRD ST 1900c Historic Contributing
97.000 ENDERS-CORBETT HOUSE 248  THIRD ST 1909¢ Historic Contributing
82.000 BESWICK RENTAL HOUSE 1I 253  THIRD ST 1901 Historic Contributing
81.000 BESWICK RENTAL HOUSE I 257 THIRD ST 1901 Historic Contributing
98.000 CORBETT-HUGHES HOUSE 258 THIRD ST 1910c Historic Contributing
80.000 WHITMORE, 8. 1. HOUSE 265 THIRD ST 1902¢ Historic Contributing
99.000 DAVISON, FRANK HOUSE 266 THIRD ST 1901c Historic Contributing
355.000 GOFF, EDGAR AND KATE HOUSE II 50 THIRDST N 1899 Historic Contributing
356.000 GOFF, EDGAR AND KATE HOUSE I 56 THIRDST N 1900 Historic Contributing
357.000 HICKS, MARGARET HOUSE I1 64 THIRD ST N 1900c Historic Contributing
359.000 EVANS, JULIA HOUSE 1 74 THIRD ST N 1899 Historic Contributing
360.000 GANIARD, LUCINDA RENTAL HOUSET 78  THIRDST N 1899 Historic Contributing
362.000 MOREHOUSE, SHERMAN RENTAL HOUSES7 THIRD ST N 1908¢c Historic Contributing



D #

361.000
134.000
122.000
123.000

Ashland Railroad Addition Historic, Ashland, Jackson County, OR
Resource Evaluation Index: By Site Address, March 2002

Site Name Address
MOREHOUSE, SHERMAN HOUSE 94 THIRD ST
SILSBY, COLONEL WILLIAM H. HOUS 111 THIRD ST
WHETSTONE, NEWELL & BEULAHRENT 142  THIRD ST
BOIVEN, HENRY AND NELLIE HOUSE 156 THIRD ST

TOTAL 382

zZ Z Z Z

Yr Built New Evalution Terminology

1912¢
1896
1941c
1900

Historic Contributing
Historic Contributing [NR-listed]
Historic Contributing

Historic Contributing
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Since it was originally platted the Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District has
maintained a unique identity within the larger city.1 Its regular, tree-lined, blocks of small
wood-frame residential dwellings with the masonry commercial core focused upon 4th
Street and the former depot site on A, retain an unusually high degree of integrity to the
area’s historic character. The district’s varied building styles, use of materials, and other
elements effectively convey its cyclical boom and bust economy during the two identified
periods of historic significance, including the arrival of the rails to Ashland in the late 19th
century, the decline and rental conversion following the shift of the main line prior to the
Great Depression and, finally, the increase in residential density and new development that
occurred during and immediately following World War I1.

SETTING:

The Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District is located in the Bear Creek portion of the
Rogue River Valley, north of Ashland’s downtown core. The district is an almost entirely
flat area, densely developed, and regularly platted into grid-pattern streets and lots. The
boundaries of the District, defined in detail in Section 10, encompass all those areas of the
Railroad and Second Railroad additions to the city, the Chitwood Tracts, Miner’s and
Eureka additions, as well as a small portion of the Original Townsite, that are bounded by
East Main/Lithia Way (Oregon State Highway 99) the primary northbound auto route
through Ashland, and the remaining single track railroad corridor on the north and south,
and face Water Street or Eighth Street, to the east and west. To the east of the District is a
residential area, including a few late 19* and early 20" century dwellings, many with
original agricultural associations, but largely consisting of later single and multi-family
development without the intermixed architecture of the District itself. Supporting this
change in architectural character is the marked sense of entry created by the angled
intersection of Second Railroad Addition plat and the surrounding area, reflected by bends
in both the East Main and B street layout. To the ncrth, beyond the railroad right-of-way
that forms the district’s north boundary, is an area of light-industrial and commercial uses,
most developed in the past 20 years following closure of the timber mills that were present
in this area during the historic period. The south boundary, being the back property line of
those resource facing East Main Street and the center line of Lithia Way, forms the
traditional division with “Downtown” and its commercial uses, generally of brick and
masonry construction as might be expected. To the District lies Water Street and Ashland
Creek, with few standing structures, none of which share any association or architectural

! The first Ashland Railroad Addition was surveyed and platted in October 1883 and filed with the Jackson
County Recorder in February of 1884. (See Commissioners Journal (Road Records) Vol. 2, pg. 42.
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character with the Railroad Addition Historic District. Changes in grade on both B and Van
Ness, add to a sense of entry into the District as one approaches from the west.2

ARCHITECTURAL STYLES :

RESIDENTIAL

By and large, the Ashland Railroad District is residential in character with the bulk of the
resources, both contributing and otherwise, used for dwelling purposes. Initial residential
development began with the 1883 platting of the first Railroad Addition and the April
1884 arrival of the trains from the north. Construction was generally of small wood-frame
housing, most of one or one and one half stories. This development utilized typical
construction styles in the vernacular tradition that dominated southern Oregon housing
design throughout the last half of the 19" century. The use of the term “Vernacular” is
somewhat problematic as a style attribution in the typical architectural sense and since the
vast majority of dwellings within the Railroad District are below designated under the
“Vernacular” rubric, some additional discussion as to how that term is applied is
appropriate.

Its meaning is flexible according to the situation; but in essence, “vernacular” mean an
unaffected, unselfconscious, unaccented way of building....it is the use of architectural
style without being conscious of style...(Gowans, 1986:41)

In the Railroad District, as in much of the west, the traditional folk definition of vernacular
as an “...architecture that was passed on to successive generations of builders and designers
through use of materials, shapes, and textures, spatial organizations, proportions among
elements and systems of ornamentation...” was modified by the late 19* century industrial
and transportation technologies that brought the impacts of mass production to the process
of house building. (Gottfried and Jennings, 1985: VII) Different architectural historians
categorize these simple structures in varying ways, some based upon applied exterior
ornamentation or use while others focus upon interior room arrangement. In the Railroad
Addition Historic District, the “vernacular” dwellings of the Primary Period (1883-1927)
have been generally defined in terms of their layout, i.e. “ell” or I-House,” with stylistic
attributes treated as a secondary descriptor. Typical of these early and simple structures are
the Rev. John Rice Rental House (Site 267.0, built 1888), or the Charles Hosley House
(Site No. 69.0, built 1888c). Prior to the turn of the century these single volume
vernacular dwellings were joined by large one and one-half story gable ells such as the
Lucinda Ganiard Rental Houses I and II, both built in 1901. (Sites 81.0 and 82.0) Later

2 The grade differential at the SW corner of the district is minimized by the ODOT-constructed overpass that was
built as a part of the mid-1950s opening of the northbound lane of U. S. Highway 99 (now Oregon State 99),
a route that as “Lithia Way” forms the district boundary in that area.
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vernacular forms, including hipped-roof cottages and I-House variants that demonstrate the
influence of the Gothic, Queen Anne, and Italianate styles were all constructed in the
Railroad District in the years between 1890 and 1910. (See, for example, Sites 337.0,
312.0 and 346.0, exhibiting elements of the Gothic, Italianate, and Queen Anne styles
respectively).3

In the post WWI era and moving into the Secondary Period (1928-1949) as the typical
building shifted to one-story gable cottages, and later “ranch” inspired forms, the vernacular
style became less regular and has here been used to categorize dwellings with no other
obvious stylistic attribution. The many structures relocated from U.S. Army Cantonment
“Camp White” in the 1946-1949 period are considered typical of this pattern and while
actually architect designed on nationally-based military approved models, these structures
are considered to logically and appropriately to fall within the ‘vernacular” category for
stylistic attribution purposes.*

While approximately half of the District resources are considered vernacular, other more
formal residential styles are also represented within the area. During the late 19* century
more elaborate versions of the Queen Anne, Stick and other so-called “Eclectic Styles”
were frequently employed by wealthy area merchants and retirees. Homes in these purer
forms include, for example, the E. C. Kane House (Site 129.0) and the John and Charlotte
Pelton House. (Site 140.0) It is interesting to note that of the eleven dwellings falling
within the “Eclectic Styles” attribution, five are already listed individually on the National
Register of Historic Places.5

Early 20" architectural styles are also represented in the Railroad District. These most
prominently include examples of the Bungalow and Craftsman forms, which occur both in
new construction as well as later additions to earlier vernacular resources. Examples of
dwellings in the simple Bungalow style include the Sherman D. Powell House (Site ID 5.0,
built 1900) and the Mary Trefern House (Site 180.00, built 1920c) The more elaborately
detailed “Craftsman Bungalow” form is exemplified by Beecher Danford House (Site
135.0, 1920c) and the Anna and Ida Hargrove House (Site 24.0, 1909) Although

3 A stylistic analysis is presented in Section 8.

4 The shallow-gable wood-frame officers quarters, mess halls and other buildings that were relocated from Camp
White throughout Oregon were constructed in 1942 by CMC Contractors, a large collective of west coast
construction firms that cooperatively built that huge training facility. Noted LosAngeles architect Myron
Hunt is credited with the Camp’s design although most of the structures are largely derived from standard
military designed cantonment structures. See Kramer, “Camp White: City in the Agate Desert” (Camp White
sot Anniversary Committee, 1992) and Wasch et al, “World War 11 and the U. S. Army Mobilization
Program,” (HABS/HAER-Legacy Resources Management Program, US Dept. of Defense, 1989).

5 The eleven “Eclectic Style” dwellings represents only 3% of the districts total resourcesaccounts for fully 50%
of the area’s already listed National Register resources.
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categorized under “Vernacular,” dwellings such at the “Mary Vining House” (Site 50.0,
built 1886/89) include later alterations inspired by popular Bungalow or Craftsman designs.
Approximately 15% of the District’s resources fall within the “Arts & Crafts” style and its
various sub-categories.

As might be expected given the development pattern of the area and its decline in the
1920s-1930s period, only a few Historic Period style dwellings are located within the
Railroad District. Of the three such resources, all built between 1930 and 1945 include
simple variations on the Norman Farmhouse, English Cottage and Gothic styles. (Sites
53.0, 119.0 and 124.0) ‘

COMMERCIAL

Though predominately a residential enclave, the commercial uses historically located within
the Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District were in large part both responsible for the
area’s initial development and significant as the internal focus of much of the District’s
economic and social character. During the primary period of historic significance, the
Fourth Street and A Street corridors were almost entirely devoted to commercial or
industrial uses. First floor retail or service businesses (tailors, barbers etc.) were typically
complemented by second floor lodging or apartments. Later, grocery and hardware stores
appeared in the area to serve its growing population independent from the downtown
Ashland business community. Restaurants, most notably the Ashland Depot restaurant,
remained a constant element in the Railroad area well in the late 1950s and early 1960s.

Of the limited 19 century commercial buildings remaining on Fourth Street, the E. F.
Loomis Building (Site 91.00, built 1899) is typical, classified as American Late 19%
Century: Chicago School. Other examples are categorized under the more generic Late
19* Century “Commercial,” indicative of the district’s avowedly non-high style design
character. The sole architect-designed public or commercial building within the district is
the NR-listed Ashland National Guard Armory (Site 30.0, 1913), designated as being
within the Historic Period: California Mission style.

Several wood-frame commercial or industrial-related buildings do remain in the district,
including the Charles Nininger Building (Site 174.0, built 1902¢) and the Gottlieb Spiegel
Building (Site 106.0, 1908c). Both represent the modest falsefront or vernacular style more
commonly associated with the late 19" century. The Ashland Depot Hotel, South Wing, a
portion of the imposing three-story wood-frame building built by Southern Pacific Railroad
in 1887 to mark the completion of the line to California, was relocated across A Street and
was independently listed on the National Register prior to its renovation.
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INDUSTRIAL

Given its proximity to the railroad and access to shipping, traditional developments within
the Ashland Railroad District included numerous industrial and related uses. Livery stables,
transfer warehouses and similar uses were once common. Today, only a few of these simple
industrial structures remain with the most notable being the Ashland Fruit and Produce
Association Warehouse (Site 149.0, built 1912) and its related though separately
inventoried Hay Warehouse (42.0, built 1908). Secondary period industrial uses are
represented solely by the Whittle Transfer Warehouse (168.0, built 1947) Several post-
historic uses, particularly the White Fir Lumber Company Building (58.0, built 1951)
continued the industrial character of the district although most of these later properties
have been subsequently modified and converted to other exterior forms that hide their
original nature. Virtually all the industrial buildings within the district are categorized
stylistically as “Other: Industrial.”

PuBLIC USES

A number of buildings originally used as churches during the historic periods remain within
the District, most continuing to serve their original function. While some finely detailed
examples exist, notably the Church of the Holy Rosary (270.0, built 1889) which while
basically vernacular has elements of the Gothic Revival Style, the majority are, or were,
simple wood-frame structures comparable to the area’s residential character. Typical is the

Free Methodist Church (337.0, built 1908c). The First Christian Church (124.0, built
1947) is a masonry volume erected upon the site on an earlier wood-frame church,
continuing a use in the district that dates from the late 1800s. Several other church
buildings constructed during the historic period remain in the district, still in their original
use, but as the result of remodeling do not currently reflect their original period of
development. (See 298.00 and 320.00)

BUILDERS. ARCHITECTS & OTHER SIGNIFICANT INDIVIDUALS:

The vast majority of the structures in the Railroad District were built and designed by
unknown individuals or their first owners from vernacular designs, probably without any
formal set of plans or blueprints. Few of these early contractors and carpenters can be
named. However, several of Ashland’s most prominent builders did work in the Railroad
District, often on their own homes and then later on rental or investment property.
Coupled with investors and others whose names are connected with a number of properties
in the area, biographical sketches of some of the more influential individuals during the
historic periods are;
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Ahlstrom, Nils

Born in Sweden in 1830, conductor Nils Ahlstrom arrived in the Railroad District at least as 1888,
when he stationed here by the Southern Pacific Railroad. He purchased most or all of Block E
and hired John Frulan to build his family’s home (182.0) facing Fifth Street. Ahlstrom later built
several rental properties in the block, and his son, North, also is responsible for development in
the area. (See 183.0 through 185.0). Emma Ahlstrom, widow of Nils son Frederick JI., lived in
the Railroad District into the 1960s. (See 125.0)

Ayers C.W..

Clarence W. Ayers moved to Ashland about 1880 and established an active construction business.
He was responsible for many residential and commercial buildings in Ashland including the S.B.
Galey House and former Roper residence on Siskiyou Boulevard, and the E. K. Anderson House
on Wagner Creek, near Talent, Oregon. Examples of his work in the Railroad Historic District
include the former Church of the Holy Rosary (270.0); the Chilcott-Shaw House (52.0) and the E.
C. Kane House (129.0). Following his divorce from Elizabeth Hargadine Ayers in 1895, C.W.
Ayers left Ashland permanently.

Clark, Frank Chamberlain:

Born in New York in 1872, Clark moved to Ashland to design a building for Southern Oregon
Normal School. He maintained an office in Ashland until 1911 when he moved to Medford. A
trained architect, Clark eventually designed hundreds of residential, commercial and public
buildings throughout Southern Oregon until his death in 1957. Examples of buildings designed by
Clark in Ashland are the Ashland Elk’s Building, the Enders Building, the former Christian
Science Church, the Ashland Masonic Building, and several residences. The Tony and Lulu
Franco House (22.0) and the Anna and Ida Hargrove House (24.0) in the Railroad Historic District
are credited to Clark. '

Easterling, John M.

Arriving in Ashland in 1903 at the age of thirty-six, Kentucky-born Easterling was reported as a
“wealthy businessman from Nebraska.” He immediately invested in a number of commercial
properties in the Fourth and A street area and ran several restaurant and hotel operations as well
as leasing out property to others. He developed both the Easterling Building (163.0) and greatly
expanded and operated the Peerless Rooms Building (101.0) among his many ventures and by
1910 was sufficiently successful to list his occupation in the 1910 as “retired” despite his
relatively young age.

Frulan, John

A native of Norway, John Frulan moved to Ashland in 1888 where he completed a residence in
the Railroad Historic District the same year. Examples of dwellings constructed by Frulan in the
District include the John and Clara Frulan House (178.0) and the Nils Ahlstrom House (182.0).
John Frulan died in Ashland in May, 1902 at the age of 63 years.
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Ganiard, Mrs. Lucinda

Originally in partnership with her husband Oscar and then later as a widow, Mrs. Ganiard was one
of the major landholders and investors in the Railroad District in the years surrounding the turn of
the century. While developing commercial property (101.0) Mrs. Ganiard’s chief impact was
through the construction of at least six rental properties in the district (for example 41.0, 88.0, and
89.0). Her daughter, Lottie Pelton, continued the families investments in the area and several
other members of the Ganiard Family also lived and developed property in the District’s historic
period.

Jordan, Frank.

Frank Jordan came to Ashland shortly after 1900 and worked as a builder for many years.
Specializing in brick and concrete work, he constructed the P.W. Paulson Building on Oak Street
in 1905 and the Bank of Ashland Extension Building on North Main Street in 1906. In 1909 he
did the concrete work for the new Granite City Hospital. In 1916 Jordan won the assignment to
remodel the jail in Ashland City Hall. The following year Frank Jordan completed the cement
wall for the new Ashland Chautauqua structure. Jordan’s work in the Railroad Historic District is
exemplified in the Ashland Hose Company No. 2 (166.0) on Fourth Street, constructed in 1908.

Plumerth, J.C.

Jacob C. Plumerth, a native of Canada moved to Ashland in 1882, where he built a family
residence on B Street. Responsible for building several dwelling in Ashland, Plumerth’s work in
the Railroad Historic District includes the Jacob Piumerth House (143.0) and the Richard Mellus
House (281.0). Although the Plumerths moved briefly to East Portland in 1889, they continued to
maintain their residence in Ashland. By 1910, Maria Plumerth, a widow, lived on Sixth Street in
Ashland.

Perham, Edward G.:

Edward G. Perham is noted primarily as a bridge contractor. His earliest known work in Jackson
County was the repair of a Gold Hill bridge for Jackson County. Later he would repair the first
Bybee Bridge, of wood, over the Rogue River and by 1909-1910, while apparently living in Coos
County, was the successful bidder for both the new steel Bybee Bridge and the 1912 Bear Creek
Bridge in Medford. Perham has been identified as the primary contractor for six separate Jackson
and Josephine County bridges built prior to 1913.% His identified work in the Railroad District are
the two houses he built for Julia Evans in 1899. (358.0 and 359.0)

Potter, S.A.
Samuel A. Potter, who was born in 1858 moved to Ashland about 1900 to work for the Southern
Pacific Railroad as a laborer. He began concrete contracting business known as Lindsay and

6 Kramer, George. Request for Determination of Eligibility “Big Butte Creek Road Bridge [Second Bybee/now Cobleigh
Road Bridge],” October 1394.
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Potter, (later as S.A. Potter and Son) and constructed two hollow cement block commercial
structures on East Main Street in 1904, the S.B. Stoner and the W.C. Sanderson Buildings .
Examples of his work in the Railroad Historic District include the Potter Rooming House on
Fourth Street (292.0), constructed in 1911 and the S.A. Potter House (343.0) on East Main Street.

Schmidt, W.J.

A resident of Ashland since 1880, Schmidt designed and constructed several distinctive houses
and public buildings, including Ashland City Hall (1891), the Trinity Episcopal Church (1895)
and the G.M. Grainger House (189.0). The John and Charlotte Pelton House (140.0) exemplifies
his work in the Railroad Historic District. Schmidt left Ashland in 1898. In 1901he supervised
construction of the courthouse for Garfield County, Washington.

Van Sant, James K.

A prominent businessman and investor, Van Sant arrived in Ashland in 1888 and ran a grocery
store. His first house in the District was built in 1898 (117.0) and he invested in both commercial
and residential rental properties, at least four of which remain. (86.0, 87.0, 164.0 and 307.0)
After his retirement, Van Sant built a second house in the District (15.0) and remained an area
resident until his death in 1909.

Veghte C.H.

Born in New York in 1852, Charles Veghte came to Ashland in the 1880s. He worked for many
years as a carpenter with his father-in-law Baldwin Beach and by 1900 was proprietor of a brick
kiln. During his long career as a builder in Ashland Veghte was responsible for several of the
city’s notable homes and commercial buildings. Examples of Veghte’s work in the Railroad
Historic District include the National Guard Armory (30.0); the Isaac Shook House (146.0); and
the Charles Veghte House (293.0) Veghte and his wife sold their Ashland home in 1919 and
moved to Santa Monica, California where he died in May, 1921.

P0sT-1949 DEVELOPMENT

With the end of the secondary historic period and the cessation of the post-WWII boom,
new development dramatically increased the building density in the Railroad Addition
Historic District. New residential construction was generally “Ranch Style” architecture,
gaining in popularity in the 1950s and 1960s, and many residential units were developed on
long vacant sites following lot division as older homes with large lots sold off gardens and
other unimproved parcels. Typical of this postwar development pattern is the Leonard T.
Hannon House (Site 195.0, built 1955} which while compatible both volumetrically and in
materials represented the new design trend in the district. Single family dwellings built
during the 1970s through late 1980s were most typically a continuation of that stylistic
trend, though many of these homes were of larger scale than had previously been the case.
By the end of the 1980s and into the present era, neo-historic styles have come to dominate
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new residential construction as earlier, and often smaller, historic buildings were lost
following demolition or fire. Growing population and increased demand also saw renewed
construction following minor land partition, again increasing the number of dwellings and
accessory units within the area. Typical of these various trends are the Susan Demarinis
Office (128.0, 1992), the Harold and Marjorie Jamison House (313.0, 1988) and the
Strong-Laramore House {223.0, 1996) all of which utilize historically-inspired design for
new construction with varying success.

During the 1960s and 1970s growing numbers of multiple-family residential units were
constructed in the Railroad District, resulting in the demolition of several once-prominent
historic resources. Virtually none of these apartment and multi-plex designs were
undertaken with any attempt at maintaining compatibility with their surroundings.
Examples include the Herzman Apartments (112.0, built 1974) or the Lyn Apartments
(283.0, built 1965).

The northern and southern boundaries of the Ashland Railroad Addition Historic District
are each formed by primary transportation corridors; the railroad on the north and Oregon
Highway 99 (formerly U.S. 99) on the south. Lithia Way, a portion of Highway 99,
developed as a commercial corridor in the late 1950s and 1960s following the construction
of the northbound couplet through the former residential area. Typical of these highway-
focused commercial styles are Don Wolfe Exxon (19.0, 1961) or Oeser’s Flying A Service,
(363.0, 1958) Several dwellings within the district were relocated as a part of that
construction process and remain as contributing features in their new locations.

The railroad right-of-way itself saw very little development prior to the 1990s, with the
Ashland Fruit and Produce Association Warehouse and Grange Co-Op Buildings being the.
only two structures built north of A Street prior to that time.” The remainder of the right-
of-way was entirely limited to railroad uses, including the South Wing of the Ashland Depot
Hotel prior to relocation and portable housing units for remaining railroad personnel. A late
19™ century brick structure, a “toolhouse” wing of the demolished roundhouse, survived
north of the railroad tracks until its demolition in the early 1990s by Southern Pacific.
Following the temporary closure of the Siskiyou grade into California and the shift of all
Southern Pacific personnel to Medford, the right-of-way was subdivided and sold for
private development, ending more than 100 years of railroad control.® In fairly rapid
succession, new commercial construction, most designated “Compatible” and placed with
the Modern Period: Late 20" C. Historic Period” style, have filled in the northern side of A

7 See Sites 149.0 and 152.0. A wood-frame lumber yard structure, probably connected with the White Fir
Lumber Company stood on the site of Ashland Hardware/A Street Office Supply (150.0) into the 1980s.

8 Southern Pacific eventually sold its interests in the line through Ashlandand the company’s successor, RailTex,
has re-opened the line over the Siskiyou Mountains between Ashland and Yreka, California so that rail freight
traffic once again moves through Ashland on a daily basis.
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Street for the length of the district. {See, for example, Site 51.0 or 155.0) At the extreme
NE corner, near the intersection of A and 8" Streets, the City of Ashland’s Parks and
Recreation Department with substantially neighborhood involvement, secured a portion of
the former right-of-way and this has been development into Railroad Park. (159.0)

Within the core of the Ashland Railroad District, recent years have seen increasing
commercial development. While some has taken the form of entirely new construction,
such as the Heritage Bank (38.0, 1979) or the Ashland Community Food Store (39.0,
1993) another growing trend involves the conversion of early residential structures for
professional office space. Concentrated along portions of B and Second streets, this trend
generally has resulted in minimal alteration to the architectural character of the district.

CONSTRUCTION:

Information on the individual resources within the Ashland Railroad Addition Historic
District follows. Please refer to the district map for location, keyed by “ID Number.”
These ID or site numbers serve as the framework for the nomination’s organization and
have been assigned in a generally north-to-south pattern, beginning at the area’s NE corner,
continuing sequentially through the district on a block by block pattern with individual
resources within blocks numbered in ascending order by tax lot number.

ID# 1.0 Survey #1

POWELL, THADDEUS HOUSE 1910c
337 OAKST 3NEN4CC 5801
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Historic Contributing

This wood-frame hipped-roof cottage exhibits design characteristics typically associated with
the Bungalow style, including decorative rafter tails, a full width front porch, and 8/1 double
hung wood sash. The house retains high integrity to its historic character. Thaddeus Powell, a
“miner,” and his wife Laura built this house around 1910 and occupied it through 1952.% A
goured concrete single-car gara%g faces onto Van Ness and dates at least from 1928 according to

anborn Fire Insurance maps. The Powell House retains high integrity and effectively relates its
historic period of development.

9 Historic information in this document owes a substantial debt to Kay Atwood & Scott Clay, Ashland Cultural Resource
Inventory, 1984/1989. Funded by the City of Ashland with matching grants from the National Park Service in
cooperation with the Oregon State Historic Preservation office, this excellent document provides the basis for the
majority of historic comments contained herein. For cross-reference purposes, identification numbers as used in the
survey are provided in italics following the District identification number.
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ID # 2.0 Survey #2

MC NAIR, W. H. AND LORENA HOUSE 1910
323 QAK ST 391E04CC 5900

Builder: “Tate”
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Historic Contributing

A one-and one-half story wood-frame structure in the Bun%fllow style, the McNair House was
built for druggist William H. McNair. McNair married Lorena in 1909 and first built the
proper;y next door at 303 Oak Street. In November the Ashland Tidings noted “W. H. McNair
1s building a new bungalow on Qak Street. Contractor Tate has the job.” (Tidings, 8-Nov-1910)
McNair, a longtime Ashland businessman, remained at this address for many years. The
McNair House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 3.0 Survey#3

MC NAIR, W. H. HOUSE . 1909
303 OQAKST 321E04CC 6000
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Historic Contributing

This one-story hipped-roof cottage was built for local druggist William H. McNair following his
marriage to Lorena. The Ashland Tidings reported “W.H. McNair will build a nice bungalow on
his lot facing Oak Street.” gTidings, 5-Feb-1909, 3:3) Following McNair’s construction of

larger home next store at 323 Oak Street, his father James J. McNair lived here briefly. The
Mc%\!air family retained the property for rental use until the 1930s. The McNair House retains
very high integrity and effectivellJy relates its historic period of development.

ID# 4.0
VACANT LOT 0
0 OAKST 391EG4CC 6100
No Style Vacant

This parcel was originally a portion of what is now tax lot 6200 and was associated with the
lS)herrrlmn D& Powell House, below. No documentation regarding any structure on this site has
een located.

ID# 5.0 Survey#4

POWELL, D. SHERMAN HOUSE 1900
281 OAKST 391E04CC 6200

Builder: D. Sherman Powell
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Historic Contributing

This one and one-half story dwelling exhibits typical elements of the Bungalow style including a
full front porch, large exterior chimnl?/, and varied surface materials. Built for D. Sherman
Powell, a carpenter, the Ashland Tidings reported that “D. Sherman Powell has recently
completed a cottage for his own occupancy on Oak Street. (Tidings, 11-Jun-1900) Powell and
his wife Lillian retained ownership of the property through 1919 when it was sold for rental
pu(r{poses to G. W. Loosely, who lived next door. The Powell House retains very high integrity
and effectively relates its historic period of development.
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ID# 6.0 Survey #5

LOOSELY, GEORGE HOUSE 1917¢
263 OAK ST 391E04CC 6400
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Historic Contributing

This fine one-story wood-frame Bungalow-style dwelling may have been built by D. Sherman
Powell for George Loosely following the removal of an earlier dwelling on the site. Loosely
was married to Emma Anderson, a niece of Ashland-area pioneer E. K. Anderson. The Looselys
retained the property until 1926 when it was sold to Henry Enders who _converted it to rental
use. While its front porch has been enclosed, the Loosely House retains high integrity and
effectively relates its historic period of development.

ID# 7.0 Survey #6

MERLEY, JOSIAH HOUSE 1908
247 OAK ST 391E04CC 6500
Other: Vernacular Historic Contributing

This simgle wood-framed hipped-roof cottage boasts a full front porch underneath the main roof
and was built for Josiah Merley in 1908. Merely, a retired minister, was born in 1845 and died
only two years after the home was completed. His widow, Sarah, died two years later and the
house was occupied by William J. Mooney, probabgr a renter, according to the 1910 city
directory. The Merley House retains high integrity and effectively relates its historic period of

development.

ID# 8.0 Survey#7
BARNES, ALBERT HOUSE _ 1904
239 OAK ST 391E04CC 6600
Other: Vernacular [Queen Annel Historic Contributing

A two story wood frame dwelling, the Barnes House exhibits a modest “Queen Anne” influence
within a generally vernacular farmhouse character. Albert Barnes, a native of New York born in
1839, was a solicitor. He purchased this property from Jacob Thompson in 1904 and began
construction of the house immediately. The Barnes family remained in the home through 1915.
Later occupants included Bert and Muriel Smith, who resided here in 1948. The Barnes House
was used an antique store during the early 1980s and was converted to the present Bed and
Breakfast use a short time later. The Barnes House retains high integrity and effectively relates
its historic period of development.

ID# 9.0 Survey#8

SMITH, ELLIOTT HOUSE 1907¢
221 OAK ST 391E04CC 6700
Other: Vernacular Historic Contributing

A simple two-story wood frame dwelling, the Smith House was constructed circa 1907 for
Elliott F. and Hattie Smith. Smith, a livery man, ran the E. F. Smith and Sons stable on Water
Street with his sons Elmer and Bert. The family retained ownership at least through the 1920s.
In 1948 the house was occupied by Chester A. Smith although it is not clear what connection, if
any, to the Elliot Smith family remained.'0 While the large gable front porch, probably an
undocumented alteration of an earlier feature, is somewhat incompatible, the Smith-Elliott
retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

10 Nor is it clear if Bert Smith, the son and business partner of his father Elliott, is the same individual who lived at 239
Oak Street in the late 1940s.
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ID# 10.0 Survey#9

THOMPSON RENTAL HOUSE 1930
11 B STREET 391E04CC 6900
Other: Vernacular Historic Contributing

Built after 1928 and dated at 1930 by the Jackson County Assessor, the earl histor?/ of this
small one-story wood-frame cottage is unclear. No occupant is listed at the address in 1948 and
the earliest identified owner is I-g[arry Lee Thompson, a frequent speculator in Ashland real
estate, who probably used the cottage as rental during the WWII period. In 1952 he sold the
?roEerty to Angus Roe and Lela R. Potter. (JCD 374:5% They in turn transferred the prope“r% to
ackson County Federal Savings in 1958 and by 1964 John Hamilton was living here. ile
simple in design, the Thompson Rental House retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic
period of development.

ID # 11.0 Survey #3

CHAPMAN-MICKELSON HOUSE 1902¢
209 OAK ST 391E04CC 7000
Other: Vernacular [Queen Anne] Historic Contributing

This large two-story wood-frame dwelling exhibits many elements of the Queen Anne style,
including the decorative fans at the gable ends, the three-part central chimney and an irregular
and complex floorplan. The house was built in 1902 following transfer of the land from Jacob
Thompson to Henry Chapman. Chapman, a longtime area rancher first came to southern Oregon
in 1853 and established a farm east of Ashland. Leaving the area in 1860, he returned to the
Ashland area in 1880. Chapman died on October 18, 1903, .]ust a short time after the house was
completed. His sister Victoria, widow of Michael Mickelson, an early Ashland blacksmith,
moved here to care for her ailing brother and remained in the house after his death. By 1948
and likely earlier, the Chapman-Mickelson House had been converted for multiple-family use
and was divided into apartments. The 1948 city directly lists six units at this address. Still
Broviding multiple dwellings, various modifications diminish the historic character of the house
ut it nevertheless retains sufficient integrity to relate its historic period of development.

ID# 12.0 Survey #231

MILLER, V. D. & MYRTLE RENTAL HOUSE (w/ Major Addition) 1940/1994
8 B STREET 391E09BB 11000
Other: Vernacular (Altered) Non-Historic, Non-Contributing

Originally a small wood-frame residence, the earliest identified owners of this property are V.
D. and Myrtle B. Miller who owned the property in 1945. (JCD 264:357) The Millers
a parenlblly rented the progerty and Arthur B. Davis is listed at this address in 1948 while Mrs.
Sherel Myer rented in 1964. In 1994 a large addition to the rear and the construction of a
second floor dramatically altered the historic appearance of the Miller House. While
substantially altered and retaining limited connection to the original design, this essentially new
building remains compatible with the character of this portion of the Railroad District.

ID # 13.0 Survey #232

DAMON, GEORGE HOUSE 1925¢
14 BSTREET 391E09BB 11100

Builder: Damon, George
Arts & Crafts: Bungalow Historic Contributing

A one-story wood-frame cottage, the Damon House exhibits modest elements associated with
the Bungalow style. It was completed circa 1925, probably by George Damon, a carpenter and
native of Canada who purchased the property from prominent Ashiand businessman Gwin
Butler in 1919. Damon resided in Ashland as early as 1911, living and working at 11 B Street,
just across the street. In 1948 Lawsong Hayie lived here and in 1953 he purchased the house.
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